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MERYLLION RESOURCES CORPORATION

Meryllion wishes to have its Common shares listed on the TSX Venture Exchange

No securities regulatory authority or the TSV Venture Exchange has expressed an opinion about
the securities which are the subject of this application.
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

In this Application and the Schedules hereto (the “Listing Application*) the following terms
shall have the respective meanings set out below. Words importing the singular number shall
include the plural and vice versa. In the event of a conflict between the term defined in the
glossary and a term defined in the TSX Venture Exchange Policy Manual, the Exchange
definition will govern.

“Associate” has the meaning ascribed to it by Exchange Finance Manual Policy 1.1.

“Arrangement” means an arrangement under section 288 to 299 of the BC Act on the terms and
conditions set forth in the Arrangement Agreement and the Plan of Arrangement and any
amendment or variation thereto made in accordance with the terms of the Arrangement
Agreement, the Plan of Arrangement or made at the direction of the Court in the Final Order.

“Arrangement Agreement” means the arrangement agreement dated October 1, 2013 between
Concordia and Meryllion, as may be amended from time to time.

“Arrangement Resolution” means the special resolution of the Concordia Securityholders to
approve the Arrangement in form and content.

“Associate” has the meaning ascribed to it by Exchange Corporate Finance Manual Policy 1.1.

“BC Act” means the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia), as amended, superseded or
replaced from time to time, prior to the Effective Date.

“Business Day” means a day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or a day when commercial banks
are not open for business in Vancouver, British Columbia.

“Concordia” means Concordia Resource Corp., a company existing under the laws of the
Province of British Columbia.

“Concordia Amended Options” means the options to purchase New Concordia Common
Shares to be issued in exchange for the Concordia Options as part of the Arrangement.

“Concordia Convertible Securities” means all outstanding warrants, options or other securities
convertible into Concordia Shares.

“Concordia Options™ means the issued and outstanding options to purchase Concordia Shares at
varying exercise prices and with varying expiry dates.

“Concordia Optionholders” means the registered and beneficial holders of Concordia Options
on the Share Exchange Record Date.

“Concordia Securityholders” means the registered and beneficial Concordia Shareholders and
the registered and beneficial Concordia Convertible Securities.

“Concordia Shareholders” means the registered holders of Concordia Shares and “Concordia
Shareholder” means any one of them.

“Concordia Shares” means the common shares in the capital of Concordia and “Concordia
Share” means each such share.

“Consideration Shares” means the 106,489,000 New Concordia Common Shares to be issued
to HPX TechCo pursuant to the HPX TechCo Asset Purchase Agreement.
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“Court” means the Supreme Court of British Columbia.
“DRC” means the Democratic Republic of Congo.

“Ebende Project” means the exploration program targeting nickel-copper and platinum group
elements located in Katanga, south-central DRC.

“Effective Date” means the date that is five Business Days after the last of the conditions
precedent to the completion of the Arrangement have been satisfied or waived, or such earlier or
later date as is agreed to by the parties.

“Exchange” means the TSX Venture Exchange.

“Fairholme Option Agreement” means the Option Agreement between HPX TechCo and
Clancy whereby HPX TechCo has a right to earn into the Fairholme Project.

“Fairholme Project” means the copper-gold project located southeast of Condobolin in New
South Wales, Australia, which currently consists of two tenements, Fairholme EL6552 and
Manna EL6915 held by Clancy.

“Final Order” means the final order of the Court approving the Arrangement as such order may
be amended by the Court at any time prior to the Effective Date or, if appealed, then, unless such
appeal is withdrawn or dismissed, as affirmed or as amended on appeal.

“HPX TechCo” means HPX TechCo Inc., a company organized under the laws of the British
Virgin Islands.

“HPX TechCo Asset Purchase Agreement” means the asset purchase agreement between
Concordia and HPX TechCo dated October 1, 2013, whereby Concordia agrees to purchase the
HPX TechCo Assets from HPX TechCo in consideration for issuing the Consideration Shares to
HPX TechCo.

“HPX TechCo Assets” means collectively: i) Cdn.$5,000,000 in cash; ii) an 80% interest in the
Ebende Project; iii) HPX TechCo’s interest in the Fairholme Option Agreement; iv) the HPX
TechCo Loan; and v) the Service Agreement.

“HPX TechCo Loan” means the Cdn.$5,000,000 unsecured revolving line of credit that HPX
TechCo will provide Concordia pursuant to the HPX TechCo Loan Agreement.

“HPX TechCo Loan Agreement” means the loan agreement between HPX TechCo and
Concordia providing for the HPX TechCo Loan.

“HPX TechCo Closing Date” means the closing date under the HPX TechCo Asset Purchase
Agreement.

“La Providencia Project” means the Providencia silver-copper prospect located in the
municipality of Susques in the Province of Jujuy, in the northwestern high plain deserts
(Altiplano) region of Argentina.

“La Providencia Technical Report” means the Technical Report dated October 8, 2013 relating
to the La Providencia Project.

“MAS” means Meryllion Argentina SA.

“Meryllion” means Meryllion Resources Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of Concordia
incorporated under the laws of British Columbia.
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“Meryllion Board” means the board of directors of Meryllion.

“Meryllion Business” means Meryllion Sub, MAS, and the consolidated financial position,
statements of comprehensive loss, changes in equity and cash flows of the related Argentine
exploration business of Concordia.

“Meryllion Shares” means common shares in the capital of Meryllion and “Meryllion Share”
means each such share.

“Meryllion Sub” means Meryllion Minerals Corp., a wholly owned subsidiary of Meryllion
incorporated under the laws of British Columbia.

“Mineral Resource” has the meaning ascribed to it by the Canadian Institute of Mining
Definition Standards on Mineral Resources and Reserves.

“New Concordia Common Shares” means the common shares of New Concordia following the
completion of the Arrangement by Concordia

“Order” means a cease trade order, an order similar to a cease trade order or an order that denied
the relevant company access to any exemption under securities legislation that was in effect for a
period of more than 30 consecutive days.

“Plan of Arrangement” means the plan of arrangement made pursuant to the Arrangement
Agreement.

“RPA” means RPA Inc., the authors of the La Providencia Technical Report.

“Services Agreement” means the Service Agreement between Concordia and HPX TechCo,
whereby HPX TechCo agrees to provide geological survey services to Concordia.

“Share Exchange Record Date” means December 2, 2013, the date established by Concordia
for the purpose of determining (i) the Concordia Shareholders entitled to receive New Concordia
Common Shares, and Meryllion Shares; and (ii) the Concordia Optionholders that are entitled to
receive Concordia Amended Options under the Arrangement.

“Tax Act” means the Income 7Tax Act (Canada), as amended from time to time.

“Vend-In Agreement” means the vend-in agreement between Concordia and Meryllion dated
October 1, 2013.

“Vend-In Cash Amount” means approximately Cdn$4,740,000, plus Concordia’s Working
Capital as of the closing date of the Vend-in Agreement minus Cdn.$5,000,000 subject to the
closing adjustments.

“Working Capital” means current assets minus current liabilities.

ITEM 3: SUMMARY

The following is a summary of the principal features of Meryllion and should be read together
with the more detailed information and financial data and statement contained elsewhere in this
Listing Application.

Business of Issuer and Subsidiaries
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Meryllion is currently a subsidiary of Concordia. Pursuant to an arrangement agreement between
Concordia and Meryllion dated October 1, 2013, Meryllion and Concordia will effect an
arrangement, which will result in the spin out of Meryllion to Concordia Shareholders.
Following completion of the Arrangement, Meryllion Shares will be tradable on the Exchange.
After completion of the Arrangement, Meryllion’s business will be the exploration and
development of the La Providencia Project located in the Puna Region of northwest Argentina.

Risk Factors

There are certain risk associated with the securities and the business of Meryllion that should be
considered including the following:

e Meryllion’s exploration and mining activities will be focused in Argentina and will
therefore be subject to the risks of political and economic instability associated with this
country

e The development and success of the La Providencia Project will be largely dependent on
the future price of silver, copper and other metals

e Meryllion will need substantial additional financing in the future and cannot assure that
such financing will be available

e The volatility of the capital markets may affect Meryllion’s access to and cost of capital

e Currency fluctuations may affect the costs that Meryllion incur in its operations

e The potential acquisition and exploration of other resource properties is an inherently
risky business and there is no assurance that economic mineral deposits will be
discovered
There can be no assurance that Meryllion’s operations will be profitable in the future or
will generate sufficient cash flow to satisfy their respective working capital requirements

e Meryllion’s respective prospects depend on its ability to attract and retain qualified
personnel

e Future mining operations and exploration activities are subject to laws and regulations
relating to the protection and remediation of the environment

e As a participant in the resource extraction industry, Meryllion may face opposition from
local and international groups
The costs of complying with applicable laws and governmental regulations may have an
adverse impact on Meryllion’s business
Meryllion’s insurance coverage may not cover all of its potential losses, liabilities and
damages related to its business and certain risks are uninsured or uninsurable

e Mining is inherently dangerous and subject to factors or events beyond Meryllion’s
control

e Directors and officers may be subject to conflicts of interest

e Competition in the mining industry may adversely affect Meryllion

Please see “Risk Factors” as set out in this Listing Application.
Meryllion Summary Financial Information

Audited financial statements of Meryllion Business for the years ended September 30, 2012 and
2011 combined with the nine month interim period ended June 30, 2013 are attached hereto as
Schedule “B”. Meryllion Business’ financial statements reflect the consolidated financial
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position, statements of comprehensive loss, changes in equity and cash flows of the related
Argentine exploration business of Concordia and Meryllion Sub.  The statement of
comprehensive loss for the period ended June 30, 2013 include a cumulative $2,704,000
(September 30, 2012 - $1,985,000; September 30, 2011 - $840,000) allocation of Concordia’s
general and administrative expenses. The allocation of general and administrative expenses was
calculated on the basis of the ratio of expenditures incurred on the La Providencia and Cerro
Amarillo properties as compared to the expenditures incurred on all of Concordia’s properties
during the periods. Management cautions readers of these financial statements, that the
allocation of expenses may not be indicative of the actual expenses that would have been
incurred had Concordia been operating as a separate, stand-alone public company for the periods
presented and do not reflect Concordia’s consolidated results of operations, financial position
and cash flows had Concordia been the stand-alone public company during the periods
presented. The results of operations are not necessarily indicative of the operating results of
future years.

The following table sets out selected financial information for the periods indicated and should
be considered in conjunction with the more complete information contained in the consolidated
financial statements of Concordia attached as Schedule “B” of this Listing Application. All
currency amounts are stated in Canadian dollars.

Amounts are in thousands of Canadian Dollars Year Ended Year Ended
except per share amounts Nine Month Period September 30, September 30,

Ended June 30, 2013 2012 2011

$ $ $
(unaudited) (audited) (audited)

TOLAL ASSEIS .veievveieeei oot e e e enee st eebenns 851 740 317
Exploration and evaluation assets......ccooveercrinnonans 770 562 236
Working capital (deficit) .....ocooooiiiiiins e 20 144 (152)

Long-term financial liabilities ...t veieeiiicnn. -

Total FeVEnUES ..oov ot - -
EXPONSES..ocviiiiet ettt et s 1.259 5.020 2.281
Total comprehensive 105S. .o, 1.175 5.275 2.305
Loss per common share (basic & diluted) ..o (0.07) (0.34) (0.19)




ITEM 4: CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Meryllion Resources Corporation was incorporated under the British Columbia Business
Corporations Act on July 25, 2013. The head office (and registered and records office) of
Meryllion is located at Suite 1100 355 Burrard Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 2G8.

Meryllion Resources
Corporation

(British Columbia)

100%

Meryllion Minerals Corp.
(British Columbia)

100%

llion Argentina 8.A,
{Argentina)
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ITEM 5: DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS

Summary

It is anticipated that Meryllion will be a natural resource company engaged in the acquisition and
exploration of resource properties in South America.

Three Year History
Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2011

On September 30, 2010, Meryllion Sub entered into an exploration and option agreement (the
“Cerro Amarillo Agreement”) to purchase the 14,000 hectare Cerro Amarillo-Cajon Grande
copper-gold property (the “Cerro Amarillo Property™) located in the Malargiie District, in the
Province of Mendoza, Argentina. Under the Cerro Amarillo Agreement, Meryllion Sub has the
exclusive right to engage in exploration activities on the Cerro Amarillo Property for up to 52
months (revised to 76 months in January 2012) before exercising its option to acquire a 100%
interest in the Cerro Amarillo Property.

On October 26, 2010, Concordia announced that it had established a new corporate entity to
conduct exploration activities in South America. Concordia’s board of directors approved
management’s recommendation that Concordia no longer focus exclusively on uranium
exploration in Canada and the United States. Given that mandate, MAS was created by
Concordia to undertake exploration programs in, and to acquire an interest in, South American
properties, with an emphasis on Argentina, Brazil and Peru. The new company, Meryllion Sub
was headed up by Willem Fuchter, PhD PGeo, a geologist with worldwide experience in gold
and base metal exploration. Concordia agreed to fund Meryllion with the goal of developing a
“property of merit” that will qualify for a TSX Venture Exchange listing. Dr. Fuchter will head
up the exploration effort with the support of a technical team headquartered in Buenos Aires.

In March 2011, MAS acquired an option to purchase (the “La Providencia Option
Agreement”) the La Providencia silver-copper prospect located in the Jujuy province of
northwestern Argentina. This agreement, between MAS and Humberto Julio Canepa, was
amended in March 2013 and covers the La Providencia and M. Tola properties. Under the terms
of the option agreement on La Providencia and M. Tola, MAS has the right to acquire a 100%
interest in these titles by making an initial payment of US$50,000 with additional escalating
option payments amounting to US$1,225,000 paid over the 72 months. The exercise fee is
US$950,000 if less than 50 million ounces of resources have been delineated (as defined by a
third-party, independent consultant), or US$1,950,000 if more than 50 million ounces of silver
are defined. The property is subject to a 1.5% NSR of which MAS can buy out for
US$3,000,000 if less than 50 million ounces of silver resources are defined, or for US$2,000,000
if more than 50 million ounces of silver resources are defined. Meryllion, in addition, is
committed to exploration expenditures of US$50,000 and US$100,000 in the first and second
years respectively.

In August 2011, MAS applied for two exploration concessions (cateos) amounting to the 15,500
hectares to the south of the Core Properties of La Providencia.

On September 2, 2011, MAS received authorization from the Directorate of Mines, Province of
Jujuy to proceed with drilling at the La Providencia Project.

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012
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In October 2011, MAS acquired two additional options to purchase two properties adjacent and
surrounding La Providencia: M. Olaroz Chico and Libertad (the “Rojo Agreements™). The
option agreements became effective in June and July 2012 respectively.

The drilling program at La Providencia was completed in early February 2012, and some 4,519
m were drilled in 41 holes. The drilling not only provided the basis for the preliminary estimate
but has indicated the potential to expand these resources significantly between the pits by further
drilling and extend it along a well mineralized structure trending NW from the two northerly pits.
In addition, there are further targets on the property.

On March 2, 2012, Concordia announced the results of its first-stage drilling program at the La
Providencia Project in northwestern Argentina, where highlights included 4 meters of
mineralization at a grade of 3,112 g/t silver (DPR-0004); 1,788 g/t over 7 m (DPR-005) and 60.2
g/t over 44 m (DPR-033). The drilling program targeted near surface sediment-hosted silver
mineralization within the historic pit area of the former producing La Providencia Mine, with the
aim of delineating an initial resource in line with National Instrument 43-101 guidelines. A total
of 3,589.4 meters of core were drilled in 39 holes. The program has confirmed that
mineralization continues under the mined areas and peripheral to the pits, extending for up to 150
m down-dip to the east, 600 m along strike and has been intersected over down-hole thicknesses
averaging some 17 m (above 25 g/t Ag). Mineralization is open to the north and at depth.

The La Providencia Option Agreement between Meryllion Sub and Humberto Julio Canepa
dated March 4, 2011, was amended in March 2012. The La Providencia Project comprises four
mineral titles: La Providencia, M. Tola, M. Olaroz Chico and Libertad. Under the terms of the
option agreement on La Providencia and Tola, MAS has the right to acquire a 100% interest in
these titles by making an initial payment of US$50,000 with additional escalating option
payments amounting to US$1,225,000 paid over the 72 months. The exercise fee is
US$950,000 if less than 50 million ounces of resources have been delineated (as defined by a
third-party, independent consultant), or US$1,950,000 if more than 50 million ounces of silver
are defined. The property is subject to a 1.5% NSR of which Concordia can buy out for
US$3,000,000 if less than 50 million ounces of silver resources are defined, or for US$2,000,000
if more than 50 million ounces of silver resources are defined. Meryllion, in addition, is
committed to exploration expenditures of US$50,000 and US$100,000 in the first and second
years respectively.

On May 14, 2012, Concordia announced the completion of its initial field campaign at its Cerro
Amarillo copper-molybdenum-gold porphyry project in Argentina, with strong indications of
large copper-molybdenum-gold potential.

In June and July 2012, the Rojo Agreements became effective. These agreements were amended
in May 2013 and require that MAS make payments of US$1,060,000 over 81 months in order to
earn a 100% interest in the properties.

In addition, a 1% NSR royalty is due with an option to buy out the NSR royalty for US$500,000.
In addition, an exploration-with-option-to-purchase agreement was signed effective July 11,
2012 with Jorge Bragantini (the “Bragantini Agreement”) for the Cerro Galdn, Coyaguaima,
Coranzuli, Panizos, and Nazarena properties, which are situated in the district (that also hosts
Silver Standard’s Pirquitas Ag-Sn mine) but are not contiguous to the La Providencia Project.
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This agreement was amended in July 2013, and stipulates a series of annual option payments
amounting to US$270,000 over 72 months as well as a final purchase price of US$740,000 in
order to earn a 100% interest in the properties. These titles are also subject to a NSR royalty of
1% which can be purchased for US$500,000.

On August 30, 2012, Concordia announced an inferred resource estimate of 5.4 million ounces
of silver from the La Providencia Project, Argentina as prepared by independent consultants
RPA of Vancouver, Canada.

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

Late in 2012, the owners of Cerro Amarillo Property applied for an additional and contiguous
2,500 hectares directly to the south of the original property and included this area in the original
agreement by signing an addendum to the option agreement. During 2013, Meryllion proposed
further mapping and sampling of the four additionally identified anomalies prior to the execution
of a first stage target testing drill program for which Meryllion is currently in the process of
obtaining the necessary permits and permissions. Towards this end, environmental reports and
glaciological studies have been submitted to the Departments of Mining and Environmental
Protection for evaluation. Additional sectorial reports from the Department of Water Affairs as
well as the Municipality of Malargiie were requested and the meetings have been held with the
federal and provincial mining authorities as well as officials of Malargiie who have all expressed
their support for the project. The report from the Department of Water Affairs has been
completed and all reports are currently being assessed by the Department of Mining.

Meryllion Resources Corporation was incorporated on July 25, 2013 under the BC Act.
Subsequent to September 30, 2013

On October 1, 2013, Concordia executed an agreement with Fitzcarraldo Ventures Inc. (“FVT”)
and Willem Fuchter (“Fuchter”) whereby a 1% net smelter return royalty is due jointly to FVI
and Fuchter on any production from La Providencia and Cerro Amarillo. Concordia has the right
to buy half of the royalty for US$500,000.

On October 1, 2013 Meryllion entered into the Vend-In Agreement and Arrangement
Agreement. Pursuant to the Vend-in Agreement, in consideration for the issuance of 17,125,509
Meryllion Shares, Concordia has transferred and sold to Meryllion 100% of the shares of
Meryllion Sub and the Vend-in Cash Amount.

For information on the Arrangement Agreement please see Schedule “C” to this Listing
Application.

MINERAL PROPERTIES

La Providencia Project

Disclosure of a scientific or technical nature in this Listing Application, as derived from the La
Providencia Technical Report, in respect of each of Meryllion’s material mineral projects was
prepared by or under the supervision of Dave Rennie, a qualified person. A copy of the La
Providencia Technical Report is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.
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Property Description and Location

The La Providencia Project is located in the municipality of Susques in the Province of Jujuy, in
the northwestern high plain desert (Altiplano) region of Argentina and comprises four contiguous
properties, five exploration concessions, and additional concession applications. The four
contiguous properties are La Providencia, Libertad, M. Tola, and M. Olaroz Chico (collectively,
the “Core Properties”). The Core Properties cover a combined area of 4,955.6 hectares. The
five exploration concessions cover approximately 9,504 hectares and the new concession
applications have a proposed area of 15,439.6 hectares.

The La Providencia and M. Tola properties were acquired by MAS from Sr. Humberto Julio
Canepa (the “Optioner”) under an exploration-with-option-to-purchase agreement in March
2011. Under terms of this agreement, MAS (the “Optionee™) has the right to acquire 100%
interest in the properties by making an initial payment of US$50,000 with additional escalating
option payments over 60 months. Other fees are due conditional upon the properties’ contained
silver resources as estimated by a qualified, independent third party. These properties are subject
to a 1.5% net smelter return (“NSR”) royalty payable to the Optioner on any production. This
royalty may be bought out, conditional upon the size for the estimated silver resource, by the
Optioner. The Optioner is also required to expend US$50,000 in exploration in the first year of
the agreement and US$100,000 in the second year.

In March 2013, an addendum to this agreement was signed by both parties increasing the option
period by a further two years for structured payments of an additional US$225,000. Meryllion
reports that US$375,000 have been paid in escalating payments under the terms of the amended
agreement.

Two separate exploration-with-option-to-purchase agreements with Sra. Silvia Rojo were signed
in October 2011 with respect to the M. Olaroz Chico and Libertad properties. These agreements
initially required that MAS make payments of US$1.0 million over 60 months in order to earn a
100% interest in the properties. In addition, a 1% NSR royalty is due with an option to buy out
the NSR royalty for US$500,000. In May 2013, the agreements were amended increasing the
period from 60 months to 84 months by making additional payments of US$60,000.

An exploration-with-option-to-purchase agreement with Sr. Jorge Bragantini was signed in June
2012 for the Cerro Galan, Coyaguaima, Coranzuli, Panizos, and Nazarena properties. This
agreement originally stipulated a series of annual option payments amounting to US$260,000
over 48 months as well as a final purchase price of US$740,000 in order to earn a 100% interest
in the properties. The properties are also subject to a NSR royalty of 1% which can be purchased
for US$500,000. There was an additional work commitment in the first year of US$100,000. In
July 2013, this agreement was amended increasing the period from 60 months to 72 months by
making additional payments of US$10,000. In addition, the work commitment of the first year
was spread over the life of the agreement.

Any production of metals from any property is subject to a 2% to 3% mine gate royalty due to
Jujuy province in addition to any other royalty agreements entered into by Meryllion.

The approximate centre of the four contiguous properties that comprise the main part of the
Project is 23° 16’ 32.6” S latitude and 66° 46’ 58.9” W longitude or Universal Transit Mercator
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(UTM) coordinate 726774.7 m E and 7424223.9 m S referencing the World Geodetic System
established in 1984 and updated in 2004 (WGS 84) Zone 19 S (Figure 4-1).

MAS has all required permits to conduct the proposed work on the property. MAS received a
drill permit in mid-August 2011 for the LA Providencia and M. Tola properties. In certain
designated areas the provincial authorities have granted extra-territorial rights to indigenous
communities and individuals. These rights are recognized under the Mining Code and are
treated as surface rights. Collective declarations (“actas”) have been signed with the
communities of El Toro and Olaroz Chico which grant MAS the right of access and support for
environmental permitting in exchange for providing affirmative hiring practices in favor of
members of the community. A similar acra has been signed with Sr. Santos Genaro Esquivel,
who holds the surface rights for the La Providencia and Libertad properties and for portions of
the M. Olaroz Chico and M. Tola properties, and in addition to a legally binding agreement
which stipulates the compensation for access and disturbances that may result from exploration
activities over his surface rights.

Accessibility, Climate, Local Resources, Infrastructure, and Physiography

The Core Properties that comprise the majority of the La Providencia Project area lie
approximately 45 km west-northwest of the town of Susques in the Puna region of Jujuy
province in northwest Argentina. Susques is approximately 240 km northwest of San Salvador de
Jujuy, the capital of Jujuy province, along the paved National Highway 52. Susques is also
approximately 680 km by road east of the port city of Antofagasta, Chile, and approximately 300
km by road northwest of the city of Salta, Argentina, the capital city of the adjacent Salta
province.

The Core Properties can be reached by road from Susques by driving 30 km west on National
Route 52 and turning northwest on an all-weather, unpaved Provincial Route 16 for
approximately 45 km to the junction with the all-weather unpaved Provincial Route 70.
Approximately two kilometres south of this junction is the single-lane, unpaved access road to
the Property. The La Providencia mine lies approximately 13 km west of Provincial Route 70
along this access road.

Typical of Altiplano regions the climate is dry with notable temperature fluctuations, strong
winds, and low precipitation. Summers are moderate to cool with temperatures ranging from
below zero Celsius at night to 28°C during the day. Winter temperatures range from night time
lows of -28°C to daytime highs of 10°C to 20°C. Strong westerly winds prevail throughout the
year.

The period of maximum precipitation occurs during the summer months as isolated, sometimes
violent, afternoon showers. During winter there are light and rare snowfalls. Total annual
accumulation seldom exceeds 350 mm (expressed in mm of water).

Exploration and mining activities can usually be conducted year-round.

The area is sparsely populated with indigenous herdsmen that make a subsistence living from
a1erding llamas, goats, and sheep. The town of Susques, the seat of local government, has a
population of approximately 2,000 and is a service center for this sparsely populated Puna
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region. Susques hosts a number of guest houses, largely catering to a thriving ecotourism trade, a
recently established government clinic, a bank, various truck stops, and a number of shops
supplying a limited range of provisions. The local salt flats (salars) have been the focus of recent
lithium exploration in the region and local contractors have been involved in exploration and
development activities in support.

When mining was being conducted, general labour was sourced from the local indigenous
communities. Technical staff and consultants were recruited from other parts of Argentina and
internationally.

A gas pipeline between Argentina and Chile is located six kilometres north of the La Providencia
Project and the main power line between the two countries runs approximately 90 km to the
south of the contiguous Core Properties. There is little perennial water in the area. The largest
river in the area, Rio Rosario, is located 30 km to the north of the La Providencia mine, and
carries varying amounts of water throughout the year. The Salar Olaroz contains brackish water
at or near the surface. There are, however, a few permanent fresh water springs in the area, such
as the ones that supply water for the camp.

At the time of acquisition by Meryllion Sub the facilities at the La Providencia Project
comprised: four shallow open pits, a tailings dam composed of approximately 200,000 t of
material, a conventional 150 tpd crushing/milling/flotation plant, workshops and generator
building, and camp facilities.

Previous operations ceased in 1997 and the infrastructure was in poor order at the time of
acquisition. In order to execute its exploration campaign, MAS made extensive repairs to the
camp facilities, established a core storage and logging and sampling facility, leased container
units to act as additional accommodations and sanitary facilities, installed a 67 kW diesel
generated power supply, and established a bulk fuel storage facility.

The Project area lies in the geographical region known as the Puna which is the southern
extension of the Bolivian Altiplano with an average elevation greater than 4,000 MASL ranging
up to 4,700 MASL. Topography in the area is gentle to moderate with a maximum relative relief
in the order of 700 m. The physiography can be described as basin-and-range, with linear ranges
separating wide flat valleys which host salars. Vegetation is typically stunted as in other high
plains desert areas. It consists of low, resinous shrubs locally known as folas which are used as
heating and cooking fuel by the local population.

History

Mineralization at the vicinity of the La Providencia Project was first identified in 1969 wher
copper carbonates and native silver were found.

In 1973, an early report to the Argentine government described the results of a topographic
survey, geological mapping, and sampling of an area where the Central and South Pits are now
located.

Falconbridge Ltd. conducted limited exploration in area in 1974 but no follow-up work was
done.
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A small scale operation was established on the site between 1975 and 1982. A pilot plant was
erected by a private company from Salta, Argentina.

Minera Aguilar optioned the property in 1981 and conducted detailed exploration including
geological mapping, topographic and geochemical surveys, and an IP geophysical survey.
Minera Aguilar also drilled 22 diamond drill holes (diameter unknown), for an aggregate length
of 1,635 m before allowing the option to lapse.

Between 1980 and 1982, the German Mission for Technical Cooperation in Mining (“MTC”) in
conjunction with the National Bank of Development completed a comprehensive exploration
program of geological mapping, trenching, mineralogical and metallurgical studies, and
excavation of deep test pits. This work resulted in the delineation of non-NI 43-101-compliant
mineral resources.

In 1983 Shell/CAPSA optioned the property. Dr. Richard Sillitoe conducted a property
examination and recommended further work in the immediate vicinity of the small workings as
well along the Miocene basin as a whole. The subsequent program comprised further geological
mapping, trenching, geophysical surveying (scintillometer), rock geochemistry, and the drilling
of three shallow holes to the north of the mine (diameter and depths unknown). The option was
not renewed.

Metallgesellschaft, in joint venture with local Argentine company Rio Cincel re-evaluated the
GMTC results in 1985. Results of this work are not known.

Compafiia Minera Providencia (“CMP”) was incorporated in Argentina in 1986 by a group of
businessmen with the specific objective of putting the La Providencia Project into production. A
feasibility study was completed. Four shallow open cuts were developed and the 150 tpd
flotation plant was erected on site together with workshops, powerhouse, office block, and camp.
A smelter was also built on the outskirts of San Salvador de Jujuy, Argentina to process the
silver-lead-zinc-copper concentrate.

In 1993, Fondinor acquired the smelter as a settlement of CMP’s debt and entered in an
agreement with CMP whereby Fondinor became the operator of the mine and agreed to pay
CMP a monthly stipend based on production. Operations ceased in 1997 with a reported 4.8 M
oz of silver produced from 273,243 t mined with an average grade of 548 g/t Ag.

In 1999, Pefioles conducted an exploration program that comprised surface sampling and an IP
survey. An option agreement could not be reached with the property owners so no further work
was done.

Cardero Resource Corp. (“Cardero™) entered into an option agreement and conducted an
extensive exploration program in 2002. The work comprised geological mapping, soil sampling,
rock chip sampling, two diamond drill programs for a total of 2,210 m drilled in 29 HQ-diameter
(63.5 mm) drill holes, and nine reverse circulation drill holes for a total depth of 2,332 m. A
resource estimate was prepared but not publically disclosed. Cardero allowed the option to lapse
in 2004,

Geological Setting



-16 -
Regional

The La Providencia Project is located along the Bolivian Tin Belt which extends from southern
Peru through central Bolivia into northwestern Argentina. This belt is characterized by tin-
tungsten-silver-lead-zinc deposits but hosts a number of copper and copper-silver sedimentary
(red-bed) and/or exotic deposits, particularly along its western margin. Deposits within this belt
can be correlated with thick sequences of Paleozoic (Ordovician/Silurian) marine sedimentary
rocks, intermediate to felsic Tertiary-age magmatism, and large Andean structures especially
those trending north to northwest.

Local

The properties are located within a basin-and-range type terrane with north-trending linear
blocks bounded by high angle reverse faults separating Tertiary-age strike-slip (pull-apart)
basins, many of which have developed salt flats or salars. The north-trending structures are cut
by fractures and lineaments trending northwest and, to a lesser extent, northeast. Superimposed
on to this landscape is the Upper Tertiary volcanic arc, comprising volcanic and intrusive rocks,
the emplacement of which has largely been controlled by these structures. The district is
characterized by two large, north-trending mountain ranges: the Sierra de Lina in the west and
the Sierra de Tanques to the east which separate the centrally located Salar Olaroz and Cauchari
basin from the Laguna de Jama in the west and the Rio Las Charcos to the east. The LA
Providencia Project area is located within a pull-apart sub-basin along the eastern flank of the
Sierra de Lina.

The basement rocks of the basin comprise marine sedimentary rocks of Ordovician age which
have been correlated with the wide-spread Acoite Formation. The valley-fill sequence in the La
Providencia Project area comprises red-colored medium grained sandstones with minor
conglomerate lenses that are tentatively correlated with the Eocene-age Casa Grande Formation.
The Eocene sandstones are, in turn, overlain by the Miocene-aged conglomerates and
intercalated volcaniclastic sandstones of the Vizcachera Formation. These are the conglomerates
that host the silver-copper and copper mineralization in the district. Overlying these, in angular
unconformity, are the debris flows and pyroclastic rocks of the Pliocene-age Pastas Chicas
formation.

Property

All lithologies in the vicinity of the La Providencia Project have been altered to a varying degree
both locally and on a property scale. Pervasive hematization has resulted in the red hue evident
in the Dark Red Conglomerate and the Eocene sandstones. Approaching the mineralized zones,
carbonate content in the rocks becomes higher and, as mineralization increases, there is an
increase in the abundance of sericite until, in the core of the higher grade zone, sericite appears
to replace biotite and plagioclase. Calcite, on the other hand, appears depleted in the higher grade
core zones.

Exploration

After the agreement to acquire the La Providencia and M. Tola properties was signed with the
Optioner in March 2011, MAS undertook the following work:



-17-

e Compilation of all previous exploration data;
e Confirmation sampling of mineralization within the La Providencia Project area;

e Preparation of a controlled base map, from satellite data, for the 116 km? area in the Core
Properties area;

e Geological mapping within the mine environment and along the eastern flank of the La
Providencia sub-basin;

Geomorphological mapping in the Core Properties area with a view to identifying
geochemical environments for subsequent soil sampling campaigns;

e Ground magnetic survey around the open pits; and

Development of a drill proposal and preparation of an environmental study as part of a
permit acquisition submission to the Provincial Directorate of Mining (the Directorate) in
Jujuy, Argentina.

Considerable data was collected from the previous campaigns of GMTC, Minera Aguilar, and
Cardero, and compiled by Cookenboo (2011a and 2011b) and Rice (2011a). This compilation
formed the basis for developing the exploration program and subsequent drill proposal.

Meryllion engaged PhotoSat Information Ltd (“PhotoSat”) of Vancouver, British Columbia to
acquire a high resolution (greater than 0.5 m) stereo colour image for the 116 km? area including
and surrounding the Core Property area. This was used to generate one-meter contours and a
digital terrain model (DTM) for use as a base map for all subsequent work.

PhotoSat acquired the data from the GeoEye-1 satellite. Prior to acquisition of the image from
the satellite, MAS positioned nine target crosses within the 116 km? area and had these targets
surveyed by local surveyor Sr. Sumbaino from Jujuy using a dual frequency Global Positioning
System (GPS) Ashtek. The crosses were laid out to PhotoSat specifications as documented by
Cires, and the survey data were collected in the Posgar 94 system which incorporates the Gauss
Kruger projection with the WGS 84 datum. The area with targets was then over-flown by the
GeoEye-1 system and data were acquired. These data were then processed together with the
ground survey information and transformed from an ellipsoidal to an orthometric format, and
subsequent digital elevation models (“DEM’’s) were generated in orthometric form.

Confirmation sampling in and around the pits at the La Providencia Project was undertaken by
Rice, and Fernandez and Vézquez Zarzosa. Rice took mainly rock samples while Fernandez and
Vézquez Zarzosa took channel samples.

The samples were taken from pit walls and outcrops encompassing and area measuring
approximately one kilometre by 200 m wide. The results received from the channel and rock
sampling are as follows:
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RESULTS OF CONFIRMATION SAMPLING
Concordia Resource Corp. — La Providencia Silver Project

Sample Location Ag Cu Pb Zn
(ppm) (ppm) (ppm) _ (ppm)

1255 South Pit - Bench 3, C3 453 7180 4,260 3,680
1256 South Pit - Bench 5, C1 54 363 4670 6,220
1257 South Pit - Bench 7, C3 402 3,780 3,210 5,250
1258 South Pit - Bench 7 945 8,630 3,030 5,660
1259 West Pit 1,940 36,200 7,910 2,360
1260 Central Pit 2,380 17,250 14,200 3,680
1262 Central Pit - South Face 698 5300 19,150 1,890
1263 South Pit - Bench 8 4,160 16,250 2,460 3,820
1266 West Pit 19 374 12,350 3,350
1267 Base of "Crud Hill" 204 2,540 1,100 4,010
1268 North Pit - East Face 1,280 13,550 867 1,270
1269 North Pit - East Face 470 5,260 6,600 1,400
1270 North Pit - East Face 508 4,460 6,950 1,500
1271 North Pit - West Face 518 5,590 864 2,760
1272 North Pit - West Face 159 714 613 1,540
1273 North Pit - West Face 96 398 295 1,440
1274 North Pit - West Face 5 27 281 1,750
1275 North Pit - West Face 76 406 183 1,610
4076 North Pit - West Face 768 10,950 874 2,420
4077 North Pit - West Face 16 22 247 1,820
4078 North Pit - West Face 820 9,800 338 1,930
4079 Below West Pit 430 11,800 679 2,080
4081 West Pit 535 6,490 4,740 2,650
4082 South Road Cut 149 3,770 2,520 3,710
4083 South Hill - Lower Pit 12 290 14,050 1,870
4084 North Pit - South Face 645 7,320 19,400 3,990
4085 Side of "North Hill" 1 23 697 843

Geological mapping was done by Cookenboo and Rice. Cookenboo described the various
geological units and mapped out their extent in the mine area and also defined the stratigraphy.

Véazquez Zarzosa and Fernandez mapped the geomorphology of much of the Core Property area
with the objective of describing geomorphological elements and defining geochemical
environments. This information was designed to be used in the interpretation of planned

geochemical soil surveys results.

Quantec Geoscience Argentina SA (“Quantec”) of Mendoza, Argentina was contracted to
undertake a ground magnetic survey of the mine area and adjacent ground to the north. Quantec
carried out the 179.6 line-km survey using GEM Systems GSM-19 Overhauser magnetometers.
Readings were taken every ten metres on lines spaced 100 m apart. The results are documented

in reports by Quantec (2011, 2012).
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The survey was undertaken by two teams, each consisting of two operators. The forward
operator carried a hand-held 12-channel GPS and marked the survey lines at 100 m intervals.
The magnetometer operator followed a short distance recording measurements at ten metre
intervals in Stop-and-Go mode. The diurnal correction was accomplished with a base station
synchronized to the mobile magnetometers. The base station sampling was at three second
intervals, allowing diurnal correction interpolating every third reading.

Data processing comprised, after correction for diurnal drift, importation of data into GEOSOFT
OASIS MONTAJ, applying the projection to the data (WGS84 UTM Zone 19S), eliminating
spurious and exceptional readings, and gridding the data. Various calculations were then
performed and maps produced.

Meryllion notes the narrow range of the magnetic response which is to be expected as the
lithologies are basin sediment fill. The routine measurement of susceptibility of the core,
however, does indicate that the PSs generally has a higher susceptibility than the conglomerates
and the WSs.

Meryllion is of the opinion that the high intensity domains may be reflecting the pink mudstone
on account of the higher susceptibility encountered in drill core for this unit. The north-
northeast-trending band may reflect mudstones deposited on top of conglomerates along the
western margin of the Miocene-aged basin. It is more difficult, however, to ascribe the finger-
like extensions in the western Ordovician or the southeast-trending band passing through the
North and Central Pits at the La Providencia Project, especially since river courses associated
with the finger-like extension have no significant sediment deposition. This feature may reflect
some magnetic constructive alteration process. The funnel-shaped domain may reflect alteration
along the mineralized trend, and the higher analytical signal areas potentially associated with
alteration and possibly mineralization.

MAS geologists are of the opinion that there is exploration potential in the Core Property area as
well as in the recently acquired concessions to the north. The mineralization remains open-ended
in a number of directions, notably between the open pits, along the trace of a recently-identified
structure which trends to the northwest, and at depth. RPA concurs with this opinion and
recommends that exploration activities continue to find additional Mineral Resources.

Mineralization

The volcaniclastic portion in the upper Vizcachera Formation marks the beginning of the Upper
Miocene (11 Ma to 5 Ma) magmatic arc characterized by stratovolcanoes with extensive
associated pyroclastic rocks and debris flows, as well as ignimbrites that are related to magmatic
centers. Dacite dykes and domes are present along the margins of various mountain ranges.
These features are controlled by the north- and northwest-trending Andean structures that display
a distinct magnetic signature. At the La Providencia Project there is a flexture in the magmatic
arc and a change in the direction of the magnetic signature from northwest to northeast.

Silver-copper mineralization hosted by the gently-dipping, poorly consolidate Green Carbonate
Member has been the focus of most of the historical mining activity at the La Providencia
Project. Previous work done by Cardero, and confirmation work done by MAS, indicates the
presence of a numerous mineralized lenses generally within conglomerate units. The most
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extensive of these, the Main Lens, is located in the central part of the upper conglomerates of the
Vizcachera Formation. Drilling has indicated that additional mineralized lenses below the Main
Lens are hosted by conglomerate units interbedded with the sandstones of the Eocene-age Casa
Grande Formation. Mineralization also manifests itself in the White Sandstone immediately
above a set of steeply dipping structures running down the center of the pits. Mineralization is
vein-poor with low sulphide volumes and takes the form of irregular infiltration/replacement of
the sedimentary units. The silver-copper mineralization is enriched in arsenic, cadmium, copper,
manganese, lead, antimony and zinc.

Drilling

The MAS diamond drilling program at the La Providencia Project commenced in late August
2011 and the first-stage program was completed in February 2012. A total of 41 holes were
drilled with an aggregate length of 4,508.9 m.

The main goal of the program was to further define the silver-copper mineralization hosted in the
gently-dipping, poorly consolidated GCM. Additional mineralization below the PSs, intersected
in previous programs, was a secondary target. Meryllion specifically set out to:

Undertake routine drilling along fences across the Main Lens in order to confirm its
presence and to facilitate the preparation of a NI 43-101-compliant resource estimate;

e Test for mineralization in the lithologies below the PSs under the South and North Pits as
well as north of the North Pit in order to guide future drilling for additional resources at
depth; and

e Twin a number of previously drilled holes in order to compare and contrast analytical
results with the goal of integrating the various exploration data sets.

Drill sites were laid out by a surveyor using a Topcon Total Station 3200 under supervision of a
MAS geologist, and collar positions were subsequently picked up by Servicios Topograficos SA
of Salta, Argentina, using a high precision Geodesic Double Frequency Trimble 5700 GPS.
Down-hole surveys were done by the drilling contractor, Major Perforaciones SA (*Major”) of
Mendoza, Argentina, a subsidiary of Major Drilling Group International Inc., using a Reflex
Smart Tool with readings taken every 15 m for holes less than 30 m in length or every 30 m for
deeper holes.

Major mobilized a UDR200D drill with the capability of drilling both HQ- (63.5 mm) and PQ-
(85.1 mm) diameter holes. The majority of the holes (33) were drilled with PQ-size equipment
and the remaining eight holes were HQ-diameter. Because of the poorly consolidated nature of
the conglomerates, triple tube core barrels were utilized, and recovery was further enhanced with
the addition of bentonite and bio-degradable organic polymers to the drilling fluids. Core
recovery was generally good averaging over 90%, but initial problems in early holes (DPR-006,
DPR-007, and DPR-008) required re-drilling in order to achieve acceptable recoveries.

Drill core was taken out of the core barrel and directly transferred into wooden core boxes.
Meterage of the start and end of each box was marked by the drill rig geologist and the down
hole depth at the end of each core run was marked with wooden blocks by the driller. Rock
Quality Designation and recovery measurements were taken by the drill rig geologist. At the end
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of each drill shift, core boxes were moved by pick-up truck from the drill site to the receptior
area of the logging facility.

At the logging facility, the full core was photographed both wet and dry. Logging was
undertaken on A3 format logging sheets by the logging geologists who then entered the data into
a computer. Lithology, alteration, mineralization, and structural information were recorded by
the logging geologist following the recommendations made by Cookenboo (2011f, 2011g).
Magnetic susceptibility measurements were routinely taken, and half of the split core was stained
for carbonate species identification. Sample intervals were marked up by the logging geologist,
at one metre intervals in all units with the exception of the WSs and the Eocene Sandstones
where two metre samples were marked. Because of the nature of the conglomerates, core was
wrapped with masking tape before being cut longitudinally using a diamond saw. Once cut, one
half of the specimen was placed in a dedicated plastic sample bag with a uniquely numbered
sample ticket and the remaining half core was returned to the core box for later reference and
testing. RPA notes that the sampling process resulted in some degradation of the remaining core
due to crumbling of the matrix.

The most recent drill program established that mineralization peripheral to the historical open
pits extends up to 150 m down-dip to the east and has been intersected over downhole
thicknesses of up to 44 m.

In RPA’s opinion the procedures and protocols followed by Meryllion and its contractors in
locating, drilling, conducting down-the-hole surveys, logging, and sampling are consistent with
industry-standard practice. The orientations of the diamond drill holes are such that mineralized
intersections, in RPA’s opinion, adequately represent the true thickness of the mineralized
bodies. The sampling is representative of the mineralization.

Sampling and Analysis

A total of 4,232 core samples were sent to ALS Minerals in Mendoza, Argentina for sample
preparation. Once prepared, the samples were sent to another ALS Minerals laboratory in Lima,
Perti for analysis. Both ALS Minerals laboratories are independent ISO/IEC 17025:2005
accredited and ISO 9001:2008 registered facilities. Samples were shipped to Mendoza,
Argentina via Autotransportes Andesmar SA (“Andesmar”), an Argentina-wide bus and
transport company, under an arrangement between ALS Minerals and Andesmar. Meryllion
reports this arrangement includes formally established chain-of-custody protocols. The sampling
and core storage facility is located in a remote area, and was supervised continuously by
Meryllion personnel. Only Meryllion personnel or their designates were allowed access to the
samples. In RPA’s opinion, the sample security measures undertaken by Meryllion met a
reasonable standard consistent with common industry practice.

At ALS Minerals, the samples were crushed and a one kilogram portion was split off and
pulverized to 85% passing 75 pm. A 50 g aliquot was taken from the pulverized material and
analyzed for gold and silver by FA with a gravimetric analysis finish. An additional 0.5 g aliquot
was taken and subjected to a four acid digestion and then analyzed using ICP with atomic
emission spectroscopy (“AES”) final analysis. Any ICP-AES result exceeding 10,000 ppm for
copper, lead, or zinc was reanalyzed by four acid digestion with AAS analysis.
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Quality assurance and quality control (“QA/QC”) samples were included into the sample stream
and the resulting data were analyzed independently by Lynda Bloom, M. Sc., P. Geo, of
Analytical Solutions Ltd. (“ASL”) of Toronto, Ontario. The QA/QC program consisted of the
insertion of one certified reference material (“CRM?”) for every 36 samples and the insertion of
one coarse barren CRM (blank) for every 65 samples. After completion of the program, a suite of
pulp and reject duplicates were sent to an independent secondary laboratory. The primary
laboratory, ALS Minerals, conducted their own routine duplicate assay of pulps as part of their
internal QA/QC protocols.

Data was provided to ASL in a series of spreadsheets. The objective of the review was to inspect
the silver and copper results returned from the CRMs and blanks and to identify and document
any bias in the assays and/or any potential sources of contamination. It was concluded by ASL
that the results did not indicate any evidence of systematic silver contamination based on 50
blank samples that had been inserted.

Two CRMs were used during the course of the diamond drilling program and a total of 180
samples were introduced into the sample stream sent to ALS Minerals. ASL found no QA/QC
failures or mislabels. A total of 123, or 97%, of the CDN ME-4 assays and 56, or 96%, of the
OREAS 132b assays reported within = 10% of the expected value for silver and copper.

Overall the results for CDN ME-4 do not indicate a bias for silver but it was observed that prior
to December 2011 results were between 0% and 10% below the expected value and, after that
time, the results ranged between 5% and 10% higher than the expected value. The same trend
was also observed for copper results. Only five CDN ME-4 samples were analyzed for gold.
Two of the five samples reported below the expected value, but ASL concluded that they were
within acceptable limits.

The majority of the assays for the OREAS 132b CRM were biased approximately 4.5% high for
both silver and copper results. This variation was attributed to a difference in acid digestion used
by ALS Minerals and no further action was taken. A total of 91 reject and 83 pulp samples were
submitted to ACME Analytical Laboratories S.A. (“ACME”) in Mendoza, Argentina, for re-
analysis. ACME is an independent ISO 9001:2000 registered laboratory. No core duplicates were
taken due to the lack of and/or poor quality of the remaining sample material after the primary
samples had been taken. Of the 83 pulp samples sent, 16 were not run due to an insufficient
volume of sample material, and four did not have a corresponding original assay in the database.
RPA plotted the remaining 63 duplicate pairs on a scatter diagram to compare the results from
the two laboratories. In RPA’s opinion, there was very good agreement between the two sets of
assay results.

Of the 91 reject duplicates, eight were not assayed due to insufficient sample material. The
remaining 83 pairs were plotted on a scatter diagram to check for bias. In RPA’s opinion, there
was reasonably good agreement between the two sets of reject duplicates.

RPA reviewed the assay QA/QC results as reported by ASL (2012) and concurs with the general
conclusions of that report that the assaying appeared to be reasonably accurate and unbiased.
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MAS twinned two drill holes (one was twinned twice) to compare the results of HQ versus PQ
core. Hole DPR-003 was an HQ size hole that was twinned by two PQ holes: DPR-002 and
DPR-001. Hole DPR-004 was a PQ size hole twinned by an HQ hole (DPR-005).

The two sets of twin holes show similar profiles with respect to widths of the mineralized zones.
Silver grades compare well in the 001/002/003 set of holes. However, in the 004/005 set, there is
significant higher variability. In RPA’s opinion, there is reasonably good agreement between the
twinned holes, and there does not appear to be any clear evidence to suggest that one core size
provides better results than the other.

Security of Samples

Data were collected and stored on a server at site, which was backed up to a remote drive twice
per day. Twice monthly the database was backed up and copied to the Meryllion office in
Buenos Aires. Only two people were authorized to access and modify the database. Once in
digital format, the drilling information was imported to a GEMS database and reviewed for
accuracy by the Project Manager.

In RPA’s opinion, the sample preparation, security, and analytical procedures employed by
Concordia are adequate and comply with current industry standards.

Mineral Resource and Mineral Reserve Estimates

RPA has prepared a Mineral Resource estimate for the La Providencia Project. The estimate is
based on diamond drilling data collected by both MAS and Cardero. The estimate was carried
out using a block model constrained by three dimensional (3D) wireframe envelopes of the
mineralized zones, principal lithologies, structures, overburden, and the topographic surface.
Grades for silver and copper were estimated into the blocks using Inverse Distance Cubed (ID%
weighting. High grades were capped at 2,500 g/t Ag and 7,500 ppm Cu. An additional
restriction was placed on the range of influence of high-grade silver composites.

RPA evaluated the block model using Whittle pit optimization software. Blocks within the pit
shell generated from this analysis were subjected to a cut-off of 40 g/t Ag. Outside of the pit
shell, the block cut-off was 150 g/t Ag. Metal price used was US$27/0z Ag.

All Mineral Resources were classed as Inferred. The Mineral Resources estimate 1s summarized
as follows:

Summary of Inferred Mineral Resources — August 31, 2012

Concordia Resource Corp. — La Providencia Silver Project

Category Cut-Off Tonnes Ag Cu Ag Cu

(g/t Ag) &M (%) (07) (Ib)

Open Pit 40 981,000 155 0.074 4,900,000 72,400
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Underground 150 32,900 504 0.249 533,000 8,180

Total 1,014,000 166 0.080 5,430,000 80,600
Notes:

1. CIM definitions were followed for Mineral Resources.

2. Mineral Resources are estimated at the cut-off grades of 40 g/t Ag for open pit and 150 g/t Ag for
underground.

3. Mineral Resources are estimated using a long-term silver price of US$27 per ounce.

4. A nominal minimum mining width of 3 m was used.

5. Bulk density is 2.40 t/m’.

6. Numbers may not add due to rounding.

There are no Mineral Reserves for the La Providencia Project.
Environmental, Permitting, and Social Considerations

The holders of mineral rights in Argentina are obliged under the Mining Code to submit
Environmental Impact Reports prior to commencing exploration or exploitation, and to submit
additional reports every two years. Meryllion reports that MAS submitted, a number of reports,
written by EC & Asociados of Salta, Argentina, to the the Directorate in Jujuy, Argentina. The
Directorate also conducted an inspection of MAS’s exploration activities in September, 2011 and
subsequently issued a declaration of satisfaction.

There are signed actas between MAS and local communities which provide affirmative hiring
practices for their members. A proactive environmental management approach has also been
adopted by MAS by initiating reclamation activities as part of its exploration program and
liaising with the local communities on matters of the environment.

Exploration and Development
RPA made the following recommendations which Meryllion plans to implement:

e Bulk density measurements should be made from core specimens, and regular density
measurements should be included in the core logging protocols.

e As the project advances, the Cardero drill holes should be purged from the database and
replaced with new drilling.

Metallurgical testwork should be initiated.

e Exploration should continue in order to add to the Mineral Resources at the La
Providencia Project (discussed below).

RPA noted that MAS geologists have designed an exploration program for the next phases of
work on the property. Drill targets are already known to exist in the Core Property area. These
include the northwest projection of a recently identified structure trending out of the North Pit,
extensions to known mineralization in the area between the open pits, as well as some deeper
targets along the north-northeast trending fracture system. In addition to these targets, MAS
plans to continue with property-wide exploration to define new targets including initiation of
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work on its recently acquired concessions. This program would encompass geochemistry,
geological mapping, and prospecting to be followed up with ground magnetic and Controlled
Source Audio-Frequency Magnetotelluric (“CSAMT?) surveys. Provisions have also been made
to conduct metallurgical test work and bulk density measurements, as recommended by RPA.

The proposed budget for Phase I of the program is summarized as follows:
Phase I Exploration Budget

Concordia Resource Corp. — La Providencia Project

Item USS (000)
Mining Prop Costs 233
Permitting 12
Metallurgical Test Work 35
Geochem 45
Geophysics

CSAMT 80
Ground Mag 35
Camp 37
Field Expenses 5
Personnel 74
Transport 22
Travel 17
Total 595

The successful outcome of this program can then be subsequently followed up by a second
campaign of drilling which would comprise 4,000 m of HQ diamond drilling with the following
objectives:

e Expanding the existing Mineral Resources between the outlined pits.
Extending the resource to the south and northwest along the already identified structure.

e Testing structural, magnetic, and geochemical targets as outlined by the follow-up
exploration program.

RPA considered the proposed exploration to be warranted and recommends that it be carried out.

Non-Core Property Summaries and Exploration Updates

All scientific and technical information set out in this section has been prepared by and under the
supervision of or approved by Willem Fuchter, President and a director of Meryllion Argentina
S.A. and indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of Meryllion and a Qualified Person as defined under
National Instrument 43-101.
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Cerro Amarillo Property, Argentina

The Cerro Amarillo Property is a copper-gold-molybdenum located in the Malargiie District in
the Province of Mendoza, Argentina. The Cerro Amarillo Property lies at the southern end of the
highly productive late Miocene — Pliocene magmatic arc that hosts the El Teniente and Los
Bronces porphyry deposits in Chile. The Cerro Amarillo Property comprises some 14,000
hectares and contains three porphyry occurrences (Cerro Amarillo, Cajon Grande and C4) and an
additional four color/alteration anomalies (C2, C3, Southern Anomaly and Dead Cow).

Under the Cerro Amarillo Agreement, Meryllion Sub has the exclusive right to engage in
exploration activities on the Cerro Amarillo Property for up to 52 months before exercising its
option to acquire a 100% interest in the Cerro Amarillo Property. The option is exercisable by
Meryllion Sub at any time, however, so long as the exploration program is ongoing, Meryllion
Sub will make payments to the owners of the Cerro Amarillo Property, which payments will total
US$525,000 (US$125,000 paid) if the exploration program continues for at least 40 months. In
early 2012, an extension of the Cerro Amarillo Agreement for an additional two years was
negotiated for further payments of US$175,000. When the option is exercised, Meryllion Sub
will pay a final purchase price of US$2,500,000. The owners of the Cerro Amarillo Property will
also be entitled to a 1% NSR in the event the Cerro Amarillo Property is placed into commercial
production.

In 2012, the owners of Cerro Amarillo Property applied for an additional and contiguous 2,500
hectares directly to the south of the original property and included this area in the original
agreement by signing an addendum to the option agreement.

Meryllion Sub’s recently completed 2012 austral summer campaign of detailed mapping and
rock sampling within this corridor has outlined three fertile systems with strong indications of
large copper-molybdenum-gold potential, and has led to the development of a drill proposal for a
first stage drill program with a view to executing such program after additional mapping and
sampling of C2, C3, Southern Anomaly, and Dead Cow has been undertaken.

Previous sampling undertaken at the Cerro Amarillo occurrence by BHP in 1998 returned results
ranging up t01.47% Cu, 0.98g/t Ay, and 550ppm Mo, while an isolated outcrop of dacite dyke
returned a value of 57g/t Au. Meryllion Sub’s confirmation sampling comprising 20 samples
returned values ranging up to 0.78% Cu and 0.89g/t Au. At Cajon Grande, historic values from a
sampling campaign in 2008 ranged up to 4.35% Cu, 4,23g/t Au and 1500g/t Ag while Meryllion
Sub’s samples returned values of 1.51% Cu, 2,41g/t Au, 765g/t Ag, and 334ppm Mo. In
addition, samples from epithermal veins of barite-siderite-sulphide distal to the intrusion
contained up to 8.21% Cu, 2,48g/t Auand 100g/t Ag. The C4 sampling gave values up to 0.20%
Cu, 170ppm Mo and 0.15g/t Au. A qualified person has not done sufficient work to classify any
of the historical estimates as current mineral resources, nor is Concordia treating the historical
estimates as current mineral resources since the exploration results do not warrant or support any
estimation thereof.

Not only has the mapping and sampling indicated the fertility of the systems, but it has also
indicated that each system has a large scale footprint indicating large-tonnage Cu-Mo-Au
potential. Moreover, Cerro Amarillo’s geological similarity to the world class El Teniente and
Los Bronces deposits as well as its the location within the extension of the same Neogene
magmatic arc are positive indications for future exploration success. As a consequence, further
mapping and sampling of the four additionally identified anomalies has been proposed prior to
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the execution of a first stage target testing drill program for which Meryllion Sub is currently in
the process of obtaining the necessary permits and permissions.

ITEM 6: FINANCINGS

Available Funds and Principal Purposes

Upon completion of the Arrangement and related transactions, Meryllion expects to have
working capital of approximately Cdn.$5,000,000 and intends to use these funds to furthe:
develop its mineral properties, for possible future acquisitions, for general and administrative
expenses and for general working capital purposes.

Due to the nature of the mining industry, budgets are regularly reviewed with respect to the
success of expenditures and other opportunities that become available to Meryllion. Accordingly,
while it is currently intended by management of Meryllion that the available funds will be
expended as set forth above, actual expenditures may in fact differ from these amounts and
allocations.

ITEM 7: DIVIDENDS AND OTHER DISTRIBUTIONS

Meryllion has not paid dividends since its incorporation. Meryllion currently intends to retain all
available funds, if any, for use in its business.

Under the BC Act, the discretion of the board of directors to declare or pay a dividend on the
common shares is restricted if reasonable grounds exist to conclude that Meryllion is insolvent o1
the payment of the dividend would render Meryllion insolvent.

ITEM 8: MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Meryllion’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Schedule “A” to this Listing Application,
will be submitted under separate cover in the week following the date of this Listing Application.
Audited financial statements for the period ended June 30, 2013 and years ended September 30,
2012 and 2011 are attached as Schedule “B” to this Listing Application.

ITEM 9: DISCLOSURE OF OUTSTANDING SECURITY DATA ON FULLY DILUTED
BASIS
Fully Diluted Share Capital of Meryllion

The following describes the fully diluted share capital of Meryllion as of the date of this Listing
Application and immediately following the Arrangement (based on issued and outstanding share
capital as of the date of this Listing Application):

Currently issued and outstanding As of the date hereof Immediately following the Arrangement
Common Shares 17,125,510 17,125,510
Options Nil Nil
TOTALS 17,125,510 Common Shares 17,125,510 Common Shares
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ITEM 10: DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES TO BE LISTED

Meryllion Shares

Meryllion is authorized to issue an unlimited number of Meryllion Shares without par value of
which, of which there are 17,125,510 issued and outstanding.

The holders of Meryllion Shares are entitled to dividends if, as, and when declared by the
directors; to one vote per share at meetings of the sharecholders of Meryllion; and, upon
liquidation, to receive such assets of Concordia as are distributable to the holders of the
Meryllion Shares.

EM 11: CONSOLIDATED CAPITALIZATION

Pro Forma Consolidated Capitalization

The following table sets out the consolidated capitalization for Meryllion as of June 30, 2013 and
after giving effect to the Arrangement.

sAmount Outstanding After
Giving Effect to -
Arrangement
Common shares N/A 17,125,510
(authorized to issue unlimited common shares)
Short Term Debt N/A $61,000
Long Term Debt N/A Nil
Deficit N/A $8,817,000

ITEM 12: OPTIONS TO PURCHASE SECURITIES

Options
Meryllion Options

As of the date of this Listing Application, Meryllion has not adopted any share option plan nor
has it granted any incentive share options. Below are the terms of a proposed Share Option Plan
(the “Share Option Plan”) which will be put to the Meryllion Board for approval.

Narrative Discussion

The following information is intended as a brief description of the proposed Share Option Plan and
is qualified in its entirety by the full text of the proposed Share Option Plan, which will be
available for review at the Meeting.

1. The maximum number of shares that may be issued upon the exercise of share options
granted under the proposed Share Option Plan shall not exceed 15% of the issued and
outstanding common shares of Meryllion as of the date of the proposed Share Option Plan,
the exercise price of which, as determined by the board of directors in its sole discretion,
shall not be less than the closing price of Meryllion’s shares traded through the facilities of
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the Exchange on the date prior to the date of grant, less allowable discounts, in accordance
with the policies of the Exchange or, if the shares are no longer listed for trading on the
Exchange, then such other exchange or quotation system on which the shares are listed or
quoted for trading.

2. The board of directors shall not grant options to any one person in any 12 month period
which will, if exercised, exceed 5% of the issued and outstanding shares of Meryllion, at
the time of the grant, or to any one consultant or to those persons employed by Meryllion
who perform investor relations activities which will, if exercised, exceed 2% of the issued
and outstanding shares of Meryllion, at the time of the grant.

3. Upon expiry of an option, or in the event an option is otherwise terminated for any reason,
the number of shares in respect of the expired or terminated option shall again be available
for the purposes of the proposed Share Option Plan. All options granted under the
proposed Share Option Plan may not have an expiry date exceeding (i) five years for a Tier
2 or NEX company; and (ii) ten years for a Tier 1 company, from the date on which the
board of directors grant and announce the granting of the option.

4. 1If the option holder ceases to be a director of Meryllion or ceases to be employed by
Meryllion (other than by reason of death), or ceases to be a consultant of Meryllion as the
case may be, then the option granted shall expire within (i) 90 days; or (ii) 30 days for an
optionholder conducting investor relations activities who obtained the options from a Tier 2
or NEX company, following the date that the option holder ceases to be a director, ceases
to be employed by Meryllion or ceases to be a consultant of Meryllion, subject to the terms
and conditions set out in the proposed Share Option Plan.

ITEM 13: PRIOR SALES

Since incorporation on July 25, 2013 through to the date of this Listing Application, the
following Meryllion Shares have been issued:

Date Securities Price
July 25,2013 Incorporators Shares 1 (one) common share $1.00
October 17, 2013 Vend-In Agreement 17,125,509 $0.60
ITEM 14: ESCROWED SECURITIES AND SECURITIES SUBJECT TO
RESTRICTION ON TRANSFER

Exchange Escrow

Meryllion Shares held by Principals

As of the date hereof, there are no Meryllion Shares subject to escrow.

Meryllion applied for and received a waiver from Section 1.3 of Policy 5.4 of the TSX Venture

Exchange Company Manual that requires for any new listing that all securities held by principals
be subject to escrow.

ITEM 15: PRINCIPAL SECURITYHOLDERS

As of the date of the Listing Application, to the knowledge of the directors and officers of
Meryllion, there will be no person or corporation beneficially owning, directly or indirectly, or
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exercising control or direction over securities carrying in excess of 10% of the voting rights
attached to any class of outstanding Meryllion Shares, except as follows:

Type of Ownership % of Meryllion
Name and (Record, Shares owned as of % of Meryllion
Municipality of Beneficially, or Number of Meryllion the date of the Shares Owned
Residence Both) Shares Owned Listing Application after Arrangement
Concordia Both 1 100% 0%
David Birkenshaw, Beneficial Nil Nil 16.6%
Ontario, Canada

ITEM 16: DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Name, Occupation and Security Holding

The following table sets out the names of the current and post-Arrangement directors and
executive officers of Meryllion, country of residence, positions with Meryllion, principal
occupations within the five preceding years, periods during which each director or officer has
served as a director or officer and the number of Meryllion Shares and the number of issued
Meryllion Shares beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, or subject to control or direction by

that person.

The term of each of the current directors of Meryllion will expire at Meryllion’s next annual
general meeting unless his office is earlier vacated in accordance with the articles of Meryllion
or he becomes disqualified to act as a director.

Meryllion
Shares, Approximate
Meryllion Shares Directly or Percentage of
Beneficially Indirectly, Meryllion
Owned or Beneficially Shares Owned
Name & Province or Principal Occupation for Last Director or Controlled, Prior Owned, After after
State of Residence Five Years Officer Since | to Arrangement | Arrangement” | Arrangement”
David Birkenshaw President and Chief Executive | October 7, Nil 2,864,900 16.6%
Ontario, Canada Officer of Birkenshaw & 2013
Execu{ive Chairman gﬁggﬁrg} E,ntdwsslgce fts
and Director
Terry Krepiakevich Interim Chief Executive Officer | July 25, 2013 Nil Nil Nil
British Columbia, of the Concordia Resource
Canada Corp. since March 2013;
. . Independent Financial Advisor
Ch ”ef Executive Qjﬁcer, frompJuly 1, 2011 to present;
President and Director | Cpief Financial Officer of
SouthGobi Resources Ltd. from
July 2006 to July 2011,
John Fognani®® Vice President — Legal and October 7. Nil Nil Nil
Colorado, USA General Counsel of Ivanhoe 2013
Director Capital Corporation from
March 2003 to December 2012.
Borden Putnam(” Independent Mining Industry October 7, Nil Nil Nil
California, USA Consultant from 2009; 2013
. Managing Director and
Director Principal Analyst at Eastbourne
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Meryllion
Shares, Approximate
Meryllion Shares Directly or Percentage of
Beneficially Indirectly, Meryllion
Owned or Beneficially Shares Owned
Name & Province or Principal Occupation for Last Director or Controlled, Prior Owned, After after
State of Residence Five Years Officer Since | to Arrangement | Arrangement” | Arrangement”
Capital Management from 2001
to 2009.
Gregory Shenton® }()Zhief f‘ina[x;.cial Ogﬁcﬁr;f ) October 7, Nil Nil Nil
.. . eregrine Diamonds Ltd. since
(B:;‘;‘ass‘ac"’“mb’& February 2006; CFO of Jinshan |
Gold Mines from November
Director 2003 to December 2005; CFO
of Asia Gold Corp. from
August 2003 to July 2006.
Eduard Epshtein Chief Financial Officer of N/A Nil 10,000 0.1%
British Columbia, Concordia Resource Corp. since
Canada October 2006 Chief Financial
icer of W ithi
Chief Financial Officer ngf Corp Or;etsitoe‘r]nSiI; Ct :&n;y
2008; Associate, I. Proust &
Associates Inc., August 2006 to
November 2010.

Notes:

(1) The information as to common shares beneficially owned has been provided by the directors and executive officers
themselves, and assumes the closing of the Plan of Arrangement.

(2) 1t is anticipated that the members of the Audit Committee will be Gregory Shenton (Chair), John Fognani, and Borden
Putnam. All proposed members of the Committee are considered by the Meryllion Board to be “independent™ within
the meaning of NI 52-110.

Cease Trade Orders, Bankruptcies, Penalties or Sanctions

Except as disclosed below, to the best knowledge of Meryllion, no director or executive officer
of Meryllion is, as at the date of this Listing Application, or within the ten years before the date
of this Listing Application, has been a director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer
of any company, including Meryllion, that:

a) was subject to an Order that was issued while the director or executive officer was acting
in the capacity as director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer; or

b) was subject to an Order that was issued after the director or executive officer or chief
financial officer and which resulted from an event that occurred while that person was
acting in the capacity as director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer.

David Birkenshaw, was a director of EURO Ressources S.A. (formerly Guyanor Resources S.A.)
(“Guyanor”) when Guyanor was the subject of a cease trade order issued on April 5, 2005 for
failure to file required records, which cease trade order was rescinded on April 29, 2005.

No director or executive officer of Meryllion, or a shareholder holding a sufficient number of
securities of Meryllion to affect materially the control of Meryllion:

a) is, at the date of this Listing Application, or has been within the ten years before the date
of this Listing Application, a director or executive officer of any company, including
Meryllion, that, while that person was acting in that capacity, or within a year of that
person ceasing to act in that capacity, became bankrupt, made a proposal under any
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legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or instituted any
proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver
manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets; or

b) has, within the ten years before the date of this Listing Application, become bankrupt,
made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or become
subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors, or
had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold the assets of the director,
executive officer or shareholder.

No director or executive officer of Meryllion, or a shareholder holding a sufficient number of
securities of Meryllion to affect materially the control of Meryllion, has been subject to:

a) any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to securities legislation or by a
securities regulatory authority or has entered into a settlement agreement with a securities
regulatory authority; or

b) any other penalties or sanction imposed by a court or regulatory body that would likely
be considered important to a reasonable investor in making an investment decision.

Conflicts of Interest

There are no existing or potential conflicts of interest between Meryllion, or any subsidiary of
Meryllion, and any director or officer of Meryllion or of a subsidiary of Meryllion.

Previous Experience of Directors and Officers

J
Name Name and Jurisdiction "P;,f::ﬁn;f Position From To
of Reporting Issuer Market
Concordia Resource Corp. | TSX-V Director November 2012 Present
Ecometals Limited TSX-V, Director September 2003 September 2010
Frankfurt
EURO Ressources S.A. NYSE, Director June 2004 September 2010
Euronext
David : :
. King Products Inc. N/A Senior Officer March 2004 Present
Birkenshaw
Lion Energy Corp. TSX-V Director September 2003 |  September 2010
Planet Mining Exploration | TSX-V Director October 2012 Present
Inc.
United Hunter Oil & Gas | TSX-V Director December 2012 February 2013
Corp.
John Fognani | Concordia Resource Corp. | TSX-V Director June 2010 Present
Alexco Resource Corp. TSX Director June 2009 Present
Concordia Resource Corp. | TSX-V Interim Chief Executive March 2013 Present
Officer and Director
NovaCopper Inc. TSX Director April 2011 Present
Terry - I :
Krepiakevich SouthGobi Resources Ltd. | TSX, Chief Financial Officer July 2006 July 2011
HKSE
St. Augustine Gold and | TSX Director October 2011 Present
Copper Limited
Western  Lithium USA | TSX Director March 2011 Present
Corporation
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Name Name and Jurisdiction ,I;ff;?i?“;f Position From To

of Reporting Issuer Market

Concordia Resource Corp. | TSX-V Director January 2011 Present
Borden Eurasian Minerals Inc. TSX-V, Director July 2005 Present
Putnam AMEX

Mirasol Resources Lid. TSX-V Director December 2012 Present
Gregory Peregrine Diamonds Ltd. TSX Chief Financial Officer February 2006 Present
Shenton

Canada Energy Partners | TSX-V Senior Officer November 2006 July 2011

Inc.

Concordia Resource Corp. | TSX-V Chief Financial Officer October 2006 Present
Eduard Outrider Energy Corp. CNSX Director Qctober 2008 December 2010
Epshtein Southern Arc Minerals | TSX-V Senior Officer September 2007 |  December 2010

Inc.

Western  Lithium  USA | TSX Chief Financial Officer May 2008 Present

Corporation

ITEM 17: EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Interpretation

From the date on incorporation on July 25, 2013 to the date of this Listing Application,
Meryllion did not have any Named Executive Officers (“NEO”s) as it did not remunerate any
officers for performing executive duties. Pursuant to the terms of employment agreements
between Meryllion and Terry Krepiakevich and Eduard Epshtein, they will begin roles as CEO
and CFO respectively upon closing of the Plan of Arrangement. The terms of Mr. Krepiakevich
and Mr. Epshtein’s employment with Meryllion are summarized below. Both Mr. Krepiakevich
and Mr. Epshtein are currently NEO’s for Concordia.

“Named Executive Officer” means: (a) each Chief Executive Officer, (b) each Chief Financial
Officer, (c) each of Meryllion’s three most highly compensated executive officers, other than the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, who were serving as executive officers at
the end of the most recently completed financial year and whose total salary and bonus exceeds
$150,000, and (d) any additional individuals for whom disclosure would have been provided
under (¢) except that the individual was not serving as an officer of Meryllion at the end of the
most recently completed financial year-end.

Summary of Employment Agreements
Terry Krepiakevich — President and Chief Executive Officer

It is anticipated that Mr. Krepiakevich will enter into a consulting contract with Meryllion
through his consulting company, Kalyna Consulting Ltd., to provide services as Meryllion’s
President and Chief Executive Officer for annual compensation of Cdn.$240,000. It is
anticipated that termination provisions will include termination with 30 days written notice by
either party.
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Edward Epshtein — Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Epshtein is currently employed by both Concordia Resource Corporation (“CCN”) and
Western Lithium USA Corporation (“WLC>) and his salary of Cdn.$200,000 annually is split
evenly between CCN and WLC. It is anticipated that Mr. Epshtein will enter into an
employment contract with Meryllion to provide services as the Chief Financial Officer of MRC.
Meryllion and Mr. Epshtein have verbally agreed to annual compensation of Cdn.$200,000
multiplied by a fraction which represents the percentage of time allocated to Meryllion (“Base
Salary”). It is anticipated that Mr. Epshtein’s employment contract will provide that: (a)
Meryllion may terminate Mr. Epshtein’s employment for just cause; and (b) Meryllion may
terminate Mr. Epshtein’s employment without cause upon the payment to Mr. Epshtein of a
portion of his Base Salary calculated in accordance with the laws of the Province of British
Columbia and the laws of Canada applicable therein.

The agreements for the Meryllion NEO’s contain restrictive covenants which restrict their
ability to: solicit any clients or customers from Meryllion or its subsidiaries; carry on or engage
in business that competes with Meryllion or any of its subsidiaries; or offer his or her services
with an organization that competes directly with Meryllion or its subsidiaries. The agreements
also contain standard non-disclosure covenant restricting the ability of the officer to disclose any
confidential information relating to Meryllion.

ITEM 18: INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

No director or executive officer of Meryllion, any proposed nominee for election as a director of
Meryllion, any associate of any such director, executive officer or proposed nominee has at any
time since the beginning of the most recently completed financial year of Meryllion, been
indebted to Meryllion or any of its subsidiaries or had indebtedness to another entity, at any time
since the beginning of the most recently completed financial year, been the subject of a
guarantee, support agreement, letter of credit, or other similar arrangement or understanding
provided by Meryllion or any of its subsidiaries.

ITEM 19: AUDIT COMMITTEES AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Audit Committee Charter

Meryllion has adopted an audit committee charter, as described below (the “Charter”), but has
not yet appointed any members to the audit committee.

Mandate

The primary function of the audit committee (the “Committee”) is to assist the board of
directors in fulfilling its financial oversight responsibilities. The Committee reviews the
financial reports and other financial information provided by Meryllion to regulatory authorities
and its shareholders and reviews Meryllion’s systems of internal controls regarding finance and
accounting including our auditing, accounting and financial reporting processes. The
Committee’s primary duties and responsibilities are to:

e Serve as an independent and objective party to monitor Meryllion’s financial reporting and
internal control system and review Meryllion’s financial statements;

e Review and appraise the performance of Meryllion’s external auditors; and
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e Provide an open avenue of communication among Meryllion’s auditors, financial and senior
management and the Meryllion Board.

Composition

The Committee will be comprised of three directors as determined by the Meryllion Board, the
majority of whom are free from any relationship that, in the opinion of the Meryllion Board,
would interfere with the exercise of their independent judgment as a member of the Committee.
At least one member of the Committee should have accounting or related financial management
expertise. All members of the Committee that are not financially literate will work towards
becoming financially literate to obtain a working familiarity with basic finance and accounting
practices. For the purposes of the Charter, the definition of “financially literate” is the ability to
read and understand a set of financial statements that present a breadth and level of complexity
of accounting issues that are generally comparable to the breadth and complexity of the issues
that can presumably be expected to be raised by Meryllion’s financial statements.

The members of the Committee are elected by the Meryllion Board at its first meeting following
the annual shareholders’ meeting. Unless a Chair is elected by the full Meryllion Board, the
members of the Committee may designate a Chair by a majority vote of the full Committee
membership.

National Instrument 52-110 Audit Committees (“NI 52-110”) provides that a member of an audit
committee is “independent” if the member has no direct or indirect material relationship with the
issuer, which could, in the view of the issuer’s board of directors, reasonably interfere with the
exercise of the member’s independent judgment.

It is anticipated that the members of the Committee will be: Gregory Shenton (Chair), John
Fognani, and Borden Putnam. All proposed members of the Committee are considered by the
Board to be “independent” within the meaning of NI 52-110.

Meetings

The Committee is to meet at least four times annually, or more frequently as circumstances
dictate. As part of its job to foster open communication, the Committee is to meet at least
annually with the Chief Financial Officer and the external auditors in separate sessions.

Responsibilities and Duties
To fulfill its responsibilities and duties, the Committee shall:

Documents/Reports Review

Review and update the Charter annually.

e Review Meryllion’s financial statements, MD&A and any press release that includes annual
and interim earnings before Meryllion publicly discloses this information and any reports or
other financial information (including quarterly financial statements), which are submitted to
any governmental body, or to the public, including any certification, report, opinion, or
review rendered by the external auditors.

External Auditors

e Review annually, the performance of the external auditors who shall be ultimately
accountable to Meryllion’s Board and the Committee as representatives of the shareholders
of Meryllion.
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Recommend to the Meryllion Board the selection and, where applicable, the replacement of
the external auditors nominated annually for shareholder approval.

Review with management and the external auditors the audit plan for the year-end financial
statements and intended template for such statements.

Review and pre-approve all audit and audit-related services and the fees and other
compensation related thereto, and any non-audit services, provided by Meryllion’s external
auditors.

Provided pre-approval of the non-audit services is presented to the Committee’s first
scheduled meeting following such approval, such authority may be delegated by the
Committee to one or more independent members of the Committee.

Financial Reporting Processes

In consultation with the external auditors, review with management the integrity of
Meryllion’s financial reporting process, both internal and external.

Consider the external auditors’ judgments about the quality and appropriateness of
Meryllions accounting principles as applied in its financial reporting.

Consider and approve, if appropriate, changes to Meryllion’s auditing and account principles
and practices as suggested by the external auditors and management.

Following completion of the annual audit, review separately with management and the
external auditors any significant difficulties encountered during the course of the audit,
including any restrictions on the scope of work or access to required information.

Review any significant disagreement among management and the external auditors in
connection with the preparation of the financial statements.

Review with the external auditors and management the extent to which changes and
improvements in financial or accounting practices have been implemented.

Review any complaints or concerns about any questionable accounting, internal accounting
controls or auditing matters.

Review certification process.

Establish a procedure for the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of Meryllion
of concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters.

Review any related-party transaction.

Other

Composition of Audit Committee and Independence

NI 52-110 provides that a member of an audit committee is “independent” if the member has no
direct or indirect material relationship with the issuer, which could, in the view of the issuer’s
board of directors, reasonably interfere with the exercise of the member’s independent judgment.

The members of the Committee are: Gregory Shenton (Chair), John Fognani, and Borden
Putnam. All members of the Committee are considered by the Board to be “independent” within
the meaning of NI 52-110.
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Relevant Education and Experience

NI 52-110 provides that an individual is “financially literate” if he or she has the ability to read
and understand a set of financial statements that present a breadth and level of complexity of
accounting issues that are generally comparable to the breadth and complexity of the issues that
can reasonably be expected to be raised by Meryllion’s financial statements.

Each Committee member has gained financial literacy through their years of experience serving
as directors of several mining and mineral exploration companies and serving on numerous other
audit committees. In these positions, each member would be responsible for receiving financial
information relating to their company and obtaining an understanding of the balance sheet,
income statement and statement of cash flows and how these statements are integral in assessing
the financial position of Meryllion and its operating results. Each member has significant
understanding of the mineral exploration business which Meryllion engages in and has an
appreciation for the relevant accounting principles for that business. For further details regarding
the details of the relevant education and experience, see the relevant biographies of the
Committee members at “Directors and Executive Officers”.

Audit Committee Oversight

Since the incorporation of Meryllion, the proposed Committee has not made any
recommendations to nominate or compensate an external auditor which were not adopted by the
Meryllion Board.

Reliance on Certain Exemptions

Since the incorporation of Meryllion, Meryllion has not relied on:

(a) the exemption in section 2.4 (De Minimis Non-audit Services) of NI 52-110; or

(b) an exemption from NI 52-110, in whole or in part, granted under Part 8 (Exemptions).
Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

Meryllion has adopted specific policies and procedures for the engagement of non-audit services
as described in “Audit Committees and Corporate Governance” above.

Audit Fees

Meryllion was not a reporting issuer and was not required to perform an audit of its financial
statements in prior years.

Exemption in Section 6.1

Meryllion is a “venture issuer” as defined in NI 52-110 and is relying on the exemption in
section 6.1 of NI 52-110 relating to Parts 3 (Composition of Audit Committee) and 5 (Reporting
Obligations).

Corporate Governance

National Instrument 58-101 Disclosure of Corporate Governance Practices requires all
companies to provide certain annual disclosure of their corporate governance practices with
respect to the corporate governance guidelines (the “Guidelines™) adopted in National Policy 58-
201 Corporate Governance Guidelines. These Guidelines are not prescriptive, but have been
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used by Meryllion in adopting its corporate governance practices. Meryllion’s approach to
corporate governance is set out below.

Board of Directors

The Meryllion Board currently consists of five (5) directors: David Birkenshaw, Executive
Chairman; Terry Krepiakevich, President and CEO; John Fognani; Borden Putnam; and Gregory
Shenton.

The Guidelines suggest that the board of every listed company should be constituted with a
majority of individuals who qualify as “independent” directors. A director is “independent” if
the individual has no direct or indirect material relationship with Meryllion which could, in the
view of the Meryllion’s Board, be reasonably expected to interfere with the exercise of a
director’s independent judgment whether on the Meryllion Board or a committee of the
Meryllion Board. Notwithstanding the foregoing, an individual who is, or has been within the
last three years, an employee or executive officer of Meryllion is considered to have a material
relationship with Meryllion. Of the current Meryllion Board the following members are
independent: John Fognani, Borden Putnam, and Gregory Shenton. Terry Krepiakevich is not
independent as he is an executive officer of Meryllion and David Birkenshaw is not independent
by virtue of being a director of Meryllion’s parent company, Concordia.

Directorships

In addition to their positions on the Meryllion Board, the following directors also serve as
directors of the following reporting issuers:

Name of Director Reporting Issuer
David Birkenshaw Concordia Resource Corp., and
Planet Mining Exploration Inc.
John Fognani Concordia Resource Corp.
Terry Krepiakevich Alexco Resource Corp., Concordia

Resource Corp., NovaCopper Inc.,
St. Augustine Gold and Copper
Limited, and Western Lithium USA
Corporation

Borden Putnam Concordia Resource Corp., and
Mirasol Resources Ltd.

Gregory Shenton Nil

Orientation and Continuing Education

Meryllion does not provide a formal orientation and education program for new directors;
however, any new directors will be given the opportunity to familiarize themselves with
Meryllion, the current directors and members of management. Directors are also encouraged and
given the opportunity for continuing education.
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Ethical Business Conduct

The Meryllion Board has adopted a formal written Code of Business Conduct and Ethics which
is applicable to all directors, officers and employees of Meryllion.

Nomination of Directors

The Meryllion Board selects new nominees to the Meryllion Board, although a formal process
has not been adopted. The nominees are generally the result of recruitment efforts by the
Meryllion Board members, including both formal and informal discussions among Meryllion
Board members and the President and CEO. The Meryllion Board monitors, but does not
formally assess, the performance of individual Meryllion Board members or committee members
or their contributions. |

Compensation of Directors

The President & CEO makes recommendations to the Meryllion Board on director compensation
based on Meryllion’s performance during the relevant year.

Audit Committee

For a description of the Audit Committee, see this Listing Application at “Audit Committee
Charter” above.

Other Board Committees

Meryllion has one standing committee, the Audit Committee. Please refer to the “Audit
Committee” section above above for further information.

Assessments

The Meryllion Board does not, at present, have a formal process in place for assessing the
effectiveness of the Meryllion Board as a whole, its committees or individual directors, but will
consider implementing one in the future should circumstances warrant. Based on Meryllion’s
size, its stage of development and the limited number of individuals on the Meryllion Board, it
considers a formal assessment process to be inappropriate at this time. The entire Meryllion
Board is responsible for selecting new directors and assessing current directors. A proposed
director’s credentials are reviewed in advance of a Meryllion Board meeting by one or more
members of the Meryllion Board prior to the proposed director’s nomination.

The following table sets forth Meryllion’s assessment of the independence of each board
member following the listing of the Meryllion Shares on the Exchange and assumes the
completion of the Arrangement:

Board Member Independent/Non-Independent
David Birkenshaw Non-Independent

Terry Krepiakevich Non-Independent
r:sithijrrr‘jittee independent

Borden Putnam Independent

Audit Committee
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Gregory Shenton

Ind dent
Chair, Audit Committee ndependen

ITEM 21: RISK FACTORS

Meryllion’s exploration and mining activities will be in Argentina and will be subject to the risks
of political and economic instability associated with this country

Argentina has, from time to time, experienced economic or political instability. Meryllion may
be materially adversely affected by risks associated with conducting exploration and mining
activities in Argentina, including: political instability and violence; war and civil disturbance;
acts of terrorism; expropriation or nationalization; inequitable treatment of non-domiciled
companies; changing fiscal regimes; fluctuations in currency exchange rates; high rates of
inflation; underdeveloped industrial and economic infrastructure; and unenforceability of
contractual rights.

Argentinean regulators have broad authority to shut down and/or levy fines against operations
that do not comply with regulations or standards. In addition, factors such as those listed above,
Meryllion’s mineral exploration and potential future mining activities in Argentina may also be
affected in varying degrees by government regulations with respect to restrictions on production,
price controls, foreign exchange controls, export controls, taxes, royalties, environmental
legislation and mine safety. Regardless of the economic viability of Meryllion’s interest in its
properties, and despite being beyond Meryllion’s control, such factors may prevent or restrict
mining of some or all of any deposits which Meryllion may find on the its properties.

In May 2012, the government of Argentina re-nationalized Yacimientos Petroliferos Fiscales, the
country’s largest oil and gas company. There can be no assurance that the government of
Argentina will not nationalize other businesses operating in the country, including the business
of Meryllion.

Provincial governments of Argentina have considerable authority over exploration and mining in
their province and there are Argentinean provinces where the provincial government has taken
an anti-mining stance by passing laws to curtail or ban mining in those provinces. The current
provincial government of Jujuy Province, where the La Providencia Project is situated, is
supportive of the exploration and mining industry, however such situation may change in the
future.

Argentina has, in the past, and is currently enduring a period of high inflation which could
increase Meryllion’s operating costs relating to work carried out on Meryllion’s properties.
Meryllion will also purchase certain supplies and retain the services of various companies in
Argentina to meet its future business plans. It may be difficult to find or hire qualified people in
the mining industry who are situated in Argentina or to obtain all of the necessary services or
expertise in Argentina or to conduct operations on its projects at reasonable rates. If qualified
people and services or expertise cannot be obtained in Argentina, Meryllion may need to seek
and obtain those services from people located outside of Argentina which will require work
permits and compliance with applicable laws and could result in delays and higher costs to
Meryllion to conduct its operations in Argentina. In addition, Argentina’s status as a developing
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country may make it more difficult for Meryllion to obtain any required financing for its
projects. If a dispute arises regarding Meryllion’s interest to Meryllion’s properties, Meryllion
cannot rely on Canadian legal standards in defending or advancing its interests.

As a result, Meryllion will be subject to various increased economic, political, operational and
other risks, any one or more of which could have a material adverse effect on Meryllion's
business, financial condition, and results of operations or prospects.

The development and success of the La Providencia Project will be largely dependent on the
Jfuture price of silver, copper and other metals

Metal price volatility may affect the future production, profitability, and financial condition of
Meryllion. Metal prices are subject to significant fluctuation and are affected by a number of
factors which are beyond the control of Meryllion. Such factors include, but are not limited to,
interest rates, exchange rates, inflation or deflation, global supply and demand, and the political
and economic conditions of major metal consuming countries throughout the world. The price of
silver, copper, and other metals has fluctuated widely in recent years, and future material price
declines could cause development of, and commercial production from, the La Providencia
Project to be impracticable or uneconomic.

The metals market also tends to move in cycles. Periods of high demand, increasing profits and
high capacity utilization lead to additional capacity through expansion of existing mines and
investment in new mines which results in increased production. This growth increases supply
until the market is saturated, leading to declining prices and declining capacity utilization until
the cycle repeats. This cyclicality in prices can result in supply/demand imbalances and pressures
on mineral prices and profit margins which could have a material adverse effect on Meryllion’s
business, financial condition, results of operations or prospects.

Depending on the price of silver, copper, and other metals, projected cash flow from planned
mining operations may not be sufficient and Meryllion could be forced to discontinue
development and may lose its interest in, or may be forced to sell, one or more of the mining
properties. Future production from Meryllion’s mining properties will be dependent on metal
prices that are adequate to make these properties economically viable. Furthermore, future mine
plans using significantly lower metal prices could result in material write-downs of Meryllion’s
investment in mining properties.

In addition to adversely affecting Meryllion’s Mineral Resource Estimate for the La Providencia
Project and any future Mineral Reserve estimates and its financial condition, declining
commodity prices can impact operations by requiring a reassessment of the feasibility of a
particular project. Such a reassessment may be the result of a management decision or may be
required under financing arrangements related to a particular project. If such a reassessment
determines that any of Meryllion’s are not economically viable, then operations may cease and
such projects may never be developed. Even if the projects are ultimately determined to be
economically viable, the need to conduct such a reassessment may cause substantial delays or
may interrupt operations until the reassessment can be completed. The occurrence of any of the
foregoing could have a material adverse effect on Meryllion’s business, financial condition,
results of operations or prospects.
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Meryllion will need substantial additional financing in the future and cannot assure that such
Sfinancing will be available

To meet its operating costs and to finance its respective future acquisition, exploration,
development and operating costs, Meryllion will require financing from external sources,
including from the sale of equity and debt securities, the sale of an interest in one or more of its
mineral projects, entering into joint ventures or seeking other means to meet its financing
requirements. There can be no assurance that additional funding will be available to Meryllion
or, if available, that such funding will be offered on terms acceptable to Meryllion. If additional
financing is raised through the issuance of equity or convertible debt securities, control of
Meryllion may change and the interests of shareholders in the net assets of the respective
company may be diluted. If unable to secure financing on acceptable terms, Meryllion may have
to cancel or postpone certain of its planned exploration and development activities and may not
be able to take advantage of acquisition opportunities. If Meryllion is unable to complete
minimum work obligations on its exploration concessions, the concessions could be relinquished
under applicable exploration concession agreements. The failure of Meryllion to obtain
additional financing would have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition,
results of operations or prospects.

The volatility of the capital markets may affect Meryllion’s access to and cost of capital

Securities markets throughout the world are cyclical and, over time, tend to undergo high levels
of price and volume volatility, and the market price of securities of many companies, particularly
those in the resource sector, can experience wide fluctuations which are not necessarily related to
the operating performance, underlying asset values or prospects of such companies. Increased
levels of volatility and resulting market turmoil may adversely impact Meryllion and its share
price. If either Meryllion is required to access credit markets to carry out their respective
development objectives, the state of domestic and international credit markets and other financial
systems could affect their respective access to, and cost of, capital. If these credit markets were
significantly disrupted, as they were in 2007 and 2008, such disruptions could make it more
difficult for Meryllion to obtain, or increase its cost of obtaining capital and financing for its
operations, Such capital may not be available on terms acceptable to Meryllion or at all, which
may have a material adverse impact on its business, financial condition, results of operations or
prospects.

Currency fluctuations may affect the costs that Meryllion incur in its operations

Meryllion’s reporting currency will be the Canadian dollar. Any future equity financing
activities are expected to be completed in Canadian dollars while a significant portion of
operating expenses for Meryllion will be incurred in Argentine pesos, among other foreign
currencies, From time to time, Meryllion may be required to borrow funds and incur
expenditures that are denominated in a foreign currency. In addition, in the event that Meryllion
successfully develops an operating mine, it expects to sell some or all of its products to foreign
markets. Metals are sold throughout the world, based principally on a U.S. dollar price, but, a
significant portion of Meryllion’s operating expenses are incurred in non-U.S. dollar currencies.
The appreciation of the Argentinean peso, the U.S. dollar or any other foreign currency with
which Meryllion operates against the Canadian dollar would increase its cost of operations,
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which could have a material adverse effect on its business, financial conditions, results of
operations and prospects.

Exploration Risk

In addition to the La Providencia Project, Meryllion will engage in the potential acquisition and
exploration of other resource properties, an inherently risky business, and there is no assurance
that economic mineral deposits will ever be discovered, or if discovered, subsequently put into
production. Most exploration activities do not result in the discovery of commercially mineable
deposits.

Early Stage of Development

The predecessor entity of Meryllion, Concordia, conducted mineral exploration activities for a
relatively short period. There is limited financial, operational and other information available
with which to evaluate the prospects of Meryllion. There can be no assurance that Meryllion’s
operations will be profitable in the future or will generate sufficient cash flow to satisfy its
working capital requirements.

Meryllion’s prospects depend on its ability to attract and retain qualified personnel

Recruiting and retaining qualified personnel will be critical to Meryllion’s success. The number
of persons skilled in the acquisition, exploration and development of mining properties is limited
and competition for such persons is intense. Meryllion believes that it will have the necessary
personnel to meet its corporate objectives but, as its business activities grow, it will require
additional key financial, administrative, mining and public relations personnel as well as
additional staff on the operations side. Although Meryllion believes that it will be successful in
attracting and retaining qualified personnel, there can be no assurance of such success.

Future mining operations and exploration activities are subject to laws and regulations relating
to the protection and remediation of the environment

Meryllion’s future mining operations and exploration activities are and will be subject to laws
and regulations relating to the protection and remediation of the environment. Environmental
legislation provides for restrictions and prohibitions on spills, releases or emissions of various
substances produced in association with certain mining industry operations, such as seepage
from tailings disposal areas, which would result in environmental pollution. These laws,
regulations and the governmental policies for implementation of such laws and regulations are
constantly changing and are generally becoming more restrictive. The costs associated with
compliance with these laws and regulations are substantial and possible future laws and
regulations and changes to existing laws and regulations (including the imposition of higher
taxes and mining royalties) could cause additional expense or capital expenditure, or result in
restrictions or delays in Meryllion’s development plans.

Meryllion cannot give any assurance that, notwithstanding its precautions, breaches of
environmental laws, whether inadvertent or not, or environmental pollution will not occur. In the
event of any such breach, it is possible that the respective regulatory authority can suspend the
rights of Meryllion, as applicable, to develop its mineral interests.
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A breach of environmental laws and regulations may allow governmental authorities and third
parties, who have an interest in any future mining operations or the consequences of mining
operations, to bring lawsuits based upon damages to property and injury to persons resulting
from the environmental impact of Meryllion’s potential future operations which could lead to the
imposition of substantial fines, penalties or other civil or criminal sanctions and could have a
material adverse effect on Meryllion’s business, financial condition, results of operations or
prospects.

If Meryllion’s environmental compliance obligations were to vary as a result of changes to
legislation, or if certain assumptions Meryllion makes to estimate liabilities are incorrect, or if
unanticipated conditions were to arise in their respective future mining operations, the respective
company’s expenses and other obligations could increase, which could have a material adverse
effect on the respective company’s business, financial condition, results of operations or
prospects.

As a participant in the resource extraction industry, Meryllion may face opposition from local
and international groups

There is an increasing level of public concern relating to the effects of mining production on its
surroundings, communities, and environment. Certain non-governmental organizations, public
interest groups and reporting organizations (“NGOs”), who oppose globalization and resource
development and who may not be bound to codes of ethical reporting, can be vocal critics of the
mining industry. In addition, there have been many instances in which local community groups
have opposed resource extraction activities, which have resulted in disruption and delays to the
relevant operation. While Meryllion will seek to operate in a socially responsible manner, NGOs
or local community organizations could direct adverse publicity and/or disrupt its operations in
respect of one or more properties, regardless of Meryllion’s successful compliance with social
and environmental best practices, due to political factors, activities of unrelated third parties on
lands in which Meryllion has an interest or operates. Any such actions and the resulting media
coverage could have an adverse effect on the reputation and financial condition of Meryllion, as
applicable, or its relationships with the communities in which it operates, which could have a
material adverse effect on Meryllion’s business, financial condition, results of operations or
prospects.

The costs of complying with applicable laws and governmental regulations may have an adverse
impact on Meryllion’s business

Meryllion’s operations and exploration activities will be subject to laws and regulations
governing various matters. These include laws and regulations relating to repatriation of capital
and exchange controls, taxation, labour standards and occupational health and safety and historic
and cultural preservation.

Amendments to current laws, regulations and permits governing operations and activities of
mining companies, or the more stringent enforcement thereof, could have a material adverse
effect on Meryllion’s business, financial condition, results of operations or prospects by
increasing exploration expenses, future capital expenditures or future production costs or by
reducing the future level of production, or cause the abandonment of or delays in the
development of the La Providencia Project.
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Meryllion’s insurance coverage may not cover all of its potential losses, liabilities and damages
related to its business and certain risks are uninsured or uninsurable

Meryllion’s business will be subject to a number of risks and hazards (as further described
herein). Although Meryllion will maintain insurance to protect against certain risks in such
amounts as it considers to be reasonable, such insurance will not cover all the potential risks
associated with its activities, including any future mining operations. Meryllion may also be
unable to maintain insurance to cover its risks at economically feasible premiums, or at all.
Insurance coverage may not continue to be available or may not be adequate to cover any
resulting liability. Moreover, insurance against risks such as environmental pollution or other
hazards as a result of exploration or production may not be available to Meryllion on acceptable
terms. Meryllion might also become subject to liability for pollution or other hazards which it is
not currently insured against and/or in the future may not insure against because of premium
costs or other reasons. Losses from these events may cause Meryllion to incur significant costs
which could have a material adverse effect on the Meryllion’s business, financial condition,
results of operations or prospects.

Mining is inherently dangerous and subject to factors or events beyond Meryllion’s control

Meryllion’s business, and any future development or mining operations, will involve various
types of risks and hazards typical of companies engaged in the mining industry. These risks will
affect the exploration, development and refurbishment activities of Meryllion, and will affect its
business to an even larger extent once commercial mining operations, if any, commence. Such
risks include, but are not limited to: (i) industrial accidents; (ii) unusual or unexpected rock
formations; (iii) structural cave-ins or slides and pitfall, ground or slope failures and accidental
release of water from surface storage facilities; (iv) fire, flooding and earthquakes; (v) rock
bursts; (vi) metals losses; (vii) periodic interruptions due to inclement or hazardous weather
conditions; (viil) environmental hazards; (ix) discharge of pollutants or hazardous materials; (x)
failure of processing and mechanical equipment and other performance problems; (xi)
geotechnical risks, including the stability of the underground hanging walls and unusual and
unexpected geological conditions; (xii) unanticipated variations in grade and other geological
problems, water, surface or underground conditions; (xiii) labour disputes or slowdowns; (xiv)
work force health issues as a result of working conditions; and (xv) force majeure events, or
other unfavorable operating conditions.

These risks, conditions and events could result in: (i) damage to, or destruction of, the value of,
the La Providencia Project or its facilities; (i) personal injury or death; (iii) environmental
damage to the La Providencia Project or the properties of others; (iv) delays or prohibitions on
mining or the transportation of minerals; (v) monetary losses; and (vi) potential legal liability.
Any of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect Meryllion’s business, financial
condition, results of operation or prospects.

Directors and officers may be subject to conflicts of interest

Certain directors and officers of Meryllion are or may become associated with other mining
and/or mineral exploration and development companies which may give rise to conflicts of
interest. Directors who have a material interest in any person who is a party to a material contract
or a proposed material contract with the company with which they serve are required, subject to
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certain exceptions, to disclose that interest and generally abstain from voting on any resolution to
approve such a contract. In addition, directors and officers are required to act honestly and in
good faith with a view to the best interests of their respective company. Some of the directors
and officers have either other full-time employment or other business or time restrictions placed
on them and accordingly, Meryllion will not be the only business enterprise of these directors
and officers. Further, any failure of the directors or officers of Meryllion to address these
conflicts in an appropriate manner, or to allocate opportunities that they become aware of to
Meryllion, could have a material adverse effect on Meryllion’s business, financial condition,
results of operations or prospects.

Competition in the mining industry may adversely affect Meryllion

The mining industry is intensely competitive. Meryllion will compete with other mining
companies, many of which have greater resources and experience. Competition in the mining
industry is primarily for: (i) properties which can be developed and can produce economically;
(ii) the technical expertise to find, develop, and operate such properties; (iii) labour to operate the
properties; and (iv) capital to fund such properties. Such competition may result in Meryllion
being unable to acquire desired properties, to recruit or retain qualified employees or to acquire
the capital necessary to fund their respective operations and develop their respective properties.
Meryllion’s inability to compete with other mining companies for these resources could have a
material adverse effect on Meryllion’s business, financial condition, results of operations or
prospects.

ITEM 22: PROMOTERS

There is no person presently, or within the past two years, who has acted as a promoter of
Meryllion.

ITEM 23: LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AND REGULATORY ACTIONS

Management of Meryllion is not aware of any material legal proceedings or regulatory actions
outstanding, pending or threatened as at the date hereof, by or against Meryllion, which would be
material to a purchaser of securities of Meryllion.

ITEM 24: INTERESTS OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN MATERIAL
TRANSACTIONS

The management of Meryllion is not aware of any material interest, direct or indirect, of any
insider of Meryllion, or any Associate or Affiliate of any such Person, in any transaction since
July 25, 2013 (date of incorporation), or in any proposed transaction, except as noted in the
previous section with respect to the Arrangement, that has materially affected or would
materially affect Meryllion.

ITEM 25: INVESTOR RELATIONS ARRANGEMENTS

Meryllion does not have any written or oral agreement or understanding with any person to
provide promotional or investor relation services to Meryllion.

ITEM 26: AUDITORS, TRANSFER AGENTS AND REGISTRARS
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The registrar and transfer agent for the Meryllion Shares is Computershare Investor Services
Inc., at its principal offices at 3rd Floor, 510 Burrard Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C
3B9.

The auditors of Meryllion are MacKay LLP Chartered Accountants of Suite 1100 — 1177 West
Hastings Street Vancouver, British Columbia, V6E 4T5.

ITEM 27: MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Meryllion has not entered into any material contracts during the last two years, other than
contracts in the ordinary course of business, except:

1. Arrangement Agreement between Concordia, Meryllion, and HPX TechCo dated October
1, 2013, 2013. For a description of the terms of the Arrangement Agreement, please see
Schedule “C” to this Listing Application.

2. LaProvidencia Project agreements comprising:

a. the La Providencia Option Agreement between MAS and Humberto Julio Cénepa
dated March 4, 2011 and amended March 2013;

b. the Rojo Agreements between MAS and Silvia Rojo dated October 13, 2011 and
effective in June and July 2012 and amended in May 2013; and

c. the Bragantini Agreement between MAS and Jorge Bragantini dated July 11,
2012 and amended in July 2013,

all of which are described in detail above.

Copies of these agreements will be available for inspection at the offices of Meryllion located at
Suite 1100 — 355 Burrard Street, Vancouver, BC, V6C 2G8, at any time during ordinary business
hours up to and including the date of the Meeting, as well as for a period of 30 days thereafter.

ITEM 28: EXPERTS

Meryllion has relied on certain tax advice from Koffman Kalef LLP in relation to the tax
treatment of the Meryllion Shares following the Arrangement.

Meryllion has relied on the work of the Qualified Persons listed above under the heading
“Mineral Properties” who reviewed and approved the scientific and technical information
presented in this Circular which is derived from the La Providencia Technical Report which is
available for review under Concordia’s profile on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

To the knowledge of Meryllion, as of the date hereof:

a. neither the Qualified Person listed above under the heading “Mineral Properties” that
prepared or contributed to the preparation of the La Providencia Technical Report, nor the
company listed therein that employs those individuals, hold a beneficial interest in, directly
or indeirectly, Meryllion Shares, or securities convertible into Meryllion Shares, equal to or
greater than one percent of the issued and outstanding Meryllion Shares;
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b. Mackay LLP, Chartered Accountants, have advised that they are independent of Meryllion
within the meaning of the Rules of Professional Conduct of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of British Columbia; and

c. the partners and associates of Koffman Kalef do not own, directly or indirectly, more than
1% of the issued and outstanding Meryllion Shares or securities convertible into Meryllion
Shares.

ITEM 29: OTHER MATERIAL FACTS

To the knowledge of the directors of Meryllion, there are no material facts about Meryllion that
are not disclosed above which are necessary in order for this Listing Application to contain full,
true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to Meryllion, assuming the completion of
the Arrangement.

ITEM 31: EXEMPTIONS
Sponsorship Requirement for Meryllion

In a letter from the Exchange dated July 18, 2013, the Executive Listing Committee (“ELC”)
agreed in principle to waive the Sponsorship requirement in connection with the listing of
Meryllion on the Exchange. The Exchange reserved the right to reconsider the waiver on receipt
and review of the full submission by Concordia in connection with the listing of Meryllion.

Exchange Escrow applicable to the shares of Meryllion

In a letter from the Exchange dated July 18, 2013, the ELC agreed in principle to waive the
escrow requirement in section 1.3 of the Exchange Finance Manual Policy 5.4 that for any New
Listing (as defined in the Exchange Finance Manual Policy Policy 1.1) all securities held by
Principals must be escrowed. The Exchange reserved the right to reconsider the waiver on
receipt and review of the full submission by Concordia in connection with the listing of
Meryllion.

ITEM 32: FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCLOSURE FOR ISSUERS
Please see Schedule “B” to this Listing Application.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT - PERSONAL INFORMATION
“Personal Information” means any information about an identifiable individual.

Meryllion hereby represents and warrants that it has obtained all consents required under
applicable law for the collection, use and disclosure by the Exchange of the Personal Information
contained in or submitted pursuant to this Listing Application for the purposes described in
Appendix “A” to the Exchange Form 2B Listing Application.
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ITEM 34: CERTIFICATES
CERTIFICATE OF THE COMPANY

Dated: December 2™, 2013

Each of the undersigned hereby certifies that the foregoing constitutes full, true and plain

disclosure of all information required to be disclosed under each item of this Listing Application

and of any material, fact not otherwise required to be disclosed under an item of this Listing
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MERYLLION BUSINESS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,
2012 AND 2011

(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts and shares in thousands)

Background

Concordia Resource Corp. (“Concordia”) announced the proposed spin-out of its Providencia and Cerro Amarillo exploration
properties located in Argentina held by Concordia’s wholly-owned subsidiary Meryllion Minerals Corporation, and
approximately $4,740 in cash, subject to closing adjustments, into Meryllion Resources Corporation (“Meryllion™), a wholly
owned subsidiary of Concordia, which was incorporated on July 25, 2013 under the Business Corporations Act of British
Columbia. Upon conclusion of the transactions, Meryllion will issue 17,126 common shares (100% of its equity) to
Concordia, which will be distributed to Concordia shareholders. The transaction is expected to close in December 2013.
Application has also been made to list the shares of Meryllion on the TSX Venture Exchange. The spin-out transaction will
be completed pursuant to a plan of arrangement (the “Arrangement™) and will be subject to regulatory approval and approval
by not less than two-thirds of the votes casted at a special meeting of the shareholders of Concordia that will be called.

The consolidated financial statements of Meryllion Business include the allocation of Concordia’s general and administrative
expenses and the accounts of Concordia’s whotly-owned Canadian subsidiaries Meryllion Resources Corporation, Meryllion
Minerals Corp. and its wholly-owned Argentinian subsidiary Meryllion Argentina SA (together the “Meryllion Business” or
the “Company™). The Meryllion Business financial statements reflect the consolidated financial position, statements of
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and cash flows of the related Argentine exploration business of Concordia and
Meryllion Minerals Corporation.

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A"), prepared as of October 16, 2013, should be read in conjunction
with the consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto of Meryllion Business for the nine months ended June 30,
2013 and years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 (“financial statements”). The consolidated financial results for the years
ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 have been audited in accordance with Canadian audit standards and prepared in
accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRS”), as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB™). The financial results for the nine months ended June 30, 2013 and other quarterly results presented in this
report are unaudited and have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standard 34, Interim Financial
Reporting. Refer to Notes 2 and 3 of the consolidated financial statements for disclosure of the Company’s significant
accounting policies.

Company Overview

Meryllion Business is a Canadian based resource company focused on exploration, acquisition and advancement of
exploration and evaluation assets. The Company’s head office, principal address, and registered and records office is #1100-
355 Burrard Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada, V6C 2G8.

Additional information relating to the Company is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

All amounts are expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise stated. All weight and linear amounts are
presented as is and are not in thousands.

Significant Events

For the Nine Months Ended June 30, 2013 and to the Date of this Report

In October 2013, the Company received $4,740 cash from Concordia according to the spin-out transaction described above.
The amount of cash transferred from Concordia is subject to post-closing adjustments.



MERYLLION BUSINESS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,
2012 AND 2011

(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts and shares in thousands)

Significant Events (continued)
For the Nine Months Ended June 30, 2013 and to the Date of this Report (continued)

On October 1, 2013 the Company entered into a Definitive Corporate Structure and Administration Agreement (the
“Agreement”) with Fitzcarraldo Ventures Inc. and Willem Fuchter (combined the “FVI™), whereby FVI agreed to relinquish
its right under the previous agreement for a 10% equity interest in the Company upon listing on the TSX Venture Exchange.
In exchange, the Company granted FVI a 1% net smelter returns royalty on Providencia and Cerro Amarillo properties. The
Company has a right until September 30, 2018 to buy half of the royalty (i.e. 0.5%) for US$500.

In August 2013, Meryllion held meetings with the federal and provincial mining authorities as well as officials of the city of
Malargiie who have all expressed their support for the advancement of exploration on Cerro Amarillo project. The report
from the Department of Water Affairs has been completed and all reports are currently being assessed by the Department of
Mining.

In May, June and July 2013, various option agreements at the Providencia project were amended allowing the Company
longer exploration time periods.

In Jate 2012, the owners of Cerro Amarillo property applied for an additional and contiguous 2,500 hectares directly to the
south of the original property and included this area in the original agreement by signing an addendum to the option
agreement.

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

On August 30, 2012, the Company announced a resource estimate from the Providencia Project as prepared by independent
consultants RPA Inc. (“RPA") of Vancouver, Canada.

On May 14, 2012, the Company announced the completion of its initial field campaign at its Cerro Amarillo copper-
molybdenum-gold porphyry project in Argentina, with strong indications of large copper-molybdenum-gold potential,

On March 2, 2012, the Company announced the results of its first-stage drilling program at the Providencia silver property in
northwestern Argentina, where highlights included 4 meters of mineralization at a grade of 3,112 g/t silver (DPR-0004); 1,788
g/t over 7 meters (“m™) (DPR-005) and 60.2 g/t over 44 m (DPR-033). The drilling program targeted near surface sediment-
hosted silver mineralization within the historic pit area of the former producing La Providencia Mine, with the aim of
delineating an initial resource in line with National Instrument 43-101 guidelines. A total of 3,589.4 meters of core were
drilled in 39 holes. The program has confirmed that mineralization continues under the mined areas and peripheral to the pits,
extending for up to 150 m down-dip to the east, 600 m along strike and has been intersected over down-hole thicknesses
averaging some 17 m (above 25 g/t Ag). Mineralization is open to the north and at depth.

The Providencia Option Agreement between Meryllion Argentina SA and Humberto Julio Cénepa dated March 4, 2011
regarding the Providencia and M. Tola mineral tiltles, was amended in March 2012. These properties form part of the
Providencia Project comprising four mineral titles: La Providencia, M. Tola, M. Olaroz Chico and Libertad. An additional
two separate exploration-with-option-to-purchase agreements were signed effective June 6, 2012, with respect to M. Olaroz
Chico and effective July 13, 2012, with respect to Libertad titles. In addition, an exploration-with-option-to-purchase
agreement was signed effective July 11, 2012, for the Cerro Galan, Coyaguaima, Coranzuli, Panizos, and Nazarena
properties, which are situated in the district (that also hosts Silver Standard’s Pirquitas Ag-Sn mine) but are not contiguous to
the Providencia property.

The drilling program at Providencia was completed in early February 2012, and some 4,519 m were drilled in 41 holes. The
drilling not only provided the basis for the preliminary estimate but has indicated the potential to expand these resources
significantly between the pits by further drilling and extending it along a well mineralized structure trending north-west from
the two northerly pits. In addition, there are further targets on the property.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,
2012 AND 2011

(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts and shares in thousands)

Significant Events (continued)

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2011

On September 2, 2011, Meryllion Argentina SA received authorization from the Directorate of Mines — Province of Jujuy to
proceed with drilling at the Providencia project.

In March 2011, the Company acquired an option to purchase the Providencia silver-copper prospect located in the Jujuy
province of northwestern Argentina.

On October 26, 2010, Concordia announced that it has established a new corporate entity to conduct exploration activities in
South America. Concordia’s board of directors approved management’s recommendation that the Company no longer focus
exclusively on uranium exploration in Canada and the United States. Given that mandate, Meryllion Argentina SA was
created to undertake exploration programs in, and to acquire an interest in, South American properties, with an emphasis on
Argentina, Brazil and Peru. The new subsidiary, Meryllion Argentina SA is headed up by Willem Fuchter, PhD PGeo, a
geologist with worldwide experience in gold and base metal exploration. Dr. Fuchter will head up the exploration effort with
the support of a technical team headquartered in Buenos Aires. Concordia has agreed to fund the Company with the goal of
developing a “property of merit” that will qualify for a TSX Venture Exchange listing. Concordia has agreed that
immediately prior to the TSX Venture Exchange listing the management team of Meryllion Argentina SA will own 10% of
the listed company with Concordia holding the remaining 90%, not including any interim equity financing. This agreement
was amended on October |, 2013 as disclosed above.

On September 30, 2010, Meryllion entered into an exploration and option agreement to purchase Cerro Amarillo property
located in the Malargiie District, in the Province of Mendoza, Argentina. Under the agreement, Meryllion has the exclusive
right to engage in exploration activities on the Cerro Amarillo Property for up to 52 months (revised to 76 months in January
2012) before exercising its option to acquire a 100% interest in the property.

Trends and Qutlook

The market conditions are expected to remain difficult for all of the resource companies in the near term. Meryllion Business
is an exploration company with a focus on South America and has a highly qualified team of professionals engaged in the
search for resources. The Company’s goal is to discover and develop mineral projects that can significantly add value. We
have set realistic targets for each of the projects under development and will make decisions to progress the properties based
entirely on the results generated and the perceived risks and evaluated expense of going to the next phase.

Resource Properties

Through the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Meryllion Argentina SA, the Company has mineral exploration
concessions in Argentina. A description of each of the properties is provided as follows:

Providencia, Argentina

The Providencia Ag-Cu property is located in the Puna region of northwestern Argentina, and comprises mineral concessions
situated at 4,200 m above sea level and some 260 km by good road from San Salvador de Jujuy, the capital of the Jujuy
Province. The focus on the property has been the mineralization of the La Providencia silver deposit which was discovered in
1969 and produced some five million ounces of silver between 1986 and 1997. More recently, the Company ~through its
Argentine subsidiary, Meryllion Argentina SA completed a 4,500 m diamond drilling program and contracted independent
consultants Roscoe Postle Associates Inc (“RPA”) of Vancouver Canada to prepare a resource estimate.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,
2012 AND 2011

(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts and shares in thousands)

Resource Properties (continued)
Providencia (continued)

The Providencia property comprises four mineral titles: La Providencia, M. Tola, M. Olaroz Chico and Libertad. Under the
terms of the option agreement on La Providencia and M. Tola entered into in March 2011 and amended in March 2013, MAS
has the right to acquire a 100% interest in these titles by making an initial payment of US$50 (paid) with additional escalating
option payments amounting to US$1,225 (US$375 paid) paid over the 72 months. The exercise fee is US$950 if less than 50
million ounces of resources have been delineated (as defined by a third-party, independent consultant), or US$1,950 if more
than 50 million ounces of silver are defined.

The property is subject to a 1.5% NSR of which the Company can buy out for US$3,000 if less than 50 million ounces of
silver resources are defined, or for US$2,000 if more than 50 million ounces of silver resources are defined. The Company,
in addition, is committed to exploration expenditures of US$50 and US$100 in the first and second years respectively
(fulfilled).

Two separate exploration-with-option-to-purchase agreements were signed effective June 13, 2012, and amended in May
2013, with respect to M. Olaroz Chico, and effective July 13,2012, and amended in May 2013, with respect to Libertad titles.
These agreements require that MAS make payments of US$E,060 (US$18 paid) over 81 months in order to eam a 100%
interest in the properties. In addition, a 1% NSR royalty is due with an option to buy out the NSR royaity for US$500.

In addition to the core properties of 5,000 hectares, a further exploration-with-option-to-purchase agreement was signed
effective July 11, 2012, and amended in July 2013, for some 9,500 hectares spread over the Cerro Galdn, Coyaguaima,
Coranzuli, Panizos, and Nazarena properties, which are situated in the district (that also hosts Silver Standard’s Pirquitas Ag-
Sn mine) but are not contiguous to the Providencia property. This agreement stipulates a series of annual option payments
amounting to US$270 (US$!5 paid) over 72 months as well as a final purchase price of US$740 in order to earn a 100%
interest in the properties. These titles are also subject to a NSR royalty of 1% which can be purchased for US$500. There is
an additional work commitment of US${00 over the term of the agreement (72 months). In 2011, the Company also applied
for two exploration concessions (“cateos”) amounting to 15,500 hectares to the south of the core properties of Providencia.

The focus of the project is the La Providencia silver deposit which was discovered in 1969 and which between 1986 and 1997
produced some five million ounces of silver from ore grading >250 g/t Ag. Mineralization is hosted by a gently dipping,
poorly consolidated, green conglomerate unit floored and capped by pink mudstones and white sandstones respectively.
Compilation of previous exploration data as well as confirmation mapping and sampling have indicated the presence of a
number of mineralized fenses largely within the conglomerate unit, but also in the white sandstone immediately above a set of
steeply dipping structures.

The most extensive of these lenses, the Main Lens, is located in the central part of the Upper Conglomerate, and was the
primary target of previous mining. Four shallow open pits were developed — the North, Central, South, and West Pits, and
mineralization in this lens is open along strike to both the north and south, as well as down-dip to the east within the gently
dipping Upper Conglomerate. Additional mineralization has been intersected by previous drilling in conglomerate units
located below the pink mudstone, and the objective of the Company’s drill program, which was started in late August 2011,
was to extend known resources in the near surface environment as well as to test for mineralization at depth with a view
arriving at a compliant resource statement,

The drilling was undertaken by Major Perforaciones SA, the Argentine subsidiary of Major Drilling Group International Inc.
(“Major”). Major mobilized a UDR200D which is capable of drilling at both “H” and “P” diameters. Because of the poorly
consolidated nature of the conglomerates, triple tube core barrels were utilized, and recovery was further enhanced with the
addition of bentonite and bio-degradable organic polymers to the drilling fluids.
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Resource Properties (continued)
Providencia (continued)

The program was completed in early February 2012, and some 4,519 m were drilled in 41 holes. Core samples were sent to
the accredited facilities of ALS Minerals in Mendoza, Argentina for sample preparation and analysis. Sample shipment was
facilitated by an arrangement between ALS Minerals and Andesmar, an Argentine-wide bussing and transport company,
which includes formally established chain-of-custody protocols. At the lab, the total sample was crushed and a lkg portion
split-off and pulverized.

From this, Ag was analyzed by a fire assay fusion and gravimetric analysis finish procedure (“FA™) on a 50 g nominal sample
weight, and an additional 33 elements were analyzed for using inductively coupled atomic emission spectroscopy (ICP-AES)
after four acid digestion to dissolve most minerals. Any ICP-AES analytical result for Cu, Pb, or Zn exceeding 10,000 ppm,
was re-analyzed by FA procedures on a 30g charge. Quality assurance and quality control (“QA/QC”) samples were included
with the core samples, and this data has been reviewed by Analytical Solutions Ltd (*ASL™) of Toronto, Canada,

The program has confirmed that mineralization continues under the mined areas and peripheral to the pits, extending for up to
150 m down-dip to the east, 600 m along strike and has been intersected over down-hole thicknesses averaging some 17 m
(above 25 g/t Ag). Mineralization is open to the north and at depth. Significant highlights of the program to date are shown
below.

Hole From (m) To (m) Interval (m) Silver (g/t)
DPR-00! 0 19 19 76.5
| Including 5 16 1 101.7
DPR-002 0 18 18 85.3
Including 0 14 14 102.2
DPR-003 0 18 18 73.3
Including 0 12 12 100.0
DPR-004 18 27 9 8i8.9
Including 22 27 1,435.6
DPR-003 19 26 7 1,788.2
Including 22 26 31115
DPR-014 3] 51 20 54.6
Including 32 35 3 1527
DPR-015 27 44 17 60.2
Including 27 31 4 159.0
DPR-016 24 31 7 284.1
Including 27 30 3 519.0
DPR-017 19 23 4 131.8
DPR-018 0 3 3 _ 182.0
DPR-019 ' 3 26 23 85.2
Including 15 2 6 200.9
DPR-024 . 15 22 7 99.9
Including Y 21 3 203.5
DPR-026 0 ] 4 92.3
“DPR-027 "9 ] 3 22 85.1
Including 13 30 13 100.6
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,
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(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts and shares in thousands)

Resource Properties (continued)

Providencia (continued)

The Company retained RPA to review and report on the results of the drilling program. RPA prepared a preliminary National
Instrument 43-101 compliant resource estimate for an in-pit and underground resource of 5.4 million ounces of silver in the

Inferred category as shown below.

Inferred Mineral Resources - Providencia Project
as at August 31, 2012

Cut-Off Tonnes Ag Cu Ag Cu
(gt Ag) (g9 | () (0z) (1b)
In Pit 40 981,000 155 0.074 4,900,000 72,400
IR S
U/G 150 32,900 504 0.249 533,000 8,180
Total 1,014,000 166 0.080 5,430,000 80,600

Notes:

1. CIM definitions were followed for Mineral Resources.

2. Mineral Resources are estimated at the cut-off grades of 40 g/t Ag for open pit and 150 g/t Ag for underground.
3. Mineral Resources are estimated using a long-term silver price of US527 per cunce.

4. A nominal minimum mining width of 3 m was used.

5. Bulk density is 2.40 t/m3.

6. Numbers may not add due to rounding.

The estimate was prepared in accordance with NI 43-101 as well as CIM Definition Standards for Mineral Resources and
Mineral Reserves (2010), and was based on 41 drill holes completed during the Company’s recent first stage drilling program
‘(press release March 2, 2012) as well as the 26 holes undertaken by Cardero Resource Corp. in 2003 and 2004. Holes were
drilled every 50 m along fences 50 m apart. The estimate was prepared from interpreted cross- and longitudinal-sections from
which wireframe models of the geology and mineralization were developed. These formed the basis for a block model on
which pit shells were subsequently superimposed.

A more detailed account of the Company’s exploration activities on the Providencia property can be found in the technical
report entitled “Technical Report on the Providencia Silver Project, Jujuy Province, Argentina N1 43-101” dated October 8,
2013 (the “Technical Report™) and prepared by David W, Rennie, PEng of RPA. This Technical Report is available on the
Concordia’s SEDAR profile at www.sedar.com .
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Resource Properties (continued)
Providencia (continued)

The drilling not only provided the basis for the preliminary estimate but has indicated the potential to expand these resources
significantly between the pits by further drilling and extend it along a well mineralized structure trending NW from the two
northerly pits. In addition, there are further targets on the property. As a consequence, the Company is planning on
conducting additional surface exploration with a view of outlining additional drill targets prior to implementing a second stage
drilling program designed to increase and upgrade the known resources on the property.

Cerro Amuarillo

The Company acquired an option to purchase the 16,500 hectare Cerro Amarillo copper-gold property located in the
Malargiie District, in the Province of Mendoza, Argentina.

Cerro Amarillo is a copper-gold-molybdenum porphyry prospect, and lies at the southern end of the highly productive late
Miocene ~ Pliocene magmatic arc that hosts the El Teniente and Los Bronces porphyry deposits in Chile. The property
comprises some 16,500 hectares and contains three porphyry occurrences (Cerro Amarillo, Cajon Grande, and C4) and an
additional four color/alteration anomalies (C2, C3, Dead Cow, and South Anomaly). The three porphyry occurrences lie in a
northeast-trending corridor with Cerro Amarillo in the northeast, Cajon Grande in the center, and C4 in the southwest of the
14 km x 11 km property.

Under the option agreement on Cerro Amarillo, entered into in October 2010, the Company has the exclusive right to engage
in exploration activities on the properties for up to 52 months before exercising its option to acquire a 100% interest in the
properties. The option is exercisable by the Company at any time, however, so long as the exploration program is ongoing,
the Company will make payments to the owners of the property, which payments will total US$525 (US$200 paid) if the
exploration program continues for at least 40 months. In early 2012, an extension of the option for an additional two years
was negotiated for further payments of US$175. When the option is exercised, the Company will pay a final purchase price
of US$2,500. The owners of the property will also be entitled to a 1% NSR in the event the properties are placed into
commercial production, which the Company may purchase for US$3,000. Later in 2012, the owners applied for an additional
and contiguous 2,500 hectares directly to the south of the original property and included this area in the original agreement by
signing an addendum to the option agreement,

The Company’s recently completed 2012 austral summer campaign of detailed mapping and rock sampling within this
corridor has outlined three fertile systems with strong indications of large copper-molybdenum-gold potential, and has led to
the development of a drill proposal for a first stage drill program at Cerro Amarillo and Cajon Grande mineral occurrences.

The Cerro Amarillo occurrence in the northeast contains a classical porphyry-style mineralized system that includes
stockwork, disseminated, breccias, skarn, and vein-types of mineralization. These types of mineralization are zoned with a
central porphyry plug containing abundant quartz-magnetite vein stockworks together with disseininated chalcopyrite. This
plug is surrounded by mineralized hydrothermal breccias with abundant pyrite which may result in an excellent supergene trap
for leached copper and gold. Skarn mineralization occurs in almost perfect ring at the intersection of the vertical cylinder of
breccias and the shallow-dipping calcareous sedimentary sequence. At the current level of erosion, almost the entire ring is
exposed. Sparse peripheral veins of containing barite, hematite, galena, and sphalerite occur out to a radius of approximately
one kilometer. The unique level of exposure of this system would allow the core stockwork-disseminated mineralization, the
supergene breccias, and the skamns to be extracted in a single open-pit with a very low stripping ratio.
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Resource Properties (continued)

Cerro Amarillo {continued)

At Cajon Grande, the porphyry intrusions also exhibit copper-gold-molybdenum mineralization and associated hydrothermal
alteration. The alteration includes an early stage potassic (quartz biotite) event with associated copper mineralization. This
was immediately followed by an intense stockwork veining and associated sodic-calcic (actinolite albite + sericite) alteration
stage. Most of the copper seems to be associated with this event which is also strongly associated with the appearance of
magnetite. In addition, low-temperature, sub epithermal, barite siderite sulphide veins occur distal to the porphyry system,

The C4 system in the southwest of the property has the potential to host a very large zone of mineralized porphyry and
breccia. There is extensive hydrothermal alteration developed over a six kilometer strike. This alteration includes zones of
quartz pyrite with argillic overprinting developed over a strike of at least two kilometers, and extending beyond that into
shears and peripheral breccia zones.

Magnetite, magnetite-actinolite, and specular hematite veins, stockworks and breccias occur below this main phyllic zone, and
the alteration can be interpreted as a lower sodic-calcic alteration phase, with a possible elongate core of potassic alteration
which has not been exposed at surface, telescoped upwards into the strongly developed phyllic zone.

Previous sampling undertaken at the Cerro Amarillo occurrence by BHP in 1998 returned results ranging up to 1.47% Cu,
0.98 g/t Au, and 550 ppm Mo, while an isolated outcrop of dacite dyke returned a value of 57 g/t Au. The Company’s
confirmation sampling returned values ranging up to 0.78% Cu and 0.89 g/t Au. At Cajon Grande, historic values from a
sampling campaign in 2008 ranged up to 4.35% Cu, 4.23 g/t Au and 1500 g/t Ag while Concordia’s samples returned values
of 1.51% Cu, 2.41 g/t Ay, 765 g/t Ag, and 334 ppm Mo. In addition, samples from epithermal veins of barite-siderite-
sulphide distal to the intrusion contained up to 8.21% Cu, 2.48 g/t Au and 100 g/t Ag. The C4 sampling gave values up to
0.20% Cu, 170 ppm Mo and 0.15 g/t Au.

Not only has the mapping and sampling indicated the fertility of the systems, but it has also indicated that each system has a
large scale footprint indicating large-tonnage Cu-Mo-Au potential. Moreover, Cerro Amariilo’s geological similarity to the
world class El Teniente and Los Bronces deposits as well as its the location within the extension of the same Neogene
magmatic arc are positive indications for future exploration success. As a consequence, further mapping and sampling of the
four additionally identified anomalies has been proposed prior to the execution of a first stage target testing drill program for
which Meryllion is currently in the process of obtaining the necessary permits and permissions. Towards this end,
environmental reports and glaciological studies have been submitted to the Departments of Mining and Environmental
Protection for evaluation. Additional sectorial reports from the Department of Water Affairs as well as the Municipality of
Malargiie were requested and the meetings have been held with the federal and provincial mining authorities as well as
officials of Malargiie who have all expressed their support for the project. The report from the Department of Water Affairs
has been completed and all reports are currently being assessed by the Department of Mining.

Qualified Person

Dr. Willem Fuchter P.Geo, CEO of Meryllion Minerals Corp., a qualified person for the purposes of N1 43-101 and has
supervised the preparation of the scientific and technical information in this MD&A,

Setected Annual Financial Information

The Meryllion Business financial results reflect the consolidated financial position, statements of comprehensive loss, changes
in equity and cash flows of the related Argentine exploration business of Concordia and Meryllion Minerals Corp. The
statement of comprehensive loss for the year ended September 30, 2012 include a $1,145 (September 30, 2011 - $840)
allocation of Concordia’s general and administrative expenses. The allocation of general and administrative expenses was
calculated on the basis of the ratio of expenditures incurred on the Providencia and Cerro Amarillo properties as compared to
the expenditures incurred on all of Concordia’s properties during the periods.
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Selected Annual Financial Information (continued)

Management cautions readers of this report, that the allocation of expenses may not be indicative of the actual expenses that
would have been incurred had the Company been operating as a separate, stand-alone public company for the periods
presented and do not reflect the Company’s consolidated results of operations, financial position and cash flows had the
Company been a stand-alone public company during the periods presented. The results of operations are not necessarily
indicative of the operating results of future years.

The following table provides a brief summary of the Company's financial operations for the past three years. For more
detailed information, refer to the audited consolidated financial statements,

Year ended September 30,

2012 2011 2010

$ 3 $
Total assets 740 317 N/A
Exploration and evaluation assets 562 236 N/A
Working capital 144 (152) N/A
Total comprehensive loss (5,275) (2,305) N/A
Basic and diluted loss per share (0.34) {0.19) N/A

(1) Meryllion Business operations started in fiscal 2011 and therefore 2010 financial results are not applicable.

Total assets increased mainly due to the increase in exploration and evaluation assets and increase in deposits during 2012.
Deposits of $155 were mainly from the drilling program on Providencia. Exploration and evaluation assets increased due to
the option payments made on Providencia and Cerro Amarillo properties and a finder’s payment of $100K on Providencia.

The fluctuation in working capital over the year is due to the timing of payments for accounts payables and large balances in
deposits during 2012.

The increase in total comprehensive loss during 2012 is mainly due to the exploration expenditures for the drilling at
Providencia.

Summary of Selected Quarterly Results (unaudited)

2013 2012 2011

Q3 Q2 Ql Q4 Q3 Q2 Ql Q4

$ $ ] b3 b3 $ b $
Total assels 851 844 752 740 678 649 410 317
Exploration and evaluation 770 733 569 562 440 431 236 236
assets
Expenses (283) (674) (302) (571 (751) (1,164) (2,534) (1,365)
Nel loss (260) (663) (301) (582) (752) (1,242) (2,696) (1,394)
Total comprehensive loss (233) (647) (295) (607) (740) (1,244) (2,684) (1,374)
g,a;,“ and diluted loss per 0.02) , ©01) (0.03) (0.04) (0.07) 0.22) .11
c s

Quarterly amounts addcd together may not equal the total fcporfcd for the period due to Fii}xitd'ing;
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Summary of Selected Quarterly Results (unaudited) (continued)

Total assets and exploration and evaluation assets increased over the eight quarters mainly due to the option payments made
on the Providencia and Cerro Amarillo properties. Expenses and Net loss were higher during the last quarter of 2011 and the
first three quarters of 2012 mainly due to the exploration expenses for the drilling program on Providencia and surface
exploration on Cerro Amarillo.

Results of Operations — Nine Months Ended June 30, 2013

For the nine months ended June 30, 2013, the Company reported a total comprehensive loss of $1,175 compared to 2 total
comprehensive loss of $4,668 for the nine months ended June 30, 2012, of which $1,259 (2012 - $4,449) can be attributed to
expenses, $35 (2012 — loss of $241) to other items, and $49 (2012  $22) to unrealized gain on translation to reporting
currency. Expenses were significantly lower during the 2013 period due to the completion of drilling on Providencia in 2012
and no significant exploration programs undertaken in 2013.

Results of Operations — Years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011

For the year ended September 30, 2012, the Company reported a total comprehensive loss of $5,275 compared to a total
comprehensive loss of $2,305 for the year ended September 30, 2011, of which $5,020 (2011 - $2,281) can be artributed 1o
expenses, $252 (2011 — $40) to foreign exchange losses, and $3 (2011 ~ gain of $16) to unrealized gain/(losses) on
translation to reporting currency.

2012 exploration expenditures of $3,350 (2011 - $987) were significantly higher due to the drilling at Providencia and
increase in exploration at Cerro Amarillo, The fluctuation in other line items in the expenses category were mainly dué to the
allocation of Concordia’s expenses based on the ratio of expenditures incurred on the Providencia and Cerro Amarillo
properties as compared to the expenditures incurred on all of Concordia’s properties during the periods.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash Flow Highlights
Nine Months Ended June 30,

2013 2012
$ $
Cash used in operaling activities (1,069) (4,413)
Cash used in investing activities (163) (207}
Cash acquired from financing activities 1,237 4,859
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 39 217
Change in cash 44 20
Cash - beginning of period 21 51
Cash - end of period 65 71
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Liquidity and Capital Resources (continued)

Cash Flow Highlights
Years Ended September 30,

2012 2011
3 $

Cash used in operating activities (5,073) (1,640)
Cash used in investing activities (336) @21
Cash acquired from financing activities 5,624 1,951
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (245) (39)
Change in cash (30) 51
Cash - beginning of period 51

Cash - end of period 21 51

At June 30, 2013, the Company had cash of $65 and working capital of $20 compared to cash of $21 and working capital of
$144 on September 30, 2012. In October 2013, the Company received $4,740 cash, subject to post-closing adjustments, from
Concordia according to the spin-out transaction. Since inception, the Company has relied on the funding provided by
Concordia. Upon completion of the spin out, Concordia’s funding will no longer be available to the Company.

The Company anticipates that post-closing of the spin-out transaction with Concordia, it will have sufficient cash to finance
its operations for at least 12 months from the date of approval of this report. The Company will be relying on further equity
financing as the most likely source of funds for the advancement of one of the Company's exploration assets to a resource
delineation or feasibility stage,

Except as disclosed, the Company does not know of any trends, demand, commitments, events or uncertainties that will result
in, or that are reasonably likely to result in, its liquidity either materially increasing or decreasing at present or in the
foreseeable future. Material increases or decreases in liquidity are substantially determined by the success or failure of the
exploration programs.

The Company is not now nor expects in the future to be engaged in currency hedging to offset any risk of currency
fluctuations.

Operating Cash Flow

Cash used in operating activities during the nine months ended June 30, 2013, was $1,069 compared to $4,415 used during
the period ended June 30, 2012, The decrease in operating cash expenditures was primarily due to a decrease in exploration
activities in Argentina.

Cash used in operating activities during the year ended September 30, 2012, was $5,073 compared to $1,640 used during
2011. The increase in operating cash expenditures was primarily due to the increased exploration activities in Argentina
during 2011.

Investing Activities

Investing activities required cash of $163 during the nine months ended June 30, 2013, compared to $207 used during the
period ended June 30, 2012. The cash used in investing activities during the periods was primarily due to the properties
oplions payments in Argenting,

11
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Investing Activities (continued)

Investing activities required cash of $336 during the year ended September 30, 2012, compared to $221 used during 2011.
The cash used in investing activities during 2012 and 2011 was primarily due to the options payments and finder’s fees paid
for properties in Argentina.

Financing Activities

Financing activities were solely funded by Concordia and resulted in cash of $1,237 acquired during the nine months ended
June 30, 2013, compared to $4,859 acquired during the period ended June 30, 2012

Financing activities generated cash of $5,624 during the year ended September 30, 2012, compared to $1,951 acquired during
2011,

Commitments
The Company does not have significant commitments, other than property commitments disclosed elsewhere in this report.
Related Party Transactions

The Company did not have any related party transactions, other than those described in the compensation of key management
as follows.

Compensation of Key Management

Compensation of key management consist of the amounts of contributions from Concordia representing the atlocation of
salaries, directors’ fees, consulting fees and stock- based compensation of Concordia’s key management personal.

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management included:

For the nine months ended For the years ended
June 30, September 30,

2013 2012 2011

$ $ 3
Salaries and benefits 122 260 113
Director’s fees, included in salaries and benefits 29 20 -

Benefits paid to director, included in salaries and

benefits 1 -
Termination benefit included in salaries and benefits 259 -
Consulting fees, included in professional fees 16 7
Stock-based compensation vested during the period 18 240 382
Total key mana ement com ensation 445 520 502

Off-balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company has no off-balance sheet arrangements other than those disclosed under resource properties.
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Share Data Information

As at the date of this MD&A, there is | (this number is not in thousands) common share, Nil stock options and Nil warrants
outstanding. Upon conclusion of the spin-out transaction, 17,126 common shares will be issued and distributed to
shareholders of Concordia.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and [iabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

All of the Company’s financial instruments are classified into one of two categories: loans and receivables or other financial
liabilities. All financial instruments are measured in the statement of financial position at fair value initially. Subsequent
measurement and changes in fair value will depend on their initial classification. Loans and receivables and other financial
liabilities are measured at amortized cost.

Cash and receivables have been designated as loans and receivables. Cash and receivables are included in current assets due
to their short term nature.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities have been designated as other financial liabilities and are include in current liabilities
due to their short-term nature.

June 30, 2013 September 30,2012 September 30, 2011
) $ 3

Financial assets
Loans-and -receivables

Cash 65 21 51

Receivables t 2 24
Total financial assets 66 23 75
Financial liabilities
Other-financial-liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 61 34 233
Total financial liabilities 61 34 233

Additional financial instruments disclosure is contained in Note 11 of the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the
nine months ended June 30, 2013 and years ended September 30, 2012 and 201 1.

Risk and Uncertainties

The Company's operations and results are subject to a number of different risks at any given time. These factors, include but
are not limited to disclosure regarding exploration, additional financing, project delay, titles to properties, price fluctuations
and share price volatility, operating hazards, insurable risks and limitations of insurance, management, foreign country and
regulatory requirements, currency fluctuations and environmental regulations risks. Exploration for mineral resources
involves a high degree of risk. The cost of conducting programs may be substantial and the likelihood of success is difficult
to assess. The Company seeks to counter this risk as far as possible by selecting exploration areas on the basis of their
recognized geological potential to host economic deposits.
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Risk and Uncertainties {continued)

A summary of the Company’s financial instruments risk exposure is provided in Note 11 of the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the nine months ended June 30, 2013 and years ended September 30, 2012 and 201 1.

The following are additional risk factors which the Company's management believes are most important in the context of the
Company’s business. It should be noted that this list is not exhaustive and that other risk factors may apply.

The Company’s exploration and mining activities will be in Argentina and will be subject to the risks of political and
econontic instability associated with this country

Argentina has, from time to time, experienced economic or political instability. The Company may be materially adversely
affected by risks associated with conducting exploration and mining activities in Argentina, including: political instability and
violence; war and civil disturbance; acts of terrorism; expropriation or nationalization; inequitable treatment of non-domiciled
companies; changing fiscal regimes; fluctuations in currency exchange rates; high rates of inflation; underdeveloped industrial
and economic infrastructure; and unenforceability of contractual rights.

Argentinean regulators have broad authority to shut down and/or levy fines against operations that do not comply with
regulations or standards. In addition, factors such as those listed above, the Company’s mineral exploration and potential
future mining activities in Argentina may also be affected in varying degrees by government regulations with respect to
restrictions on production, price controls, foreign exchange controls, export controls, taxes, royalties, environmental
legislation and mine safety. Regardless of the economic viability of the Company’s interest in its properties, and despite
being beyond the Company’s control, such factors may prevent or restrict mining of some or all of any deposits which the
Company may find on the its properties.

In May 2012, the governiment of Argentina re-nationalized Y acimientos Petroliferos Fiscales (“YPF”), the country’s largest
oil and gas company. There can be no assurance that the government of Argentina will not nationalize other businesses
operating in the country, including the business of the Company.

Provincial governments of Argentina have considerable authority over exploration and mining in their province and there are
Argentinean provinces where the provincial government has taken an anti-mining stance by passing laws to curtail or ban
mining in those provinces. The current provincial government of Jujuy Province, where the Providencia Project is situated, is
supportive of the exploration and mining industry, however such situation may change in the future.

Argentina has, in the past, and is currently enduring a period of high inflation which could increase the Company’s operating
costs refating to work carried out on its properties. The Company will also purchase certain supplies and retain the services of
varjous companies in Argentina to meet its future business plans. It may be difficult to find or hire qualified people in the
mining industry who are situated in Argentina or to obtain all of the necessary services or expertise in Argentina or to conduct
operations on its projects at reasonable rates. If qualified people and services or expertise cannot be obtained in Argentina,
the Company may need to seek and obtain those services from people located outside of Argentina which will require work
permits and compliance with applicable laws and could result in delays and higher costs to the Company to conduct its
operations in Argentina. In addition, Argentina’s status as a developing country may make it more difficult for the Company
to obtain any required financing for its projects. If a dispute arises regarding the Company’s interest to its properties, the
Company cannot rely on Canadian legal standards in defending or advancing its interests.

As a result, the Company will be subject to various increased economic, political, operational and other risks, any one or more
of which could have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition, and results of operations or prospects.
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Risk and Uncertainties (continued)

The development and success of the Providencia project will be largely dependent on the future price of silver, copper and
other metals

Metal price volatility may affect the future production, profitability, and financial condition of the Company. Metal prices are
subject to significant fluctuation and are affected by a number of factors which are beyond the control of the Company. Such
factors include, but are not limited to, interest rates, exchange rates, inflation or deflation, global supply and demand, and
political economic conditions of major metal consuming countries throughout the world. The price of silver, copper, and
other metals has fluctuated widely in recent years, and future material price declines could cause development of, and
commercial production from, the Projects to be impracticable or uneconomic.

The metals market also tends to move in cycles. Periods of high demand, increasing profits and high capacity utilization lead
to additional capacity through expansion of existing mines and investment in new mines which results in increased
production. This growth increases supply until the market is saturated, leading to declining prices and declining capacity
utilization until the cycle repeats. This cyclicality in prices can result in supply/demand imbalances and pressures on mineral
prices and profit margins which could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition, results
of operations or prospects.

Depending on the price of silver, copper, and other metals, projected cash flow from planned mining operations may not be
sufficient and the Company could be forced to discontinue development and may lose its interest in, or may be forced to sell,
one or more of the mining properties. Future production from the Company’s mining properties will be dependent on metal
prices that are adequate to make these properties economically viable. Furthermore, future mine plans using significantly
lower metal prices could result in material write-downs of the Company’s investment in mining properties,

In addition to adversely affecting the Company's Mineral Resource Estimate for the Providencia project and any future
Mineral Reserve estimates and its financial condition, declining commodity prices can iimpact operations by requiring a
reassessment of the feasibility of a particular project. Such a reassessment may be the result of a management decision or
may be required under financing arrangements related to a particular project. If such a reassessment determines that any of
the Company’s projects are not economically viable, then operations may cease and such projects may never be developed.
Even if the projects are ultimately determined to be economically viable, the need to conduct such a reassessment may cause
substantial delays or may interrupt operations until the reassessment can be completed. The occurrence of any of the
foregoing could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operations or
prospects.

Meryllion will need substantial additional financing in the future and cannof assure that such financing will be available

To meet its operating costs and to finance its respective future acquisition, exploration, development and operating costs, the
Company will require financing from external sources, including from the sale of equity and debt securities, the sale of an
interest in one or more of its mineral projects, entering into joint ventures or seeking other means to meet its financing
requirements. There can be no assurance that additional funding will be available to the Company or, if available, that such
funding will be offered on terms acceptable to the Company. [f additional financing is raised through the issuance of equity
or convertible debt securities, control of the Company may change and the interests of shareholders in the net assets of the
respective company may be diluted. If unable to secure financing on acceptable terms, the Company may have to cancel or
postpone certain of its planned exploration and development activities and may not be able to take advantage of acquisition
opportunities. If the Company is unable to complete minimum work obligations on its exploration concessions, thi
concessions could be relinquished under applicable exploration concession agreements. The failure of the Company to obtain
additional financing would have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition, results of operations or
prospects.

15



MERYLLION BUSINESS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,
2012 AND 2011

(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts and shares in thousands)

Risk and Uncertainties (continued)
The volatility of the capital markets may affect the Company's access to and cost of capital

Securities markets throughout the world are cyclical and, over time, tend to undergo high levels of price and volume volatility,
and the market price of securities of many companies, particularly those in the resource sector, can experience wide
fluctuations which are not necessarily related to the operating performance, underlying asset values or prospects of such
companies. Increased levels of volatility and resulting market turmoil may adversely impact the Company and its share price.
If either the Company is required to access credit markets to carry out their respective development objectives, the state of
domestic and international credit markets and other financial systems could affect their respective access to, and cost of,
capital. If these credit markets were significantly disrupted, as they were in 2007 and 2008, such disruptions could make it
more difficult for the Company to obtain, or increase its cost of obtaining capital and financing for its operations. Such
capital may not be available on terms acceptable to the Company or at all, which may have a material adverse impact on its
business, financial condition, results of operations or prospects.

Currency fluctuations may affect the costs that the Company incur in its operations

The Company's reporting currency is the Canadian dollar, Any future equity financing activities are expected to be
completed in Canadian dollars while a significant portion of operating expenses for the Company will be incurred in
Argentine pesos, among other foreign currencies. From time to time, the Company may be required to borrow funds and
incur expenditures that are denominated in a foreign currency. In addition, in the event that the Company successfully
develops an operating mine, it expects to sell some or all of its products to foreign markets. Metals are sold throughout the
world, based principally on a U.S. dollar price, but, a significant portion of the Company’s operating expenses are incurred in
non-U.S. dollar currencies. The appreciation of the Argentinean peso, the U.S. dollar or any other foreign currency with
which the Company operates against the Canadian dollar would increase its cost of operations, which could have a material
adverse effect on its business, financial conditions, results of operations and prospects.

Exploration Risk

In addition to the Providencia project, the Company will engage in the potential acquisition and exploration of other resource
properties, an inherently risky business, and there is no assurance that economic mineral deposits will ever be discovered, or if
discovered, subsequently put into production, Most exploration activities do not result in the discovery of commercially
mineable deposits.

Early Stage of Development

The predecessor entity of the Company, Concordia, conducted mineral exploration activities for a relatively short period.
There is limited financial, operational and other information available with which to evaluate the prospects of the Company.
There can be no assurance that the Company’s operations will be profitable in the future or will generate sufficient cash flow
to satisfy its working capital requirements.

The Comipany’s prospects depend on its ability to attract and retain qualified personnel

Recruiting and retaining qualified personnel will be critical to the Company’s success. The number of persons skilled in the
acquisition, exploration and development of mining properties is limited and competition for such persons is intense. The
Company believes that it will have the necessary personnel to meet its corporate objectives but, as its business activities grow,
it will require additional key financial, administrative, mining and public relations personnel as well as additional staff on the
operations side. Although the Company believes that it will be successful in attracting and retaining qualified personnel, there
can be no assurance of such success.
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Risk and Uncertainties (continued)

Future mining operations and exploration activities are subject to laws and regulations relating to the protection and
remediation of the environment

The Company’s future mining operations and exploration activities are and will be subject to laws and regulations relating to
the protection and remediation of the environment. Environmental legislation provides for restrictions and prohibitions on
spills, releases or emissions of various substances produced in association with certain mining industry operations, such as
seepage from tailings disposal areas, which would result in environmental pollution. These laws, regulations and the
governmental policies for implementation of such laws and regulations are constantly changing and are generally becoming
more restrictive.  The costs associated with compliance with these laws and regulations are substantial and possible future
faws and regulations and changes to existing laws and regulations (including the imposition of higher taxes and mining
royalties) could cause additional expense or capital expenditure, or result in restrictions or delays in the Company’s
development plans.

The Company cannot give any assurance that, notwithstanding its precautions, breaches of environmental laws, whether
inadvertent or not, or environmental pollution will not accur. In the event of any such breach, it is possible that the respective
regulatory authority can suspend the rights of the Company, as applicable, to develop its mineral interests.

A breach of environmental laws and regulations may allow governmental authorities and third parties, who have an interest in
any future mining operations or the consequences of mining operations, to bring lawsuits based upon damages to property and
injury to persons resulting from the environmental impact of the Company’s potential future operations which could lead to
the imposition of substantial fines, penalties or other civil or criminal sanctions and could have a material adverse effect on
the Company's business, financial condition, resuits of operations or prospects.

If the Company’s environmental compliance obligations were to vary as a result of changes to legislation, or if certain
assumptions the Company makes to estimate liabilities are incorrect, or if unanticipated conditions were to arise in their
respective future mining operations, the respective company’s expenses and other obligations could increase, which could
have a material adverse effect on the respective company’s business, financial condition, results of operations or prospects.

As a participant in the resource extraction industry, the Company may face opposition from local and international
groups

There is an increasing level of public concern relating to the effects of mining production on its surroundings, communities,
and environment. Certain non-governmental organizations, public interest groups and reporting organizations (“NGOs”),
who oppose globalization and resource development and who may not be bound to codes of ethical reporting, can be vocal
critics of the mining industry. In addition, there have been many instances in which local community groups have opposed
resource extraction activities, which have resulted in disruption and delays to the relevant operation. While the Company will
seek to operate in a socially responsible manner, NGOs or local community organizations could direct adverse publicity
and/or disrupt its operations in respect of one or more properties, regardless of the Company’s successful compliance with
social and environmental best practices, due to political factors, activities of unrelated third parties on lands in which the
Company has an interest or operates. Any such actions and the resulting media coverage could have an adverse effect on the
reputation and financial condition of the Company, as applicable, or its relationships with the communities in which it
operates, which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operations or
prospects.
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Risk and Uncertainties (continued)

The costs of complying with applicable laws and governmental regulations may have an adverse impact on the Company’s
business

The Company's operations and exploration activities will be subject to laws and regulations governing various matters. These
include laws and regulations relating to repatriation of capital and exchange controls, taxation, labour standards and
occupational health and safety and historic and cultural preservation.

Amendments to current laws, regulations and permits governing operations and activities of mining companies, or the more
stringent enforcement thereof, could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, results of
operations or prospects by increasing exploration expenses, future capital expenditures or future production costs or by
reducing the future level of production, or cause the abandonment of or delays in the development of the Providencia Project.

The Company’s insurance coverage may not cover all of its potential losses, liabilities and damages related to its business
and certain risks are uninsured or uninsurable

The Company’s business will be subject to a number of risks and hazards (as further described herein). Although the
Company will maintain insurance to protect against certain risks in such amounts as it considers to be reasonable, such
insurance will not cover all the potential risks associated with its activities, including any future mining operations. The
Company may also be unable to maintain insurance to cover its risks at economically feasible premiums, or at all. Insurance
coverage may not continue to be available or may not be adequate to cover any resulting liability. Moreover, insurance
against risks such as environmental pollution or other hazards as a result of exploration or production may not be available to
the Company on acceptable terms. The Company might also become subject to lability for pollution or other hazards which
it is not currently insured against and/or in the future may not insure against because of premium costs or other reasons.
Losses from these events may cause the Company to incur significant costs which could have a material adverse effect on the
the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operations or prospects.

Mining is inherently dangerous and subject to factors or events beyond the Company’s control

The Company’s business, and any future development or mining operations, will involve various types of risks and hazards
typical of companies engaged in the mining industry. These risks will affect the exploration, development and refurbishment
activities of the Company, and will affect its business to an even larger extent once commercial mining operations, if any,
commence. Such risks include, but are not limited to: (i) industrial accidents; (ii) unusual or unexpected rock formations; (iii)
structural cave-ins or slides and pitfall, ground or slope failures and accidental release of water from surface storage facilities;
(iv) fire, flooding and earthquakes; (v) rock bursts; (vi) metals losses; (vii) periodic interruptions due to inclement or
hazardous weather conditions; (viii) environmental hazards; (ix) discharge of pollutants or hazardous materials; (x) failure of
processing and mechanical equipment and other performance problems; (xi) geotechnical risks, including the stability of the
underground hanging walls and unusual and unexpected geological conditions; (xii) unanticipated variations in grade and
other geological problems, water, surface or underground conditions; (xiii) labour disputes or slowdowns; (xiv) work force
health issues as a result of working conditions; and (xv) force majeure events, or other unfavorable operating conditions.

These risks, conditions and events could result in: (i) damage to, or destruction of, the value of, the Providencia project or its
facilities; (i) personal injury or death; (ili) environmental damage to the Providencia project or the properties of others; (iv)
delays or prohibitions on mining or the transportation of minerals; (v) monetary losses; and (vi) potential legal liability. Any
of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operation or
prospects.
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Risk and Uncertainties (continued)
Directors and officers may be subject to conflicts of interest

Certain directors and officers of the Company are or may become assoctated with other mining and/or mineral exploration
and development companies which may give rise to conflicts of interest. Directors who have a material interest in any person
who is a party to a material contract or a proposed material contract with the company with which they serve are required,
subject to certain exceptions, to disclose that interest and generally abstain from voting on any resolution to approve such a
contract. In addition, directors and officers are required to act honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests of
their respective company. Some of the directors and officers have either other full-time employment or other business or time
restrictions placed on them and accordingly, the Company will not be the only business enterprise of these directors and
officers. Further, any failure of the directors or officers of the Company to address these conflicts in an appropriate manner,
or to allocate opportunities that they become aware of to the Company, could have a material adverse effect on the
Company's business, financtal condition, results of operations or prospects.

Competition in the mining industry may adversely affect the Company

The mining industry is intensely competitive. The Company will compete with other mining companies, many of which have
greater resources and experience. Competition in the mining industry is primarily for: (i) properties which can be developed
and can produce economically; (if) the technical expertise to find, develop, and operate such properties; (iii} labour to operate
the properties; and (iv) capital to fund such properties. Such competition may result in the Company being unable to acquire
desired properties, to recruit or retain qualified employees or to acquire the capital necessary to fund their respective
operations and develop their respective properties. The Company’s inability to compete with other mining companies for
these resources could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operations or
prospects.

Critical Accounting Estimates

Critical accounting estimates are accounting policies that have been identified as being complex or involving subjective
Jjudgments or assessments, as follows:

o the point in time that an economic feasibility study has established the presence of proven and probable reserves;
. allocation of expenses from Concordia;
° deferred tax assets not recorded in the consclidated financial statements.

In accordance with IAS 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”, management determined that the functional
currency of Meryllion is the Canadian dollar, the functional currency of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries Meryllion
Minerals Corp. and Meryllion Argentina SA is US dollars as these are the currencies of the primary economic environment in
which the companies operate.

Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Canadian dollars, while subsidiaries have either Canadian Dollar or US Dollar functional currencies.



MERYLLION BUSINESS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,
2012 AND 2011

(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts and shares in thousands)

Key Accounting Policies
Provisions for Close Down and Restoration and for Environmental Cleanup Costs

Close down and restoration costs include dismantling and demolition of infrastructure and the removal of residual materials
and remediation of disturbed areas. Estimated close down and restoration costs are provided for in the accounting period
when the obligation arising from the related disturbance occurs, based on the net present value of estimated future costs. The
cost estimates are updated during the life of the operation to reflect known development, such as revisions to cost estimates
and to the estimated lives of the operations, and are subject to formal reviews at regular intervals.

The initial closure provision together with changes resulting from changes in estimated cash flows or discount rates are
capitalized within property, plant and equipment. These costs are then depreciated over the lives of the asset to which they
relate, typically using the units of production method. The amortization or unwinding of the discount applied in establishing
the net present value of provisions is charged to the income statement as a financing cost. Provision is made for the estimated
present value of the costs of environmental cleanup obligations outstanding at the balance sheet date. These costs are charged
to the income statement as an operating cost. As at June 30, 2013, the Company does not have any material provisions for the
close down and restoration and for environmental cleanup costs.

Exploration and Evaluation Assets

Exploration expenditures are expensed as incurred until an economic feasibility study has established the presence of proven
and probable reserves, at which time development expenditures incurred on the property thereafier are capitalized. Costs
relating to the acquisition and claim maintenance of mineral properties (including option payments and annual fees to
maintain the property in good standing) are capitalized and deferred by property until the project to which they relate is sold,
abandoned, impaired or placed into production.

The Company assesses its exploration and evaluation assets for indications of impairment on a regular basis and when events
and circumstances indicate a risk of impairment. An exploration and evaluation assets is written down or written off when the
Company determines that an impairment of value has occurred or when exploration results indicate that no further work is
warranted.

Although the Company has taken steps to verify title to resource properties in which it has an interest, these procedures do not
guarantee the Company’s title. Such properties may be subject to prior agreements or transfers, or title may be affected by
undetected defects.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

Long-lived assets are assessed for impairment at each reporting date. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds it recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less cost to sell and value in use. Fair value is determined as the amount that would be obtained from the sale of the
asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable and willing parties. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). These are typically individual
mines or development projects.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but to an amount that does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determinted bad 00 impairment toss been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating wnit} in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.
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MERYLLION BUSINESS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,
2012 AND 2011

(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts and shares in thousands)

Key Accounting Policies (continued)

Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax, Income tax is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it
relates to items recognized directly in equity. Current tax expense is the expected tax payable on taxable income for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at period end, adjusted for amendments to tax payable with regards to
previous years.

Deferred tax is recorded using the liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Temporary differences are
not provided for the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable loss differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of
deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilized. To the extent that the Company does not consider it probable that a deferred tax asset will be
recovered, it provides a valuation allowance against that excess.

Stock - Based Compensation

The Company may grant stock options to buy common shares of the Company to directors, officers, employees and service
providers. The fair value of stock options granted by the Company is treated as compensation costs in accordance with IFRS 2
- Share-based Payments. These costs are charged to the statement of loss or, if appropriate, are capitalized to exploration and
evaluation assets over the stock option vesting period. The Company’s allocation of share-based payments is consistent with
its treatment of other types of compensation for each recipient.

Each tranche in an award is considered a separate award with its own vesting period and grant date fair value. Fair value of
each tranche is measured at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing mode]l. Compensation expense is
recognized over the tranche’s vesting period based on the number of awards expected to vest, by increasing contributed
surplus. The number of awards expected to vest is reviewed at least annually, with any impact being recognized immediately.

Where equity instruments are granted to non-employees, they are recorded at the fair value of the goods or services received
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive joss/income, unless they are related to the issuance of shares. Amounts related
to the issuance of shares are recorded as a reduction of share capital. When the value of goods or services received in
exchange for the share-based payment cannot be reliably estimated, the fair value is measured by use of a valuation model.
The fair value of stock options granted to non-employees is re-measured at the earlier of each financial reporting or vesting
date, and any adjustment is charged or credited to operations upon re-measurement.

Valuation of Equity Units Issued in Private Placements

The Company has adopted a residual value method with respect to the measurement of shares and warrants issued as private
placement units. The residual value method first allocates value to the more easily measurable component based on fair value
and then the residual value, if any, to the less easily measurable component. The fair value of the common shares issued in
the private placements was determined to be the more easily measurable component and were valued at their fair value, as
determined by the closing quoted bid price on the announcement date. The balance, if any, was allocated to the attached
warrants, The value atiributed to the warrants is recorded as contributed surplus. If the warrants are exercised, the value
attributable to the warrants is transferred to share capital.



MERYLLION BUSINESS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,
2012 AND 2011

(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dotlars, except per share amounts and shares in thousands)

Key Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the
transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are translated at the period-end exchange rate. Non-monetary items measured at
historical cost continue to be carried at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value are reported at the exchange rate at the date when fair values were determined. Exchange differences arising on the
translation of monetary items or on settlement of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss in the consolidated statement
of compre hensive loss in the period in which they arise.

Exchange differences arising on the transiation of non-monetary items are recognized in other comprehensive income (10ss) in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive loss to the extent that gains and losses arising on those non-monetary items are
also recognized in other comprehensive income (loss). Where the non-monetary gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss, the
exchange component is also recognized in profit or loss.

Parent and Subsidiary Companies

The financial results and position of operations whose functional currency is different from the presentation currency are
translated as follows:

assets and liabilities are translated at period-end exchange rates prevailing at that reporting date; and
- income and expenses are translated at the average rate.

Exchange differences are transferred directly to the consolidated statement of comprehensive loss and are reported as a
separate component of shareholders’ equity titled “Cumulative Translation Adjustment”. These differences are recognized in
the profit or loss in the period in which the operation is disposed of.

Investor Relations

Terry Krepiakevich, CEQ, President and Director, coordinates investor relations’ activities.

Change in Directors and Management
The Company appointed the following individuals as directors and officers:

David Birkenshaw, Executive Chairman and Director;
Terry Krepiakevich, CEQ, President and Director;
John Fognani, Director;

Borden Putnam, Director;

Gregory Shenton, Director; and

Eduard Epshtein, CFO.



MERYLLION BUSINESS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,
2012 AND 2011

(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts and shares in thousands)

Forward Looking Statements

Certain of the statements made and information contained herein is “forward-looking information” within the meaning of the
British Columbia Securities Act. These statements relate to future events or the Company’s future performance. All
statements, other than statements of historical fact, may be forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are often,
but not always, identified by the use of words such as “seek”, “anticipate”, “plan”, “continue”, “estimate”, “expect”, “may”,
“will”, “project”, “predict”, “propose”, “potential”, “targeting”, “intend”, “could”, “might”, “should”, “believe” and similar
expressions. These statements invelve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual resuits
or events to differ materially from those anticipated in such forward-looking statements. The Company believes that the
expectations reflected in those forward-looking statements are reasonable but no assurance can be given that these
expectations will prove to be correct and such forward-looking statements included in this MD&A should not be unduly relied
upon by investors as actual results may vary. These statements speak only as of the date of this MD&A and are expressly
qualified, in their entirety, by this cautionary statement.

In particular, this MD&A contains forward-looking statements, pertaining to the following: capital expenditure programs,
development of resources, treatment under governmental and taxation regimes, expectations regarding the Company’s ability
to raise capital, expenditures to be made by the Company on its properties and work plans to be conducted by the Company.
With respect to forward-looking statements listed above and contained in the MD&A, the Company has made assumptions
regarding, among other things:

* uncertainties relating to receiving mining and exploration permits in Argentina;
+ the impact of increasing competition in gold, silver and copper business;

e unpredictable changes to the market prices for gold, silver and copper;

« exploration and developments costs for its properties;

o availability of additional financing or joint-venture partners;

e anticipated results of exploration activities;

» the Company’s ability to obtain additional financing on satisfactory terms.

The Company's actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as aresult of
the risk factors set forth below and elsewhere in this MD&A, volatility in the market price for minerals; uncertainties
associated with estimating resources; geological, technical, drilling and processing problems; liabilities and risks, including
environmental liabilities and risks, inherent in mineral exploration; fluctuations in currencies and interest rates; incorrect
assessments of the value of acquisitions; unanticipated results of exploration activities; competition for, amongst other things,
capital, undeveloped lands and skilled personnel; lack of availability of additional financing and/or joint venture partners and
unpredictable weather conditions.

Investors should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements as the plans, intentions or expectations upon which
they are based might not occur. Readers are cautioned that the foregoing lists of factors are not exhaustive. The forward-
looking statements contained in this MD&A are expressly qualified by this cautionary statement, The Company does not
undertake any obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future
events or otherwise, unless required by law.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Directors of
Meryllion Resource Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Meryllion Business and its
subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at September 30, 2012 and
September 30, 2011, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive loss, changes in equity and cash
flows for the years then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Meryllion Business and its subsidiaries as at September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011 and its
financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards.

“MacKay LLP”
Chartered Accountants

Vancouver, British Columbia
October 16, 2013



MERYLLION BUSINESS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian Dollars)

June 30, September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2011
s $ s
(unaudited) (audited) (audited)
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 65 21 51
Receivables 1 2 24
Deposits 15 155 6
81 178 81
NON CURRENT ASSET
Exploration and evaluation assets (Note 5) 770 562 236
851 740 317
CURRENT LIABILITY
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 61 34 233
CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS (Note 4) 9,545 8,286 2,389
ACCUMULATED OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 62 13 16
DEFICIT (8.817) (7.593) (2.321)
SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY 790 706 84
851 740 317
Approved on behalf of the Board:
“Terry Krepiakevich” Director “Gregory Shenton” Director

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of these consolidated financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

MERYLLION BUSINESS

(Expressed in thousands of Canadian Dollars, except per share amounts, and shares in thousands)

For the nine months ended

For the years ended

June 30, September 30,
(unaudited) (audited)
2013 2012 2012 2011
$ $ s s
EXPENSES
Exploration expenditures (Note 6) 207 3,201 3,350 987
Investor relations 3 7 9 30
Office and miscellaneous 119 263 325 171
Professional fees (Note 7) 348 319 405 332
Regulatory and filing fees 8 14 15 4
Salaries and benefits (Note 7) 481 204 425 132
Stock-based compensation (Note 7) 22 267 273 438
Travel and conferences 71 174 218 187
1,259 4,449 5,020 2,281
LOSS BEFORE OTHER ITEMS (1,259) (4,449 (5,020) (2,281)
OTHER ITEMS
Other loss 3)
Foreign exchange gain/(loss) 38 (241) (252) (40)
35 (241) 252) 40)
NET LOSS FOR THE PERIOD (1,224) (4,690) (5,272) (2,321)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
Unrealized gain/(loss) on translation to reporting currency 49 22 (3) 16
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE
PERIOD (1,175) (4,668) (5.275) (2,305)
LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED (0.07) (0.31) (0.34) (0.19)
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF COMMON
SHARES OUTSTANDING ~ BASIC AND DILUTED 17,126 15,170 15,662 11,974

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



MERYLLION BUSINESS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian Dollars)

Contributed surplus Accumulated other Deficit Total sharcholders'
comprehensive equity
income/(loss)-currency
translation adjustment
3 $ $
Balance, October 1, 2010
Contribution from Concordia (Note 4) 2,389 - 2,389
Net (loss) and other comprehensive income 16 (2,321) (2,305)
Balance, September 30, 2011 2,389 16 (2,321) 84
Contribution from Concordia (Note 4) 5,126 - - 5,126
Net (loss) and other comprehensive income 22 (4,690) (4,668)
Balance, June 30, 2012 7,315 38 (7,011) 542
Contribution from Concordia (Note 4) 771 - 771
Net loss and other comprehensive loss (25) (582) (607)
Balance, September 30, 2012 8,286 13 (7,593) 706
Contribution from Concordia (Note 4) 1,259 - - 1,259
Net (loss) and other comprehensive income - 49 (1,224) (1,175)
Balance, June 30, 2013 9,545 62 (8,817) 790

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



MERYLLION BUSINESS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Expressed in thousands of Canadian Dollars)

For the nine months ended

For the years ended

June 30, September 30,
(Unaudited) (Audited)
2013 2012 2012 2011
$ $ 8 b

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the period (1,224) (4,690) (5,272) (2,321
Items not affecting cash:
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss 3% 241 252 40
Stock-based compensation 22 267 273 438
Other loss 3
Changes in non-cash working capital items:

Decrease/(increase) in receivables 1 19 22 (24)

Decrease/(increase) in deposits 140 (156) (149) (6)

(Decrease)/increase in accounts payable and accrued

liabilities 27 (96) (199) 233
Net cash used in operating activities (1,069) (4,415) (5,073) (1,640)
INVESTING ACTIVITY

Additions to exploration and evaluation assets (163) (207) (336) (221)
Net cash used in investing activity (163) (207 (336) (221)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Advances from Concordia Resource Corp. 540 4,290 4,752 1,549

Funding provided by Concordia Resource Corp. 697 569 872 402
Net cash acquired from financing activities 1,237 4,859 5,624 1,951
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE ON CASH 39 217) (245) (39
CHANGE IN CASH 44 20 (30) 51
CASH - BEGINNING OF PERIOD 21 51 51 -
CASH - END OF PERIOD 65 71 21 51

o Funding provided by Concordia Resource Corp. (“Concordia™) representing the allocation of general and administrative expenses of Concordia under

the continuity of interests basis of accounting described in note 2 and have been provided as funding sources and uses of cash of Meryllion Business.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



MERYLLION BUSINESS
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30,2013 (UNAUDITED) AND
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 AND 2011 (AUDITED)
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian Dollars)

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Meryllion Business (the “Business” or the “Company”) is a Canadian based resource company focused on
exploration, acquisition and advancement of exploration and evaluation assets (Note 5).

The Company’s head office, principal address, and registered and records office is #1100-355 Burrard Street,
Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada, V6C 2G8.

To date, the Company has not generated revenues from operations and is considered to be in the exploration stage.
The amounts shown as exploration and evaluation assets represent acquisition costs incurred to date and do not
necessarily represent present or future values. The underlying value of exploration and evaluation assets are
entirely dependent on the existence of economically recoverable reserves, securing and maintaining title and
beneficial interest in the properties, the ability of the Company to obtain the necessary financing to complete
permitting, development, and future profitable production. The Company considers that it has adequate resources to
maintain its core operations for the next 12 months. Subsequent to the period end, the Company received $4,740
cash from Concordia according to the spin-out transaction, subject to post-closing adjustments.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial results for the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 have been audited and prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™), as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”). The financial results for the nine months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 are unaudited
and have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standard 34, Interim Financial Reporting.

Concordia Resource Corp. (“Concordia”) announced the proposed spin-out of its Providencia and Cerro Amarillo
exploration properties located in Argentina held by Concordia’s wholly-owned subsidiary Meryllion Minerals
Corp., and approximately $4,740 in cash (Note 13), subject to closing adjustments, into Meryllion Resources
Corporation (“Meryllion™), a wholly owned subsidiary of Concordia, which was incorporated on July 25, 2013
under the Business Corporations Act of British Columbia. Upon conclusion of the transactions, Meryllion will issue
17,126 common shares to Concordia, which will be distributed to Concordia shareholders. The transaction is
expected to close in December 2013. Application will also be made to list the shares of Meryllion on the TSX
Venture Exchange. The spin-out transaction will be completed pursuant to a plan of arrangement (the
“Arrangement”) and will be subject to regulatory approval and approval by not less than two-thirds of the votes
casted at a special meeting of the shareholders of Concordia that will be called upon.

Meryllion Business financial statements reflect the consolidated financial position, statements of comprehensive
loss, changes in equity and cash flows of the related Argentine exploration business of Concordia and Meryllion
Minerals Corp. The statement of comprehensive loss for the nine months ended June 30, 2013 include 3719
(September 30, 2012 - $1,145, September 30, 2011 - $840) allocation of Concordia’s general and administrative
expenses. The allocation of general and administrative expenses was calculated on the basis of the ratio of
expenditures incurred on the Providencia and Cerro Amarillo properties as compared to the expenditures incurred
on all of Concordia’s properties during the periods.



MERYLLION BUSINESS
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 (UNAUDITED) AND
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2012 AND 2011 (AUDITED)
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian Dollars)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Management cautions readers of these financial statements, that the allocation of expenses may not be indicative of
the actual expenses that would have been incurred had the Company been operating as a separate, stand-alone
public company for the periods presented and do not reflect the Company’s consolidated results of operations,
financial position and cash flows had the Company been a stand-alone public company during the periods presented.
The results of operations are not necessarily indicative of the operating results of future years.

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on October 16, 2013.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements are expressed in Canadian dollars, the Company’s presentation currency
and have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial instruments that have been measured at fair
value. In addition, these consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting,
except for cash flow information. The accounting policies set out in this note have been applied consistently to all
periods presented in these consolidated financial statements as if the policies have always been in effect.

The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are described
below.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements contained herein include the allocation of Concordia’s general and
administrative expenses (Note 2) and accounts of Concordia’s wholly-owned Canadian subsidiary Meryllion
Minerals Corp. and its wholly-owned Argentinian subsidiary Meryllion Argentina SA (together the “Group”). All
inter-company transactions and balances have been eliminated.

Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires management to make certain estimates,
judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and reported amounts of expenses during the reporting period. Actual outcomes could differ
from these estimates. These consolidated financial statements include estimates which, by their nature, are
uncertain. The impacts of such estimates are pervasive throughout the consolidated financial statements, and may
require accounting adjustments based on future occurrences. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
These estimates are based on historical experience, current and future economic conditions and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical Accounting Estimates

Significant assumptions about the future and other sources of estimation uncertainty that management has made at
the end of the reporting period, that could result in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities, in the event that actual results differ from assumptions made, relate to, but are not limited to, the
determination of environmental obligations, the recoverability of exploration and evaluation assets, the assumptions
used in the determination of the fair value of stock-based compensation, and the assumptions used to allocate
Concordia’s general and administrative expenses.



MERYLLION BUSINESS
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 (UNAUDITED) AND
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 AND 2011 (AUDITED)
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian Dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Critical Accounting Judgments

Critical accounting judgments are accounting policies that have been identified as being complex or involving
subjective judgments or assessments, as follows:

o the point in time that an economic feasibility study has established the presence of proven and probable
reserves;

e deferred tax assets recorded in the consolidated financial statements.

s In accordance with IAS 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”, management determined
that the functional currency of Meryllion Business is the Canadian dollar, the functional currency of the
Comipany’s wholly-owned subsidiaries Meryllion Minerals Corp. and Meryllion Argentina SA (Argentina)
is the US dollar, as they are the currencies of the primary economic environments in which the companies
operate.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Foreign Currency Translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Canadian Dollars. The Company’s functional currency is the Canadian dollar and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries’ functional currency is the US dollar.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign currency monetary items are translated at the period-end exchange rate. Non-
monetary items measured at historical cost continued to be carried at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value are reported at the exchange rate at the date when fair values were
determined.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of monetary items or on settlement of monetary items are recognized
in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive loss in the period in which they arise.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items are recognized in other comprehensive
income (loss) in the consolidated statement of comprehensive loss to the extent that gains and losses arising on
those non-monetary items are also recognized in other comprehensive income (loss). Where the non-monetary gain
or loss is recognized in profit or loss, the exchange component is also recognized in profit or loss,



MERYLLION BUSINESS
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30,2013 (UNAUDITED) AND
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2012 AND 2011 (AUDITED)
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian Dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign Currency Translation (continued)

Parent and Subsidiary Companies

The financial results and position of operations whose functional currency is different from the presentation
currency are translated as follows:

- assets and liabilities are translated at period-end exchange rates prevailing at that reporting date; and
- income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the period.

Exchange differences are transferred directly to the consolidated statement of comprehensive loss and are included
in a separate component of shareholders’ equity titled “Accumulated other comprehensive income or loss —
currency translation adjustment”. These differences are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which the
operation is disposed of.

Exploration and Evaluation Assets

Exploration expenditures are expensed as incurred until an economic feasibility study has established the presence
of proven and probable reserves and development of the project has commenced, at which time exploration and
development expenditures incurred on the property thereafter are capitalized.

Costs relating to the acquisition and claim maintenance of mineral properties, including option payments and annual
fees to maintain the property in good standing, are capitalized and deferred by property until the project to which
they relate is sold, abandoned, impaired or placed into production. After recognition, the Company uses the cost
model for exploration and evaluation assets.

The Company assesses its capitalized exploration and evaluation assets costs for indications of impairment on a
regular basis and when events and circumstances indicate a risk of impairment. A property is written down or
written off when the Company determines that an impairment of value has occurred or when exploration results
indicate that no further work is warranted.

Although the Company has taken steps to verify title to mineral properties in which it has an interest, these
procedures do not guarantee the Company’s title. Such properties may be subject to prior agreements or transfers,
or title may be affected by undetected defects.

Loss per share

Basic loss per share is calculated using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period. The
shareholders of Concordia will receive one common share of Meryllion for one common share of Concordia. Prior
to the completion of the spin-out transaction, Concordia will consolidate its shares on a 5:1 basis. Accordingly, the
weighted average number of shares used is one-fifth of the weighted average number of shares of Concordia for the
respective periods.

The Company uses the treasury stock method of calculating fully diluted per share amounts whereby any proceeds
from the exercise of stock options or other dilutive instruments are assumed to be used to purchase common shares
at the average market price during the year. Diluted loss per share has not been presented separately as the
> utstanding options and warrants are anti-dilutive for each period presented.



MERYLLION BUSINESS
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 36,2013 (UNAUDITED) AND
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 AND 2011 (AUDITED)
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian Dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity. Current tax expense is the expected tax payable on
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at period end, adjusted for amendments
to tax payable with regards to previous years.

Deferred tax is recorded using the liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Temporary differences are not provided for the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting or taxable loss, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will
probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected
manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilized. To the extent that the Company does not consider it probable that a deferred
tax asset will be recovered, the deferred tax asset is not recorded.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash held with banks and highly liquid deposits which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

All of the Company’s financial instruments are classified into one of two categories: loans and receivables and other
financial liabilities. All financial instruments are measured in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair
value initially. Subsequent measurement and changes in fair value will depend on their initial classification. Loans
and receivables and other financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost.

The Company does not use derivative instruments or hedges to manage risks. Transaction costs related to all
financial instruments will be expensed in the period incurred.

Cash and receivables have been designated as loans and receivables. Cash and receivables are included in current
assets due to their short term nature.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities have been designated as other financial liabilities and are included in
current liabilities due to their short-term nature.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Related Party Transactions

Related party transactions are measured at exchange value.



MERYLLION BUSINESS
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 (UNAUDITED) AND
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 AND 2011 (AUDITED)
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian Dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Accounting Standards Issued but not yet Applied

Unless otherwise noted, the following revised standards and amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2013, with earlier application permitted. The Company has not yet assessed the impact of
these standards and amendments. The Company has determined not to early adopt them.

(i) IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, was issued in November 2009 and addresses classification and measurement of
financial assets. It replaces the multiple category and measurement models in IAS 39 for debt instruments with a
new mixed measurement model having only two categories: amortized cost and fair value through profit or loss,
IFRS 9 also replaces the models for measuring equity instruments. Such instruments are either recognized at fair
value through profit or loss or at fair value through other comprehensive income. Where equity instruments are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, dividends are recognized in profit or loss to the extent
that they do not clearly represent a return of investment, however, other gains and losses (including impairments)
associated with such instruments remain in accumulated comprehensive income indefinitely.

Requirements for financial liabilities were added to IFRS 9 in October 2010 and they largely carried forward
existing requirements in IAS8 39, Financial Instruments — Recognition and Measurement, except that fair value
changes due to credit risk for liabilities designated at fair value through profit and loss are generally recorded in
other comprehensive income. This standard and its consequential amendments are applicable to annual reporting
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015,

(if) IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, requires an entity to consolidate an investee when it has power
over the investee, is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Under existing IFRS, consolidation is required
when an entity has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities. IFRS 10 replaces SIC-12, Consolidation—Special Purpose Entities and parts of IAS 27, Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements.

(iii) IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, requires a venturer to classify its interest in a joint arrangement as a joint venture
or joint operation. Joint ventures will be accounted for using the equity method of accounting whereas for a joint
operation the venturer will recognize its share of the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of the joint operation.
Under existing IFRS, entities have the choice to proportionately consolidate or equity account for interests in joint
ventures. IFRS 11 supersedes IAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures, and SIC-13, Jointly Controlled Entities—Non-
monetary Contributions by Venturers.

(iv) IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, establishes disclosure requirements for interests in other
entities, such as subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates, and unconsolidated structured entities. The standard
carries forward existing disclosures and also introduces significant additional disclosure that address the nature of,
and risks associated with, an entity’s interests in other entities.

(v) IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement, is a comprehensive standard for fair value measurement and disclosure for
use across all IFRS standards. The new standard clarifies that fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset, or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants, at the measurement
date. Under existing IFRS, guidance on measuring and disclosing fair value is dispersed among the specific
standards requiring fair value measurements and does not always reflect a clear measurement basis or consistent
disclosures.



MERYLLION BUSINESS
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 (UNAUDITED) AND
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2012 AND 2011 (AUDITED)
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian Dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Accounting Standards Issued but not yet Applied (continued)

{(vi) IAS 19, Employee Benefits, has been amended to make significant changes to the recognition and measurement
of defined benefit pension expense and termination benefits and to enhance the disclosure of all employee benefits.
The amended standard requires immediate recognition of actuarial gains and losses in other comprehensive income
as they arise, without subsequent recycling to net income. Past service cost (which will now include curtailment
gains and losses) will no longer be recognized over a service period but instead will be recognized immediately in
the period of a plan amendment. Pension benefit cost will be split between (i) the cost of benefits accrued in the
current period (service cost) and benefit changes (past-service cost, settlements and curtailments); and (ii) finance
expense or income. The finance expense or income component will be calculated based on the net defined benefit
asset or liability. A number of other amendments have been made to recognition, measurement and classification
including redefining short-term and other long-term benefits, guidance on the treatment taxes related to benefit
plans, guidance on risk/cost sharing features, and expanded disclosures.

(vii) There have been amendments to existing standards, including 1AS 27, Separate Financial Statements (IAS 27),
and 1AS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (IAS 28). IAS 27 addresses accounting for subsidiaries,
jointly controlled entities and associates in non-consolidated financial statements. 1A8 28 has been amended to
include joint ventures in its scope and to address the changes in IFRS 10 - 13.

(viii) IFRIC 20, Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine, sets out the accounting for overburden
waste removal (stripping) costs in the production phase of a mine. Stripping activity may create two types of
benefit: i) inventory produced and ii) improved access to ore. Stripping costs associated with the former should be
accounted for as a current production cost in accordance with IAS 2, Inventories. The latter should be accounted
for as an addition to or enhancement of an existing asset.

(ix) IAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation, this amendment provides clarification on the application of
offsetting rules. These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014,

CONTRIBUTION FROM CONCORDIA RESOURCE CORP,

Contributed surplus for the nine months ended June 30, 2013 and years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011
consists of the amounts of contributions from Concordia representing the allocation of general and administrative
expenses and cash advances.

Funding provided Stock-based Total
by Concordia compensation
S S $

Balance as at September 30, 2010

Funding provided by Concordia 402 438 840
Advances from Concordia 1,549 - 1,549
Balance as at September 30, 2011 1,951 438 2,389
Funding provided by Concordia 872 273 1,145
Advances from Concordia 4,752 - 4,752
Balance as at September 30, 2012 7,575 711 8,286
Funding provided by Concordia 697 22 719
Advances from Concordia 540 - 540

Balance as at June 30, 2013 8,812 733 9,545



MERYLLION BUSINESS
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30,2013 (UNAUDITED) AND
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2012 AND 2011 (AUDITED)
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian Dollars)

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

For the nine months ended P/r;‘)wde?ma, Cer‘;o An:grlllo, Total
June 30,2013 rgentina rgentina
$ $ $
Acquisition costs
Balance, beginning of period 436 126 562
Additions 87 76 163
Foreign exchange 33 12 43
Total exploration and evaluation assets 356 214 770
For the year ended Providencia, Cerro Amarillo, Total
September 30, 2012 Argentina Argentina
3 3 3

Acquisition costs
Balance, beginning of year 154 82 236
Additions 286 50 336
Foreign exchange 4) (6) (10)
Total exploration and evaluation assets 436 126 562

Providencia, Cerro Amarillo, Total
For the year ended Argentina Argentina
September 30, 2011 $ $ $
Acquisition costs
Balance, beginning of year B -
Additions 144 77 221
Foreign exchange 10 5 15
Total exploration and evaluation assets 154 82 236

Providencia, Jujuy, Argentina

In March 2011, amended in March 2013, the Company acquired an option to purchase the Providencia silver-copper
prospect located in northwestern Argentina. Under the amended option agreement, the Company has the right to
acquire a 100% interest in the property by making the following payments:

US$50 in March 201 1(paid);
USS$100  in September 201 1(paid);
US$150 - in March 2012 (paid);
US$75  in March 2013 (paid);
US$25  inJanuary 2014;
US$50 in March 2014,
US$25  in August 2014,
US$50 — in January 2015;
US$200 in March 2015;
US$250 in March 2016;
US$300 — in March 2017.

The exercise fee is US$950 if less than 50 million ounces of silver resources have been delineated, as defined by a
third-party, independent consultant, or US$1,950 if more than 50 million ounces of silver resources are defined. The
property is subject to an NSR of 1.5% with the Company having the option to buy it out for US$3,000 if less than
50 million ounces of silver resources are defined or US$2,000 if more than 50 million ounces of silver resources are
defined.



MERYLLION BUSINESS
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30,2013 (UNAUDITED) AND
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 AND 2011 (AUDITED)
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian Dollars)

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS (continued)
Providencia, Jujuy, Argentina (continued)

Effective June 13, 2012, and amended on May 28, 2013, the Company acquired an option to purchase the Olaroz
Chico property. Under the option agreement, the Company has the right to acquire a 100% interest in the property
by making the following payments:

US$9  in June 2012 (paid);
US$9 - in June 2013 (paid);
US$22.5 inMarch 2014,
US$22.5 — in September 2014;
US$45 in March 2015;
US$90 ~ in March 2016;
US$135 in March 2017,

o US$180 inMarch 2018

o US$441 —in March 2019.

e » © e © o

The property is subject to an NSR of 1% with the Company having the option to buy it out for US$450.

Effective July 11, 2012, and amended on July 16, 2013, the Company acquired an option to purchase the Cerro
Galéan, Coyaguaima, Coranzuli, Panizos and Nazarena properties. Under the option agreement, the Company has
the right to acquire a 100% interest in the properties by making the following payments:

USS$10  in July 2012 (paid);

USS$5 —in July 2013 (paid in July 2013);

UUS$5 — in October 2013 (paid in October 2013);
US$25  in July 2014;

US$50  in July 2015;

USS$75 — in July 2016;

US$100 — in July 2017,

US$740 in July 2018.

® #»# © © © © ¢ o

The properties are subject to an NSR of 1% with the Company having the option to buy it out for US$500. In
addition, there is a work commitment during the term of the agreement of US$100.

Effective July 13, 2012, and amended on May 28, 2013, the Company acquired an option to purchase the Libertad
property north of its La Providencia property. Under the option agreement, the Company has the right to acquire a
100% interest in the property by making the following payments:

USS$1 —in July 2012 (paid)
USS1  in June 2013 (paid)
US$2.5 inMarch 2014;
US$2.5 in September 2014
US$5 — in March 2015;
US$10 — in March 2016;
US$15 —in March 2017,
US$20 inMarch 2018,
US$49 — in March 2019

The property is subject to an NSR of 1% with the Company having the option to buy it out for US$50.



MERYLLION BUSINESS
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 (UNAUDITED) AND
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 AND 2011 (AUDITED)
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian Dollars)

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS (continued)
Cerro Amarillo, Argentina

In October 2010, the Company acquired an option to purchase the Cerro Amarillo copper-gold property located in
the Malargiie District, in the Province of Mendoza, Argentina. Under the option agreement the Company has the
exclusive right to engage in exploration activities on the property before exercising its option to acquire a 100%
interest in the property.

The option is exercisable by the Company at any time; however, so long as the exploration program is ongoing, the
Company will make payments to the owners of the property, which payments will total US$700 if the exploration
program continues for at least 76 months as follows:

¢ US8$25 in October 2010 (paid);
o US$2S - in February 2011 (paid);
o US$25 —in August 2011 (paid);
e USS$50 - in January 2012 (paid);
e UUS$75 - in January 2013 (paid);
o US$100 - in January 2014,

e US$150 - in January 2015;

e US$250 - in January 2016.

When the option is exercised, the Company will pay a final purchase price of US$2,500. The owners of the
property will also be entitled to a 1% NSR in the event the property is placed into commercial production, which the
Company may purchase for US$3,000.

EXPLORATION EXPENDITURES

For the nine months ended June 30, 2013 Providencia Cerro General Total
, Argentina Amarillo, Exploration
5 Argentina $ s
$
Geological and other consulting 109 68 1 178
Field expenses and other 7 6 - 13
Transportation and travel 11 5 16
Total exploration expenditures 127 79 207
For the year ended September 30, 2012 Providenci Cerro General Total
a Amarillo, Exploration
Argenting Argentina 3 $
$ $
Drilling 1,650 1,650
Geological and other consulting 614 236 43 893
Field expenses and other 442 45 - 487
Geophysics 28 8 36
Transportation and travel 219 65 - 284
Total exploration expenditures 2,953 354 43 3,350
For the year ended September 30, 2011 Providencia Cerro Amarillo, General
Argentina Argentina Exploration Total
5 $ S
Drilling 392 - 392
Geological and other consulting 208 44 32 284
Field expenses and other 184 - 184
Transportation and travel 125 2 - 127
2

Total exploration expenditures 909 46 3 987



MERYLLION BUSINESS
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 (UNAUDITED) AND
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2012 AND 2011 (AUDITED)
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian Dollars)

COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT

Compensation of key management consist of the amounts of contributions from Concordia representing the
allocation of salaries, directors’ fees, consulting fees and stock- based compensation of key management personal.

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management included:

For the nine months ended For the years ended
June 30. September 30,
2013 2012 2011
$ 3 $

Salaries and benefits 122 260 113
Director’s fees, included in salaries and benefits 29 20 -
Benefits paid to director, included in salaries and
benefits 1 - -
Termination benefit included in salaries and benefits 259 -
Consulting fees, included in professional fees 16 7
Stock-based compensation vested during the period 18 240 382
Total key management compensation 445 520 502
INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes differs from the amount calculated using the Canadian federal and provincial
statutory income tax rates of 25.38% (2011 27%) as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended
September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011

) $
Expected tax expense/(recovery) (1,338) (627)
Items not deductible for income tax purposes 444 227
Higher rate in foreign jurisdiction (387) (94)
Other 42 an
Deferred income tax benefits not recognized 1,239 511

Deferred income tax {expense)/ recovery - -

As at September 30, 2012 and 2011, no deferred tax assets are recognized on the following temporary differences as
it is not probable that sufficient future taxable profit will be available to realize such assets:

As at As at
September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011
S $
Tax losses carryforwards 1,751 512
Unrecognized deferred tax assets 1,751 512

The Company has Canadian non-capital loss carryforwards of $409 (2011 - $300) that are available to reduce
taxable income in Canada. These losses expire between 2031 and 2032.

The Company has Argentinean loss carryforwards of $4,800 (2011  $1,208) that are available to reduce taxable
income in Argentina. These losses expire between 2016 and 2017.
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MERYLLION BUSINESS
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 (UNAUDITED) AND
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 AND 2011 (AUDITED)
{Expressed in thousands of Canadian Dollars)

COMMITMENTS

Exploration and evaluation assets commitments are disclosed in Note 5.

SEGMENTED INFORMATION

The Company operates in one business segment, being the acquisition and exploration of exploration and evaluation
assets. The Company is in the exploration stage and, accordingly, has no reportable segment revenues or operating
results for the nine months ended June 30, 2013 and years ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011,
Substantially all assets of the Business are located in Argentina.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments recorded at fair value on the consolidated statements of financial position are classified using
a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:

i. Level I Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

ii. Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for assets or liabilities, either directly or indirectly;
and

iii. Level 3 — Input for assets and liabilities that are not based on observable market data.

The fair value hierarchy requires the use of observable market inputs whenever such inputs exist. A financial
instrument is classified to the lowest level of the hierarchy for which a significant input has been considered in
measuring fair value,

There were no financial instruments measured at fair value as at June 30, 2013, September 30, 2012, and September
30,2011.

Financial Instruments Risk Exposure

The Company may be exposed to risks of varying degrees of significance which could affect its ability to achieve its
strategic objectives. The Company manages risks to minimize potential losses. The main objective of the
Company’s risk management process is to ensure that the risks are properly identified and that the capital base is
adequate in relation to those risks. The principal risks to which the Company is exposed are described below:

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss associated with counterparty’s inability to fulfill its payment obligations. Financial
instruments that potentially subject the Company to a concentration of credit risk consist primarily of cash and
receivables. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for cash and receivables is the amounts disclosed in
the consolidated statements of financial position. The Company limits its exposure to credit loss by placing its cash
with major financial institutions.

The Company’s receivables consist of harmonized sales tax (HST) due from the Federal Government of Canada and
other miscellaneous receivables. The Company’s deposits consist of a deposit held at Central Bank of Argentina.

Management believes that the credit risk concentration with respect to financial instruments included in cash and
receivables is minimal.
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MERYLLION BUSINESS
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30,2013 (UNAUDITED) AND
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 AND 2011 (AUDITED)
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian Dollars)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to evaluate current and expected liquidity requirements under both
normal and stressed conditions to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and cash equivalents to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and long term. As the industry in which the Company operates is very capital
intensive, the majority of the Company’s spending is related to its capital programs. The Company prepares annual
budgets, which are regularly monitored and updated as considered necessary.

As at June 30, 2013, the Company had cash balance of $65 (September 30, 2012 - $21, September 30, 2011 - $51)
to settle current liabilities of $61 (September 30, 2012 - $34, September 30, 2011 - $233). All of the Company’s
financial liabilities are classified as current and are anticipated to mature within the next fiscal period.

Subsequent to the period end, the Company received $4,740 cash from Concordia according to the spin-out
transaction.

Market Risk

Market risk incorporates a range of risks. Movement in risk factors, such as market price risk and currency risk,
affect the fair values of financial assets and liabilities, The Company is exposed to these risks as the ability of the
Company to develop or market its properties and the future profitability of the Company is related to the market
price of certain minerals.

i) Foreign Currency Risk

The Company’s current assets and liabilities are denominated in Canadian dollars, US dollars and Argentinian pesos
as follows:

Argentinean Total
Nine months ended June 30, CDN$ uss ESEIES
2013 P $
Cash 3 6 56 65
Receivables 1 - - 1
Deposits - 15 15
Accounts payables and acerued
Habilities - 37 (24) (61
Net exposure 4 (16) 32 20
Argentinean Total
Year ended September 30, CDN$ USSs & 505
2012 P $
Cash and cash equivalents 2 7 12 21
Receivables 1 - 1 2
Deposits - 155 155
Accounts payables and accrued
liabilities - (19) (15) (34)

Net exposure 3 (143) 2) 144
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MERYLLION BUSINESS
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 (UNAUDITED) AND
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 AND 2011 (AUDITED)
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian Dollars)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

Year ended September 30, CDNS$ Uss Argentinean Total
2011 pesos $
Cash and cash equivalents 9 17 25 51
Receivables - - 24 24
Prepaid expenses and deposits - 6 6
Accounts payables and

accrued liabilities - (19 214 (233)
Net exposure 9 4 (165) (152)

US dollar amounts have been translated at a value of CDN$1.01518 for US$1.00 (September 30, 2012 -
CDN$0.9832 for US$1.00, September 30, 2011 - CDN$1.0482 for US$1.00). Amounts in Argentine Pesos have
been translated at a value of CDN$0.1952 for 1 Peso (September 30, 2012 — CDN$0.2095 for 1 Peso, September 30,
2011 CDN$0.2370 for 1 Peso).

if) Price Risk
The Company is exposed to price risk with respect to commodity prices. Commodity price risk is defined as the
potential adverse impact on earnings and economic value due to commodity price movements and volatilities. The

Company closely monitors commodity prices to determine the appropriate course of action to be taken by the
Company.

iii) Interest Rate Risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk to the extent that the cash maintained at the financial institutions is
subject to a floating rate of interest. The interest rate risk on cash is not considered significant.

CAPITAL DISCLOSURE

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to pursue the exploration and development of its mineral properties and o maintain a flexible
capital structure. The capital structure of the Company consists of contribution from Concordia Resource Corp.,
accumulated other comprehensive loss - currency translation adjustment and deficit.

The properties in which the Company currently has an interest are in the exploration stage. In order to carry out the
planned exploration and pay for administrative costs, the Company will raise additional amounts as needed and if
available.

Management reviews its capital management approach on an ongoing basis and believes that this approach, given
the relative size of the Company, is reasonable. There were no changes in the Company’s approach to capital
management during the nine months ended June 30, 2013 and year ended September 30, 2012.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to June 30, 2013 the Company;

entered into a Definitive Corporate Structure and Administration Agreement (the “Agreement”) with
Fitzcarraldo Ventures Inc. and Willem Fuchter (combined the “FVI”), whereby FVI agreed to relinquish its
right under the previous agreement to 10% equity interest in the Company upon listing on the TSX Venture
Exchange. In exchange, the Company granted FVI 1% net smelter returns royalty on Providencia and Cerro
Amarillo properties;

o received $4,740 cash from Concordia, subject to post-closing adjustments, according to the spin-out transaction
(Note 2).
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ARRANGEMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT made as of the 1 day of October, 2013.

BETWEEN:
CONCORDIA RESOURCE CORP., a corporation existing
under the laws of British Columbia
(“Concordia™)
AND:
MERYLLION RESOURCES CORPORATION, a corporation
existing under the laws of British Columbia
(“Argentina Co.”)
WHEREAS:
A. Concordia and Argentina Co. have agreed to proceed with a proposed transaction by way

of Plan of Arrangement (as hereinafter defined) under section Sections 288 to 299 of the
Business Corporations Act (British Columbia);

B. Concordia proposes to convene a meeting of its securityholders to consider the
Arrangement (as hereinafter defined) on the terms set forth in the Plan of Arrangement annexed
as Schedule “A” hereto;

C. the Parties (as hereinafter defined) to this Agreement have agreed to participate in and
support such Arrangement; and

D. the Arrangement is the first step in a series of transactions whereby Concordia is
restructuring its business and will be followed by the DRC Property Purchase and the HPX Asset
Purchase.

NOW THEREFORE THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSES that, in consideration of the
premises and the respective covenants and agreements herein contained, and for other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by each of
the Parties hereto, the Parties hereto covenant and agree as follows:



.

PART 1
DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

1.1 Definitions. In this Agreement and the recitals hereto, unless the context otherwise
requires, the following terms shall have the meanings hereinafter set forth:

“Argentina Co. Shares” means common shares in the capital of Argentina Co. as constituted on
the date of this Agreement;

* Agreement” means this Arrangement Agreement, including the recitals and schedules hereto,
as the same may be supplemented or amended from time to time;

“Arrangement” means an arrangement under the provisions of sections 288 to 289 of the
BCBCA on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and the Plan of Arrangement,
and any amendment or variation thereto in accordance with the terms hereof;

“Arrangement Resolution” means the Special Resolution of Concordia Securityholders
approving the Arrangement;

“BCBCA” means the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia), as amended;

“Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday, a Sunday or a day on which banks in
Vancouver, British Columbia are not open for business;

“Circular” means the definitive form, together with any amendments thereto, of the
management proxy circular of Concordia to be prepared and sent to the Concordia
Securityholders in connection with the Meeting;

“Concordia Amended Options” means the options to purchase New Concordia Common
Shares in the capital of Concordia to be issued in exchange of the Concordia Options as part of
the Arrangement;

“Concordia Optionholders” means registered holders of issued and outstanding options to
purchase Concordia Shares on the Share Exchange Record Date;

“Concordia Securityholders” means Concordia Shareholders and Concordia Optionholders;
“Concordia Shareholders” means the holders of Concordia Shares;

“Concordia Shares” means common shares in the capital of Concordia as constituted on the
date of this Agreement;

“Constating Documents” means the articles of incorporation, the articles of continuance or the
articles of amalgamation pursuant to which a corporation is incorporated, continued or
amalgamated, as the case may be, together with any amendments thereto, and the bylaws of such



corporation and any shareholders’ agreement which has been executed by such corporation and
which governs in whole or in part such corporation’s affairs;

“Court” means the Supreme Court of British Columbia;

“DRC Property Purchase” means the transaction whereby Swala Resources Inc., a wholly
owned subsidiary of Concordia, will acquire its JV partner’s 10% interest in the Ebende Project
and its 15% interest in the Kabongo Project (another DRC project held 70% by Ambase
Exploration Africa (DRC) S.P.R.C.) for $750,000 and 8,333,334 million New Concordia
Common Shares of the Company (subject to adjustment pursuant to any Share Consolidation
conducted by Concordia);

“Ebende Project” means the exploration program targeting nickel-copper and platinum group
elements located in Katanga, south-central DRC held by Ebende Resources;

“Ebende Resources” means Ebende Resources Limited, a corporation incorporated under the
laws of the British Virgin Islands;

“Effective Date” means the date on which the Arrangement is made effective;
“Exchange” means the TSX Venture Exchange;

“Fairholme Project” means the copper-gold project located southeast of Condobolin in New
South Wales, Australia, which currently consists of two tenements, Fairholme EL6552 and
Manna EL6915 held by Clancy;

“Fairholme Farm-in Agreement” means the option agreement between HPX TechCo and
Clancy Exploration whereby HPX TechCo has a right to earn into the Fairholme Project;

“Final Order” means the final order of the Court approving the Arrangement and the fairness of
the terms and conditions thereof following the application contemplated by Section 4.2 of this
Agreement;

“Governmental Authority” means any federal, provincial, state, municipal, county or regional
governmental or quasi-governmental authority, domestic or foreign, and includes any ministry,
department, commission, bureau, board, administrative or other agency or regulatory body or
instrumentality thereof;

“HPX TechCo” means HPX TechCo Inc., a company incorporated under the laws of the British
Virgin Islands;

“HPX Assets” means collectively: i) $5,000,000 in cash; ii) an 80% equity interest in Ebende
Resources; iii) assignment of the Fairholme Farm-in Agreement; iv) a $5,000,000 line of credit;
and v) the execution and delivery of the Services Agreement;



-4-

“HPX Asset Purchase” means the purchase of the HPX Assets by the Company in exchange for
the HPX Consideration Shares;

‘HPX Consideration Shares” means 106,489,000 New Concordia Common Shares which will
equal 85% of the Company’s issued and outstanding New Concordia Common Shares;

“Interim Order” means the interim order of the Court pursuant to the application contemplated
by Section 4.2 of this Agreement, as the same may be amended, supplemented or varied by the
Court;

“Meeting” means the special meeting of the Concordia Securityholders to be held to consider,
among other matters, the Arrangement, and any adjournment or postponement thereof;

“New Concordia Common Shares” means the New Concordia Common Shares created as part
of the Plan of Arrangement;

“Parties” means, together, Concordia and Argentina Co.;

“Person” means and includes an individual, sole proprietorship, partnership, unincorporated
association, unincorporated syndicate, unincorporated organization, trust, body corporate, a
trustee, executor, administrator or other legal representative and the Crown or any agency or
instrumentality thereof;

“Plan of Arrangement” means the plan of arrangement substantially in the form set out as
Schedule “A” hereto and any amendment or variation thereto made in accordance with the terms
hereof;

“Registrar’ means the registrar appointed pursuant to section 400 of the BCBCA;

“Services Agreement” means the services agreement whereby HPX TechCo agrees to provide
geological survey services to Concordia;

“Share Exchange Record Date” means the date established by Concordia for the purpose of
determining (i) the Concordia Shareholders entitled to receive New Concordia Common Shares,
and Argentina Co. Shares and the Concordia Optionholders who are entitled to receive
Concordia Amended Options under the Arrangement; and

“Special Resolution” means a resolution passed by a majority of not less than 2/3 of the votes
cast by the Concordia Securityholders who vote in respect of such resolution at the Meeting.

1.2 Interpretation. For the purposes of this Agreement, except as otherwise expressly
provided:

(a) “this Agreement” means this Agreement, including the schedules hereto, and not
any particular part, section or other portion hereof, and includes any agreement,
document or instrument entered into, made or delivered pursuant to the terms
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hereof, as the same may, from time to time, be supplemented or amended and in
effect;

3 &

all references in this Agreement to a designated “part”, “section”, “subsection” or
other subdivision or to a schedule are references to the designated part, section,
subsection or other subdivision of, or schedule to, this Agreement;

the division of this Agreement into parts, sections and other portions and the
insertion of headings are for convenience of reference only and are not intended
to interpret, define or limit the scope, extent or intent of this Agreement or any
provision hereof;

unless otherwise provided herein, all references to currency in this Agreement are
to lawful money of Canada;

a reference in this Agreement to a statute includes all regulations made
thereunder, all amendments to the statute or regulations in force from time to
time, and any statute or regulation that supplements or supersedes such statute or
regulations;

the singular of any term includes the plural, and vice versa, and the use of any
term is generally applicable to any gender and, where applicable, a body
corporate, firm or other entity, and the word “or” is not exclusive and the word
“including” is not limiting whether or not non-limiting language (such as
“without limitation” or “‘but not limited to” or words of similar import) is used
with reference thereto;

a reference to time or date is to the local time or date in Vancouver, British
Columbia, unless otherwise specifically indicated otherwise;

in the event that any date on which any action is required to be taken hereunder
by any of the parties hereto is not a Business Day, such action shall be required to
be taken on the next succeeding day which is a Business Day;

all references to “approval”, “authorization” or “consent” in this Agreement
means written approval, authorization or consent; and

this Agreement, together with the schedules, agreements and other documents
herein or therein referred to, constitute the entire agreement among the parties
pertaining to the subject manner hereof and supersedes all prior agreements,
understandings, negotiations and discussions, whether oral or written, among the
parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.
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PART 2
ARRANGEMENT

2.1  Arrangement. The Parties agree to effect the Arrangement pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 288 to 299 of the BCBCA on the terms and subject to the conditions contained in this
Agreement and the Plan of Arrangement.

2.2 Effective Date of Arrangement. The Arrangement shall become effective at 12:01 a.m.
on the Effective Date.

23  Commitment of Effective Arrangement. Subject to satisfaction of the terms and
conditions of this Agreement, the Parties shall each use all reasonable efforts and do all things
reasonably required to cause the Arrangement to become effective no later than the Termination
Date or on such other date as Concordia may determine and, in conjunction therewith, to cause
the transactions contemplated by the Plan of Arrangement to be completed on or prior to the
Effective Date. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Concordia shall proceed
forthwith to apply for the Interim Order and, upon obtainment thereof, shall call the Meeting and
mail the Circular to the Concordia Securityholders.

2.4  Circular. As soon as practicable, Concordia will prepare the Circular for mailing to the
Concordia Securityholders. The Circular will include all such information as is necessary to
ensure compliance with the requirements of applicable corporate and securities laws of
Concordia in connection with the Concordia Securityholders approval required for the
Arrangement and compliance with the Interim Order.

2.5  Concordia Securityholder Meeting.

(a) As soon as practicable Concordia will convene the Meeting. Concordia will file
the Circular with the appropriate regulatory authorities in all jurisdictions where
the same is required to be filed and will mail the same to the Concordia
Securityholders and such other appropriate persons in accordance with applicable
law and the Interim Order; and

(b) Concordia shall convene the Meeting in a timely and expeditious manner in
accordance with the Interim Order and their Constating Documents on a date
mutually convenient to all parties involved in accordance with the Interim Order
and will solicit proxies to be voted at those meetings in favour of the
Arrangement and other matters incidental thereto.

2.6  Filing of Final Order. Subject to the rights of termination contained in Part 6 hereof,
upon receiving Concordia Securityholder approval for the Arrangement by Special Resolution in
accordance with the provisions of the Interim Order and the BCBCA, and Concordia obtaining
the Final Order and the other conditions contained in Part 5 hereof being complied with or
waived, Concordia shall send a copy of the Final Order to the Registrar for filing pursuant to
subsection 292(b) of the BCBCA, together with such other documents as may be required in
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order to effect the Arrangement. Upon such filing and issuance by the Registrar of the certificate
or certificates giving effect to the Arrangement, the Parties shall exchange such other documents
as may be necessary or desirable in connection with the completion of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement and the Plan of Arrangement.

2.7  Concordia Securities Laws Compliance. Concordia will make all necessary filings and
applications under Canadian provincial securities laws, rules and regulations required to be made
by it in connection with the transactions contemplated herein and will take all reasonable actions
necessary to comply with such laws, rules and regulations.

PART 3
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

3.1  Representations and Warranties of the Parties. Each of the Parties represents and
warrants to each other as follows:

(a) it is a corporation duly incorporated or continued and validly subsisting under the
laws of its incorporating jurisdiction, and has full capacity and authority to enter
into this Agreement and, subject to obtaining the requisite approvals
contemplated hereby, to perform its obligations hereunder;

b it has taken all corporate actions necessary to authorize the execution and delivery
of this Agreement, and this Agreement has been duly authorized by it;

(c) neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement nor the performance of any
of its covenants and obligations hereunder will constitute a material default under,
or be in any material contravention or breach of:

) any provision of its constating documents, or any of its by-laws or other
governing documents;

(i)  any judgment, decree, order, law, statute, rule or regulation applicable to
it; or

(iii)  any agreement or instrument to which it is a party or by which it is bound,;
and

(d) no dissolution, winding-up, bankruptcy, liquidation or similar proceedings have
been commenced or are pending or proposed in respect of it.
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PART 4
COVENANTS

4.1 Covenants of Concordia. Concordia hereby covenants and agrees with Argentina Co.

as follows:

(a)

(b)

(d)

(e

until the Effective Date, Concordia shall carry on its business in the ordinary
course and shall not enter into any transaction or incur any obligation or liability
out of the ordinary course of its business, except as otherwise contemplated in this
Agreement.

except as otherwise contemplated in this Agreement, until the Effective Date,
Concordia shall not merge into or with, or amalgamate, consolidate or enter into
any other corporate reorganization with, any other corporation or Person or
perform any act or enter into any transaction or negotiation which reasonably
could be expected to, directly or indirectly, interfere or be inconsistent with the
completion of the Arrangement or other transactions contemplated by this
Agreement;

Concordia shall, in a timely and expeditious manner, file the Circular in all
jurisdictions where the Circular is required to be filed by Concordia and mail or
cause to be mailed the Circular to the Concordia Securityholders, the directors of
Concordia and the auditors of Concordia, all in accordance with the terms of the
Interim Order and applicable law;

Concordia shall perform the obligations required to be performed by it, and shall
enter into all agreements required to be entered into by it under this Agreement
and the Plan of Arrangement and shall do all such other acts and things as may be
necessary or desirable in order to carry out and give effect to the Arrangement
and related transactions as described in the Circular and, without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, Concordia shall seek:

M the approval of the Concordia Securityholders required for the
implementation of the Arrangement,

(i)  the Interim and Final Order as provided for in section 4.2, and

(iii)  such other consents, orders, rulings, approvals and assurances as counsel
may advise are necessary or desirable for the implementation of the
Arrangement, including those referred to in section 5.1;

Concordia will convene the Meeting as soon as practicable and will solicit proxies
to be voted at the Meeting in favour of the Arrangement and all other resolutions
referred to in the Circular; and
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® Concordia will use all reasonable efforts to cause each of the conditions precedent
set out in sections 5.1 and 5.2 to be complied with on or before the Effective Date.

4.2  Covenants of Argentina Co. Argentina Co. hereby covenants and agrees with
Concordia as follows:

(a) except as otherwise contemplated in this Agreement, until the Effective Date,
Argentina Co. shall not merge, or suffer or permit any of its Subsidiaries to,
merge into or with, or amalgamate or consolidate, or enter into any other
corporate reorganization with, any other corporation or Person, perform any act or
enter into any transaction or negotiation which reasonably could be expected to,
directly or indirectly, interfere or be inconsistent with the completion of the
Arrangement or other transactions contemplated by this Agreement;

(b) Argentina Co. shall perform the obligations required to be performed by it, and
shall enter into all agreements required to be entered into by it under this
Agreement and the Plan of Arrangement and shall do all such other acts and
things as may be necessary or desirable in order to carry out and give effect to the
Arrangement and related transactions as described in the Circular and, without
limiting the generality of the foregoing, Argentina Co. shall cooperate with
Concordia in seeking:

(i) the Interim and Final Order as provided for in section 4.2, and

(i1) such other consents, orders, rulings, approvals and assurances as counsel may
advise are necessary or desirable for the implementation of the Arrangement,
including those referred to in section 5.1; and

(©) Argentina Co. will use all reasonable efforts to cause each of the conditions
precedent set out in sections 5.1 and 5.2 to be complied with on or before the
Effective Date.

4.3  Interim Order and Final Order. Concordia covenants and agrees that it will, as soon
as reasonably practicable, apply to the Court for the Interim Order providing for, among other
things, the calling and holding of the Meeting for the purpose of, among other matters,
considering and, if deemed advisable, approving the Arrangement and that, if the approval of the
Concordia Securityholders of the Arrangement as set forth in the Interim Order is obtained by
Concordia, as soon as practicable thereafter Concordia will take the necessary steps to submit the
Arrangement to the Court and apply for the Final Order in such fashion as the Court may direct.
As soon as practicable thereafter, and subject to compliance with any other conditions provided
for in Part 5 hereof and further subject to the termination provisions of section 6.2, Concordia
shall file with the Registrar, a certified copy of the Final Order and Articles of Arrangement to
give effect to the Arrangement.
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4.4  Material Changes. Each party will advise the other parties to this Agreement orally and
in writing of any material change with respect to it or any of its Subsidiaries on a consolidated
basis promptly after such material change has occurred.

PART 5
CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

5.1  Mutual Conditions Precedent. The respective obligations of the Parties to complete the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and the obligation of Concordia to file a copy of
the Final Order, Articles of Arrangement and other documents (if any) required to give effect to
the Arrangement with the Registrar, shall be subject to the satisfaction, on or before the Effective
Date, of the following conditions:

(a) the Interim Order shall have been granted in form and substance satisfactory to
Concordia;

(b) the Arrangement, without amendment or with amendments acceptable to the
Parties, shall have been approved at the Meeting by the Concordia
Securityholders in accordance with the Interim Order;

(c) the Arrangement Resolution, without amendment or with amendments acceptable
to the Parties, shall have been approved at the meeting;

(d) the Final Order shall have been granted in form and substance satisfactory to
Concordia;

(e) all approvals and consents, regulatory or otherwise, which are required in
connection with the consummation of the transactions contemplated in this
Agreement and in the Plan of Arrangement shall have been obtained;

®H the time period for the exercise of any right to dissent conferred upon the
Concordia Shareholders in respect of the Arrangement shall have expired and the
Concordia Shareholders shall not have exercised (and not abandoned) such right
of dissent with respect to greater than 5% of the number of outstanding Concordia
Shares as of the Share Exchange Record Date;

(2) no preliminary or permanent injunction, restraining order, cease trading order or
order or decree of any domestic or foreign court, tribunal, governmental agency
or other regulatory authority or administrative agency, board or commission, and
no law, regulation, policy, directive or order shall have been enacted,
promulgated, made, issued or applied to cease trade, enjoin, prohibit or impose
material limitations on, the Arrangement or the transactions contemplated herein
>r in the Plan of Arrangement shall have been issued and remain in effect and no
such action, proceeding or order shall, to the best of the knowledge of any one of
the Parties, be pending or threatened and, without limiting the generality of the
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foregoing, no Person shall have filed any notice of appeal of the Final Order, and
no Person shall have communicated to any one of the Parties (verbally or in
writing) any intention to appeal the Final Order which, in the reasonable opinion
of any one of the Parties (on the advice of legal counsel), would make it
inadvisable to proceed with the implementation of the Arrangement;

(h) there shall not exist any prohibition at law against the completion of the
Arrangement;

6 Concordia shall have satisfied or obtained a waiver from all conditions to the
HPX Asset Purchase that can be satisfied or waived prior to the Effective Date,
and excluding the condition that requires the Arrangement to have been made
effective as a condition of the HPX Asset Purchase;

) Concordia shall have satisfied or obtained a waiver from all conditions to the
DRC Property Purchase;

(k)  the Argentina Co. Shares shall have been conditionally approved for listing on the
Exchange and the Exchange shall otherwise have granted its conditional approval
to this Arrangement, the DRC Property Purchase and HPX Asset Purchase, as
required;; and

Q) the Arrangement Agreement shall not have been terminated in accordance with
Part 6 hereof.

5.2  Conditions and Obligations of the Parties. The obligation of the Parties to complete
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement is further subject to the condition, which may
be waived by any individual party to this Agreement without prejudice to its right to rely on any
other condition in favour of such party, that each and every one of the covenants of the other
parties hereto to be performed on or before the Effective Date pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement shall have been duly performed by those parties and that, except as affected by the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement, the representations and warranties of the other
parties hereto shall be true and correct in all material respects as at the Effective Date, with the
same effect as if such representations and warranties had been made at and as of such time.

PART 6
AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION

6.1  Amendment. Subject to any applicable mandatory restrictions under the BCBCA or the
Final Order, this Agreement may, at any time and from time to time before or after the holding of
the Meeting, but not later than the Effective Date, be amended by written agreement of the
Parties hereto without, subject to applicable law, further notice to or authorization on the part of
the securityholders of either party. The parties acknowledge, however, that Concordia has
agreed with HPX TechCo not to amend this Agreement or the Plan of Arrangement, without first
obtaining the consent of HPX TechCo.
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6.2  Termination. This Agreement may, at any time before or after the holding of the
Meeting but prior to the Effective Date, be unilaterally terminated by the board of directors of
Concordia without further notice to, or action on the part of, its sharcholders for whateve:
reasons it may consider appropriate.

6.3  Effect of Termination. Upon the termination of this Agreement pursuant to section 6.2
hereof, none of the Parties shall have any liability or further obligation to any of the other parties
to this Agreement.

6.4  Termination for Non-Fulfilment. This Agreement shall terminate if the conditions
precedent set forth in Part 5 are not satisfied or waived, as therein contemplated.

PART 7
MERGER

7.1 Merger of Conditions. The conditions set out in sections 5.1 and 5.2 shall be
conclusively deemed to have been satisfied, waived or released upon the delivery to the
Registrar pursuant to subsection 292(b) of the BCBCA of a certified copy of the Final Order to
give effect to the Arrangement and any amendments to the articles of each of the Parties.

7.2 Merger of Representations, Warranties and Covenants. The provisions of sections
4.1 and 4.2 shall be conclusively deemed to have been satisfied in all respects by the filing with
the Registrar of a copy of the Final Order and of the Articles of Arrangement required to give
effect to the Arrangement, and shall accordingly merge in and not survive the effectuation of the
Arrangement by the issuance of the certificates of arrangement giving effect to the Arrangement.

PART 8
RIGHT TO DISSENT

8.1  Concordia Shareholder(s). Each Concordia Shareholder is entitled to dissent and to be
paid by Concordia the fair value of the Concordia Shares held by such holder, except as
expressly indicated to the contrary in this section 8.1, in the manner set forth in sections 237 to
247 of the BCBCA in connection with the Arrangement, provided that the written objection to
the Arrangement resolution referred to in section 242 of the BCBCA must be received by
Concordia not later than 5:00 p.m. (Vancouver time) on the Business Day preceding the
Meeting, (ii) such holder shall not have voted any of his, her or its Concordia Shares in favour of
the Arrangement at the Meeting in person or by proxy, and (iii) any such holder who exercises
such right to dissent and who:

(a) is entitled to be paid for the fair value for his, her or its Concordia Shares, shall be
deemed to have transferred such shares to Concordia for cancellation on the
Effective Date but shall not be entitled to any other payment or consideration; or

) is not entitled to be paid for the fair value for his, her or its Concordia Shares,
shall be deemed to have participated in the Arrangement on the same basis and at



-13-

the same time as any non-dissenting Shareholder, and shall be entitled to New
Concordia Common Shares and Argentina Co. Shares on the same basis as any
non-dissenting Shareholder pursuant to this Plan of Arrangement.

8.2  Effect of Dissent. Upon compliance with section 8.1 hereof, Concordia shall not be
required to recognize Shareholders as shareholders of Concordia after the Effective Date, and the
names of such holders shall be removed from the applicable register of shareholders as at the
Effective Date.

PART 9
GENERAL

9.1 Notices. All notices which may or are required to be given pursuant to any provision of
this Agreement shall be given or made in writing and shall be deemed to be validly given if
served personally or by facsimile, in each case to the attention of the senior officer at the
following addresses or at such other addresses as shall be specified by the parties by like notice:

(a) if to Concordia or Argentina Co.:

Suite 1100 — 355 Burrard Street
Vancouver, British Columbia

V6C 2G8

Attention: Tracy Hansen

Fax No.: (604) 221-7996

Email: thansen@concordiaresourcecorp.com

Any notice that is delivered shall be deemed to be delivered on the date of delivery to such
address if delivered on a Business Day prior to 5:00 p.m. (local time at the place of receipt) or on
the next Business Day if delivered after 5:00 p.m. or on a non-Business Day. Any notice
delivered by facsimile transmission shall be deemed to be delivered on the date of transmission if
delivered on a Business Day prior to 5:00 p.m. (local time at the place of receipt) or the next
Business Day if delivered after 5:00 p.m. or on a non-Business Day.

9.2  Assignment. No party may assign its rights or obligations under this Agreement or the
Arrangement without the prior written consent of the other parties hereto.

9.3  Binding Effect. This Agreement and the Plan of Arrangement shall be binding upon and
shall enure to the benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted
assigns.

9.4  Waiver. Any waiver or release of any of the provisions of this Agreement, to be
effective, must be in writing executed by the party granting the same.
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9.5  Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance
with the laws of the Province of British Columbia and shall be treated in all respects as a British
Columbia contract.

9.6  Further Assurances. Each of the Parties will from time to time promptly execute and
deliver all further documents and take all further action necessary or appropriate to give effect to
and perform the provisions and intent of this Agreement and to complete the transactions
contemplated hereby.

9.7  Counterparts and Electronic Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in one or
more counterparts each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall
constitute one and the same instrument. Delivery of an executed signature page to this
Agreement by any party by electronic transmission will be as effective as delivery of a manually
executed copy of this Agreement by such party.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as at the
date first written above.

CONCORDIA RESOURCE CORP.

Per: “Eduard Epshtein”
Authorized Signatory

MERYLLION RESOURCES CORPORATION

Per: “Eduard Epshtein”
Authorized Signatory




SCHEDULE “A”

Plan of Arrangement

PLAN OF ARRANGEMENT UNDER

SECTIONS 288 TO 299 OF THE BUSINESS CORPORATIONS ACT (BRITISH COLUMBIA)

1.1

ARTICLE 1 - INTERPRETATION

Definitions

In this Plan of Arrangement:

a)

g)

h)

)

k)

“Argentina Co.” means Meryllion Resources Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Concordia, into which Concordia proposes to transfer the Argentinean Assets and list on
the Exchange following a distribution of the Argentina Co. Shares to the Concordia
Shareholders;

“Argentina Co. Listing Date” means the date the Argentina Co. Shares are listed for
trading on the Exchange;

“Argentina Co. Shares” means the common shares in the capital of Argentina Co.;

“Argentinean Assets” means the Purchase Cash, Western Lithium Assets and Meryllion
Shares;

“Arrangement” means an arrangement under Sections 288 to 299 of the Business
Corporations Act on the terms and conditions set forth in this Plan of Arrangement and
any amendment or variation thereto made in accordance with the terms of the
Arrangement Agreement;

“Arrangement Agreement” means the arrangement agreement between Concordia and
Argentina Co. dated October 1%, 2013 to which this Plan of Arrangement is attached as
Schedule “A™;

“Business Corporations Act” means the Business Corporations Act, S.B.C. 2002, c. 57,
as amended,;

“Business Day” means any day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or a day on which banks
are not open for business in Vancouver, British Columbia;

“Concordia” means Concordia Resource Corp., a company incorporated under the laws
of British Columbia;

“Concordia Amended Options” means the options to purchase Concordia Shares to be
issued on exercise of the Concordia Options;

“Concordia Circular” means the notice of the Concordia Meeting and the accompanying
management information circular, including all schedules thereto, to be sent to Concordia
Securityholders and others in connection with the Concordia Meeting, together with any
amendments or supplements thereto;
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“Concordia Meeting” means the annual and special meeting of Concordia
Securityholders and any adjournment thereof to be held to consider and, if deemed
advisable, approve, among other things, the Concordia Resolution;

“Concordia Optionholders™ means the registered holders of Concordia Options;

“Concordia Options” means the issued and outstanding options to purchase Concordia
Shares at varying exercise prices and with varying expiry dates;

“Concordia Option Exercise Price” means the exercise price of the Concordia Options;

“Concordia Resolution” means the special resolution of the Concordia Shareholders
approving the Arrangement;

“Concordia Securityholders” means the Concordia Shareholders and the Concordie
Optionholders;

“Concordia Shareholders” means the registered holders of Concordia Shares as of the
Share Distribution Record Date;

“Concordia Shares” means the common shares in the capital of Concordia as constituted
on the date of the Arrangement Agreement and which will be renamed and redesignated
as Class A Shares as described in Article 3.1(a)(i) below;

“Consideration Shares” means the Argentina Co. Shares to be distributed to the
Concordia Shareholders as set out in section 3.1 herein;

“Court” means the Supreme Court of British Columbia;

“Dissenting Concordia Shareholder” means a Concordia Shareholder who duly exercises
its Dissent Rights;

“Dissent Rights” means the rights of dissent in respect to the Arrangement under the
Business Corporations Act as described in Article 4;

“DRC Property Purchase” means the transaction whereby Swala Resources Inc., a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, will acquire its JV partner’s 10% interest in the
Ebende Project and its 15% interest in the Kabongo Project (another DRC project held
70% by Ambase Exploration Africa (DRC) S.P.R.C.) for $750,000 and 8.3 million
common shares of the Company;

“Ebende Project” means the exploration program targeting nickel-copper and platinum
group elements located in Katanga, south-central DRC held by Ebende Resources;

“Ebende Resources” means Ebende Resources Limited, a corporation incorporated under
the laws of the British Virgin Islands;

aa) “Effective Date” means the date on which the Arrangement is made effective;

bb) “Exchange” means the TSX Venture Exchange;

cc) “Fairholme Project” means the copper-gold project located southeast of Condobolin in

New South Wales, Australia, which currently consists of two tenements, Fairholme
EL6552 and Manna EL6915;
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dd) “Fairholme Farm-in Agreement” means the option agreement between HPX TechCo and
Clancy Exploration whereby HPX TechCo has a right to earn into the Fairholme Project.

ee) “Final Order” means the final order of the Court made in connection with the approval of
the Arrangement and the fairness of the terms and conditions thereof following the
application therefor;

ff) “HPX” means High TechCo Inc., a company incorporated under the laws of the British
Virgin Islands;

gg) “HPX Asset Purchase” means the purchase of the HPX Assets by the Company in
exchange for the HPX Consideration Shares;

hh) “Interim Order” means the interim order of the Court providing for, among other things,
the calling and holding of the Concordia Meeting following the application therefor, as
the same may be amended, supplemented or varied by the Court;

i) “Meryllion” means Meryllion Minerals Corp., a wholly owned subsidiary of Concordia
incorporated under the laws of British Columbia;

ij) “Meryllion Shares” means 100% of the issued and outstanding capital of Meryllion;
kk) “New Concordia Common Shares” has the meaning ascribed to it in Article 3.1(a)(ii);

[l) “Notice of Dissent” means a notice given in respect of the Dissent Rights as
contemplated in the Interim Order and as described in Article 4;

mm) “Plan of Arrangement” means this plan of arrangement, proposed under Sections
288 to 299 of the Business Corporations Act, as amended and supplemented from time to
time in accordance herewith and any order of the Court;

nn) “Purchase Cash” means the cash portion of the Argentinean Assets;

00) “Registrar” means the Registrar of Companies appointed under Section 400 of the
Business Corporations Act;

pp) “Services Agreement” means the services agreement whereby High Power Exploration
Inc., the parent company of HPX TechCo, agrees to provide geological survey services to
Concordia;

qq) “Share Exchange Record Date” means the date established by Concordia for the purpose
of determining the Concordia Securityholders entitled to receive New Concordia
Common Shares and Argentina Co. Shares under the Arrangement and the holders of
Concordia Options entitled to receive Concordia Amended Options;

rr) “Tax Act” means the Income Tax Act (Canada);

ss) “Western Lithium Assets” means, as applicable, (i) the Western Lithium Shares, (ii) the
net proceeds received by Concordia from the sale of the Western Lithium Shares, or (iii)
if Concordia has only sold a portion of the Western Lithium Shares, the remaining
Western Lithium Shares together with the aggregate net proceeds received by Concordia
from any sale or sales of any portion of the Western Lithium Shares; and
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tt) “Western Lithium Shares” means 28,540,393 common shares in the capital in Western
Lithium USA Corporation.

1.2 Headings and References

The division of this Plan of Arrangement into Articles and sections and the insertion of headings
are for convenience of reference only and do not affect the construction or interpretation of this
Plan of Arrangement. Unless otherwise specified, references to sections are to sections of this
Plan of Arrangement.

1.3 Number, efc.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words importing the singular number only shall include
the plural and vice versa; words importing the use of any gender shall include all genders; and
words importing persons shall include firms and corporations and vice versa.

1.4 Date of Any Action

In the event that any date on which any action is required to be taken hereunder by any of the
parties is not a Business Day in the place where the action is required to be taken, such action
shall be required to be taken on the next succeeding day which is a Business Day in such place.

1.5 Meaning

Words and phrases not otherwise defined herein and defined in the Business Corporations Act
will have the same meaning herein as in the Business Corporations Act, unless the context
otherwise requires.

ARTICLE 2 - ARRANGEMENT AGREEMENT
2.1 Arrangement Agreement

This Plan of Arrangement is made pursuant to, is subject to the provisions of, and forms part of
the Arrangement Agreement.

ARTICLE 3 - THE ARRANGEMENT
3.1 The Arrangement

On the Effective Date, subject to the provisions of Article 4, the following shall occur and shall
be deemed to occur without any further authorization, act or formality:

a) Share Consolidation: All of the Concordia Shares issued and outstanding will be
consolidated, such consolidation being conducted on a five (5) to one (1) basis, but
provided that if any shareholder of Concordia shall thereafter be entitled to a fraction of a
post-consolidation common share, such fraction shall be disregarded and the number of
post-consolidation common shares shall be rounded down to the next whole number;

b) Reorganization of Capital: The authorized capital of Concordia and its notice of articles
will be altered by:



-19-

Renaming and redesignating all of the issued and unissued Concordia Shares as
Class A Shares (the “Class A Shares™); and

ii. Creating an unlimited number of common shares without par value as the new
Concordia Common Shares (“New Concordia Common Shares”) having the
right, on liquidation of Concordia, to the return of capital in priority to the Class
A Shares, but otherwise with the same rights, privileges and restrictions as the
Class A Shares;

¢) Share Exchange: Each issued and outstanding Class A Share, other than those held by
Dissenting Shareholders, will be exchanged for one (1) New Concordia Common Share
and for every one (1) Class A Shares held, one (1) Argentina Co. Share;

d) Cancellation of Class A Shares: The Class A Shares, none of which will be allotted and
issued once the steps referred to in (b) are completed, will be cancelled and the
authorized capital of Concordia and its notice of articles shall be amended by deleting the
Class A Shares as a class of shares of Concordia;

e) Options: Each Concordia Option, to the extent it has not been exercised as of the Share
Exchange Record Date, will be cancelled and exchanged for one (1) Concordia Amended
Option.

ARTICLE 4 - RIGHTS OF DISSENT
4.1 Grant of Rights of Dissent

Concordia Shareholders registered as such on the record date for the Concordia Meeting may
exercise rights of dissent pursuant to and in the manner set forth in subsection 238(d) of the
Business Corporations Act, provided that the Notice of Dissent duly executed by such Concordia
Shareholder is received by Concordia’s registered and records office 48 hours in advance of the
time of the Concordia Meeting. Dissenting Concordia Shareholders who are ultimately entitled
to be paid fair value for their Concordia Shares shall be deemed to have transferred their
Concordia Shares to Concordia for cancellation immediately prior to the Effective Date and in
no case shall Concordia be required to recognize such Persons as holding Concordia Shares at
and after the Effective Date, and the names of such Concordia Shareholders shall be removed
from Concordia’s register of shareholders as of the Effective Date.

4.2 Failure to Properly Exercise Dissent Rights

Concordia Shareholders who do not duly exercise their Dissent Rights in strict compliance with
the Business Corporations Act are not entitled to be paid fair value for their Concordia Shares,
shall be deemed to have participated in the Arrangement on the same basis as a Concordia
Shareholder who is not a Dissenting Concordia Shareholder, and shall be entitled to receive New
Concordia Common Shares and Argentina Co. Shares as provided in Article 3.1 of this Plan of
Arrangement.

ARTICLE 5 - SHARE EXCHANGE
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5.1 Right to Receive Argentina Co. Shares

As soon as practicable following the Effective Date, Concordia and Argentina Co. will cause to
be delivered to the Transfer Agent, to be delivered to Concordia Shareholders as of the Share
Exchange Record Date in accordance with the terms hereof, share certificates representing the
aggregate New Concordia Common Shares and Argentina Co. Shares to which such Concordia
Shareholders are entitled following the Arrangement. Following the effectiveness of the
Arrangement, a certificate that represented Concordia Shares shall thereafter only represent the
right of the holder to obtain New Concordia Common Shares and Argentina Co Shares in
accordance with this Plan of Arrangement.

53 Concordia Optionholder Right to Receive Concordia Amended Options

As soon as practicable following the Effective Date, without any further act or formality, each
Concordia Option, to the extent it has not been exercised as of the Share Exchange Record Date,
will be cancelled and exchanged for one (1) Concordia Amended Option. The Concordia
Amended Option’s exercise price will be amended to reflect the spin-out of the Argentina
Assets. The exercise price of the Concordia Amended Options will be reduced based on the
following formulae: The Concordia Option Exercise Price divided by one (1) multiplied by forty
four point 8 percent (44.8%).

It is intended that the provisions of subsection 7(1.4) of the Tax Act apply to the exchange;
therefore, notwithstanding the foregoing, Concordia shall increase the exercise price per New
Concordia Common Share of each Concordia Amended Option if necessary to ensure that the
excess, if any, of (i) the aggregate fair market value of the New Concordia Common Shares
underlying such Concordia Amended Options immediately following the exchange over (ii) the
aggregate exercise price of such Concordia Amendment Options otherwise determined does not
exceed the excess, if any, of (iii) the aggregate fair market value of the Concordia Shares
underlying the Concordia Options immediately before the exchange over the aggregate exercise
price of such Concordia Options.

5.4  Illegality of Delivery of New Concordia Common Shares and Argentina Co. Shares

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if it appears to Concordia that it would be contrary to applicable
law to issue or transfer the New Concordia Common Shares and the Argentina Co. Shares
pursuant to the Arrangement to a person that is not a resident of Canada, New Concordia
Common Shares and the Argentina Co. Shares that otherwise would be issued or transferred, as
the case may be, to that person will be issued or transferred, as the case may be, and delivered to
the registrar and transfer agent for sale of the New Concordia Common Shares and the Argentina
Co. Shares by the registrar and transfer agent on behalf of that person. The New Concordia
Common Shares and the Argentina Co. Shares delivered to the registrar and transfer agent will
be pooled and sold as soon as practicable after the Effective Date, on such dates and at such
prices as the registrar and transfer agent determines in its sole discretion. The registrar and
transfer agent shall not be obligated to seek or obtain a minimum price for any of the New
Concordia Common Shares and the Argentina Co. Shares sold by it. Each such person will
receive a pro rata share of the cash proceeds from the sale of the New Concordia Common
Shares and the Argentina Co. Shares sold by the registrar and transfer agent (less commissions,
other reasonable expenses incurred in connection with the sale of the New Concordia Common
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Shares and the Argentina Co. Shares and any amount withheld in respect of Canadian or other
taxes) in lieu of the New Concordia Common Shares and the Argentina Co. Shares. The net
proceeds will be remitted in the same manner as set forth in this Article 5. None of Concordia,
Argentina Co. or the registrar and transfer agent will be liable for any loss arising out of any
such sales.

ARTICLE 6 - MISCELLANEQOUS PROVISIONS
6.1 Amendment of the Plan of Arrangement

The Parties may collectively amend or supplement this Plan of Arrangement at any time and
from time to time provided that such amendment or supplement must be contained in a written
document which is filed with the Court and, if made following the Concordia Meeting, approved
by the Court and communicated to the Concordia Securityholders in the manner, if any, required
by the Court. Any amendment or supplement to this Plan of Arrangement may be proposed by
the Parties, collectively, at any time prior to the Concordia Meeting with or without any prior
notice or communication and, if so proposed and accepted by the persons voting at the
Concordia Meeting, shall become part of this Plan of Arrangement for all purposes.

6.2  Arrangement Effectiveness

The Arrangement will become final and conclusively binding on Argentina Co., the Concordia
Securityholders and Concordia on the Effective Date.

6.3 Supplementary Actions

Notwithstanding that the transactions and events set out in Article 3.1 will occur and will be
deemed to occur in the chronological order therein set out without any act or formality, the
Parties will each make, do, execute and deliver, or cause and procure to be made, done, executed
and delivered all such further acts, deeds, agreements, transfers, assurances, instruments or
documents as may be required to give effect to this Plan of Arrangement, including, without
limitation, any resolution of directors authorizing the issue or transfer of shares, any share
transfer powers evidencing the transfer of shares and any receipt therefor, any necessary
additions to or deletions from share registers.
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CONTRATO DE EXPLORACION CON OPCION DE COMPRA

Entre el seifor Humberto Julio Cdnepa, DNI 16.307.113, con domicilio legal y
constituido en Santiago del Estero 821. piso 1°, Ciudad de Salta, Provincia de Salta,
Repiblica Argentina, en adelante El “TITULAR”, por una parte, v por la otra el Sr.
Carlos Eugenio Ponte, en su caracter de Vicepresidente de MERYLLION
ARGENTINA S.A., con domicilio legal en Maip 1210, piso 5°, Ciudad Auténoma de
Buenos Aires, en adelante el “COMPRADOR?”, de comtin acuerdo manifiestan:

CONSIDERANDO:

I.- Que el sefior Humberto Julio Canepa es titular de la mina denominada “LA
PROVIDENCIA”, compuesta de una pertenencia de cien (100) hectdreas, para la
explotacion de mineral de plata y plomo, ubicada en el departamento de Susques,
provincia de Jujuy, concesién otorgada por el Juzpado Administrativo de Minas de
Jujuy, tramite en cxpediente 1531C/1977; es asimismo titular del pedimento minero que
tiene trdmite cn expediente 278C/1997 del Juzgado Administrativo de Minas de la
provincia de Jujuy, en una superficie aproximada de dos mil {2.000) hectareas ubicada
también en el Departamento de Susques de {a Provincia de Jujuy.

2.- Que a los efectos del presente ¢l término “Propiedades” se entenderd comprensivo
no s6lo de las Propiedades indicadas en el pumto 1 precedente, sino también de
cualquier otro pedimento, titulo o derecho minero adquirido por el TITULAR durante la
vigencia del presente Contrato. en un drea de no menos de 10 kilometros de Ja Mina
Providencia, el cual serd incorporado a las Propiedades. y se regird por las disposiciones
del presente.

4.- Que el COMPRADOR desea realizar trabajos de exploracién y evaluacion de la
existencia de minerales en las Propiedades, con la opcidn de adquirir la titularidad de las
mismas.

5.- Que el TITULAR desea, a su vez, otorgar al COMPRADOR el derecho de
exploracién con opcitn de compra sobre las Propiedades.

e ~ 6.- Quc el COMPRADOR desea realizar un proceso de “Due Diligence” y/o auditoria
* ’sbbre las Propiedades durante el plazo de treinta (30) dias contados desde la firma del
?**‘ prcsente Contrato, y a su vez, el TITULAR desea otorgar al COMPRADOR dicho plazo

,52 - ',:.{4 :‘i‘ para que leve adelante el proceso de “Due Diligence™ y/o auditoria solicitado.
"y (o)
i1 ™~ _%)R ELLO. el TITULAR y el COMPRADOR convienen en celebrar un CONTRATO
) f,_"z JE EXPLORACION CON OPCION DE COMPRA (el “Contrato”), sujeto a los
g v . » -
§} 1 '3
; —
VT Q,AiRTICULO PRIMERO: Objeto.
R « B ¢
DN ﬁ El TITULAR otorga al COMPRADOR el derecho irrevocable y exclusivo de
N O audntar, conforme lo previsto en el articulo quinto del presente, cvaluar, prospectar y
o
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explorar las Propiedades conforme al método, {a forma y alcance que el COMPRADOR
determine a su exclusivo criterio.

2.- Aparte del derecho de exploracion, el TITULAR otorga al COMPRADOR una
opcidn irrevocable v exclusiva de compra de las Propiedades. de conformidad con los
ténminos y condiciones estipulados en el presente Contrato.

3.- Asimismo, las Partes acuerdan que el COMPRADOR realizard un proceso de “Due
Diligence” y/o auditoria sobre las Propiedades durante el plazo de treinta (30) dias
contados desde {a firma del presente Contrato, todo ello de conformidad con los
términos v condiciones estipulados en el presente Contrato,

4.-Por otro lado, las Partes acuerdan que el TITULAR podré ceder las Propiedades,
durante la vigencia del presente Contrato, linicamente a una sociedad que serd creada al
solo efecto de ser titular de dichas Propiedades, siempre y cuando el TITULAR se
encuentre vinculado directa o indirectamente con la Sociedad, todo etlo de acuerdo a lo
previsto en el articulo décimo quinto del presente Contrato.

ARTICULQO SEGUNDO: Plazo.

1.- Este Contrato tendrd vigencia durante sesenta (60) meses, contados a partir de la
firma del presente Contrato.

2.- EFCOMPRADOR podra rescindir este Contrato, con anterioridad al vencimiento del
Plazo, de conformidad con las condiciones estipuladas en el Articulo Décimo.

ARTICULO TERCERQ: DERECHO DE EXPLORACION: Pages.

Por el derecho de auditar, explorar, prospectar y demas trabajos que se autorizan en ¢l
te Contrato, el COMPRADOR se compromete a abonar al TITULAR, los pagos
e s¢ indican a continuacion:

- Cincuenta mil délares estadounidenses (US$ 50.000), monto que serd abonado
dentro de los cinco (5) dias habiles de la firma del presente Contrato;
b.- Cien mil délares estadounidenses (US$ 100.000) a los 6 meses de la firma del

presente Contrato;
¢.- Ciento Cincuenta mil dolares estadounidenses (US$ 150.000) a los 12 meses de la

firma del presente Contrato;

d.- Doscientos mil délares estadounidenses (USS 200.000) a los 24 meses de la firma
del presente Contrato;

e.~ Doscientos cincuenta mil délares estadounidenses (USS 250.000) a los 36 meses de
la firma del presente Contrato.

f.- Trescientos mil délares estadounidenses (US$ 300.000) a los 48 meses de la firma
del presente Contrato.

El primer pago previsto en el presente articulo se efectuard con cheque librado a la

orden del TITULAR para su cobro directo en el banco pagador. Los pagos sucesivos
seran realizados a eleccion del TITULAR, con cheque librado a su orden, con fecha de

/
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pago igual al vencimiento establecido, o por transferencia bancaria a la cuenta
bancaria que el TITULAR designe. Se indicard en forma fehaciente al COMPRADOR
por parte del TITULAR y con quince (15) dias de antelacion, la modalidad de pago
por la que opte y en su caso la cuenta bancaria correspondiente. En el caso que se
realice el pago con depdsito bancario, la constancia del deposite por el monto
abonado, tendra el valor de recibo de pago.

ARTICULO CUARTO: DERECHO DE EXPLORACION: Entrega de la
Propiedad.

I.- En este acto el TITULAR entrega al COMPRADOR la tenencia exclusiva de las
Propiedades y el derecho a ingresar a las mismas.

2.- El TITULAR se compromete a no obstruir y a mantener al COMPRADOR en la
tenencia pacifica de las Propicdades.

3.- Durante la vigencia del Contrato, el COMPRADOR tendra el derecho de realizar en
las Propiedades todas las actividades exploratorias y de prospeccion que el TITULAR
tiene derecho a realizar en las Propiedades, de conformidad con el Codigo de Minerfa.
El TITULAR se abstendrd de realizar cualquier tipo de trabajo minero en las
Propiedades.

4.- Respetando las normas ambientales vigentes. el COMPRADOR, sus representantes,
dependientes, agentes o trabajadores propios o sus coniratistas, tendran derecho a
acceder a las Propiedades sin limitacién alguna y podran introducir en las mismas todas
las maquinarias, herramientas, equipos, v elementos que estimen necesarios ©
convenientes.

El COMPRADOR podré en cualquier lugar de las Propiedades efectuar relevamientos
topograficos, tlevar a cabo perforaciones o cualquier tipo de trabajo minero superficial o
subterréneo de indole exploratorio o de prospeccion que a su solo criteric considere
necesario; inspeccionar y examinar el terreno; sacar y ensavar muestras del mismo;
realizar todas las investigaciones y exploraciones que estime necesario a su solo costo,
tales como geoquimica estratégica o dc detalle por elementos, base o trazas, geofisica
por polarizaci6n inducida, magnetometria 0 cualquier otro métado, estudios geoldgicos-
metaldrgicos o econdmicos, como asi también cualquier otro estudio o prueba que el
COMPRADOR considere necesario para determinar la viabilidad econdmica de un
desarrollo minero en las Propiedades: construir v elegir estructuras temporarias e
instalar maquinarias y equipos, etc.

5.- Respetando las normas ambientales vigentes, el COMPRADOR podra realizar
pruebas de minado y extraccion a escala piloto.

6.- Durante la vigencia de este Contrato, el TITULAR tendra derecho a constatar los
trabajos de exploracidn y wvisitar las Propiedades, debiendo comunicar al
COMPRADOR con cinco (5) dias habiles de anticipacidn, las fechas de las visitas a
realizarse, las cuales deberan ser realizadas respetando las normas de seguridad y
ambientales vigentes, ademds de las normas e instrucciones internas que imparta
Meryllion Argentina S.A.
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ARTICULO QUINTO: DUE DILIGENCE Y/O AUDITORIA: derechos del
COMPRADOR.

1.- El TITULAR por el presente entrega al COMPRADOR la documentacion
seguidamente detallada: (i) Certificado de Titularidad y Vigencia de las Propiedades
extendidos por el Juzgado Administrative de Minas de la Provincia de Jujuy; v (ii}
recibo del uliimo pago de canon minero correspondiente a las Propiedades.

El TITULAR manifiesta que la documentacién antes detallada es toda la documentacién
que tiene en su poder relativa a las Propiedades.

2 — Dentro de treinta (30) dias contados a partir de la fecha en que se suscribe el
presente Contrato, el COMPRADOR llevard a cabo un Due Diligence y/o auditoria
sobre fas Propiedades, y el TITULAR proporcionard al COMPRADOR cualquier
autorizacién, cooperacion y asistencia técnica y documental que resulte necesaria para
tal fin. El due diligence deberd incluir, sin limitacién, aspectos legales, técnicos,
normativos y ambientales relativos a las Propiedades. Si a partir del due diligence, y
dentro del plazo previsto para su realizacion, surge cualquier contingencia en relacion
con las Propiedades que pudiere amenazar o poner en riesgo: (i) su legalidad o
efectividad; (it} su titularidad; (iii) los derechos del TITULAR sobre ellas; o incluso (iv)
el ejercicio de cualquier derecho que surja del presente Contrato, el COMPRADOR
podra rescindir el presente contrato sin que corresponda al TITULAR indemnizacién
alguna. Sin perjuicio de la facultad de rescindir, si e8 COMPRADOR optare por
continuar el Contrato, podra asumir las contingencias exigibles y liquidas que tengan las
Propiedades y que hubiesen sido contraidas por ¢] TITULAR, encontrandose facultado
el COMPRADOR para deducir dichas contingencias de los pagos previsios en el
Articulo 3 del presente, siempre que ¢] COMPRADOR hubiere notificado previamente
en forma fehaciente al TITULAR la contingencia en cuestidn y que éste altimo no la
hubiere remediado o subsanado dentro de un plazo de treinta (30) dias luego de haber
recibido dicha notificacion.

3.- En caso de que el TITULAR transfiera las Propiedades a fa Sociedad, todo ello de
acuerdo a lo previsto en el articulo Décimo Quinto del presente Contrato, el
COMPRADOR podr4, a su solo criterio, realizar un “Due Diligence™ o auditoria a fines
de determinar los compromisos asumidos ¥ eventual endeudamiento de dicha Sociedad.

ARTICULO SEXTO: EXPLORACION: compromises del COMPRADOR,

.- El COMPRADOR sera responsable de la contratacion del personal necesario para el
cumplimiento del presente Contrato y debera. respecto de dicho personal, dar estricto
cumplimiento a las disposiciones vigentes en materia de legislacién laboral y
previsional, cbligandose a mantener indemne al TITULAR de cualquier reclamo de
causa previsional o laboral por la contratacion del personal antes indicado. Asimismo,
las Partes manifiestan que el COMPRADOR podré contratar terceros contratisias
independientes para llevar adelante los trabajos previstos en el presente Contrato.

2.- El COMPRADOR se compromete durante la vigencia del presente Contrato a lo
siguiente:
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instrumento traslativo de! dominio no se suscriba dentro del plazo establecido
precedentemente por culpa del TITULAR, el COMPRADOR podra, a su exclusivo
criterio exigir la suscripcion de dicho instrumento, o dar por rescindido el presente
Contrato, con derecho en cualquiera de los casos a cobrar los dafios y perjuicios
correspondientes.

9.- Todos los pagos previstos en el presente Articulo seran realizados, a eleccién del
TITULAR, con cheque librado a la orden del TITULAR. con fecha de pago igual al
vencimiento establecido, o por transferencia bancaria a la cuenta que el TITULAR
designe. Se indicara en forma fehaciente al COMPRADOR por parte del TITULAR y
con quince (15) dias de antelacidn, la modalidad de pago por la que opte y en su caso
la cuenta bancaria correspondiente. En el caso de que se realice el pago con deposito
bancario, la constancia del depésito por el monto abonado, tendra el valor'de recibo de

pago.

ARTICULO DECIMO: FINALIZACION DEL CONTRATOQ.

1. Finalizacion por el COMPRADOR.

a) Durante el periodo de vigencia del Contrato, el COMPRADOR en cualquier
momento podrd unilateralmente desistir del mismo vy dar por rescindido este Contrato,
siempre que no se encuentre €n ese momcento en mora con los pagos por derecho de
exploracién comprometidos conforme el Articulo Tercero, debiendo notificar tal
decision en forma fehaciente al TITULAR. En tal caso el presente Contrato quedara
rescindido y sin efecto alguno, sin que tal terminacion genere responsabilidad alguna ni
indemnizacién, sea por dafic emergente, lucro cesante o cualquier otra causa, a favor del
TITULAR, quien acepta que los pagos ya efectuados y recibidos al momento de la
terminacion quedaran a su exclusivo beneficio como total, Gnica y definitiva
indemnizacion,

b) A partir de la fecha efectiva de rescisién, el COMPRADOR no estard obligado a
realizar pago adicional alguno a su vencimiento de acuerdo a lo previsto en el Articulo
Tercero del presente.

c¢) En caso que a la fecha de rescision estuvieran impagos cédnones, derechos u otros
pagos directa o indirectamente vinculados con las Propiedades. su mantenimiento, los
tramites para su otorgamiento, eic.; el COMPRADOR debera pagar al TITULAR una
parte proporcional de las sumas adeudadas por el afio calendario correspondiente, hasta
la fecha de rescisién del Contrato.

En ningin caso esta rescision dard derecho al TITULAR a reclamar suma alguna ni
indemnizacion de ninguna indole, ni al COMPRADOR a reclamar la devolucién de los
pagos realizados.

2. Finalizacién por el TITULAR v otros derechos del TITULAR.

En caso que e] COMPRADOR no abonare los pagos indicados en el Articulo Tercero a
su vencimiento, 0, habiendo ejercido la Opcion de Compra, no abonare ¢l Precio de
Compra de las Propiedades en los plazos pactados, o incumpliere cualquiera de las
obligaciones que ‘resultan del presente contrato, el TITULAR deberd recl mar el
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cumplimicnto de la obligacion de que se trate por parte del COMPRADOR, debiendo a
1al efecto intimarlo por escrito por medio fehaciente para que en el plazo de treinta (30)
dias corridos proceda a efectuar el pago correspondiente o cumplir la obligacién de que
se trate. Transcurrido el plazo sin que la prestactdn haya sido cumplida, podrd optar el
TITULAR, entre exigir su cumplimiento o dar por rescindido el presente contrato,
pudiendo en cualquier caso iniciar las acciones legales pertinentes y reclamar dafios y

perjuicios que demuestre que le han sido ocasionados.

ARTICULQ DECIMO PRIMERQ: CONSECUENCIAS DE LA FINALIZACION
DEL CONTRATO.

A partir de la fecha de finalizacion efectiva del Conirato, ¢l mismo perderd toda
vigencia y efectos para las partes, con excepcion de las obligaciones de confidencialidad
del Articulo Décimo Segundo.

Al producirsc la finalizacion del Contrato por cualquiera de las causas contempladas en
el articulo precedente, el COMPRADOR deber4:

.- Restituir al TITULAR la tenencia de las Propicdades, en buen esiado legal, sin
derecho a reclamar indemnizacion por dafios y perjuicios, lucro cesante o compensacion
de cualquier naturaleza, salvo lo dispuesto en el Articulo Décimo, 1¢).

2.- Suscribir, registrar y hacer entrega al TITULAR de todos los documentos que sean
necesarios para acreditar la finalizacion del Contrato ante la autoridad minera de la
Provincia de Jujuy, o ante terceros interesados. como asi también entregar todas las
presentaciones, comprobantes de pago. etc. gue acrediten el cumplimientio por parte del
COMPRADOR de las obligaciones asumidas en el Articulo Sexto.

3.- Evacuar las Propiedades dentro de noventa (90) dias corridos desde la fecha efectiva
de finalizacion de! Contrato y retirar de las Propiedades a su propio costo, toda la
maquinaria, hcrramientas, equipos, bienes muebles y artefactos introducidos en la
misma. A efectos de cumplimentar esta obligacion. el COMPRADOR podra acceder a
las Propiedades durante dicho periodo.

4.- Entregar al TITULAR, sin costo alguno, dentro de los noventa (90) dias corridos de
la fecha efectiva de finalizacion del Contrato. copia de todos los mapas, planos,
informes geologicos, resultados de ensayos, registros vy testigos de perforacion y otros
datos técnicos resultantes de la tarea exploratoria y de cvaluacién realizada por el
COMPRADOR. Se deja constancia que e} COMPRADOR no asume responsabilidades
futuras sobre las mismas. excepto en cuanto a su autenticidad.

ARTICULO DECIMO SEGUNDO: CONFIDENCIALIDAD.

Todo conocimiento o informacion que el TITULAR adquiera respecto de los resultados
de la exploracién realizada por el COMPRADOR, métodos aplicados, resultados de
andlisis, ensayos geoldogicos v metalirgicos, ubicacion de las perforaciones,

descubrimientos efectuados, tecnologia o inventos aplicados, o como consecuencia de
toda actividad realizada por el COMPRADOR en razén de este Contrato, serdn
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mantenidos por el TITULAR en absoluta reserva y considerados como confidenciales.
salvo que el COMPRADOR libere por escrito al TITULAR de esta obligacion. Esta
clausula de confidencialidad serd valida durante toda Ia vigencia de este Contrato, y
hasta dos (2) afios despugs de ser ejercida la Opcién de Compra.

ARTICULOQO DECIMQO TERCERO: FUERZA MAYOR.

Ninguna de las partes sera responsable por dejar de cumplir sus obligaciones bajo este
Contrato cuando ello fuera debido a caso fortuito o filerza mayor, como ser y sin que
ello implique limitacién: hechos extraordinarios de la naturaleza; leyes, normas,
ordenanzas, o requerimientos de cualquier autoridad estatal, sentencias o decisiones
Jjudiciales que impidan o alteren de manera sustancial la ejecucion de este contrato;
hecho de guerra o situaciones provocadas por insurreccién o rebelion, conflictos
laborales entre el COMPRADOR Yy sus trabajadores en tanto dichos conflictos no sean
consecuencia de incumplimientos de las obligaciones legales o contractuales del
COMPRADOR; conflictos con la comunidad que impidan realizar trabsjos en las
Propiedades, siempre que dichos conflictos no hayan sido generados por una actividad
ilegal del COMPRADOR. La parte afectada debera notificar a la ofra parte sin demora
alguna acerca del hecho de fuerza mayor y de la suspensién de sus obligaciones
estableciendo la razdn de tal suspension y eventualmente su duracién estimada.

ARTiCULO DECIMO CUARTQ: CESION Y OTRAS CLAUSULAS.

.- El COMPRADOR podra ceder a favor de cualquier tercero, sus derechos y
obligaciones emanados del presente Contrato, ya sea en todo o en parte, debiendo
notificar dicha cesién al TITULAR. Ello. sin perjuicio de que el COMPRADOR (y sus
cesionarios) realizare los actos y demds actividades mencionadas en el presente
Contrato por intermedio de cualquier sociedad directa o indirectamente controlada y/o
relacionada y/o vinculada a la misma.

2.- §i la cesion por parte del COMPRADOR fuese realizada antes de transcurridos
veinticuatro (24) meses desde la firma del Contrate, el COMPRADOR requerird la
conformidad del TITULAR, no pudiendo este filtimo denegarla de manera irrazonable.

3.- Si la cesion se realizare una vez transcurridos veinticuatro (24) meses desde la firma
del Contrato, el COMPRADOR podra ceder el Contrato libremente. no siendo necesaria
la conformidad del TITULAR para realizar dicha cesion.

4.- Ninguna modificacion, enmienda o variacion en estc Contrato serd vdlida ni
comprometera a las partes a2 menos que se realice por escrito y sea suscripta por ambas
partes.

5.- Este Contrato contiene todas las declaraciones, convenios y acuerdos de las partes y
no existe ninguna declaracidn, convenio o acuerdo entre las partes respecto al objeto de
este Contrato, excepto aquéllos contenides en éste.

6.- En el caso que alguna disposicion de este Contrato sea considerada invalida, ilegal o
inexigible en algilin aspecto significativo, las partes negociaran de buena fe con miras a
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llegar a un arreglo alternativo que se aproxime a la intencidn original de las partes,
manteniendo plena vigencia fas restantes cldusulas del Contrato.

7.- Toda notificacién, reclamo u ofra comunicacion relevante a realizar en virtud de este
Contrato, se efectuard por escrito y se considerara cumplida debidamente si se hace por
correo certificado o carta documento a los siguientes domicilios:

El COMPRADOR

Meryllion Argentina S.A.

Maipa 1210, piso 5°

Ciudad Auténoma de Buenos Aires
Tel/Fax: +54 11 4891 2700

EL TITULAR

Humberto Julio Cénepa
Santiago del Estero 821 Piso 1°
Salta Provincia de Salta
Tel/Fax: +54 387 421 4188

Cada parte podrd cambiar de domicilio, nimero de fax o nimero de teléfono.

comunicandolo por escrito por medio fehaciente a la otra parte.

ARTICULO DECIMO QUINTO: CESION DE LAS PROPIEDADES MINERAS
POR PARTE DEL TITULAR.

1.- Las Partes acuerdan que el TITULAR podra ceder, durante la vigencia del presente
Contrato las Propiedades tnicamente a una sociedad que serd creada al solo efecto de
ser titular de dichas Propiedades (la “Sociedad™), siempre y cuando el TITULAR se
encuentre vinculado directa o indirectamente con la Sociedad. Dicha cesion deberd ser
notificada por escrito por medio fehaciente al COMPRADOR.

2.- En caso de que el TITULAR ceda las Propiedades a la Sociedad, esta Gltima sera
considerada a los efectos del presente Contrato como el TITULAR, asumiendo la
Sociedad todos los derechos y obligaciones previstos en el presente Contrato para el
TITULAR, siendo la Sociedad responsable ante el COMPRADOR por los dafios ¥
perjuicios que pudiera sufrir ante cualquier incumplimiento del presente Contrato.-

3.- En caso de que se realice la cesion antes indicada, todos los pagos realizados por el
COMPRADOR al TITULAR anteriores a la fecha efectiva de la cesion se consideraran
como realizados a la Sociedad, no teniendo la Sociedad nada que reclamar al
COMPRADOR por dicho conceplo. Asimismao, aquellos pagos previstos en el presente
Contrato que sean de fecha posterior a la cesion de las Propiedades por parte del
TITULAR a la Sociedad, deberdn ser realizados por ¢! COMPRADOR a Ja Sociedad a
eleccion de esta tltima en su cardcter de nuevo TITULAR, con cheque librado a la
orden del TITULAR, con fecha de pago igual al vencimiento establecido, o por
transferencia bancaria a la cuenta bancaria que ¢l TITULAR designe. £l TITULAR
indicara en forma fehaciente al COMPRADOR y con quince (15) dias de antclacion, la
modalidad de pago por la que opte y en su caso, la cuenta bancaria correspondiente. En
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reatizado, tendrd el valor de recibo de pago.

4.- Para el supuesto caso en que el TEITULAR ceda las Propiedades a la Sociedad de
acuerdo a los términos previstos en el presente articulo, la Sociedad deberd cumplir con
la inhibicion prevista en el articulo Séptimo, y gestionar el poder previsto en el articulo
Octavo del presente Contrato.

5.-Las Partes acuerdan que la Sociedad no podra, salvo autorizacion expresa del
COMPRADOR, ceder las Propiedades.

6.- Para que sea valida la cesion de las Propiedades, el TITULAR deberd denunciar al
COMPRADOR los datos de la Sociedad y de sus accionistas, quienes gravaran. a favor
de Meryllion Argentina S.A., con un derecho real de prenda en primer grado de lugar y
privilegio el 100% de las acciones de la Sociedad que sean suscriptas (ya sea, al
momento de la constitucién de la Sociedad o en ocasiones posteriores, cualquiera fuera
el concepto de la suscripcidn, ya sea que se trate de los accionistas originarios o de
cualquier otro tercero que ingrese como accionista a la Sociedad) (la “Prenda™). La
Prenda deberd ser dejada sin efecto una vez que el COMPRADOR notifique al
TITULAR y/o la Sociedad y a sus accionistas el ejercicio de la Opcién de Compra
previsto en el articulo Noveno o producida la finalizacion del presente Contrato de
acuerdo a los términos previstos en el articuto Décimo.

7.- En oportunidad de efectuarse la cesitn de las Propiedades a la Sociedad, la Sociedad
y sus accionistas deberan firmar una copia del presente Contrato prestando su plena
conformidad a los términos aqui previstos. Asimismo, los accionistas de la Sociedad
deberan manifestar que: (i} la Sociedad fue constituida con el dnico objecto de ser titular
de las Propiedades; (ii) la Sogiedad no cederé las Propiedades: (iii) no endeudaran a la
Sociedad; y (iv) mantendran vigente la titularidad de [a Sociedad sobre las Propiedades.

8.- Al momento del ejercicio de la Opcidn de Compra, para el supuesto casc que las
Propiedades hayan sido cedidas por el TITULAR a la Sociedad, y siempre que del Due
Diligence previsto en el articulo 5 inciso 3 surja que: (i) la Sociedad no tiene deuda
alguna y que mantiene vigente a su nombre la titularidad de las Propiedades; y (ii) los
accionistas de la Sociedad que fueran denunciados al COMPRADOR al momento de la
cesion de las Propiedades por parte del TITULAR a la Sociedad. no han transferido las
acciones que tienen en la Sociedad,; en lugar de solicitar la cesion de las Propiedades se
transferiran las acciones de dicha sociedad.

9.- Con respecto a la Regalia del 1,5% del NSR, las partes acuerdan que si el TITULAR
cediere las Propiedades a la Sociedad, la Regalia del 1,5% del NSR no seré cedida a la
Sociedad, correspondiendo el derecho sobre la Regalia del 1,5% del NSR a los
accionistas de la Sociedad denunciados.

ARTICULO DECIMO SEXTO: DECLARACIONES Y GARANTIAS.

I.- E} COMPRADOR manifiesta y garantiza al TITULAR que:
a.- El COMPRADOR es una empresa debidamente constituida, organizada y vigente de
acuerdo a las leyes de Argentina.
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b.-aE] COMPRADOR tiene plenas facultades y competencia para contraer y cumplir
con sus obligaciones bajo este Contrato y cualquier documento o instrumento que deba
otorgarse de conformidad con lo estipulado en este Contrato.

¢.- Et COMPRADOR tiene la capacidad técnica y econdmica-financiera para llevar
adelante la exploracién comprometida y dar cumplimiento a las obligaciones asumidas
en este Contrato,

d.- El COMPRADOR cumplira con la totalidad de los trémites vinculados con las leyes
ambientales respecto de las actividades de exploracién que realice de conformidad con
este Contrato. El COMPRADOR no sera responsable por los dafios ambientales, ni de
cualquier otro tipo, de causa anterior a la entrada en vigencia del presente Contrato, ni
de causa posterior a la finalizacion del mismo,

2.- Et TITULAR manifiesta y garantiza al COMPRADOR:

a.- Que los derechos sobre las Propiedades pertenecen en forma exclusiva al TITULAR
y que de tal manera estdn inscriptas en los registros pertinentes de la propiedad minera.
b.- Que los derechos de las Propiedades se encuentran vigentes v con todos los Pagos al
dia.

c.- El TITULAR tiene derecho exclusivo a celebrar y llevar a cabo este Contrato el cual
lo obliga y le es exigible de acuerdo con sus términos.

d.~ Que no existen inhibiciones ni prohibiciones ni gravamenes sobre el TITULAR; que
las Propiedades se encuentran libres de gravamenes, hipotecas, usufructos, contratos
mineros de cualquier indole que graven su existencia o produccién, presente o futura,
embargos, imposiciones, inhibiciones, cargas o restricciones. conforme surge de los
antecedentes obrantes ante la autoridad minera de la Provincia de Jujuy, lo que serd
comprobado por el COMPRADOR durante el proceso de “Due Diligence™ y/o auditoria.
e.- Que no existen otros acuerdos o contratos respecto de las Propiedades u oposiciones,
relativos a la exploracion o explotacién de las Propiedades de los que el TITULAR
tenga conocimiento.

f.- Que de acuerdo con su conocimiento e informacion, no existen: (i) acciones legales
pendientes o por iniciarse, demandas, reclamos o disputas relacionados con las
Propiedades 0 que pueda afectar su titularidad. su vigencia o legitimidad; (i)
circunstancias de las cnales pueda derivar la nulidad o caducidad de las Propiedades.

3.- Las manifestaciones y garantias establecidas en los parrafos precedentes han sido
ponderadas por las partes suficientemente.

4.- La esposa del Sr. Humberto Julio Canepa, Sra. Claudia Maria Alderete, presta su

conformidad conyugal en los términos del Art. 1277 del Cédigo Civil, firmando el
presente Contrato,

ARTICULO DECIMO SEPTIMO.

Las partes acuerdan que tanto los Considerandos, ¢l Contrato, sus Anexos y coalquier
modificacion que a los mismos se realice, son partes integrantes del presente Conirato.

ARTICULO DECIMO OCTAVO; JURISDICCION,
En caso de surgir desacuerdos, controversias, o conflictos respecto a la interpretacién o

cumplimiento de este Contrato, las p  es acuerdan expresamente someter toda cuestion
ante los Tribunales Ordinarios de Sa  alvador de Jujuy.

—
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EN PRUEBA DE CONFORMIDAD, ambas partes firman tres ejemplares de este
Contrato de un mismo tenor y a un solo efecto, en la Ciudad de Salta, Provincia de
Salta, Republica Argentina, el dia 04 de marzo de 2011,

E1 TITULAR

nb o Cénepa
DNIt  7.113

Et COMPRAD

Carlos Eugenio Ponte
Vicepresi énte
Meryllio  rgentina S.A.

Claudia Maria Alderete
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ANEXO I 2029

REGALIA DEL 1,5% DEL NSR

l

1. DEFINICION: “NSR” o “RETORNO NETQ DE FUNDICION” significara el
rendimiento o la ganancia neta efectivamente percibida de cualquier fuente, fundicién,
refinerfa o de la venta de los productos minerales obtenidos de las Propiedades (en
adelante “Productos Minerales”), después de haber deducido del rendimiento o ganancia
bruta, los siguientes gastos:

gastos de fundicidén y refinacién (gastos por manejo, procesamiento, suministros,
muestreo, costos de ensayos de fundicion y de ensayos arbitrales. honorarios de
representantes, arbitros, multas. mermas y cualquier otro gasto o pérdida
correspondiente al proceso de fundicidn y/o refinado);

costos de transporte (carga, flete, descarga, manipulacidon en puerto, estibaje,
sobreestadia en puertos, demoras, gastos de aduana. transaccion, manipulacién v
acarreo, y seguros) de mena, metales o concentrados de los praductos obtenidos desde
el lugar de localizacién de las Propiedades a cualquier fuente, fundicion. refinerfa o
lugar de venta;

costos de comercializacion;

costos de seguros de los Productos Minerales; v,

tasas de aduana, indemnizaciones, regalias estatales, tributos “ad valorem” y tributos en
general, ya sea los que se apliquen a la produccion o venta de los minerales o similares;
por la utilizacién de recursos naturales que existan al momento de la entrada en vigencia
de este Contrato o que cn el futuro se creen, impuestos o tasas a la exportacién e
importacion sobre los Productos Minerales pagaderos a los organismos
gubernamentales nacionales, provinciales o municipales;

las regalfas que deban pagarse a cualquier drgano o reparticion gubernamental ya sea
nacional, provincial o municipal;

gastos de administracion hasta en un 10% de los costos directos incurridos.

2. PAGO : La Regalia del 1,5% del NSR sera:

Calculada y pagada trimestralmente dentro de los cuarenta y cinco (43) dias contados a
partir del inicio del trimestre siguiente al trimestre considerado;

Cada pago de la Regalia del 1,5% del NSR sera acompafiado por un informe contable
no auditado indicando el cdlculo de la misma con detalle razonable y el TITULAR
recibirda del COMPRADOR, dentro de los tres meses de finalizado cada ejercicio
econdmico anual, un informe contable anual no auditado "ad hoc" (el "INFORME
CONTABLE ANUAL") mostrando con detalle razonable el calculo de la Regalfa del
1,5% del NSR del altimo gjercicio econdmico donde se indiquen los créditos y
deducciones agregados o deducidos de la cantidad debida al TITULAR;

Ei TITULAR tendrd cuarenta y cinco (45) dias desde el momento de recibido dicho
INFORME CONTABLE ANUAL para solicitar aclaraciones y/u objetar por escrito y
en forma fehaciente las constancias del mismo. Si el TITULAR no solicitara
aclaraciones ni objetara los asientos que surgen del INFORME CONTABLE ANUAL
dentro del plazo estipulado, seran juzgados correctos e irrecurribles después de ello;

Si el INFORME CONTABLE ANUAL fuera cuestionado por e! TITULAR, y si tales
cuestionamientos no pueden ser resueltos entre Jas Partes, el TITULAR tendra doce (12)
meses desde la fecha de recepcién del INFORME CONTABLE ANUAL para hacerlo
auditar, y los gastos de la auditoria correran, inicialmente, por cuenta del TITULAR;

Y/
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El INFORME CONTABLE ANUAL auditado serd definitivo y determinard el calculo
de la Regalia del 1,5% del NSR para ¢l periodo auditado y obligara a las Partes. En caso
de que la suma ya pagada en conceplo de Regalia del 1,5% del NSR fuera superior al
monto de la Regalia del 1,5% del NSR calculado en base al INFORME CONTABLE
ANUAL, el COMPRADOR de ducird el saldo a su favor de los futuros pagos en
concepto de Regalia del 1,5% del NSR que deba efectuar al TITULAR. Si la situacién
fuera la contraria, el COMPRADOR pagara la diferencia adeudada al TITULAR dentro
de los {60) dias de recibido el INFORME CONTABLE ANUAL auditado,

Los costos de la auditoria serdn soportados por el TITULAR si el INFORME
CONTABLE ANUAL preparado por el COMPRADOR hubiese sido preciso dentro de
un margen del cinco (5%) por ciento en mas o en menos que resulte o si sobreestimé el
monto de la Regalia del 1.5% del NSR en mas del cinco (5%) por ciento.
Contrariamente, los costos de la auditoria serdn soportados por el COMPRADOR si en
dicho INFORME CONTABLE ANUAL se subestimé el monto de la Regalia del 1,5%
del NSR en mas del cinco (5%) por ciento. Si el COMPRADOR fuera el obligado a
pagar la auditoria, reembolsara inmedialamente al TITULAR todos los gastos de
auditoria que éste hubiera pagado por adelantado. EI TITULAR estard facultado para
examinar, con aviso previo razonable y dentro de horario normal de trabajo, los libros ¥
archivos que sean razonablemente necesarios para verificar el pago de la Regalia del
1,5% del NSR pericdicamente, sicmpre y cuando dichos examenes no interfieran o
dificulten las operaciones o procedimientos llevados adelante por el COMPRADOR,;

3. OPERACION: El COMPRADOR mantendra en todo momento el derecho exclusivo
a tomar, a su sola discrecion, todas las decisiones correspondientes a la operacion de las
Propiedades, incluyendo, sin que implique limitacion, lo relativo a: (i) los métodos, tipo
y extension de la actividad minera en las Propiedades y de los procesos que aplique a
los minerales, menas, metales, concentrados y a los Productos Minerales; (ii) la
comercializacién de dichos minerales, menas, metales. concenirados y a los Productos
Minerales; y (iii) la duracidn, suspension, interrupcidn o cesacidn de la operacion.
Consecuentemente, lo expuesto en este Anexo no modifica ni implica renuncia ni
otorgamiento parcial o total al TITULAR, de los derechos y facultades que
corresponden al COMPRADOR para decidir a su solo criterio todo lo relativo a la
operacion de las Propiedades de acuerdo con esie Contrato, ni de los que le
correspondan al COMPRADOR como titular de las Propiedades, en caso de ejercer la
Opcidn de Compra.

4, ADQUISICION: La Regalia del 1.5% del NSR dejard de ser pagada si el
COMPRADOR adquiriera, en cualquier momento, ¢l derecho a percibir la Regalia del
1,5% del NSR mediante el pago de: (i) tres Millones de dolares estadounidenses (USS
3.000.000) unicamente si menos de cincuenta millones (50.000.000) de onzas de Plata
son estimadas/calculadas en las Propiedades Mineras por un consultor independiente de
acuerdo a las mejores practicas de la industria; 6 (ii) Dos Millones de Dolares
Estadounidenses (U$S 2.000.000) si mas de cincuenta millones (56.000.000) de onzas
de Plata son estimadas/calculadas en las Propiedades Mineras por un consultor
independiente de acuerdo a las mejores practicas de la industria.

/
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INHIBICION VOLUNTARIA
AUTORIDAD MINERA DE JUJUY

En mi cardcter de titular de los derechos y propiedades mineras que mas adelante se
detallan, (en adelanie el TITULAR) informo ante la Autoridad Minera de la Provincia
de Jujuy, ante Meryllion Argentina S.A., y ante quién corresponda lo siguiente:

Que el TITULAR ha firmado con fecha 04 de marzo de 2011 un contrato de
exploracién con opcién de compra a favor de Meryllion Argentina S.A. y/o sus
sociedades controladas, relacionadas y/o vinculadas y/o sus cesionarios (en adelante, el
COMPRADOR) (en adelante el Contrato), y que por tanto me inhibo voluntariamente
de realizar actos de disposicion y/o gravamen respecto de la Mina La Providencia,
con concesion otorgada en el Expediente N° 1531 C/1977 del luzgado Administrativo
de Minas de Jujuy, y respecto del pedimento Minero con tramite en el Expediente N°
278 C/1997 del mismo Juzgado Administrativo de la Provincia de Jujuy v/o las
propiedades que los reemplazaran en el futuro (en adelante, las Propiedades).
Consecuentemente, el TITULAR no podra realizar. entre otros, los siguientes actos:
vender, transferir, hipotecar, ceder, arrendar, constituir servidumbres, formar grupos
mineros, compafifas de minas, tomar y/o constituir avios y/o los derechos sobre las
mismas y/o constituir cualquier clase de derechos personales y/o reales directa y/o
indirecta sobre las Propiedades, y/o cualquier acto que directa y/o indirectamente
implicara la desposesién material y/o juridica de las Propiedades.

Que la presente inhibicién no impide Ia cesion de las propiedades mineras involucradas,
en los términos y con las condiciones previstas en el articulo Decimoquinto del contrato
aludido.-

Que la inhibicion se otorga a favor del COMPRADOR con el objeto de garantizar el
cumplimiento de las obligaciones asumidas por el TITULAR en el Contrato.

Que la inhibicién se mantendrd vigente durante todo ¢l periodo de tiempo en que las
obligaciones asumidas y/o las garantias otorgadas. por el TITULAR a favor del
COMPRADOR se encontraran pendientes de cumplimiento.

Como consecuencia de lo expuesto, solicitamos quc se inscriba la presente inhibicién
voluntaria ante todos los registros correspondientes de la autoridad minera de la
Provincia de Jujuy, en los siguientes expedientes:

- La Providencia, Expediente Nro. 1531 C/1977
- M. Tola, Expediente Nro, 278 C/1997

En prueba de conformidad, a los 04 dias del mes de Marzo de 2011 se firman (3)
ejemplares de un mismo tenor y a un mismo efecto.
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En la Ciudad de Salta, Capital de la Provincia del mismo nombre, Repuiblica Argentina:h:

s a diez dias del mes de marzo del afo dos mil once, en mi caracter de Escriband?‘\'*k;

16.307.113 Y Carlos Eugenio PONTE, DNI N°® 23.746.120, personas a las qu

. ) 26.140, con los respectivos Documentos de Identidad que tuve a mi vista; y han si

1

-
(23]

huar i

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

% Inspeccién General de Justicia bajo el numero 21860, del libro 52 de Sociedades po

Adjunto del Registro Numero Veintiocho, sin haber intervenido en la confeccién de

escritura publica numero mil seiscientos cuarenta y dos, de fecha veintiocho de octubr N

;- SR

instrumento, CERTIFICO: Que-las firmas estampadas en el documento adjunto que ligg
con esta foja: Contrato de Exploracién con Opcion de Compra, son auténticas d

Claudia Maria ALDERETE, DNI N° 16.617.630, Humberto Julio CANEPA, DNI NS’

identifique conforme al inciso c) Articulo 1.002 del Cédigo Civil, modificado por Ley

weatabuiar

puestas en mi presencia en dicho instrumento y en Acta nimeros 1378, 1379 v 138 B
Folios 230 vuelta, respectivamente del Libro de Registro de firmas Numero uno. Claudia-
Maria Alderete y Humberto Julio Canepa actian por derecho propio haciéndolo Carl

Eugenio Ponte en nombre y representacién de MERYLLION ARGENTINA SA, CUIT
30-71162871-8, con domicilio en cafle Maipa mi! doscientos diez, piso cinco de la ciuda ~d

Autbnoma de Buenos Aires, conforme contrato de estatuto social constituide p ”:3

IORS

de dos mil diez, ante el escribanc Joaquin Esteban Urresti, titular del registro numerg
quinientos uno de la ciudad de Buenos Aires, Legalizada en el Colegio de Escribanos

la Ciudad de buenos Aires de fecha nueve de marzo de dos mil once, inscripta en | ~-\>,c,‘;

-

21 Acciones de fecha veintitrés de noviembre de dos mil diez, documentos habilitantes q ;

tengo a la vista y contienen facultades suficientes para este acto, doy fe.
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LEGALIZACIONES

EL COLECIO DE ESCRIBANOS DE LA PROVINCIA DE SALTA. REPUBLICA ARGENTINA,
EN YIRTUD DE LAS FACULTADES QUE LE CONFIERE LA LEY N° 5343

CERTIFICA

QUE LA FIRMA Y SELLO DEI ESCRIBANO DON: -

LUIS M. CALVIMONTE DURAN CANELAS ———— s — -

OBRANTES EN EL DOCUMENTO ANEXO QUE LLEVA EL
A 00208620

DE LEGALIZACIONES . SON AUTENTICOS.
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SWORN TRANSLATION

(The pages are stapled together and at their junction there appear two seals that
respectively read: Luis M. Calvimonte Duran Canelas. Notary Public. Notarial Registry
28- Salta; Notaries Association- Salta. On the botiom margin of each page there appear
three illegible signatures)

EXPLORATION AGREEMENT WITH OPTION TO PURCHASE -—-—--—— —

This Agreement is entered into by and between Humberto Julio Canepa, holder of
National Identity Document 16,307,11, with legal domicile and domicile ad litem at
Santiago del Estero 821, 1* Floor, City of Salta, Province of Salta, Republic of
Argentina, hereinafter referred to as the “OWNER?”, and Mr. Carlos Eugenio Ponte, in
his capacity as Vice President of MERYLLION ARGENTINA S.A., with legal
domicile at Maiptt 1210, 5th Floor, City of Buenos Aires, hereinafter the
“PURCHASER™:

WHEREAS: -

1. Mr. Humberto Julio Canepa holds title to the mine named “LA PROVIDENCIA”
comprising one mine claim covering an area of one hundred (100) hectares for the
exploitation of gold and lead, located in the District of Susques, Province of Jujuy,
under a concession granted by the Court in Mining Administrative Matters of Jujuy,
court file 1531C/1977; furthermore Mr. Canepa has filed an application for mining
exploration concession that is currently being handled by the Court in Mining
Administrative Matters of Jujuy (court file 278C/1977, covering an area of two
thousand (2,000) hectares also located in the District of Susques, Province of Jujuy.-—--

2 For the purposes hereof, the term “Properties” shall be understood to include not only
the Properties listed in 1 above but also any other mining concession, right or title
acquired by the OWNER during the effective term of this Agreement in an area located
at least 10 kilometers from the Mina Providencia, which shall become part of the
Properties and shall be governed by the provisions of this Agreement. --

4. The PURCHASER wishes to engage in exploration tasks and evaluate the existence
of ore in the Properties with an option to acquire title thereto.

5. The OWNER wishes to grant the PURCHASER a right to explore the Properties with
an option to purchase them.

6. The PURCHASER wishes to conduct a due diligence and/or audit on the Properties
during a term of thirty (30) days counted as from the execution of this Agreement and
the OWNER wishes to grant the PURCHASER such term to conduct the requested due
diligence and/or audit.

NOW THEREFORE, the OWNER and the PURCHASER agree to enter into an
EXPLORATION AGREEMENT WITH OPTION TO PURCHASE (the
“Agreement”), which shail be governed by the following terms and conditions. ----—---
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SECTION ONE: Objective.

1. The OWNER grants the PURCHASER an irrevocable and exclusive right to audit, as
set forth in Section five hereof, survey, prospect and explore the Properties in
accordance with such method, in such manner and within such scope as the
PURCHASER may determine at his sole discretion.

2. In addition to the exploration right, the OWNER grants the PURCHASER an
irrevocable and exclusive option to purchase the Properties pursuant to the terms and
conditions set forth herein.

3. Likewise, the Parties agree that the PURCHASER shall conduct a due diligence
and/or audit on the Properties during a term of thirty (30) days to be counted as from the
date of execution of this Agreement, all the above in accordance with the terms and
conditions stipulated herein.

4, The Parties agree that the OWNER may assign, during the effective term of this
Agreement, the Properties only to a company to be organized for the sole purpose of
being the owner of such Properties, provided that the OWNER is directly or indirectly
related to the Company, all this in accordance with the provisions of Section Seven of
this Agreement,

SECTION TWO: Term.

1. The term of this Agreement shall be sixty (60) months, counted as from the execution
date hereof.

2. The PURCHASER may terminate this Agreement prior to the expiration of the Term
pursuant to the provisions contained in Section Ten.

SECTION THREE: EXPLORATION RIGHT: Payments.

In consideration for the right to audit, explore, prospect and perform any other tasks
permitted hereunder, the PURCHASER undertakes to pay the OWNER the amounts
specified below:

a.- Fifty Thousand United States dollars (US$ 50,000), which amount shall be paid
within a term of five (5) business days following the execution of this Agreement; ---—-
b.- One Hundred Thousand United States dollars (US$ 100,000) within 6 months
following the execution of this Agreement;
¢.- One Hundred and Fifty Thousand United States dollars (US$ 150,000) within 12
months following the execution of this Agreement;
d.- Two Hundred Thousand United States dollars (US$ 200,000) within 24 months
following the execution of this Agreement;
¢.- Two Hundred and Fifty Thousand United States dollars (US$ 250 000) within 36
months following the execution of this Agreement;
f.- Three Hundred Thousand United States dollars (US$ 300,000) within 48 months
following the execution of this Agreement.




The first payment set forth herein shall be made by check issued to the order of the
OWNER to be directly collected in the payor bank. The following payments shall be
made, at the OWNER's option, by check issued to its order with a payment date that
shall correspond to the maturity date or otherwise by wire transfer to the bank account
to be designated by the OWNER. The OWNER shall give notice to the PURCHASER
by sufficient means, fifteen (15) days in advance, about the terms of payment selected
and, if applicable, the data of the relevant bank account. In case of payment to the
OWNER in the bank account, the certificate of deposit in the amount paid shall be
regarded as sufficient receipt of payment.

SECTION FOUR: EXPLORATION RIGHT: Surrender of Properties, ————mee———

1.- The OWNER hereby surrenders to the PURCHASER the exclusive possession of the
Properties and the right to have access thereto.

2.- The OWNER undertakes to secure the peaceful use and possession of the Properties
by the PURCHASER and commits himself not to hinder such occupation. -—e--weeeememme

3.- During the term of this Agreement, the PURCHASER shall be authorized to perform
in the Properties all exploration and prospecting activities that the OWNER is
authorized to carry out therein pursuant to the Mining Code. The OWNER shall refrain
from engaging in mining tasks within the Properties.

4.- Provided that the environmental regulations in force are observed, THE
PURCHASER, its representatives, employees, agents, own workers or contractors shall
have the right to enter the Properties without any limitation whatsoever and may bring
into them any machinery, tooling, equipment and items as they may deem necessary or
advisable .

The PURCHASER may at any place within the Properties conduct topographic surveys,
make drillings or carry out any type of surface or underground prospecting tasks of an
exploratory or prospection nature that the PURCHASER may deem necessary at its sole
discretion; inspect and examine the land; take and test samples thereof, make all
research and exploration tasks it may deem necessary at its sole cost, such as strategic or
detail geochemistry considering bases, elements or traces, induced polarization
geophysics, magnetic surveys, or any other geophysical methods, geological/
metallurgical studies or economic surveys, as well as any other survey or test that the
PURCHASER may deem advisable to assess the economic feasibility of a mining
development in the Properties; construct and erect temporary structures and install
machinery, equipment, etc.

5.- Make pilot-scale extraction and mining tests in compliance with the environmental
regulations in force.

6.- During the term of this Agreement, the OWNER shall be entitled to check the
exploration tasks and visit the Properties and shall communicate to the PURCHASER,
five (5) business days in advance, the dates on which visits shall be made in compliance
with the safety and environmental regulations in force, as well as the intemal rules and
instructions to be imparted by Meryllion Argentina S.A.
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1.- The OWNER hereby delivers to the PURCHASER the following documentation: (i)
Certificate of Title and Good Standing for the Properties issued by the Court in Mining
Administrative Matters of the Province of Jujuy and (ii) receipt of last payment of
mining royalties for the Properties.
The OWNER guarantees that the documentation specified above represents all the
documentation in his possession in connection with the Properties.

2.- Within thirty (30) days from the execution date of this Agreement, the PURCHASER
shall conduct a due diligence and/or audit on the Properties, and the OWNER shall furnish
to the PURCHASER any authorization, and shall provide all such cooperation and
technical and documentary assistance as may be required to such end. The due diligence
shall include, without limitation, legal, technical, regulatory and environmental aspects
relating to the Properties. If from the due diligence and within the term stipulated to
therefore, any contingencies arise in connection with the Properties which may threaten or
jeopardize: (1) their legality or effectiveness; (ii) their ownership; (iii) the OWNER'S rights
thereto; or even (iv) the exercise of any right arising from this Agreement, the
PURCHASER may terminate this Agreement and no indemnification shall be payable to
the OWNER. Without detriment to the foregoing, if the PURCHASER opts to continue the
contractual relationship, it may assume all payable and liquid contingencies as may be
refated to the Propertics and that have been undertaken by the OWNER. The
PURCHASER may deduct same from the payments provided in Section 3 of these
presents, always provided that the PURCHASER had given sufficient prior notice to the
OWNER of the contingency in question and the latter had not remedied or cured it within a
term of thirty (30) days upon having received notice thereof.

3.- Should the OWNER transfer the Properties to the Company as established in section
Fifieen hereof, the PURCHASER may, at its sole discretion, conduct 2 new Due
Diligence procedure or audit in order to assess the obligations undertaken and any
indebtedness that may possibly be incurred by the Company.

SECTION SIX: EXPLORATION: PURCHASER s Covenants.

1.- The PURCHASER shall be responsible for engaging all such personnel as may be
required for the performance of this Agreement and shall, in respect of such personnel,
strictly perform its obligations under current labor and social security laws. The
PURCHASER undertakes to hold the OWNER harmless from and against any labor or
social security claims deriving from the hiring of such personnel. Furthermore, the
Parties represent that the PURCHASER may engage the services of independent
contractors to perform the works stipulated in this Agreement.

2.- During the term of this Agreement, the PURCHASER undertakes:
a.- To pay the mining fees and to make all payments related to the Properties and the
mining rights inherent thereto, and to keep the Properties and such mining rights in
good standing and condition.
b.- To comply with any and all obligations provided in this Agreement, the laws or
regulations applicable to its business.
c.- To make an aggregate minimum investment in the Properties of Fifty thousand
United States dollars (US$ 50,000) during the first year and of One hundred thousand




United States dollars (US$ 100,000) during the second year. Furthermore, in subsequent
years, the PURCHASER shall make all such investments as may be appropriate to
comply with the requirements of the mining authority, those stipulated in the regulations
in force as well as those required on the basis of progress of works in the Properties.
Investment shall be understood to include all expenses related to the subject-marter of
this Agreement and the Properties, including payment of mining fees, expenses directly
related to the Properties, such as employees’ travel and accommodation expenses,
exploration task expenses, such as general samplings, geologic mapping, opening of
prospect pits, topographic surveys, drillings, geophysics, forwarding and analysis of
samples and metallurgic tests, including all other mining exploration tasks. The term
“investment” shall also be understood to include all expenses originating in the
exploration office as a result of the requirements of exploration tasks performed in the
Properties. The above enumeration is not restrictive and shall include other expenses
originating directly in the Properties.
d.- To deliver on an annual basis to the OWNER a technical report on tasks performed
and a financial and economic report on investments made.

SECTION SEVEN: EXPLORATION: OWNER’s Covenants.

1.- During the term of this Agreement, the OWNER undertakes:
a.- Not to hinder the performance of exploration activities by the PURCHASER.----e--
b.- To allow the PURCHASER to remove within ninety (90) days following the
expiration of the effective term of this Agreement or the termination hereof, as
applicable, all mechanical items, machinery in general, mobile camps, constructions and
appurtenances that the PURCHASER may have erected, installed or contributed, save
for permanent fixtures located within the Properties.
¢.- To deliver to the PURCHASER all appropriate documents and/or instruments and
render all such cooperation as may be required for the performance of the activities
stipulated in this Agreement.

2.- The rights granted hereunder by the OWNER to the PURCHASER are exclusive and
irrevocable under this Agreement. The OWNER hereby undertakes to voluntarily
refrain from carrying out during the term of this Agreement, any acts of disposal or
administration and further undertakes to refrain from furnishing any guarantees and/or
setting up any kind of liens on the Properties, irrespective of the nature thereof,
including, without limitation, sales, transfers under any title, leases, mortgages,
usufructs, assignments and taking out loans.
3.- The OWNER shall execute a document to be filed with the mining authority of the
Province of Jujuy requesting the recording of the aforementioned restraint. Such
restraint shall remain effective during the term of this Agreement but may be released
unilaterally by the OWNER in case of termination of the Agreement under Section 11.

4.- Should the PURCHASER opt to purchase the Properties but transfer thereof cannot
be effected before the expiration of the restraint term and of the effective term of this
Agreement for reasons attributable to the OWNER, then the OWNER shall request the
mining authority to record an extension of such term until transfer can be effected and,
for such purpose, the OWNER irrevocably authorizes the PURCHASER to request such
extension in its name and on its behalf,
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Tmiﬁ. The Parties agree that the PURCHASER shall not assume liability for any debt,
obligation or claim arising prior to the date of execution of this Agreement and it shall
only be liable for debts, obligations or claims deriving from PURCHASER's
performance or that of its personnel and contractors as from the effective date of this
Agreement.

SECTION EIGHT: EXPLORATION: Powers.

1.- The OWNER undertakes to carry out all such formalities as may be requested by the
PURCHASER in connection with the Properties before the Mining Authority of the
Province of Jujuy. For such purpose, the OWNER shall grant a Special power of
attorney for Mining matters in favor of Mr. Carlos Martin Ramos, holder of National
ldentity Document (DNI) 13,726,465 andfor whomever he may designate, who shall be
empowered to maintain the Properties in good standing, camry out all legal and
administrative formalities as may be required, examine and verify the relevant dossiers,
move the proceedings forward and preserve good standing of the Properties and title
thereto. Expenses and/or fees to be paid to Mr. Ramos on any accounts shall be borne
by the PURCHASER.
2.- The Parties agree that the PURCHASER shall reserve its right to register this
Agreement before the Mining Authority of the Province of Jujuy.
3.- As concerns payment of any tax or rate due and payable in connection with the
registration of this Agreement before the Mining Authority of the Province of Jujuy,
the Parties agree that such taxes and/or rates shall be fully paid by the PURCHASER. --

4.- Upon registration of this Agreement before the Mining Authority of the Province of
Jujuy, the PURCHASER may file all such petitions as it may deem advisable, it being
empowered, for instance, to request easements, unclaimed spaces between mines, and
mine claim surveys, and to perform tasks to evidence the existence of deposits and
verify their orientation, significance or grade (“labor legal”), etc. Likewise, the
PURCHASER shall have broad powers to maintain and manage the Properties, make all
the necessary payments, including mining fees, and perform all the required obligations
pursuant to the laws in force.
The OWNER undertakes to fully cooperate with the PURCHASER 1o allow it to carry
out all acts required under this Agreement in connection with the Properties and, in
particular, in the event there should be any claims from third parties against the
Properties, be they court, administrative or out-of-court. The OWNER shall place at the
disposal of the PURCHASER all the documents and information available to allow the
most complete and appropriate defense of the rights arising from this Agreement, +---—-

SECTION NINE: OPTION TO PURCHASE: Exercise: ---------— -

1.- The PURCHASER may exercise by itself and/or through any company directly or
indirectly controlied by and/or related to the PURCHASER, at its own discretion, the
option to purchase one hundred percent (100%) of the Properties (the “Option to
Purchase™), at any time following the effective date of this Agreement. For that purpose,
the PURCHASER shall notify the exercise of the Option to Purchase to the OWNER,
by authentic means and in writing, stating on that occasion the name of the company to
which the OWNER shall transfer title to the Properties.

2.- In the event the PURCHASER exercises the Option to Purchase, it shall pay the
OWNER as price for the purchase of one hundred percent (100%) of the Properties (i)




the amount of Nine hundred and fifty thousand United States Dollars (US$ 950,000), if -

less than fifty million (50,000,000) Silver ounces are estimated/calculated in the
Propertics by an independent consultant in accordance with best practices in the
industry, or (ii) the amount of one million nine hundred and fifty thousand United States
Dollars (US $1,950,000) if more than fifty million (50,000,000} Silver ounces are
estimated/calculated in the Properties by an independent consuitant in accordance with
best practices in the industry (any of them, as pertinent, the “Purchase Price™), which
amount shall be paid upon execution of the Properties’ title deed. The OWNER may
review, at his cost, the estimate made by appointing another consultant of his choice fo
whom the PURCHASER and the consultant that made the first estimate should provide
such information as may be sufficient and necessary.

3. The PURCHASER shall have a term of 60 months following the date of execution
hereof to exercise the Option to Purchase. 1f the PURCHASER decides to exercise the
Option to Purchase before the expiration of the terms established in section Three
hereof, the PURCHASER shall pay the OWNER all the amounts established in section
Three that have not been paid as of the date the Option to Purchase is exercised,
together with any amount payable in accordance with this Section,

4_- In addition to the above-mentioned payments and those established in Section Three
hereof, should the PURCHASER exercise the Option to Purchase and provided that the
Properties are placed into commercial production, the OWNER shall be entitled to
collect 1.5% of the NSR (NET SMELTER RETURN) (such right is referred to herein as
the “1.5% NSR royalty™), as established in Annex 1. Payments of this 1.5% NSR royalty
shall be made within thirty (30) days following the expiration of the six-month term,
counted as from the commencement of commercial production on the Properties. All the
foregoing without detriment to what is stipulated in paragraph 7 of this Section, in the
event the Properties are not placed into commercial production within a term of three
(3) years following the exercise of the Option to Purchase.

5.- The OWNER shall be entitled to appoint an auditor to review the calculation of the
1.5% NSR Royalty, all in accordance with the provisions of Annex 1 to this Agreement.

6.- The PURCHASER shall have the right to acquire, at any time, at its own discretion,
such 1.5% NSR royalty for the single and aggregate amount of (i) US$ 3,000,000
(United States Dollars Three Million) only if less than fifty million (50,000,000) Silver
ounces are estimated/calculated at the time the Option to Purchase is exercised as set
forth in paragraph 2 of Section Nine or (ii) US$2,000,000 (United States dolars two
million) if more than fifty miflion (50,000,000) Silver ounces are estimated/calculated
in the Properties at the time the Option to Purchase is exercised as set forth in paragraph
2 of Section Nine.
The OWNER accepts and grants the PURCHASER the aforementioned right, knowmg
that its right to collect the 1.5% NSR royalty is conditional upon the Properties’
commencing commercial production, without detriment to the provisions of paragraph 7
of this Section.

7.- In the event three (3) years have elapsed since the date of exercise of the Option to
Purchase without the Properties commencing commercial production (hereinafter, the
“Third Anniversary”), the OWNER shall have the right to receive the amounts specified
below:

St
LT BP\S
O GLES
\:va ‘362
a029




(AOVGA tEC
PRAD. PUB.
LR - f

MAT.

a.~ Fifty thousand United States Dollars (US$ 50,000) one year after the Third
Anniversary.
b.- One hundred thousand United States Dollars (US$ 100,000) two years after the
Third Anniversary.
¢.- One hundred and fifty thousand United States Dollars (US$ 150,000) three years
after the Third Anniversary.
d.- Two hundred thousand United States Dollars (US$ 200,000) four years after the
Third Anniversary,
e.~ Two hundred and fifty thousand United States Dollars (US$ 250,000) five years after
the Third Anniversary.
f.- Two hundred and fifty thousand United States Dollars (US$ 250,000) in each one of
those years following the end of the term of five (5) years afier the Third Anniversary,
until reaching the amount set forth in Section 9, paragraph 6, (i), as a result of
summing up all amounts paid in that regard.

The amounts referred to in Section 9.7, (a) through (f) that had been paid to the
OWNER shall be, at the PURCHASER s option: (i) annually discounted from the 1.5%
NSR Royalty. Once the aggregate amounts paid are discounted, the 1.5% NSR Royalty
shall be paid as stipulated in this Section and Annex I to the Agreement or (ii) allocated
and deducted from the purchase price of the 1.5% NSR Royalty stipulated in Section
9.6.

8.- The deed in favor of the PURCHASER shall be executed within sixty (60) calendar
days as from the date on which notice of the exercise of the Option to Purchase was
given by the PURCHASER before the notary public appointed by it. The expenses
entailed by the transfer of the Properties to the PURCHASER, including stamp tax,
shal] be borne by the PURCHASER. In the event the deed is not executed within the
referred term due to the OWNER’s fault, the PURCHASER may, at its sole discretion,
demand the execution of such instrument or render this Agreement terminated, and in
either case the PURCHASER shall be entitled to collect the relevant damages. —-ww-vmn

9.- All payments set forth in this Section shall be made, at the OWNER’s option, by
check issued to his order with a payment date that shall correspond to the maturity date
or otherwise by wire transfer to the bank account to be designated by the OWNER. The
OWNER shall give notice to the PURCHASER by sufficient means, fifteen (15) days in
advance, about the terms of payment selected and, if applicable, the data of the relevant
bank account. In case of payment to the OWNER in the bank account, the certificate of
deposit in the amount paid shall be regarded as sufficient receipt of payment, --—-—-n-em-

SECTION TEN: TERMINATION OF THE AGREEMENT.

1. Termination by the PURCHASER.

a) During the effective term of these presents, the PURCHASER may at any time
unilaterally terminate this Agreement, provided it is not then in default with respect to
the payments for the exploration right committed under Section Three, it having to
serve notice of such decision on the OWNER, by authentic means. In such case, this
Agreement shall be terminated and ineffective, and such termination shall not give rise
to any liability or compensation, be it for damages resulting from breach of contract,
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loss of profit or otherwise, in favor of the OWNER, who shall retain for his exclusive
benefit, as total, sole and final compensation, those payments made and collected as of
termination.

b) As from the termination effective date, the PURCHASER shall not be bound 1o make
any additional payments that become due under Section Three hereof. ----—s—eeemmm- -

¢) Should there be any mining fees, duties or other payments outstanding as of the
termination date, either directly or indirectly related to the Properties, their maintenance,
granting proceedings, etc., the PURCHASER shall pay the OWNER a proportional part
of the sums due for the pertinent calendar year until the termination date of the
Agreement.

In no circumstance shall such termination result in the OWNERs right to claim any
amount or compensation whatsoever or the PURCHASER's right to claim the
reimbursement of payments made.

2. Termination by the OWNER and other rights of the QWNER.

In the event that the PURCHASER fails to make the payments established in Section
Three as they become due, or if it has exercised the Option to Purchase, but fails to pay
the Purchase Price for the Properties in the agreed upon terms or fails to discharge its
obligations under this Agreement, the OWNER may demand fulfillment of the relevant
obligation under the Agreement by the PURCHASER by giving it authentic notice in
writing requesting the PURCHASER to make the relevant payment or discharge its
obligation within thirty (30) calendar days. If, upon the elapsing of such term of thirty
(30) days, the obligation remains unfulfilled, then the OWNER may choose to demand
performance or terminate the Agreement. In both cases the OWNER may bring the
relevant legal actions and claim the payment of such damages he may evidence he has
sustained.

SECTION _ELEVEN: CONSEQUENCES ARISING FROM _ THE
TERMINATION OF THE AGREEMENT.

As from the termination effective date, the Agreement shall become ineffective for the
parties, except for the confidentiality obligations established in Section Twelve, ——-——-

Upon termination of the Agreement for any of the causes established hereinabove, the
PURCHASER shall:

1.- Return to the OWNER possession of the Properties, in good legal condition, without
the right to claim damages, loss of profit or any other compensation, except as
established in Section Ten, 1d).

2.- Execute, register and deliver to the OWNER all the necessary documents to
evidence termination of the Agreement before the mining authority of the Province of
Jujuy or third parties in interest, and deliver all the filings, receipts, etc. evidencing
fulfillment by the PURCHASER of the obligations assumed under Section Six. ~-e-re--s
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3.!-'“Vécate the Properties within ninety (90) calendar days following the termination
effective date of the Agreement and remove from the Properties, at its own cost, any
machines, tools, equipment, personal property and instruments brought therein. For the
purpose of fulfilling this obligation, the PURCHASER may access the Properties during
such term.

4.- Deliver to the OWNER, at no charge, within ninety (90) calendar days following the
termination effective date of the Agreement, copy of all the maps, geological reports,
assay results, records and drill cores and other technical data resulting from the
exploration and evaluation tasks performed by the PURCHASER. It is put on record
that the PURCHASER does not assume any future liability thereon, except for their
authenticity.

SECTION TWELVE: CONFIDENTIALITY.

Any knowledge or information acquired by the OWNER regarding the results of the
exploration works performed by the PURCHASER, methods applied, results of
analysis, geological and metallurgic assays, location of drillings, discoveries made,
technology or inventions applied, or as a consequence of all the activity performed by
the PURCHASER hereunder, shall be kept by the OWNER in the strictest secrecy and
shall be considered confidential, unless the PURCHASER releases the OWNER in
writing from such obligation. This confidentiality obligation shall be in force and effect
throughout the effective term of this Agreement and shall survive for two (2) years
following the exercise of the Option to Purchase.

SECTION THIRTEEN: FORCE MAJEURE.

None of the parties shall be responsible for their failure to fulfill their obligations
hereunder if such failure is due to Acts of God or force majeure events, including,
without limitation, extraordinary natural disasters; Jaws, rules, ordinances or requests
from any governmental authority, court judgments or decisions materially preventing or
altering the performance of this Agreement, acts of war or situations caused by
insurrection or rebellion, labor disputes between the PURCHASER and its employees
provided such conflicts do not originate in non compliance by the PURCHASER with
its statutory or contractual obligations; conflicts with the community that prevent the
performance of works in the Properties, always provided that such conflicts have not
arisen from any illegal activity carried out by the PURCHASER. The affected party
shall notify the other forthwith of the event of force majeure and of the suspension of
the fulfillment of his/her/its obligation, stating the reason for such suspension and its
estimated duration.

SECTION FOURTEEN: ASSIGNMENT AND OTHER PROVISIONS. —---eonme-mnn

1.- The PURCHASER shall have the right to assign to any third party, its rights and
obligations under this Agreement, cither in full or in part, by serving notice of such
assignment on the OWNER. The foregoing, tn no way detracts from the fact that the
PURCHASER (and its assignees} may perform the acts and any further activities set
forth herein through any company, directly and/or indirectly controlled and/or related
and/or affiliated to the PURCHASER.
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2.- If the assignment by the PURCHASER is implemented before the elapsing of

twenty-four (24) months after the execution date of this Agreement, the PURCHASER
shall request the OWNER’s consent, which consent should not be unreasonably
withheld.

3.- If the assignment is implemented after the elapsing of twenty-four (24) months after
the execution date of this Agreement, the PURCHASER may freely assign the
Agreement and the OWNER's consent shall not be required.

4.- No amendments, changes or alterations in this Agreement shall be valid or binding
upon the parties unless same are executed in writing and signed by both parties, -----—--

5.- This Agreement sets forth all the representations, covenants and agreements between
the parties and there are no representations, covenants or agreements between the
parties in connection with the subject-matter of this Agreement, other than those
contained herein.

6.- Should any provision of this Agreement be held invalid, illegal or unenforceable in
any significant respect, the parties shall negotiate in good faith in order to reach an
alternative agreement that may best reflect the original intent of the partics. The
remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. —-wemeomn

7.- Any notices, claims or any other material communications to be made under this
Agreement shall be made in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given
provided that same are sent via registered letter or demand letter to the following

domiciles:

If to the PURCHASER:
Meryllion Argentina S.A.
Maipi 1210, 5 floor
Buenos Aires City
Tel/Fax:: + 54 11 4851 2700

The OWNER
Humberto Julio Cénepa -
Santiago del Estero 821, Piso |
Salta- Provincia de Salta
Tel/Fax: +54 387 421 4188

Either party may change its domicile, fax or telephone number by serving the other
party prompt written notice of such change.

SECTION FIFTEEN : ASSIGNMENT OF THE PROPERTIES BY THE OWNER

1. The Parties agree that, during the effective term of this Agreement, the OWNER
may assign the Properties only to a company to be organized for the sole purpose of
being the owner of such Properties (the *Company™), provided that the OWNER is
directly or indirectly related to the Company. Such assignment shall be notified in
writing to the PURCHASER by sufficient means.
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2. If the OWNER assigns the Properties to the Company, the Company shall be
considered as the OWNER for the purposes hereof, and the Company shall assume all
rights and obligations established in this Agreement for the OWNER, the Company
being liable to the PURCHASER for damages sustained by it on account of any breach
of this Agreement.

3.- If the aforementioned assignment is effected, all payments made by the
PURCHASER to the OWNER before the effective date of assignment shall be regarded
as made to the Company and the Company shall have nothing to claim from the
PURCHASER in such connection. Likewise, such payments established herein to be
made after the assignment of the Properties by the OWNER to the Company, shall be
made by the PURCHASER to the Company, at the latter’s option in its capacity as new
OWNER by check issued to the QOWNER's order with a payment date that shall
correspond to the maturity date or otherwise by wire transfer to the bank account to be
designated by the OWNER. The OWNER shall give notice to the PURCHASER by
sufficient means, fifteen (15) days in advance, about the terms of payment selected and,
if applicable, the data of the relevant bank account. In case of payment in the bank
account, the certificate of deposit in the amount paid shall be regarded as sufficient
receipt of payment.

4. In the event that the OWNER should assign the Propertics to the Company as
established in this section, the Company shall comply with the restraint established in
section Seven and process the power of attorney mentioned in section Eight of this
Agreement.

5. The Parties agree that the Company may not assign the Properties without the express
written consent of the PURCHASER.

6. For the purpose that the assignment of Properties may be validly made, the OWNER
shall inform the PURCHASER about the data of the Company and its shareholders,
which shall set up, in favor of MeryHtion Argentina S.A., a first pledge on 100% of the
Company shares subscribed for (upon incorporation of the Company or thereafier,
whichever the nature of such subscription, by these two shareholders or any third party
that becomes a shareholder of the Company) (the “Pledge”). The Pledge shall be
released once the PURCHASER gives notice to the OWNER and/or the Company and
its shareholders of the exercise of the Option to Purchase established in section Nine or
upon termination of this Agreement in accordance with Section Ten.

7. Upon making the assignment of the Properties to the Company, the Company and its
shareholders shall sign a copy of this Agreement giving their full conformity to the
terms hereof. Likewise, the shareholders of the Company shall indicate that: (i) the
Company was organized exclusively to hold title to the Properties; (ii) the Company
shall not assign the Properties; (iii) they shall cause the Company to become indebted
and (iv) they shall maintain the Company’s title to the Properties in full force.--~-------

8. Upon exercising the Option to Purchase, in the event that the Properties had been
assigned by the OWNER to the Company and always provided that the Due Diligence
set forth in Section 5, subsection 3, evidences that: (i) the Company has no debts and
that title to the Properties remains in its name, (ii) the shareholders of the Company
disclosed to the PURCHASER upon the assignment of the Properties by the OWNER to
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the Company have not transferred their shares in the Company; instead of applying for
the assignment of the Properties, the shares of such company shall be transferred. ------ .

9. As concerns the 1.5% NSR Royalty, the parties agree that if the OWNER assigns the
Properties to the Company, the 1.5% NSR Royalty shall not be assigned to the
Company and that the right to the 1.5% NSR Royalty shall be vested in the Company’s
shareholders.

SECTION SIXTEEN: REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES.

1.- The PURCHASER represents and warrants to the OWNER that:
a.- The PURCHASER is a company duly incorporated, organized and in good standing
pursuant to the laws of Argentina.
b.- The PURCHASER has full powers and capacity to undertake and discharge its
obligations under this Agreement and any document or instrument to be executed and
delivered pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement.
c.- The PURCHASER has technical and economic-financial capacity to carry on the
committed exploration activities and comply with the obligations undertaken under this
Agreement. :
d.- The PURCHASER shall carry out all formalities required by the environmental laws
in connection with exploration activities to be performed by it in accordance with the
stipulations of this Agreement. The PURCHASER shall not be liable for any
environmental damages or any other damages whatsoever originated prior to the
execution hereof or that may have occurred after the expiration of the contractual term.-

2.- The OWNER hereby represents and warrants to the PURCHASER that; ~—--—veeveeeen-
a.- Title to the Properties is exclusively vested in the OWNER and same are recorded to
his name in the relevant registers of mining property.
b.- Title to the Properties in the name of the OWNER is ip full force and effect and all
Payments related thereto have been made to date.
c.- The OWNER has the exclusive right to execute and perform this Agreement which
is binding upon and enforceable vis-a-vis the OWNER in accordance with its terms. -—-
d.- There are no restraints, prohibitions or encumbrances concerning the OWNER; the
Properties are free from encumbrances, mortgages, usufructs, mining contracts of any
type whatsoever affecting the existence and production of the Properties, either at
present or in the future, attachments, assessments, restraints, charges or restrictions as
evidenced by the supporting documentation filed with the Mining authority of the
Province of Jujuy, which circumstances shall be ascertained by the PURCHASER
during the Due Diligence and/or audit.
e~ The OWNER has no knowledge of the existence of any other agreements or
contracts concerning the Properties or any objections to the exploration and exploitation
of the Properties.
f.- To the best of his knowledge and belief and according to information in the
OWNER s possession, there are no: (i) legal proceedings, either pending or threatencd,
complaints, claims or controversies in connection with the Properties or that may
detrimentally affect title thereto, or the validity or lawfulness thereof; (i) circumstances
that may give rise to the nullity or forfeiture of the Properties.

3.- The representations and warranties set forth in the foregoing provisions have been
sufficiently pondered by the Parties.
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4.-‘Mr. Humberto Julio Cénepa’s spouse, Mrs. Claudia Maria Alderete, renders her
consent under the terms of Section 1277 of the Civil Code by executing this Agreement.

-

SECTION SEVENTEEN,

The Parties agree that the Whereds Clauses, the Agreement and its Annexes as well as
any amendments thereto, have been made an integral part of this Agreement. ----seevmee-

SECTION EIGHTEEN: JURISDICTION.

Should any disagreements, controversies or conflicts arise in connection with the
interpretation or performance of this Agreement, the parties expressly agree to submit to
the jurisdiction of the Ordinary Courts of San Salvador de Jujuy.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, both parties execute three counterparis of this Agreement
in the City of Salta, Province of Salta, Republic of Argentina, on March 4, 2011, ~—-uee-

The OWNER
There follows an illegible signature: Humberto Julio Cédnepa -
Holder of DNI 16,307,113

THE PURCHASER
There follows an illegible signature: Carlos Eugenic Ponte
Vice President
Meryllion Argentina S.A,
There follows an illegible signature: Claudia Maria Alderete. -

ANNEX 1
1.5% NSR ROYALTY

1. DEFINITION: “NSR” or “NET SMELTER RETURN" shall mean the yield or net
profits actually obtained from any source, smelter, refinery or the sale of mineral
products from the Properties (hereinafter “Mineral Products™), after deduction of the
following costs:
smelter and refining costs (costs of handling, processing, supplies, sampling, costs of
smelter assays and umpire assays, fees of representatives, arbitrators, fines, wastage and
any other expenses or losses related to the smelter and/or refining process); ~-----------—

transportation costs (cargo, freight, off-load, port handling, stowage, port demurrage
charges, delays, customs, transaction, handling and haulage costs, and insurance costs)
of ores, metals or concentrates of products obtained from the Jocation of the Properties
to any source, smelter, refinery or point of sale;
selling costs;
insurance costs of the Mineral Products; and
customs duties, indemnifications, state royalties, ad valorem taxes and taxes in general,
either levied on the production or sale of minerals or the like; on the use of natural
resources existing on the effective date of this Agreement or that may be created in the
future, raxes or duties on the import or export of Mineral Products payable to national,
provincial or municipal governmental agencies; -
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entity;
administrative expenses up to 10% of direct costs incurred.

2. PAYMENT: The 1.5% NSR royalty shall be:

Calculated and paid on a quarterly basis within forty-five (45} days counted as from the
beginning of the quarter next following the relevant quarter;
At the time of making each payment of the 1.5% NSR royalty, an unaudited accounting
report shall be delivered containing a calculation thereof with reasonable detail and the
OWNER shall receive from the PURCHASER, within three months afier the end of
each annual fiscal year, an ad hoc unaudited annual accounting report (the “ANNUAL
ACCOUNTING REPORT”) showing with reasonable detail the calculation of the
1.5% NSR royalty of the last fiscal year showing any credits and debits added to or
deducted from the amount due to the OWNER.
The OWNER shall have forty-five (45) days afier receipt of such ANNUAL
ACCOUNTING REPORT to request clarifications andfor object in writing and by
attesting means to the contents thereof. If the OWNER fails to request clarifications or
fails to object to the entries shown in the ANNUAL ACCOUNTING REPORT within
the stated term, it shall thereafter be regarded as correct and irrefutable; —---emeemevnacannrs
If the OWNER objects to the ANNUAL ACCOUNTING REPORT and, if such
objections may not be resolved between the Parties, the OWNER shall have twelve (12)
months after receipt of the ANNUAL ACCOUNTING REPORT to have it audited.
Auditing expenses shall be initially borne by the OWNER;
The audited ANNUAL ACCOUNTING REPORT shall be final and shall constitute the
basis for calculation of the 1.5% NSR royalty due for the audited period and shall be
binding upon the Parties. If the amount already paid as 1.5% NSR royalty is higher than
the amount of the 1.5% NSR royalty calculated on the basis of the ANNUAL
ACCOUNTING REPORT, the PURCHASER shall deduct its credit balance from
future payments due to the OWNER as 1.5% NSR royalty. Otherwise, the
PURCHASER shall pay the outstanding balance to the OWNER within sixty (60) days
afier receipt of the audited ANNUAL ACCOUNTING REPORT;
The auditing costs shall be borne by the OWNER if the ANNUAL ACCOUNTING
REPORT prepared by the PURCHASER is accurate within a margin of plus/minus five
percent (5%) or if the amount of the 1.5% NSR royalty was overestimated by more than
five percent {5%). The auditing costs will be borne by the PURCHASER if the
ANNUAL ACCOUNTING REPORT underestimated the amount of the 1.5% NSR
royalty by more than five percent (5%). If the PURCHASER were bound to pay the
auditing costs, it shall immediately reimburse the OWNER for all auditing costs
advanced by it. The OWNER shall be empowered to inspect from time to time, upon
reasonable prior notice and within regular working hours, the books and files that may
be reasonably necessary to verify the payment of the 1.5% NSR royalty, always
provided that such inspections do not interfere with or hinder the PURCHASER's
operations or procedures;

3. OPERATION: The PURCHASER shall keep at all times the exclusive right to take,
at its sole discretion, all decisions related to the operation of the Properties, including.
without limitation, decisions referring to (i) the methods, types and scope of the mining
activities in the Properties and of the processes applied to minerals, ores, metals,
concentrates and Minera} Products; and (ii) the sale of such minerals, ores, metals,
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MATs Shcentrates and Mineral Products; and (ii1) the duration, suspension, interruption or

discontinuance of operations. Consequently, the provisions contained in this Annex

shall not change or imply a waiver of or a partial or total grant to the OWNER of the

rights and powers of the PURCHASER to decide, at its sole discretion, any aspect

related to the operation of the Properties under this Agreement or of the rights and

powers of the PURCHASER as owner of the Properties, if it exercises the Option to

Purchase.

4. ACQUISITION: The 1.5% NSR royalty shall not be paid if the PURCHASER
acquires, at any time, the right to collect the 1.5% NSR royalty by payment of (i) Three
Million United States Dollars (US$ 3,000,000) only if less than fifty million
(50,000,000} Silver ounces are estimated/calculated in the Properties by an independent
consultant in accordance with best practices in the industry, or (it) two million United
States Dollars (US $2,000,000) if more than fifty million (50,000,000} Silver ounces are
estimated/calculated in the Properties by an independent consultant in accordance with
best practices in the industry.

ANNEX 11
VOLUNTARY RESTRAINT
MINING AUTHORITY OF JUJUY

In my capacity as holder of rights and owner of the mining properties detailed below,
(hereinafter, the OWNER) 1 inform the following to the Mining Authority of the
Province of Jujuy, Meryllion Argentina S.A. and to whomsoever may concern: —------

On March 4, 2011 I, the OWNER, executed an exploration agreement with option to
purchase in favor of Meryllion Argentina S.A. and/or its controlled, related and/or
affiliated companies and/or its assignees (hereinafier, the PURCHASER) (hereinafier,
the Agreement), for which reason 1 voluntarily refrain from disposing of and/or setting
up any encumbrance on the Mina La Providencia, granted under concession by the
Court in Mining Administrative Matters of Jujuy, court file 1531C/1977 and in
connection with the application for mining exploration concession that is currently
being handled by the Court in Mining Administrative Matters of Jujuy (court file
278C/1977, and/or any properties that may replace same in the future (hereinafter, the
Properties). Accordingly, I, the OWNER will refrain from performing the following
acts, among others: sell, transfer, mortgage, assign, lease, set up easements, organize
mining groups, mining companies, take and/or establish loans and/or rights over the
mines and/or set up any kind of personal rights and/or rights in rem, either directly
and/or indirectly, over the Properties and/or performing any act that may, directly and/or
indirectly, result in the physical and/or legal dispossession of the Properties, ---—weenme--
This voluntary restrain does not prevent the assignment of the mining properties
involved, under the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in Section Fifteen of the
above-mentioned Agreement.
This voluntary restraint is set up in favor of the PURCHASER in order to guarantee
compliance with the obligations undertaken by the OWNER under the Agreement, —---
This voluntary restraint shall be in full force and effect for as long as the obligations
undertaken and/or guarantees fumnished by the OWNER to the PURCHASER are
pending performance.
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In view of the foregoing, we hereby request that this voluntary restraint be recorded in
the relevant registers of the mining authority of the Province of Jujuy, in connection
with the following dossiers:

- LaProvidencia, Dossier No. 1531 C/1997
- M. Tola, Dossier No. 278 C/1997 -

In witness whereof, the parties execute three (3) counterparts of these presents on March
4, 2011

There follows an illegible signature: Humberto Julio Cénepa
DNI 16,307,113
Printed seal: A page for authentication of signatures (B 00248057) is appended. ~—-—-
There is an illegible signature and a seal that reads: Luis M. Calvimonte Duran Canelas.
Notary. Notarial Registry 28. Salta

NOTARIAL SHEET — AUTHENTICATION OF SIGNATURES
B 00248057
In the City of Salta, Capital City of the Province of Salta, Republic of Argentina, on this
tenth day of March, 2011, in my capacity as Notary Public in charge of Notarial
Registry 28, without having been involved in the preparation of the instrament, | hereby
CERTIFY THAT: The signatures affixed to the appended document: Exploration
Agreement with Option to Purchase, are the true and authentic signatures of Claudia
Maria Alderete, Holder of DNI 16,617,630, Humberto Julio Cénepa, holder of DNI
16,307,113 and Carlos Eugenio Ponte, holder of DNI 23,746,120, who were identified
by me by means of their respective National Identity Documents which 1 have had
before me; the individuals named above affixed their signatures to such instrument and
to Records No. 1378, 1379 and 1380, page 230 overleaf, of the Registration of
Signatures Book No. 1, before me. Claudia Maria Alderete and Humberto Julio Canepa
acted on their own behalf and Carlos Eugenio Ponte acted in the name and on behalf of
MERYLLION ARGENTINA S.A., Holder of Exclusive Tax Identification Code No.
30-71162871-8, with domicile at Maipi 1210, 5" Floor, City of Buenos Aires, as per
the corporate by laws recorded in Notarial Deed No. 1642, dated October 28, 2010,
before Notary Public Joaquin Esteban Urresti, in charge of Notarial Registry No. 501 of
the City of Buenos Aires and authenticated by the Buenos Aires Notaries Association
on March 9, 2011, further registered in the General Inspection of Corporations under
No. 21860, Book 52 of Stock Companies, on November 23, 2010, which documentation
I have had before me and evidence that sufficient powers were granted for the execution
of these presents, all of which | attest.

There is a printed seal: NOTARIES ASSOCIATION ~SALTA

00208620 March 10, 2011
There is an illegible signature: Luis M. Calvimonte Duran Canelas. Notary Public.

Notarial Registry 28. Salta

NOTARIES ASSOCIATION OF THE PROVINCE OF SALTA
$45
AUTHENTICATION
The Notaries Association of the Province of Salta, Republic of Argentina, by virtue of
the authority granted under Law No. 5343




DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT
The signature and the seal of Notary Public Luis M. Calvimonie Duran Canelas affixed
to the appended document under Number A 00208620 — Authentication of Signatures -

are authentic
Printed seal: NOTARIES ASSOCIATION — SALTA
00208620 March 10, 2011
There is an illegibie signature: Notary Simén Dubois
First Deputy Member :
THIS IS A TRUE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH of the document written in
Spanish that I have had before me, I attest. Buenos Aires, March 23, 2011.~-----—-mmeemmv

ES TRADUCCION FIEL al inglés del documento adjunto redactado en castellano que
he tenido a la vista y al cual me remito en la Ciudad de Buenos Aires, a los 23 dias de
marzo de 201 1.

,
(ot
MONI A B ss
EL COLEGIO DE TRADUCTORES PUBLICOS TRAD. PUB. . IngLES
DE LA CIUDAD DE BUENOS AIRES 3% Ve e 262

Corresponde a la Legalizac

o
Athswneavsanwy II‘.'.I"

_FRANCO MAGGIOAaINI ¥

QP it
66779 25022
28/03/2011




COLEGIO DE TRADUCTORES PUBLICOS
DE LA CIUDAD DE BUENOS AIRES

REPUBLICA ARGENTINA
LEY 20.305

LEGALIZACION

£

Por f:presente. el COLEGIO DE TRADUCTORES PUBLICOS DE LA CIUDAD DE BUENOS AIRES,
en virtud de la facultad que le confiere el articulo 10, inc.d) de la ley 20.305, certifica Gnicamente que

la firmay el sells que aparecen en la traduccidn adjunta concuerdan con los correspondientes
alla Traductor/a Publico/a BASS!|, MONICA LUCIA

que obran en los registros de esta institucion en el folio 362 del Tomo 10 enelidioma INGLES

Legalizacion Nimero. 25022
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THE COLEGIO DE TRADUCTORES PUBLICOS DE LA CIUDAD DE BUENOS AIRES (Sworn
translators association of the city of Buenos Aires) pursuant to 20305 act, section 10, subsection d,
hereby certifies that the signature and the seal on the translation attached hereto match the sngnature
and seal of the Sworn Translator {Traductor Pablico) in our files.

THIS CERTIFICATION IS NOT VALID WITHOUT THE PERTINENT CONTROL STAMP ON THE
LAST PAGE OF THE TRANSLATION ATTACHED HERETO. .

Vu par le COLEGIO DE TRADUCTORES PUBLICOS DE LA CIUDAD DE BUENOS AIRES (Ordre de
Traducteurs Officiels de la ville de Buenos Aires), en vertu des attributions que lui ont été accordées
par l'article 10, alinéa d) de la Loi n® 20.305, pour la seule légalisation matérielle de la signature et du
sceau du Traductor Publico (Traducteur Officiel) apposés sur la traduction du document ci-joint, qui
sont conformes & ceux déposés aux archives de cette institution.

LE TIMBRE APPOSE SUR LA DERNIERE PAGE DE LA TRADUCTION FERA PREUVE DE LA
VALIDITE DE LA LEGALISATION.

Con la presente | COLEGIO DE TRADUCTORES PUBLICOS DE LA CIUDAD DE BUENOS AIRES
(Collegio dei Traduttori Giurati della Citta di Buenos Aires} ai sensi della facolta conferitagli dallarticolo
10, comma d), della Legge 20.305, CERTIFICA, esclusivamente, la firma ed il timbro del Traductor
Publico (Traduttore Giurato), apposti in calce alla qui unita traduzione, in conformita alla firma ed al
timbro depositati nei propri registri.

LA PRESENTE LEGALIZZAZIONE SARA PRIVA DI VALIDITA OVE NON VENGA TIMBRATA NELU'
ULTIMO FOGLIO DELLA TRADUZIONE.

Através da presente, o COLEGIO DE TRADUCTORES PUBLICOS DE LA CIUDAD DE BUENOS
AIRES (Colégio de Tradutores Publicos da Cidade de Buenos Aires), no uso de suas atribuicoes, de
conformidade com o artigo 10, alinea “d”, da Lei 20.305, certifica unicamente que a assinatura e o
carimbo do Traductor Publico (Tradutor Publico) que subscreve a tradugao anexa conferem com*a
assinatura e o carimbo arquivados nos registros desta instituigdo.

A PRESENTE LEGALIZAGAO SO SERA CONSIDERADA VALIDA~ COM A CORRESPONDENTE
CHANCELA MECANICA APOSTA NA ULTIMA FOLHA DA TRADUCAO

BEGLAUBIGUNG. Der COLEGIO DE TRADUCTORES PUBLICOS DE LA CIUDAD DE BUENOS
AIRES (Kammer der Vereidigten Ubersetzer der Stadt Buenos Aires), kraft der Befugnisse, die ihr
nach Artikel 10, Absd) des Gesetzes 20.305 zustehen, bescheinigt hiermit lediglich die
Ubereinstimmung der Unterschrift und des Siegelabdruckes auf der beigefugten Ubersetzung mit der
entsprechenden Unterschrift und dem Siegelabdruck des Traductor Publico (VereidigtenUbersetzers),
die in den Registern dieser Institution hinterlegt worden sind.

DIESE BEGLAUBIGUNG IST NICHT GULTIG OHNE DEN ENTSPRECHENDEN
GEBUHRENSTEMPEL AUF DEM LETZTEN BLATT DER BEIGEFUGTEN UBERSETZUNG.

- /




Schedule "E"
Amendment to the La Providencia Option Agreement (Canepa agreement),
With Translation




ARUENIES AL CONTRATO DE EXPLORACION CON OPCION A COMPRA

da se celebra entre:

SOTO U0 CANEPAL DN 1630701 domicilio legal ¥
constituido en Santiago Jd Estero 821, piso 1°. Ciudad de Salta, Provincia de Salta.
Repdblca Argenting, on adelante B "TITULAR™, por una parte; v

(i RYLLICM ARCGENTINA B.A., Carlos Eugenio Ponte, en
$U Ch mtcx de Apoderado. con domicilio lecrmdor 602, PB “BY,
Coadad w(}ﬂ()P‘*a de  Buenos Alres, ce en  adelanme ei

iPRADOR™.
CONSIDERANDO QUY

1. En fecha 10 de Marzo de 2011, las Partes han celebrado un C ato de
Exploracion con Opeion a Compra sobre las Propiedades Mineras denominadas mina
‘LA PROVIDENCIA”, concesidn otorgada por el Juzgado Administrativo de Minas de
Jujuy, tramite en expediente 1531C/1977, v el pedimento minero que tiene tramite en
expedicnte 278C/1997 del Juzgado Administrativo de Minas de la provincia de Jujuy,
ubicadas en el Departamento de Susques de la Provincia de Jujuy; (en adelante, el
“Contrato™),

2. Que con posterioridad a la ejecucion del Contrato, las Partes han decidido
modificar el plazo v los pagos a efectuarse en relacion al Contrato.

3. Teniendo en consideracion lo expuesto anteriormente, es intencion de las

dejar sentado por escrito que el Contrato con més sus anexos solosge verd
modificado en lo que refiere al plazo de duracién del Contrato y los pagos a d tuarse
en relacién al Contrato.

fn tal sentido,

"L UaEERO: Modificar el Articulo Segundo del Contrato, el cual en adelante:  edard
redactado de la siguiente manera:

TICULO SEGUNDO: Plazo.

L+ Este Contrato fendra  neia durante ochenta v cuatro (84) meses, a
partiv del 10 marzo del aito 2011 .-,



R v rescindir este Confrato, con anier eintiento
lus condiciones estipuladas en el Articulo Décimo.”

CICULG TERCERO: DERECHO DE EXPLORACION: Pa agos.

Por ol derecho de auditar. explorar, prospectar y demds trabajos gue se autorizan en
el presente Contrato, ¢f COMPRADOR va ha abonado o TITULAR res pagos. uno
de cincuenia mil dolares estadounidenses (USS 30.000). oiro de clen mil dolares
estadounidenses (US> 100.000).. v cl_tercero de cienio cincuenta mil délares
tadounidenses (LSS 136T00). v éste o™ ”k{g recibido de conformidad, guedando
pendiente que el COL WPRAIDOR e/‘%niue a favor (fc\f TITULAR los pagos que se indican
Lontinuacion:
/
a i Sefenta y cifico mil délares estadounidenses (! sf;'S 75.600) con vencimiento el 10 de
Marzo de 2(}%% ;
: N
b.- Veinticinco mil  délares e\tadoumdmsf;s (USS 25.000) con vencimiento el 10 de
Enero de 2014;

%
;
f

¢.- Cincuenta it nidenses (USS 50.000) con vencimien o el 10 de
Marzo de 2014;

d- Veinticineo mil délares estadounidenses (LSS 23.000) con vencimienio ¢l 10 de
Agosto de 2014;

e.- Cincuenta wil ounidenses (USS 30.000) con vencimiento el 10 de
Enero de 2015;

Doscientos mil dolaves estadounidenses (USS 200.000) con vencimiento el 10 de
de 2013:

.- Doscientos cincuenta mil dolares estadownidenses 50.000) con vencimiento
el 10 de Marzo de 2016, v

h.- Trescientos mil ddlares estadounidenses (US$ 300.000) con vencimiento el 10 de
Marzo de 2017;

Se deja expresamente establecido que los pagos previstos en los puntos d y ¢ de la
presente cldusula, guedan sujetos a la condicion y serdn abonados en tanfo y en
cuario, el TITULAR incorpore a los efecios del “Contrato™, lg mina Nueva
Providencia. Expediente 001-C-1998 del Juzgudo de Minas de Jujuy, sobre la cual ha
irakado embargo por créditos que se le adeudan. y se compromele a solicitar su



concesion en el momenio proce wortuno, en un todo de acuerdo y a los efectos de
lo empuludo en el Punio 2 cfl; os CONSIDERANDO del “Contrato™. En caso que el
FITUL AR obtenga la resoficion de 'mzws’;on de la mina aniedicha con posterioridad

fas el cviniy ;'i‘ en los prrtocd voe, los pagos alli establecidos se
o 10 dias de la fecha de la resolucion de

ca de piazo veneido transc

pugu  visto para realizar con fecha 10 de Marzo de 2013, se efectuard por
[P ; . . . . r '
iansferencia bancaria alasi, <2 cuenta que en este acto designa el TITULAR:

co Sarasin & Cie
de L'Université
1211 Geneva
Switzerland
SWIFT: SARACHBB
Account 1 6011408 Kasley International
Ref' At Fernando Landerer

Los pagos sucesivos seran realizados a eleccion del TITULAR, con cheque librado a

en, con fecha de pago igual al vencimiento establecido, o por transferencia

la cuenta bancaria que el TITULAR designe. Se indicard en forma

+al COMPRADOR por parte del TITULAR v con quince (15} dias de

telacién, la modalidad de pago por lu que opte y en su caso la cuenta bancaria

correspondiente. En el caso que se realice el pago con depésito bancario, la
constancia del depdsito por el monto abonadop, tendrd el valor de recibo de pago.

El pago podrd ser realizado desde una cuenta propia del COMPRADOR y/o desde
wna cuenta de MERYLLION MINERALS CORPORATION en cardcter de accionista
del COMPRADOR.”

TERCERQO: Modificar el Punto 3 del Articulo Noveno del Contrato, el cual en
adelante quedard redactado de la siguiente manera:

“3.- ELCOMPRADOR tendrd un plazo de 84 meses contados desde el 10 de marzo del
afio 2011 para hacer uso del ejercicio de la Opcidn de Compra. Para el caso en que el
COMPRADOR decida hacer uso de la Opcion de Compra previo al vencimiento de los
plazos previstos en el articulo Tercero del presente, deberd abonar al TITULAR todas
lay sumas previsias en dicho articulo Tercero que a la fecha de ejercer la Opcidn de
Compra no havan sido abonadas, ademds de la suma que corresponda de acuerdo a lo
previsio en el presente articulo.”

] s acuerdan que para todas aquellas cuestiones que no estén
p wddenda, es de aplicacion el Contrato que fuera firmado entre



En prueba de confor fmdad cada una de las Partes suseribe 3 ejemplares de un mismo
tenor y a un mismo/efecto, en la Ciudad de Salta, Repub ica de Argentina, el dfa 1 de

7
‘marzo de 2013, /7
/

i
i

Humberto | u o Canepa
DNENT 16.307.113

Carlos fiugenio Ponte
Apoderado
Meryilion Argentina S.A.
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. Enlaciudad de Salts, Capital de la Provincia del mismo nombre, Republica Argentina, a un dia

del mes de Marzo del afto dos mil trece, quien suscribe la presente, Maria Amalia MARTINEZ

TORRES, en mi cardcter de Escribana Titular del Registro Notarial nitmero ciento treinia y seis,

g} MPRA, son autenticas de g;‘geﬁorcs: Humberto julio CANEPA, argentino, Titu-
Identidad i 1o 16.307.113 y Carlos Eugenio PONTE, ar-

.
del Documento Naciong,lﬁc Identidad numero 23.746.120, personas a guienes
wiforme al Articulo 1002 del Codigo Civil, medificado por Ley N® 26.140, con los
respectivos doctimentos Nacionales de Identidad que tengo a mi vista, por haber sido puestas
i presencia en forma simulianea en el mentado instrumento v en el Libro de Registro de
s N® 17, Folio 75, Actas R° 446 y 447, doy fe; como asi también la doy de gue el sefior
Julio CARNEPA, concurre a este acto por sus propios y personales derechos; mientras

+ Carlos Eugenio PONTE. concurre a este acto en nombre y representacion de la

-

firma: “MERYLLION ARGENTINA 8.A.7, con domicilio legal en Avenida Libertador numero
602. Planta Baja “B” de Ia Cludad de Buenos Aires, Capital de la Republica Argenting; en su ca~
racter de APODERADO, acreditando la existencia de 1a sociedad. su personeria, legitimacion
habilidad suficiente para este acto con: a) Escritura Pablica nuruero mil ochocientos nueve: Po-
I Amplio de Administracién y icion, de fecha 11 de Octubre del afio 2011,
autorizada por la escribana de la Ciludad de Buenos Aires, Joagquin E. URRESTI, ¢l que fu debi-
ente legalizado por el Colegio de Escribanos de la Ciudad de Buenos Aires en igual fechas e
scripto en Registro de Mandatos de esta Provincia de Salta bajo el N 507, a Fojas 955/963,
del Tomo 603, en fecha 14 de Octubre del ano 2011, El instrumento mencionado se encuentra
a mi vista para este acto, doy fe.- La suscripta escribana deja constancia que no da fe de la for-
ma ni del contenido del acto.- Se agrega Yoja de Actuacion Especial para Certificacion de Fir-

mas al primer ejemplar numero B 00721292, al segundo ejemplar numero B 00721293 y al
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et *numero B 00721294.- Seexpide la presente en el lugar y fecha indicados ut- 4
supra.-

ansn
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[Az the botrom of the first three pages, there appear 1wo signatures. On the first pa
that reads:} NOTARIES® PUBLIC ASSOCIATION IN AND FOR SALTA; A 00258594, March 1,
2013; AUTHENTICATION. - -

[There appears a signature and a seal stamped on the reverse side of the first three pages and the
front of the following ones that reads:] MARIA AMALIA MARTINEZ TORRES, CIVIL-LAW
NOTARY PUBLIC, LICENSE # 136, SALTA -

—--ADDENBUM TO EXPLORATION AGREEMENT WITH OPTION TO PURCHASE ---

This addendum is made and entered into by and between: - «---
(i) HUMBERTO JULIO CANEPA, holder of Identity Document (D.N.1.) # 16307113, with special
domicile at Santiago del Estero 821, piso 1, City of Salta, province of Salta, Argentine Republic,
hereinafter the “OWNER?”, and ----
(it) MERYLLION ARGENTINA S.A., represented by Mr. Carlos Eugenio Ponte, in his capacity as
Attorney-in-fact, with special domicile at Av. del Libertador 602, PB “B”, City of Buenos Aires,
Argentine Republic, hereinafter, “PURCHASER”, and

1. WHEREAS, on March 10, 2011, the Parties entered into an Exploration Agreement with Option
to Purchase in relation to the Mining Properties known as “LA PROVIDENCIA” mine, the
concession whereof was granted by the Administrative Mining Court in and for the province of
Jujuy, dossier # 1531C/1977, and mining petition pending under dossier # 278C/1997 before the

Administrative Mining Court in and for the province of Jujuy, located in the District of Susques,

province of Jujuy (hereinafter, the “Agreement”);

2. WHEREAS, after the execution of the Agreement, the Parties decided to amend the term and

payment conditions under the Agreement; and




3. WHEREAS, in view of all the foregoing, the Parties desire to put on record that the Agreement

and Annexes thereto shall only be amended in connection with the term of the Agreement and

payments to be made thereunder, ~=m---mmemcreemne-

Now, therefore, the Parties hereto agree as follows: P

ONE: Article Two of the Agreement sh  beamende  read as follows: —
SARTICLE TH 2 TEET oo semsesies e mos e s s m s -5 5 0 13 o e i 0
L. This Agreement shall be valid for eighty-four (84) months as from March 10, 201 1. ~-<evmvmenvnn

2. PURCHASER may terminate this Agreement before expiration of the Term in accordance with

Article Ten. --emmeemn -

TWO: Article Three of the Agreement shall be amended to read as follows: - ~emmemmcmmm e e
“ARTICLE THREE: EXPLORATION RIGHT: Payment Conditions - -

In consideration of the right fo survey, explore, prospect and carry out other works authorized
under this Agreement, PURCHASER has already made three payments to the OWNER, to wit: one
payment of fifty thousand United States dollars (USD 50,000), a second payment of one hundred
thousand United States dollars (USD 100,000) and a third payment of one hundred and fifty
thousand United States dollars (USD 150,000), which payments have been collected by the latter in
agreement. In addition, the following amounts shall be paid by PURCHASER 10 the OWNER: -------
a. Seventy-five thousand United States dollars (USD 75, 000) payable on March 10, 2013 ~===--=vevv-
b. Twenty-five thousand United States dollars (USD 23,000) payable on January 10, 2014; -~ -=ueex
¢. Fifty thousand United States dollars (USD 50,000) payable on March 10, 2014, -awmemmemmmmsumcenan
d. Twenty-five thousand United States dollars (USD 25,000) payable on August 10, 2014; «-we-vevrem-
e. Fifty thousand United States dollars (USD 50,000) payable on January 10, 2015, —=--mreeerarenee-
[ Two hundred thousand Unired States dollars (USD 200,000) payable on March 10, 2015, «-~=rweee-
g Two hundred and fifty thousand United States dollars (USD 250,000) payable on March 10,
2016, and----- e e 2 o o o i S ——
h. Three hundred thousand United States dollars (USD 300,000) payable on March 10, 2017, -

It is expressly agreed that payments indicated in d. and e. above shall be conditional upon and shall
be made provided the OWNER incorporates, for the purposes of the “'Agreement”, the Nueva
Providencia mine, Dossier # 001-C-1998 pending before the Mining Court in and for the province

of Jujuy, on which an artachmenr has been levied for claims owed to the OWNER and the OWNER



sk
(2R R

further agrees (o request the concession thereof at the appropriate procedural time, in full
conformity with and for the purposes of Whereas Clause 2 of the Agreement”. If a resolution of
concession is issued in favour of the OWNER in connection with the aforesaid mine afier the dates

indicated in d. and e. above, payments therein stipulated shall be deemed to be in arrears after 10

s from the date of such resolution.
ment agreed 10 be made on March 10, 2013 shall be effected by wire transfer to the following

account designated By the OWNER . = e e e e e o e e

Banco Sarasin & Cie

8, Place de L' Université

1211 Geneva

Switzetland
SWIFT: SARACHBB w2 e o s i i 5 5 o
Account: 6011408 Kasley International

Ref.: At. Fernando Landerer

All subsequent payments shall be made, at the OWNER'’s option, with a check issued to his order,
bearing the expiration date as date of payment, or by wire transfer to a bank account to be
designated by the OWNER. The OWNER shall notify PURCHASER, by sufficient means and fifieen
(15) days in advance, the elected method of payment and, where applicable, the pertinent bank
account. If payment is made by bank deposit, the deposit slip indicating the amount deposited shall

be considered evidence of payment. ----

Payment may be made from PURCHASER's own account and/or from an account in the name of

MERYLLION MINERALS CORPORATION in its capacity as shareholder of PURCHASER. " wevvevmn

THREE: Paragraph 3 of Article Nine  the Agreement s nded to read as follows: -- -
“3. PURCHASER shall have 84 months as from March 10, 2011 10 exercise its Purchase Option.
Should PURCHASER decide to exercise its Purchase Option before expiration of the terms
stipulated in article Three above, PURCHASER shall pay the OWNER all amounts indicated in said

Article Three that remmain due and payable as of the date such Purchase Option is exercised in

ddition to any applicable amount pursuant to the provisions of this Article.” -

"QUR: The Parties agree that the Agreement executed by the Parties shall be applicable to all such

issues that may not be contemplated in this Addendum. -



In witness whereof, the Parties sign 3 copies of this Addendum in the City of Salta, Argentine

Republic 0n March 1, 2013, cemam oo s e o o i i i

1 io Céanepa, holder of [dentity Document (D.N.L1) # 16307113 ---eneemeen

PURCHASER o -

[Signature:) Carlos Eugenio Ponte, Attorney-in-fact, Meryllion Argentina S.A, ~-e-emmmemms e inn

[Seal:] Book #17, Page # 75, Record # 446/47, Notarial Sheet # B00721294. Salta, March 1, 2013 --
[Signature and seal:] MARIA AMALIA MARTINEZ TORRES, CIVIL-LAW NOTARY PUBLIC,
LICENSE # 136, SALTA e

[Barcode:] 2004-0000721294 mmrmammemmnrmamanramsasn smmmemmcmmm rmmmmm s mn s mmmnscsesemecann
B 00721294 —

In the city of Salta, capital city of the province of Salta, Argentine Republic, on March 1, two

thousand and thirteen, I, Maria Amalia MARTINEZ TORRES, Civil-law Notary Public in charge

of Notarial Registry number one hundred and thirty six, hereby CERTIFY the authenticity of the

signatures of Messrs. Humberto Julio Canepa, an Argentine citizen, holder of Identity Document

(D.N.L) # 16307113 and Carlos Eugenio Ponte, an Argentine citizen. holder of ldentity Document

(D.N.L) # 23746120, whose identities have been verified by me pursuant to Section 1002 of the
Civil Code of Argentina, as amended by Law No. 26140 upon submission of their pertinent Identity
Documents (D.N.I) which I have had before me, and which signatures have been stamped
simultaneously on the foregoing ADDENDUM TO EXPLORATION AGREEMENT WITH
QPTION TO PURCHASE before me and further recorded in Signatures Record Book # 17, page
75, Records # 446 and 447, I attest. I further attest that Mr, Humberto Julic CANEPA appeared on
his own behalf and Mr. Carlos Eugenioc PONTE appeared on behalf and in the name of
SMERYLLION ARGENTINA 8.A.”, domiciled at Avenida del Libertador 602, Planta Baja

City of Buenos Aires, capital city of the Argentine Republic, in his capacity as ATTORNEY-IN-




MINETR

idencing the legal existence of the company, his capacity and sufficient and full authority
to execute these presents with: (a) a General and Broad Power of Attorney for disposition an
management matters dated October 11, 2011, entered on Notarially Recorded Instrument number
one thousand eight hundred and nine by Civil-law Notary Public Joaquin E. URRESTI, duly
authenticated by the Civil-law Notaries’ Public Association in and for the City of Buenos Aires on
even date, and further recorded at the Registry of Powers of Attorney of the province of Salta under
number 507, pages 955/963, Volume 605, on QOctober 14, 2011, which instrument I have had before
me, [ attest, and ] further state for record that I do not attest the form nor the contents thereof. Three
copies are issued under Special Notarial Sheets # B 00721292, B 00721293, and B 00721294,

respectively. These presents are issued on the date and at the place first above written, -----exemmen-em-

[Signature and seal:] MARIA AMALIA MARTINEZ TORRES, CIVIL-LAW NOTARY PUBLIC,

LICENSE # 136, SALTA - —
[Stamp:] Federal Board of Civil-law Notaries Public o Argen Series # C 02594386; zero two

five nine four three eight six
[Seal:] NOTARIES® PUBLIC ASSOCIATION IN AND FOR SALTA
[Seal] NOTARIES® PUBLIC ASSOCIATION IN AND FOR SALTA; A 00258594, March 1,
2013; AUTHENTICATION ==

[There appears an emblem of the Civil-Law Notaries' Public Association in and for Saltg.]----m--=---

------------------- Civil-Law Notaries’ Public Association in and for Salta
[Barcode:] 1001-0000258594 ——
AR$ 125.00 -

.................. AUTHENTICATION

The Civil-Law Notaries’ Public Association in and for Salta, Argentine Republic, under the
authority of Law No. 5343, hereby CERTIFIES the authenticity of the signature and seal of Ms.

Maria Amalia Martinez Torres stamped on the foregoing instrument under number A 00258594 of

Authentication.
This authentication does not certify the content or the form of the document. e

Wy



ature and seal:] Civil-Law Notary’ Public Carlos Alberto A. Baldi, Deputy Regu

DT ommmm e s o i o
[Stamp:] Federal Board of Civil-law Notaries Public of Argentina; Series # C 02594386; zero two

five nine four three eight six

[There appear two seals of Notaries” Public Association in and for Salta

RATE TRANSLATION from Spanish into English of the document
attached hereto, which I have had before me. City of Buenos Aires, April 23, 2013, ~—remeeeemaune

[For certification purposes only:] ES TRADUCCION FIEL al idioma inglés del documento adjunto

redactado en idioma espafiol. Ciudad de Buenos Aires, 23 de abril de 2013.

TR,

450345 24568
5410412013
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COLEGIO E TRADUCTORES PUBLICOS
DE LA CIUDAD DE BUENOS AIRES

REPUBLICA ARGENTINA
LEY 20.305
Py ﬁ & S

Por la presente, el COLEGIO DE TRADUCTORES PUBLICOS DE LA CIUDAD DE BUENOS AIRES,
en virtud de la facuitad que le confiere el articulo 10, inc.d} de la ley 20.305, certifica tnicamente que

la firma y el sello que aparecen en la traduccion adjunta concuerdan con los correspondientes
.alla Traductor/a Publico/a MINETTI, MARIA PAULA LUISA

que obran en los registros de esta institucion en el folio 99 del Tomo 17 en el idioma

.egalizacion Namero: 24568

Buenos Aires, 24/04/2013

ESTA LEGAL ZACION NO SE CONS{DERARA VALIDA SIN EL CORRESPONDIENTE
TIMBRADO DE CONTROL EN LA ULTIMA HOJA DE LA TRADUCCION ADJUNTA
Control Interno: 16034524568

RS EHHERHITR SRR

Av. Corrientes 1834 - C1045AAN - Ciudad Autdnoma de Buenos Alres - 4373-7173 y lineas rotativas
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THE COLEGIO DE TRADUCTORES PUBLICOS DE LA CIUDAD DE BUENOS AIRES (Sworn
translators association of the city of Buenos Aires) pursuant to 20305 act, section 10, subsection d,
hereby certifies that the signature and the seal on the translation attached hereto match the signature
and seal of the Sworn Translator (Traductor Publico) in our files.

THIS CERTIFICATION IS NOT VALID WITHOUT THE PERTINENT CONTROL STAMP ON THE
LAST PAGE OF THE TRANSLATION ATTACHED HERETO.

Vu par le COLEGIO DE TRADUCTORES PUBLICOS DE LA CIUDAD DE BUENOS AIRES {Ordre de
Traducteurs Officiels de la ville de Buenos Aires), en vertu des attributions que lui ont été accordées
par l'article 10, alinéa d) de la Loi n® 20.305, pour la seule légalisation matérielle de la signature et du
sceau du Traductor Publico (Traducteur Officiel) apposés sur la traduction du document ci-joint, qui
sont conformes & ceux déposés aux archives de cette Institution.

LE TIMBRE APPO‘Sﬁ SUR LA DERNIERE PAGE DE LA TRADUCTION FERA PREUVE DE LA
VALIDITE DE LA LEGALISATION.

Con la presente il COLEGIO DE TRADUCTORES PUBLICOS DE LA CIUDAD DE BUENOS AIRES
(Collegio dei Traduttori Giurati della Citta di Buenos Aires) ai sensi della facolta conferitagli dall'articolo
10, comma d), della Legge 20.305, CERTIFICA, esclusivamente, la firma ed il timbro del Traductor
Publico (Traduttore Giurato), apposti in calce alla qui unita traduzione, in conformita alla firma ed al
timbro depositati nei propri registri,

LA PRESENTE LEGALIZZAZIONE SARA PRIVA DI VALIDITA OVE NON VENGA TIMBRATA NELL'
ULTIMO FOGLIO DELLA TRADUZIONE.

Através da presente, o COLEGIO DE TRADUCTORES PUBLICOS DE LA CIUDAD DE BUENOS
AIRES (Colegio de Tradutores Publicos da Cidade de Buenos Aires), no uso de suas atribuicbes, de
conformidade com o artigo 10, alinea “d", da Lei 20.305, certifica unicamente que a assinatura e o
carimbo do Traductor Publico (Tradutor Pdblico) que subscreve a tradugéo anexa conferem com 2
assinatura e o carimbo arquivados nos registros desta instituigéo.

A PRESENTE LEGALIZAGCAO SO SERA CONSIDERADA VALIDA COM A CORRESPONDENTE
CHANCELA MECANICA APOSTA NA ULTIMA FOLHA DA TRADUCAO

BEGLAUBIGUNG. Der COLEGIO DE TRADUCTORES PUBLICOS DE LA CIUDAD DE BUENOS
AIRES (Kammer der Vereidigten Ubersetzer der Stadt Buenos Aires), kraft der Befugnisse, die ihr
nach Artikel 10, Abs.d) des Gesetzes 20.305 zustehen, bescheinigt hiermit lediglich die
Ubereinstimmung der Unterschrift und des Siegelabdruckes auf der beigefiigten Ubersetzung mit der
I entsprechenden Unterschrift und dem Siegelabdruck des Traductor Pablico (VereidigtenUbersetzers),
die in den Registern dieser Institution hinterlegt worden sind.

DIESE BEGLAUBIGUNG IST NICHT GULTIG OHNE DEN  ENTSPRECHENDEN
GEBUHRENSTEMPEL AUF DEM LETZTEN BLATT DER BEIGEFUGTEN UBERSETZUNG.
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Schedule "G"
Amendment to the First Rojo Agreement, With Translation

G-1



ADDENDA CONTRATO

Entre 3ilvia Rojo, DNI 17.354.539, casads, 354 .538-3. con
domicilic en Enrigue Romero 43, Villa Jardin de Reyes de ia ciudad de San
Salvador de Jujuy, quien actiia por sus propios derechos, en adelante LA
TITULAR, por una parte, y por la otra parte Meryllion Argentina S.A., CUIT N°
30-711823871-8, con sede social en Avenida del Libertador namero 802, Planta
Baja B de la Ciudad Autdnoma de Buenos Aires, una sociedad constituida bajo
las leves de fa RepUblica Argentina, representada en este acto por el Sr. Carlos
Cugenic Ponte, DNI 23.746.120, en su caracter de Apoderado de la Sociedad,
en adelante MERYLLION, y ambas partes de ahora en adelante denominadas

comuntamente LAS PARTES, y
CONSIDERANDO:

Que LAS PARTES han suscripto con fecha catorce de Oclubre de dos mil
once. un Contrato de Exploracion con Opcion de Compra, en adelante EL
CONTRATO, en relacion a la mina denominada OLAROZ CHICO, que tramita
por ante el Juzgado Administrativo de Minas de la Provincia de Jujuy bajo el

Expte 172-R-86;

Jue B CONTRATO se encuentra en curso de ejecucion, estando plenamente
vigentes las obligaciones v derechos asumidos por LAS PARTES al momenio
de su suscripcion, por cuanto se cumplié oportunamente la CONDICION

SUSPENSIVA a la que estaba sujeto el mismo:

Que la situacion internacional de baja del precio e . Comodities, y la crisis
en las Bolsas Internacionales traducido en la baja de interes en la inversion en
provectos de prospeccion y exploracién mineros. ha generado graves
oroblemas de financiamiento para ios proyectos en curso de ejecucion en

naral en la actividad, y en particular en los planificados para la mina objeto

D

g
de EL CONTRATO;



& s intencion de LAS PARTES modificar o pactade en la clausuia
G0S A LA TITULAR, con la finalidad de readecuar lo pactado a las
cireunsiancias existentes, de modo que posibilite ta continuidad de la elacion
juridica contractual que une a LAS PARTES, en fa conviccion de que dicha

contir ad producira efectos beneficiosos para ambas,;
rodo elio, LAS PARTES ACUERDAN:

Primero: Modificase ia clausula 2.PAGOS A LA TITULAR, de EL CONTRATO,

la cust queda redactada de la siguiente manera;
OS A LA TITULAR

contra prestacion otorgamiento del Derecho de prospeccion vy
exploracion y el Derecho de opcidn de compra otorgado sobre LA MINA,
MERYLLION realizara los siguientes pagos a LA TITULAR:

2.1 Ala firma de la presente ADDENDA, la suma de USS 9.000.- (dblares
americanos nueve mil}. La suma mencionada, se abona en pesos argen inos, a
un cambio Banco Nacidn Argentina tipo vendedor, 1 délar/ 527 pesos.-
resultando la suma de pesos cuarenta y siete mil cuatrocientos treinta
{$47.430.-), 1a cual se abona mediante cheque N?13352062, de la cuenta de

Mervllion Argentina S.A. del Banco Macro.

2.2 Eldia 10 de Marzo dg 2014, o antes de esa fecha a decision exclusiva de
MERYLLION, la suma de US$S 22.500.-, (ddlares americanos veinte dos mil

quinientos).

2.3 Etdia 10 de Setiembre de 2014, o antes de esa fecha a decisidn exclusiva
de MERYLLION, Iz suma de USS 22 500.-, (délares americanos veinte dos mil

quinientos).

2.4 B dia 10 de Marzo de 2015, o antes de esa fecha a decizion exclusiva de
MERYLLION, la suma de USS 45.000.-, (ddlares americanos cuarenta y cinco

mill.



Tdia 10 de Marzo de 2018, o antes de esa fecha a decision exciusiva de

MERYLLION, fa suma de U$S 90.000.-, (dolares americancs noventa mil).

410 de Marzo de 2017, o anies de esa fecha g decision exclusiva de

MERYLLION, la suma-de-d86-135.000 -, (dolares americanos ciento treinta y

v
-

,.
o

it N

H
i

2|7 El dia A0 de Marzo de 2018, o antes de esa fecha a decision exclusiva de

7

"g\'{*&“fé’iéﬁ‘w’imi}@?\!: la suma de U§S 180(}50.—. (délares americanos ciento ochenta

2.8 £l dia 10 de Marzo de 2018, o anes de esa & a decision exclusiva de
MERYLLION, Ia suma de USS 441.000.-, {ddolares americanos cuatrocientos

cudrenta y un miby.

Se deja constancia que el pago el pago de déiares nueve mil (USS 9.000.-),
previsto para el momento del cumplimiento de la Condicion Suspensiva a la
que estuvo sometida la vigencia de EL CONTRATO conforme la redaccion
anterior de la presente clausula, ha sido cumplimentado en tiempo vy forma, al

momento del cumplimiento de dicha condicion.

En dos los pagos que deban llevarse a cabo por
respelara lo dispuesto por la normativa vigente al momento del mismo en
relacion a cuestiones civiles, bancarias e impositivas, especialmente o

o en relacion a la obligatoriedad de la ulilizacion de métodos bancarios

wia normativa antievasion, retencion de impuestos sobre los pagos, v

CONGy

txda Lo resolucidn o norma concordante. En caso que resulte obligatorio el
oago de alguna suma en pesos argentinos, se debera convertir el importe en
délares estadounidenses de que se trate a pesos argentinos segun la
cotizacion del dolar estadounidense del Banco de la Nacidn Argentina para la
venta al cierre de operaciones del dia habil anterior a la fecha de pago. Contra
antrega del pago, chegue o exhibicion de la boleta de depdsiio pertinente LA

TITULAR se obliga a extender recibo de pago suficiente.

Seqgundo: Modificase la Clausula 4. DEL PRECIO, de EL CONTRATO, la cual

queda redactada de la sigulente manera:



ecio de LA MINA, se fila en [z suma de USS 854 .000 (dolares americanos
veclentos cincuanta y cuatro mil). Una vez ejercida la opcidn de compra por
parie de MERYLLION, los pagos va efectuados en coniraprestacion del

Derecho de prospeccién y expimacién y el Derecho de opcion de compra de LA

ha‘“‘-:»_ moi tar el precio c’onve nido, se continuaréd abonando en la forma
ac&éﬁa en clausula 2. PAGOS A LA TITULAR.- conforme la redaccion

ﬁp:anée en esta ADDENDA!

fercero. Se deja constancia que el resio de las cldusulas obrantes en EL
CONTRATO tienen plena vigencia conforme su redaccién  orginal. La
redaccion obranie en esta ADDENDA de las clausulas 2.PAGOS A LA
TITULAR y 4.DEL PRECIO, tienen supremacia sobre cualquier otra clausula
de EL CONTRATO que regule o contradiga lo por ellas dispuesto.

£n las Ciudades de San Jujuy v Salta, firman LAS PARTES en
prueba de plena conformidad tres ejemplares del mismo tenor y al mismo

afecto.
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SIARTINGYZ TORRES, on v caracier de Escribana Tiludar del Registro Notarial nGmero

CCERTIICO: Que v firna puesta en ADDENDA CONTRATO, o5 aulenlica

SR C;L:"R“’S, REESHIN I"(')z\f’!'l‘f\ S ney Frelar ded Doctmenio Nactona -+ fdentidad
“;f?.;l.x 20, personas 4 gquienes :«.‘h‘;gﬂ‘:i“xqué contorme al Articulo 1002 del ’
do por wetivos dectmentos Nacionales de Identidad
< i visia, por habor sido pus mi presencia en forma simaltaned en el monta-
P Lipro de Begtstro de dmmad N '
o s carlos Bugeno
RYLLION ARGENTINA 5.4.7, con domicilio legal en
N S de s wdad de Buenos Alres, Capital de la
PN e T Coraditindo w e v i de dasocicdad
G pUrssnerii, legitimacs 2 suficlente para otte acto con: a) Bsortwra Phablica na-
s rteves Poder General Amphio de Admirustracion y Disposicidn, do fecha
20H], antorzada por 2 oxa Juenos Aires, Joa-
NISTE N lealizado por o Colexio de Lscrbanos de la Cladad
b e Bewistra de Mandatos do esta Provinca Jo Salta
S T, L, Toma 05, ¢ .
1 ECEOIOREGY s o . ira a i vista para oste acto, dov e La suseripta eseribana

sda o oJdota forme O contensde dot adcto- S oagrens Foja de Actua-

s e Fimeas O primer clemplar nimero B 00784001, al segundo
L oompar numero B OUTE4993.- se cxpide fa presen-
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o of the first ihree pages, there appear nwo sionaimres. " oove anpear one Signaiire oo

(0 s ix NEgsiiin e FOVUESE N of G fne frord i3 fottowing ohey Do

SIARIA ALEJANDRA CAMMARIFLLO. Civil-Law Notary Public in che’»;z';;u

af ot 0. 07, San Salvador 4 lujuy; MARIA AMALIA MARTINEZ TORR
! s in-charge of Notarial Ruzistry No. 136, Sulta, ceemmoemevecmmmm e
ADDENDUM 1O THE AGREEMEN T weeemmemcermeec cmmemeameameneecemoee

This addendusm 15 made and entered mnto by and between Silvia Rojo, holder of Identity Document
(DN = 1735343390 married, Taxpayer 1D (CUITY 27-17354539-3, with domicile at Enrique
Romero 43, Villa Jardin de Reves, City of San Salvador de Jujuy, acting by herself. hereinafter the
SOWNER”, and Mervllion Argentina S AL Taxpaver 1D (CUIT) 30-71162871-8, with . p |
place of business atl Avenida del Liberador 602, Planta Eaja “B7, City of Buenos Alres, @
corporation creanized and existing under the laws of the Argentine Republic, represented for the
purposes hereol by Mr. Carlos Eugenio Ponte, holder of Identity Document (D.N.L) # 23746120, in

his capucity as Attorney-in-fact of the Company. hereinafter, “MERYLLION?, and both parties

hereinafter referred 1o as the “PARTIES”, and ~eecmmmmsmmemmo e e -
WEPNESSE T H - e e 50 5 et 8 R 0 5 P 5 e B
WIHEREAS on October fourteenth, two and c.oven, the PARTIES entered into an
plovation Sercement with Option fo Purchase, hereinafter. the "TAGREEMENT”, in relation t©
the mune DLAROZ CHICO”, mining petition pending under dossier # 172-R-906 belore
Admin ' Court in and for the province ol Jujuys = —meemeirmrrremr s e

WHERFAS, the AGREPMENT is an executory contract, the rights and duties assumed by the

PARTI seunder being enforceable since the CONDITION PRECEDENT to which the
ZOR Ces siljoct hus been mely oty -seme s s e e e

WHERFA  the muerntional and global fall in commodites price and « International Stock

fvestnenis in proing prospecton and exploration proj ¢



s difficulties to projects under implenweniation. in general 1o the sctiviny wid

inpartcts the plans for the mine subject-mater of the AGREEMENT - srrmmememmmesnn o
wWrny PARTIFS e e o™ A4 o seton 20 PAYMIENTS TO O THE
DWW MNDR aust awhat has ocereed toocrrent circumstances so coat e
| chween the PARTIES under Uw aggrecment may o sirinue W exist in the beliet
s afsuch relationship will be beneficial for both PARTIES:  weeemmmememricenees

kS 0T S0 2 0 e R R0 0 s S o

T OWNER of the Agreement shall be amended to read as

FOHOWS! mommm o e e e = e
2. PAYMENTS TO THE OWNFER comremeoswemrmmeme e e e e e e

In consideraiion of a right to prospect and explore, and an option to purchase both awarded over the
p Xp I

(57

MINE, MERYLLION shall effect the following payments to the OWNER: -

2.1 Upon execution of this ADDUENDUM. the amount of UST 9,000 (mine thousand United States
dotarss shadl be paid timstated info Argentine pesos at the otfer exchange rate quoted by Banco de
la Nacion wreenting equal o 1 United States dollar per 5.27 Argentine pesos. then resulting in the

amount of torty-seven thousand four hundred and thirty Argentine pesos. Such amount in Argentine

pesos is paid hy check No. 13352062 written against the account held by Meryllion Argentina S.A.
in Banco Macro, - e o e e

2 Um March 10, 2014, or before such date, of the sole disceretion of MERYLLION, the amount of
USD " 2800 swenty-two thousand and five hundred United States dolarg).-remmemmsem o mmmemm e
2.3 0nSe, Cmber 10, 2014, or before such date. at the sole discretion of MERYLLION, the amount
of LIS - swentvebwo thousand and Jve hundred United States doHarg), svememmmmmms e

>, before such date, at the sole diserction of MERYLLION, the amount of

USD 45,000 {fortv-five thousand United States dolars). - e
2.3 Om Narch 10, 2016, or before such date, at the sole discretion of MERYLLION, the amount of
Y ety thousand Undted Stales G cmmmmmre e e

2.6 O o L 2 T or belore such date, at the sole discrenon of MERYLLION, the amount of

USEr oo one hundred and thirty-five thousand United States dollars). <=vevmes it s
2.7 0n N 10, 2008, or before such date, at the sole discretion of MERYLLION, the amount of
Uiy ne nundred and cehiy thousand United Stides dollans joesmmmmmm s s mmee e

]



wch dute, 2o che sole discretion of MERYLILION, the amount of

DSD 4+ .008 four hundred and forty-one thousand United States dollars). -

It o oot e vavment of L o thousand United Sttes dollars (USD 9,000) o be
che Conditfon Precedent o wnich she AGREBEMENT was subject
stor o this section was imehy effecred at SUch (e, sevmmmmen s s e
bo made under the AGREEMENT shall comply applicable rules

regulaii e i connection with civill bunking and mix matters, and parteufarly
v mandatory pature of asing banking methods pursuant to the fws o
eroortnoidings on peyvinents, and any other related resolution or rule, Should it be
SFHTITERICINN wiy acertain amount i Argentine pesos, the applicable amount in United States
o translated into Argentine pesos at the offer exchange rate quoted by Banco de la

Nacion Argorsnn of business on the business day prior to payment date, U
upon defivers or upon submitting a deposit OWNER shall sufficiently
ACKNOWICALE DAY, crmm o e et i s

Two: Section 4. PRICE of the Agreement shall be amended to read as follows: ~--

The price tor e MINE s fixed at USD 954,000 (nine hundred and fifty-four t H

States doliarsy. Upon exercise by MERYLLION of the option to purchase, all payments already
onvideration of the right 1o prospect and explore, and the option to purchase, both awarded

aver the MINTL <hall be considered part-payment of the price fixed, and the balance shall be paid

until rencnine - eed-upon price as established in section 2. PAYMENTS TO THE OWNER

pursuant 1o the version thereof contained in this ADDENDUM.  cmemmemmmmmmes e
Three: { for ~oeord that the remaining seetions of the AGREEMENT shall remain in full
force nd oftvet s originaly drafled. The versions herein contained of sections 2. PAYMENTS

TO THE OWRER and 4. PRICE shall prevail over any other section of the AGREEMENT that

may v evnlate the same 1330 oF rovide OREIWISE, womsrmrssmrsm st -

In witness whereof, the PARTIES sign three copies of this Addendum in the Cities of San Salvador

de Jujuy and Salta.



naiires below each there are seals ithat read’] RECORD OF
2% ook No. 17, Page 198 overleaf, Record No. 1186. Notarial Shéet BO0784991.

2013, iSienarure:) MARIA AMALIA MARTINEZ TORRES, Civil-Law Notary

, o
H N LG 5 ;YA NI & o 1. Coavgs YT R007% i1y PR
Notara GODUTES Ooentry 24110 50 Book Moo Stamp 0075903 L0 Nan v

ded oy gnerture:] MARIA ALFJANDRA GAMMARIELLO, Civil-Law Notuany

H

Public in ¢harge P Notarial Registry No. 67, San Salvador de Jguy. -+ ceememmemcmmmsmm e e
[Sramip ] w0 CHENTICATION OF SIGNATURES. Scries No. C 00739631, [There iv the cinblem
of e fc o Notares” Public Associarion in and Jor Jufuy and there follows a seal MARIA
ALEIANDRA GAMMARIELLO, Civil-Law Notary Public in charge of Notarial Registry No. 6+,
San Salvador de Jujuy. et e
[There appears an emblem « ke Civil-Law Notaries” Public Assoctation in and for Salta.}-=---mmve-

~SPECIAL NOTARIAL RECORD FOR SIGNATURE AUTHENTICATION -c-ecomnen

[Bercosde: ] 2004-000078499 [ memmmmeomecmmemmeioms oo eem e
B D)0 78409 | wmceemm e cmm e come e e e A A A 2

. capita © lta. Argentine Republic, on rghth,

two thousand and thirteen, I, Maria Amalia MARTINEZ TORRES, Civil-law Notary Public in

charge of Nolarial Registry number one hundred and thirty six. hereby CERTIFY the authenticity

of the signature of Mr. Carlos Eugenio Ponte, un Argentine citizen, holder of Identity Document

(DNLL) # 23746120, whose identity has been verified by me pursuant to Section 1002 of the Civil

snting, as amended by Law No. 26140 upon submission of the pertinent Identity

Documn »NoLY which | ohave had before me. and which Vonatuwre has been stampeu
simulinneo the foregoing ADDENDUM TO THE AGREEMENT before me and further
recorded o ares Record Book # 17, page 198 overleaf, Record # 1186, Tatfest. I further attest

Ay vlos Fugenio PONTE appeared on behalf and in the name of “MERVYLLION

3

ARGYES w8 ALY domiciled wt Aventda del Libertador 602, Planta Baja “B”, City of Buenos

5

Al sty T the Argenune Repubhice in his capacity as ATTORNEY-IN-FACT.

eviden MICE ¢ COMpAany, city and sufficient and full authority to

CEUC srescnis withe Generat end Broad Power of Attorney for disposition and

e ern oy Criers dated October 110 201 entered on Notarially Recor ment number



GHC L e dred wnd nine by . ary Public Joaquin L. URRESTL du!

cathenticsica e Uivil-luw Notarles” Public Association in and for the City of Buenos Aires on
even dule thervsith and (urther recorded at the Registry of Powers of Attorney of the province of
Salte under 0 cor 3070 pages 935963, Volume 603, on Getober 14, 2011, 7 instrument |

oo Drurther state tor record thot Edo not attest the form or the conrents o

Copres e sisted under Special Noewaviar Shects 0 3007849910 B (0784992, ind B

RN clivety, These presenis we issued on the date and at the place first above written, -
TAREY AMALTA MARTINEY TORRES, CIVIL-LAW NOTARY PUBLIC

il i 0 SALTA movmmn s e e

[Seal’] v ARIA ALEJANDRA GAMMARIELLO,
Registry Noo o7 San Salvador de JUuy, e e e e
Civil-Law Notaries T Association inand for JUjuy seeme 0 e
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ -NOTARIAL RECC
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ Law No, 4884796 commemm e s e e e e

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ AUTHENTICATION OF SIGNATURES --- - .
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ A 00974810

w indications and 1 s 1o complete the document.] ----weemmremee

San Salvador de . ZHI T B o s o s e 1 0 0 e

I, MARIA ALEJANDRA GAMMARIELLC P " Notarial

stry nunher - wy-seven, with offices at Libertad 343, Distriet of Nieva, City of San Salvador

LRTIFY the following: ONIFL The sigedure on the instrument atlached hereio
{Adudomdn Crecment three copiest has been stamped before me by the person whose
name arkg wdonny docament are identiiied below ! ~reoreee s s e e o e

SILVIA MONICA ROIO. holder of Identity Document (DINLL) # UL tication

DOVS sy 0 TS the form or the contents of the dotiment, e ermeme e s s
T >~ omentioned above aets in her own belalfl - oeeee s e

LHIRE wertnent requirements and signature have been simultaneously recorded and entered

g © No, 004, page 121, entry 2410 1 instrument and book bearing stamp No.



MARIA ALEJANDRA GAMMARIELLO. Civil-Law Notary

{ Notaral « No. 67, San Salvador de Jujuy -

o opeses onlyt] FS TRA PUCCION FIEL al v ocumento adjunto

ol Cindad de Buenos Adres, 4 de junioe de 2013, ---mmsssmmeommemsemesessm e
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< las nusma no ha sido publicada on cardere de vacante por pa
1 ~do posible en consecusncia qug sea
N 204 Sona una. nor e de la obligatoriedad de

-k

e cias piocesales
- 209 “las notificaciones
aoial efecto 1 anidad, ssible gue el Juzgado
LS 5 aciones o oA TITULAR a gjercer el

qando 2l canon adeudado con mas el

VeI por clento do o, . dergcho.

Que sujelo a que {ales nobficaciones sfectivaments se produzcan, es
tencion de LAS PARTES suscribir el presenie confrato, dandossles 2
denominadas LA CONDICION

sl caracter o condicion suspensiva de os efectos dal

e

THEMIO,

¢oninguna prohibicion, ni interdiccitn,
de sus bienes v particularmente para

PA MINA en anlo v en cuanto se

suspensiva a la que se someien los

-
<

interesada en a

CEPBOCn y o Aploracion de LA B > la determinacion

t\\/



stuncipalmente de las

concentraciones de minerales de Ia

RYLLION determinarg n

¢ SRl

Ry

sirica de la exdracaidn y explotacion de los niinerales de LA

s

':,SLH:Ci Yo

sl acascimiento de @ condicidn

wE oa s oue se o osubnrding, MERYLUION desea oblener o

5OMINA gque le permila ingresa

ot

sular fibremente, explorar, tomar muestras y efectuar los analisis yfo

>siudios gue fueren necesanos para determinar a existencia y posibilidad

b

de aprovechamenio comercial de los minerales como asimismo oblener,

un deracho de opoion de compra de dich

2 propiedad minera a un precio fijo,
aly sefinitive acordado enire LAS PARTES;

o progpeccion y exploracion con
! cornpra, MERY

nlin este contrato por ante el

zgads Admanistrativo de odinas de

e Jujuy

3

dolotdo o exouesic

testo LAS Pr RTES celebran el presenis

s clausulag:
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2.2 L oses Oe dictada la resolucion gque one por rescalada LA

=  de LA TITULAR por parte del Juzgado Administrativo de Minas, la
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(R ot S Bt Bo
2B

"’\‘ I'ns?\él\ <0

la resolucion. gue tiene por

enta y ocho n
LA MINA o favor de LA TITULAR por pante det Juzgado Administrative
5 USS 20.000 -, (dolares americancs veinte mil.
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e A RAENAG stando a al Jects

domicilio fijado en ésle

LOS DL

< eonlraprestacion del Derecho de

los pages ya efectuados 2 conbrap

expioracion y el Derecho de opcion de compra de LA MINA, seran

s corno realizados a cuenta ool precio ﬁjado el saldo hasta completzr

<= an o se continuara abonando en la forma pactada en el apartado

R 2%

PaGOe s L TITULAR

1% del retorno e

S
Con so e estas entren en preduceion

5 . ;o una opcion de compra a su solo

G0 s de oty oen cur o ouiel mgmenio, por un monto de USS 50.000 .-

|

Y R AR
Cdeor o de o mpra por pare de MERYLLION v completados

- ; & anartado PAGOS AL TITULAR, LA

Jy suseribir 'a escii . vaslativa de dominio pertinente, asi

S olra documentactin . aqecesaria. g los fines de transterir
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Los stoy

e (15)

rescindido,

N g v uosasion sobig LA MINA, libres

sarfes Caga derecho n

wcre ~esante o cuaiguier otra

R NI s g RN 2 - AT A DD ey o
ceans of o aados vraaibidos por A CTTULAR quedaran

indemnizacien v

S0 pago por ningun

sors esta facudtad de

c
rescindir, . entregar a LA TITULAR toda la informacién obienida en el curso
de < coracion de LA MINA, asi como todas las muesiras, testigos de

perforacy wdo otro Llemenic o informe generado.

10, DEL 2AaG0 BEL CANGHN

A partir de la fiima de éste contrato es a cargo de MERYLLION la obligacior 7 det

pago del canon si correspondiera.-

. by JE, wesyies ST RIS
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Schedule "I"
Second Rojo Agreement, With Translation




1200, casada, 4 5389-3. con

o n i e Beves de ia ciudad de San
SRSt v gn adelante LA

o parte Merytion & ~atine S AL CUIT N°

Py A LT e P D N s ISty TR w1
BO-7HIBR8T -8, wpcial o foenoe del b or nomero 807 Planta
g > Apes, una sociedad conshituida bajo
RS e - i oy e by e A = e B N
[FRENN 38 : 3 SnrEssnaea en astae acto pot 2l Sr. Carlos

wacier de Apoderado de s Socledad,
AERYLLION, y ambas partes de ghora en adelante denominadas

LA i

LAS PARTES, y
CONSIDERARNDO:

Cue "0 han suscripio con fecha calorce de Octubre de dos mil
anne de Exploracion con Opcion de Compra, en adelante EL
Cono T O en relacion a la mina denominada LIBERTAD, que tramita por

Juzaado Adminig o de Minas de la Provincia de Jujuy bajo el Expte

Oue 't SONT  TO se encuenira en curso de ejecucion, estando plenamente

R wones v derechos asumidos por LAS PARTES al momento

de la CONDICION

por caanto s cumplic oporfuns

& la que estaba sujeto el mismo;

CopiosSpeccion Y explmacian  mimnsres, ha generado  graves
problemas de anciamiento pars 10s proyecios en curso de ejecucion en

eral 0 wowdad, o particular en los planificados para la mina objeto



coo de LAS PARTES
2ERCG0E A LA TITULAR, con In

wockificar

fo pactade en la clausula

finaiiad de readecuar o pactado a las

- 28 existentes, de modo que posibilite la continuidad de la relacion

at que une a LAD PAR

F TR R T 4 - R LS U el o 2

Por logo e PARTES aCUERDAN
M . - S A FTING

Primers, iz 2Z.PAG08

.

wpnhents n

fa cuzl o o daniads

el

I Derecho de ope

2.4

americanns i

& ADDENDA, la suma de USS 1.000.-

. La suma mencionada, se abona en pesos argentinos, a un

TES en la conviccion de gue dicha
S a HiY?.)

A LA TITULAR, de EL CONTRATO,

PSP

FANEEA

ctorgamianto del Derecho de prospeccion y
ion de compra otorgado sobre LA MINA
LLION realizara los siguientes pagoes a LA TITULAR:

(dblares

. anco Nacion Argentina tipo vendedor, 1 dolar/ 5,27 pesos.- resultando

LY s
diantc

e

Etalole

15 e Marzo de 2014, o antes

o O e suma de USS 2.500 -, (dolares
7 g e Setiembre de 2014, o
ooh M a sums de USS 00 .-,

Marzo de 20158,

O~ osuma de USS 5000 -

atzo de 2018, anlas

5 de U»}u '1: ’.: e

o

e

pesos cinco mil doscientos setenta ($5.270.-).
sheque N®13352063, de la cuenta de Mervilion Argentina S.A. del

antes de esg !

0 - Al

fa cual se abona

ey

(@ R v

4o asa fecha a decision exclusiva

americanos dos mil quinientos).

fong

decision exciusiva

cha a

{dolares americanos dos mil

n antes de esa fecha a decisidn exclusiva de

{dilares americanos cinco milt,

58 fecha a decisidn exclusiva de

25 amnencanos diez mil).



s

‘e 2017, o antes de 255 fecha a decision exclusiva de

o ‘$8 15.000.-. (ddlares americanos quince mil).
2.7 . e Marzo de 2018, ¢ anies de esa fecha a decision exclusiva de

2 de USS 20.000 - 1),

SO oo de 2019, o antes de esa fecha 1 decisidn exclusiva de

aame de USS 49.000 .- (ddlares amernicanos cuarenta y nueve

P gaco ef pago de dolares mil (USS 1.000.-), previsto

i fa Condicion Suspensiva a la que estuvo

INTHATO conforme la redacoion antenor de ia

asuda g sido cumz‘iif'rsez}niau‘@ «~ fiempo v forma, al memento del

o de dicha condicid

B los pagos que deban llevarse a cabo por NTRATO, se
S Wy dispueste por la normativa vigente al momento del mismo en

relacitn

wuestiones  civiles, bancarias e impositivas, especialmente 1o

¢ rslacion a la obligatoriedad de la utilizacion de métedos bancarios
o .nforme ia normativa antievasion, retencion de impuesios sobre {os pagos., v
toda s oresolucion o norma concordante. En caso que resulte obligatorio &l

A0 alguna suma en pesos argentinos, se debera converlir el importe en

dounidenses de que se vale a pesos argentinos segun @
dolar estadounidense del Banco de la Nacidn Argentina para la
< operaciones del dia nabil antericr a la fecha de pago. Contra

m L theguae o exhibidn L o poleta de deposito pertinente LA

SRRE SRR DPURPIRS SRR I e St gy d
axtendar raciho g i 3 suncEnis,

ase la Clausula 4. DEL PRECIQ, de EL CONTRATO, ta cual

sdaciada de la sigtiente manera;

L ?

co e MINAL se fija en la suma e USS 7C6.000 (dolares americanos

Una vez eercida la opcidn de compra por parte de
b 1

pagos va efectuados en contrapiestacidn del Derechio de

sloracion v el Derecho de opcidn de compra de LA MINA.



< como Cealizados a cuania del precio fijado; el saldo hasta
ecio convenido, se continuara abonando en la forma pactada en

da 2. PAGOS A LA TITULAR - conforme {a redaccidn obranie en ests

sy gy iew - T B P S S NI ol
~enstancs gque el de las clausdias obranies s BEL
plena vigencia. conforms su redaccion orniginal. La
. T CETRGEY L adm £ Sy %% i 4
g1 esta ADDENDA de las clausuias ZPAGOS A LA

PRECIO. ficnen supremacia sobre cualguier otra clausula

e 0 contradiga o por ellas dispussto.

- R - [ ~ g - P . SN PN
oocdes de ban bSalvador de Jujuy v Salis,
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fad de Saha, Capial oo la Provinew rgenting, 4 los

Trdel mes de Mavo A0 o dos mil trece, quien suseribe la presente, Maria Amas

R

7 TORRES, on o vardcior de fseribana Tiular del Registro Notarial

s CERTINICO: Quae fa frma pucsta en ADDENDA CONTRATO, o wittontics

“ Jardes F - PONTL, « ar def Documento Nactonal de jdontidad
erey ZRTS0 L0, pursonas 1 1 Q02 det Cddigo O1-
v N tivos documentos Nacionales de Tdentidad

it ta, por haber Sido poestas on o presencia on fonma simultanca on el menta-

b vy en el Libiee de o T9svia, Acta N2 1187, doy fg
Lo woane wl oo Carldos Bugemo PONTE, concurre a este acto on

CMERYLL 7, con dowmcilio egal en

; {7 ctad o Buenos Ares, Capral 4o a
[NTEN < VM RALNDY, Lty 13 ORISR G0 1 s Kow
s oenerin, kgiln patslidad suficionte pars este acto con: )y Paioa

Veoaon vy Bleposicidn, v g

Fachoowrnatos nueve: Foder General Amplia

P

de Qetabre def afio 201 1. sutorizada por la o vibana X la Cladad de Buenos Alres, foa

auin B URRESTL of gue i S bidomaonte vudinnada o or o 0o de Esertbanos de la Cludas
3 s

VLN AFUE Oy il Mandatos de esta Provincia de Swlla

ol Towe 605, en focha 14 do Octubre del ano 2011, £l pse

ol N

4 este acto, doy A SUSTTIpHL Lo

WL L ontenddo del actoe Soagroms Foli v s

AN

w Certificaciin ' FBoomas ol primer clemplar ridmero 8 00784004, 4l seeundo

I Eapocii P

cjemplar namero B 00784995 y al ercer e niumero B OO784996.- Se expide la presen-

| .

v fecha indicados w-stpra.-
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CSECN, SRy (e vty SERQTLECN. FReFe ApRear one Siganaiure
Soetis S)oiie “ JgOagey Gl G i R Y A P

CARIA ALTJANDRA GAMMARILLLO. Civil-Law Notary Public ia ch:n‘gg

67, Sun Salvador Jo 0L MARIA AMALIA MARTINEZ TORRLE

Crvil-Low v in charge of Notarint Registry Noo 136, Salta. - eeems s s

This addendun i made and entered into by and between Silvia Rojo, v
(DNI 173

Romero 43, Villa Jardin de Reves, City of San Salvador de Jujuy, acting by herself, hereinafter th

e ¥

i

339, married. Taxpaver 1D (CUITY 27-17354539-3,

SOWNER™, and Mervilion Argentina S.A., Taxpayer 1D (CUTT) 30-71162871-8, with principal
of husipness a0 Avenida del Libertador 602, Planta Baja “B”. City of Buenos Aires. a

Fand existing under the laws of the Argentine Republic. represented for the

COINe
prrposcs hereos 0y Mr. Carlos Bugenio Ponte, holder of Identity Document (DNLL) # 25746120, in

his capacity as Attorney-in-fact of the Company, hereinafter, "MERYLLION™ a both parties

hereinafior relemed to as the "PARTIES™. and - comemnvens R -

WITNESSE T camionnes
EREAS, saber fourteenty. two thousand and eleven, ARTIES centered into an

Fantoration © oo oot with Option to Purchase. hereinafier, the AGREEMENTT,

the - BERTADY 1 peiition pending under dossicr 07-H-57 before the

SO Cowtinand for the  ovince of Juluyi--- e

WHERFAS, TMENT &5 an executory contract, the duties assumed by the
oo enforceable sinee the CONDITION PRECEDENT to which the

AL e { Dats DOen Umely MICE mmm s e e s

WO wal and global fall in copunodies price and the International

o oining prospection and exploration projects-have

in nvesi



caused serious | ditficulties 10 projects under implementation. in genera activity and
in particular o1 plans for the mine subject-muttor of the AGREEMENT: woeeemmemoicie oo

PR a3 R

RS DG e o codtion 20 PAYMENTS TO 7l

W N ot has been . oreed o current Srcumstances so that the
con the PARTIES under the agreement may continue to exast i the belier that

SUanship v o henelicial for both PARTII

Oner Section 2. PAYMENTS TO THE OWNER of the Agreement shall be amended to read .
P2 PAYMENTS TO THE OWNER -com e e e
In consideration of a right 1o prospect and explore, and an option (0 purchase both awarded over the
MINEMEEYLLION shall effect the following pavments 1o the OWNER: -~ cormmmmcomccmvenes
2.1 Upon o cation of this ADDENDUM. the amount of USD 1.000 (one thousand United States
dollars) «hal Be paid translated into Argentine pesos at the offer exchange rate quoted by Banco de

Nacion Argentina equal to 1 United States dollar per 5.27 Argentine pesos. then resulting in the

o

amount of {ive thousand two hundred and seventy Argentine pesos. Such amount in Argentine

peses 1s paid by cheek No. 13352063 written against the account held by Merylion Argentina S.A.

i 3ance Mucron, mem e e e o ettt A 5 52 et 1 o

2.2 On Noch 100 2014, or betore such date, at the soie discration of MERYLUION, the amount of

USD 25 0 Gk sand and five hundred United States dolars), somee s momammm e o
2.3 Un ber 1Y 20140 or before such Jate. al U sole discretion of MERYLLION, the amount
G iy ftwe thousand and fve hundred Unnod Stules dollars ), —mmemmss e s s

34 On ok 1002003 or before such date. at the seie discretion of MERYLLION. the amount

USD i e thousand United States dollars), meesre mmmmmmm o e e
2.5 On Masch 100 2010, or hefore such date. at the sole discretion of MERYLLION, the amount of
UISTy tenfi ron thousand United STaes G0 s e
2.6 OUn . or before ach dowe. ¢ discretion of MERYLLION, the amount o

USEy = a6 0 O howusand U pited Stotes dollarg), eeeemmemmee o m o i e
27 0m Ais . or hetore such date, at the sole disereti YLLION, the amount of
[sy ousind Untted Srares dollars i cmmmmmm e e e



o osuch dare. sofe coavretion of MERYLLION, the amount of

e thousand Umited States doHarshmeemmememeecas N

wed red that e pavment of one thousand Uinfted States dollars (USD 1, K .

gl et FTRDIPS o S PN C e PR I
~ith Dw Condition Preceders hach o AGREEMENT b
N T st o this section was fmely o S AL SUCTT LTUI0, s st vt s v

o v under the AGREENMENT shall comply applicable rules and

<ol ame noconnection o th ovil banking and tax matters, and particulerly

Sith . wndatony nature ol using burtking methods pursuant to the lavws

[N *‘fi'hh(w!di;}gg; On payments, and any other rolated resolution or rule. Should .

Cfo pay a certain amount in Argentine pesos, the applicable amount in U Slates

© 1 he franstated into Argentine pesos at the offer exchanye rate quoted by co de .
Aroentma ot close of business on the business day prior to payment date. Upon payment,
delivers of check or upon submitling a deposit slip, the OWNER shall sufficiently

ACK IO 0 PV IT I, e et e e e e e S s = i

3

1 4. PRICE of the Agreement shall be amended to read as follows: e emcommvmmemmmions

e MINE is fixed at USD 106.000 {one hundred and six thousand
dollars). Upon exercise by MERYLLION of the option to purchase, all payments already made in
consideration of the right to prospect and explore, and the option to purchase, both awarded over the
MINTL shall be considered part-payment of the price fixed. and the balance shall be paid until
codupen price as establishod in section 2. PAYMENTS TO THE OWNER

ceaching he
pursuant w the version thereol contained in this ADDENDUM.  commm s mo s m e o i

Ciy. pecord that the remaining sections of the AGREEMENT shall remain in full

hree Tt 7o oo i

foroe and - ilv drafted. The versions herein contained of sections 2. PAYMENTS

[RDRICERES S 0 i
R oand 4. PRICE shall prevail over any other section of the AGREEMENT that

3

the same issue or provide olher crsmmmer s e s

R e PARTIES sign three copies ol this Addendum

de Juiay and Nalia



vonitures below each of which there are seals that rewd:} RECORD

SIGNATL RIS Book Noo 17, Page 198 overleaf, Record No. 1187, Notarial Sheet BO0783900.

M 20130 [Sienature:] MA RiA AMALIA MARTINEZ TORRES, Civil-Law Notary

oy NGl b T RO Y e e e i+

o Dok L Stamn 00755037 San Subvador

ALTIANDRA GAMMARIELLO. Civid-Law Notary

ESreamprp 80 THENTIO ATION OF SIGNATLE RES, Series No. O SOGRY | There 0 ikl
o vriedane S onries T Public ssaciotion Gnooond or duiny and thore jollowes a veal ] MAR,

ALEIANT L GAMMARIELLQ. Civil-Law Notary Public in charge of Notarial Registry No.

[There cepecs anemblem of the Civil-Law Notaries " Public Association in and for Salia ]--------

----- SPECIAL NOTARIAL RECORD FOR SIGNATURE AUTHENTICATION - oeeee

[Bercinde } 2 E0A-D000TBA9IE —mmemmmmmemm et e e

I) hf H’) “/”‘» ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

In the city of Salta. capital city of the province of Salta, Argentine Republic, on May twenty-eighth.

two thousand and thivteen, [, Maria_ Amalia MARTINEZ TORRES. Civil-law Notary Public in

horee o N artal Registry number one bundred and thirty six, hereby CERTIFY the authenticity

Cintres o

of e - ol M Carles Fugenio Ponfe. an Argentine citizen, holder of Identity Document

$7461 20, whose identity has beer verified by me pursuant to Section 1002 of

o,
Yo
Z

“
>t

Coile crttna, s amended by Law Noo 26140 upon submission of the pertin Identity
IR b .

Document Iy which T have had ofore me. and which signature has been stamped

ca the foregoing ADDENDUNM TO THE AGREFMENT before me and lurther
oeoriea .~ 0t 8 0o Book # 17, page 198 overleat, Record £ TIRT. 1 attest. | further aftest

d oon behall and in the name of "MERYLILION

oo artos agente PONTE appea

S s T omiaded o Wwvenida ded bertador 6020 Planta Buja CB™L City of Buenos

Ay . Argentine Republic, i his copacty s ATTORNEY-IN-F
Chig existence ol the company. his capacity and sufficient and full auwthoriy to

crocn o resents withs {a) a General and Broad Power of Attorney for disposition and

vt e aod Qetober 11 20110 entered oo Nowariadly Recorded Instrument number




R i and nine by Civil-lnw Notary Public Jeaquin E. URRESTI, duly

. faw Notaries” Public Association inand for the City of Buenos Aires on

coon vith, and further recorded at the Registry of Powers of Attorney of the province ¢

miber 207 pages 958061 wie 605 on Qetober T4, 2011, which instrument |
Piuether state jor rctord 10al  do ot aiest the formor the cuntents

e et
[SALREE (V1

PoNotarial Sheeis 0 13 Q0784994 15 00784993 and B

00784996, respe ’ we date and at the place first above writien. -

CAMALIA MARTINEZ TORRES, CIVIL-LAW NOTARY PUBLIC

-
L

Sl RSN T L 8 SATLT A v o e e

ISeal | MAR Y 1 MMARTELLO. Civil-Law Notary Public in charge of Notarial
Registry St AdOr de JUTTY . mmmr e
Civil-Law Noww P Association m and fOr JUJUY commemm e o s

................................... NOTARIAL RECORID woeammommcmom oo oo

~~~~~~~~ UTHENTICATION OF SIGNATURES wommem e
- - - - e e A 00974811
e fo complete the document ] -

San Salvador de Jujuy. May 28, 2013 --rmmemmommmmmrnnee - S

I MARIA NERA GAMMARIELLO, Civil-Law Notary Public of Notarial

Registry pumber sixtv-seven. with offices at Libertad 343, District of Nieva, City of San Salvador

do Ju the following: ONI: The signature on the instrument attached hereto

RTINS three copies) Bis boen stamped before me by the person whose
e 2 wifted bele. e s i s e

STHEVEA MON fentity Document (DN # 17354539,
DOES NOT ;N theformart ntents of the GoCUMEnt, = semer e s s e
e ets i her own Behiadll e

1R ent requirements and siguture have been simultaneously recorded and entered
o e ook Cpage 102, entry 242, such instrument and book bearing stamp No.
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Schedule "J"
Bragantini Agreement

J-1



CONTRATO

Enire Jorge Alberio Bragantini, DNI 12.601.262, de estado civil casado con
» Vergnica Barba DN 14,814,890, CUIT 20-12601262-5., con domicilio

e <nne 8947, B° Los Perales de la ciudad de San Salvador de Jujuy,
Goontoaoiia por sus propios derechos, en adelante EL TITULAR, por una parte;
v oo o o ra narte Meryllion Argentina S.A, CUIT N° 30-71162871-8, con sede
cooal Lo fwenida Del Libertador ndmero 602, Planga Baja "B", de la Ciudad

i de Buenos Alres, una sociedad constituida bajo las leyes de la
sa Argentina, representada en este acto por el Sr. Carlos Eugenio
Ponte. DRI 23748120, en su caracter de Apoderado de la sociedad, en

ianie MERYLLION, v ambas partes de ahora en adelante denominadas

CONSIDERANDO:

Que MERYLLION es una sociedad constituida de acuerdo con las leyes de

Argentina, inscripia en el Registro Publico de Comercio (Inspeccion General de

Justicia} con fecha 23 de noviembre de 2010, bajo el N° 21860, Libro 52, Tomo

d= Sociedades por Acciones, cuyo objeto principal es la prospeécién,
= on vy desarrollo para su eventual explotacion, de proyectos mineros;

Que 7L es titular de una serie de solicitudes de derechos de cateo de
la primers categoria y Mina por ante el Juzgado Administrativo de Minas de la
ovincia de Jujuy (las Solicitudes de Cateo y Mina), solicitudes que se detallan

sula 1.1 y encuentran graficadas por el Departamento de Registro

srafico en o Catastro Minero del Juzgado mencionado, pero sin concesion a la

fecha .o parie de dicha autoridad,

EL TITULAR declara no tener ninguna prohibicion, interdiccion,
cién de ningtn tipo para disponer de sus bienes y particularmente para

e
o
o

e



disponer sobre los derechos que le asisten sobre las Solicitudes de Cateo, en

el estado procesal en que las mismas se encuentran;

Que MERYLLION es una sociedad que se encuentra interesada en la
prospeccién y exploracion del drea que cubren las Solicitudes de Cateo y Mina,
a los efectos del hallazgo y/o determinacién de las posibles reservas vy

conceniraciones de minerales de la primera categoria;

Que en funcion de los resultados que se obtengan de los est dios
mencionados en el considerando precedente, MERYLLION determin & la,
factibilidad econdmica de la extraccion y explotacién de los min ies\

existentes en las Solicitudes de Cateo y Mina;

Que consecuentemente con 1o expuesto precedentemente, MERYLLION desea
obtener por parte de EL TITULAR, un derecho de prospeccion y exploracion ﬂen
relacion a las Solicitudes de Cateo y Mina, que le permita ingresar, circular
libremente, explorar, tomar muestras y efectuar los analisis y/o estudios que
fueren necesarios para determinar la existencia y posibilidad de
aprovechamiento comercial de los minerales, como asimismo obtener, un
derecho de opcidn de compra de dichas propiedades mineras a un precio fijo,
total y definitivo acordado entre LAS PARTES;

Que a los efectos de asegurar el derecho de prospeccién y exploracién con
opcion de compra, MERYLLION podra inscribir este contrato por ante el

Juzgado Administrativo de Minas de la Provincia de Jujuy;

Que EL TITULAR declara que a la fecha de la firma de este contrato ha
ampliado en todos los casos las solicitudes cateo de la primera categoria a la
segunda, con la finalidad de evitar la manifestacion en su area de derechos de
ia segunda categoria, hecho que se produjo en la solicitud 336-L-2005, tal

como abajo se detalla;

Que en virtud de todo lo expuesto LAS PARTES celebran el presente contrato

{(en adelante el Contrato), que se regira por las siguientes clausulas:



1. DERECHOS PROSPECCION VY EXPLORACION DE LAS
SOLICITUDES DE CATEQ Y MINA

EL TITULAR concede a MERYLLION en forma exclusiva, el derecho de
prospeccion y exploracién de las siguientes Solicitudes de Cateo y Mina,
duranie la vigencia del presente gpntzam a los efectos de la determinacién
principalmente de las reservas y’gbncentractones de minerales en la misma, y
una vez que dichas sopc;tudes obtengan la res;bluc:on de concesién, por parte
d@i Ju?gado Admmrétratwo de Minas bajo el pual se framitan, resolucion que
constxtuye condrc;én ineludible para el comienzo de cual quier actividad de las

amba mencxonadas
i \ 5 ,./

s
[N

véoﬁ;itud de Cateo Expediente 337-1-2005.-

Solicitud de cateo Expediente 244-1-2004 y su agregado 234-1.-2004 -
Solicitud de cateo Expediente 336-1-2005.-

Solicitud de Cateo Expediente 338-1-2005, de 1500 has libres.

Mina Nazarena Expediente 787-L-2007, de 930 has libres.

En relacion a las tres primeras de las solicitudes de cateo antedichas, LAS
PARTES agregan sendas copias de los Informes elaborados por Registro
Gréafico del Juzgado mencionado, donde se mencionan la superficies libres de
los mismos, sus superposiciones, coordenadas y demas datos de interés,
aceptando dichas circunstancias de plena conformidad en lo atinente a la
relacidn entre las partes en cuanto al objeto de este contrato, y sin perjuicio de
fas acciones que consideren pertinente efectuar respecto de las propiedades
gue constituyen las superposiciones apuntadas. Se deja constancia ademas
que el Cateo tramitado bajo expediente 336-L-2005, ha sido objeto en toda su
superficie, de una manifestacion de Mina de la segunda categoria, oro
aluvional, bajo expediente 1452-P-2010, por parte de terceras personas,
solicitud sobre la cual, cualquiera de LAS PARTES firmantes de este contrato

queda legitimada para ejercer los derechos que estime conveniente.

‘A



Asimismo, en funcidn de los resultados que se obtengan de las tareas de
prospeccion y de exploracion a realizar una vez obtenidas las resoluciones de
concesion de las Solicitudes de Cateo y Mina objeto de este contrato,
MERYLLION podra ejercer, a su solo arbitrio, el derecho de opcion de compra
de las Solicitudes de Cateo y Mina enumeradas en la presente Clausula, o de
las Manifestaciones de Descubrimiento de Minas que hubieren cubierto las
areas que comprenden los mismos y que se hubieren presentado conforme los
hallazgos producidos y en funcidn de la preservacidn de las é{eas
comprendidas en las Solicitudes objeto de este Contrato v todo otro de{echo_

que denve de las Solicitudes de Cateo y Mina.

A

LAS PARTES dejan suficientemente aclarado que cada referencia qu §e
realiza en el presente Contrato a las Solicitudes de Cateo y Mina obgeto§jeg
mismo, comprende asimismo a las Manifestaciones de Descubrimiento que se?:
hubieren realizado o se realicen en el futuro en las dreas que los mssmos
cubren, por parte de EL TITULAR. -

LAS PARTES acuerdan que dentro de los NOVENTA 90 dias corridos de
suscripto el Contrato definiran de comin acuerdo la de zona de influencia
dentro de fa cual EL TITULAR declare no tener otros derechos y se
comprometa a incluir dentro de este Contrato cualguier ofro derecho que dentro
de dicha area tenga o adquiera en el futuro, mientras dure el plazo para ejercer
¢l derecho de opcion de c:c:mn;*:ﬁrax tomandose como referencia un area

aproximada de 5 km.
2. PAGOS A EL TITULAR

En contraprestacién por el otorgamiento del Derecho de prospeccion y
exploracion y el Derecho de opcion de compra oforgado sobre las Solicitudes
de Cateo, MERYLLION realizara los siguientes pagos a EL TITULAR:

24 Al momento de la firma de este Contrato, el equivalente en moneda de
curse legal de la suma de U$S 10.000 (DOLARES ESTADOUNIDENSES DIEZ
MIL), v siempre que la Sra. esposa de EL TITULAR haya manifestado su

consentimiento a los efectos del articulo 1.277 del Cédigo Civil.



2 A Jos doce meses de la firma de este Contrato, el equivalente en
moneda de curso legal de la suma de U$S 25.000.-, (délares americanos
veinticinco mil).

2.3 Alos veinticuatro meses de la firma de este Contrato, el equivalente en
moneda de curso legal de la suma de U$S 50.000.-, (délares americanos
cincuenta mil}.

Z4  Alos treinta y,,sexs S meses de a firma de este Conlrato, e equivalente en
mmeda de curs;)’ legal de la su’ma de USS 75.000.-, (dolares americanos
setﬁnta y cmco m;i) /f’

2. ﬁ Alos cuarenta y ocho meses de la firma de este Conirato, el equivalente
en’ iy *’T‘Oﬂﬁ%’db curso legal de iz suma de U$S 100.000 .-, (dblares americanos
£n todos los pagos que deban llevarse a caho por el presente Contrato, se
respetara lo dispuesto por la normativa vigente al momento del mismo en
relacion a cuestiones civiles, bancarias e impositivas, especialmente lo
dispuesto en relacion a la obligatoriedad de la utilizacion de métodos bancarios
conforme la normativa antievasion, retencidén de impuestos sobre los pagos, v
toda otra resolucion o norma concordante, En caso que resulte obligatorio el
pago de alguna suma en pesos argentinos, se debera convertir el importe en
dolares estadounidenses de que se frate a pesos argentinos segin la
cotizacidn del ddlar estadounidense del Banco de la Nacidén Argentina para la
venta al cierre de operaciones del dia habil anterior a la fecha de pago. Contra
entrega del pago, cheque o exhibicidon de la boleta de depdsito pertinente EL
TITULAR se obliga a extender recibo de pago suficiente.

Obligacion de Inversion Minima: MERYLLION se obliga a invertir un minimo,
equivaiente en moneda de curso legal, de U$5100.000.- (dolares
estadounidenses cien mil) en las Solicitudes de Cateo y Mina, en el plazo de un
afio contado desde la concesion de los mismos a El TITULAR por parte del

.zgado Administrativo de Minas. En el computo de dicho monto, solo se
consideraran los gastos efectivamente realizados en lareas de campo de

prospeccion o exploracion.



Se deje aclarado gue los pagos siguienies al establecido para el momeénto de la
firma en la clausula 2.1, asi como la inversidon minima, quedan sujetos a que
los cateos sean concedidos. Si alguno de los cateos fuere rechazado y no
cencedido en forma definitiva por el Juzgado, MERYLLION debera definir si
rescinde el presente Contrato o continta efectuandco los pagos pactados y
flevando a cabo las tareas conducentes al cumplimiento con la inversién
minima, aclarandose que dicha circunsiancia no le dara derecho a producir
ninguna modificacion en las condiciones pactadas en relacion al precio a pagar

por las propiedades objeto de este Contrato. X
3. PLAZO - DERECHO DE OPCION DE COMPRA § g

Este Contrato tiene una vigencia de 5 afios desde la fecha de su firma. |

s

En cuaiquier momento durante la vigencia del presente Contrato, MER
podra ejercer la opcidn de compra de las Solicitudes de Cateo (.
bastando a tal efecto la notificacion fehaciente en tal sentido a EL T%TUf&gR en

el domicilio fijado en éste Contrato.
4. DEL PRECIO

El precio de opcién de compra de las Solicitudes de Cateo, se fija en el
equivalente en moneda de curso legal de la suma de U$S 1.000.000 (délares
americanos un millén). Una vez ejercida la opcidn de compra por parte de
MERYLLION, los pagos ya efectuados en contraprestacion del Derecho de
prospeccion y exploracion y el Derecho de opcién de compra de las Solicitudes
de Cateo, seran considerados como realizados a cuenta del precio fijado; el
saldo hasta completar el precio convenido, se abonard dentro de los treinta
dias de eijercida la opcidn y contra la firma de la Escritura a la cual hace

referencia la clausula 6.-
5. wEGALIA AFAVOR DE EL TITULAR

Se -wablece a favor de EL TITULAR una regalia del 1% del reforno neto de
undicion del producido de las Solicitudes de Cateo, en el casc que estas
entten en produccion. Sobre dicha regalia MERYLLION podra ejercer una




opcion de compra a su solo arbitrio y decisidn, y en cualquier momento, p

monto equivalente en moneda de curso legal a la suma de U$S 500.000.-
(dolares americanos quinientos mil). La regalia no constituye parte del precio
establecido en el Punto 4 de este contrato, constituyendo una obligacién de
naturaleza distinta a dicho concepto vy queda sujeta al alea de que MERYLLION

decida eventualmente poner en produccion las Solicitudes de Cateo y Mina.

6. OBLIGACION DE ESCRITURAR--._
/,

E}G(C do el dere;mo de opcién de compra por parte de MERYLLION, EL

TULAR se o,bisga a suscribir la esc;‘itura traslativa de dominio pertinente, asi
co {.uaiqufer otra documentacsén que fuere necesaria, a los fines de
traﬁsferar }as Solicitudes de Caieo a favor de MERYLLION. MERYLLION
comumcara fehacientemente la designacion del Escribano, y el lugar, dia v
hora de la suscripcion escrituraria. Todos los costos, gastos y honorarios seran
a costa de MERYLLION.-

7. AlaPARO MINERO

EL TITULAR se compromete a levar a cabo todas las obligaciones emergentes
de su condicion de solicitante en las Solicitudes de Cateo, debiendo realizar

dos los tramites legales y administrativos y llevar a cabo la vigilancia y
verificacion de sus expedientes, asi como impulsar su tréamite y preservar su
vigencia y titularidad. Otorga ademas por el presente autorizacion suficiente a
los fines de posibilitar que MERYLLION participe a través de las personas que
considere necesario, con legitimacion suficiente en los tramites antedichos y en
el mantenimiento de su vigencia, comprometiéndose a suscribir los
documentos que fueren necesarios a ftal fin (incluyendo, sin limitacion,
poderes). La obtencidn de los permisos ambientales, y la negociacion vy
obtencién de acuerdos con los superficiarios y comunidades originarias es a
cargo de MERYLLION.

8. OTRAS OBLIGACIONES DE EL TITULAR DURANTE LA VIGENCIA
CONTRATO

|

b V;;\E
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crear rmitira la creacion de gravamenes, presentes o
futuros sobre las Solicitudes de Cateo y Mina, ni negociara, ni dispondra de
ofra foraa gue el presente Contrato sus derechos sobre las mismas. El término
“gravamen” incluye cualquier hipoteca, prenda, carga, cesion, derecho real de
garantia, derecho personal, derecho de preferencia, acuerdo de fideicomiso y/o
privilegio de cualquier tipo. Si no obstante, a pesar de todas las prevenciones
puestas por EL TITULAR durante la vigencia de este Conirato, se llegase
directa o indirectamente a trabar embargo judicial o cualquier otra medida
cautelar sobre las Solicitudes de Catec y Mina, se compromete a tevat?tar las
mismas de inmediato.

'E
8.2 Cuando fuere necesario establecer servidumbre sobre predi
superficiales, MERYLLION instruira a EL TITULAR respecto de la da%se de‘
servidumbre requerida, suministrandole la informacion técnica necesanq para
que esta gestione ante el Juzgado de Minas y la Admimstrac:ton S

otorgamiento. Los costos resultantes ser n a cargo de MERYLLION.-

3 EL TITULAR se encuentra inhibido para disponer las Solicitudes de Cateo y
Mina favor de terceros distintos de Meryllion. La mencionada inhibicion deberé

ser registrada ante el Juzgado Administrativo de Minas de la Provincia de

Jujuy.
9. FACULTAD DE RESCINDIR

MERYLLION podra en cualquier momento rescindir el presente Contrato,
comunicando a EL TITULAR su decisién con una anticipacién no menor de
QUINCE (15) dias. Al vencimiento de dicho plazo, el presente Contrato
quedara rescindido, debiendo MERYLLION restituir ios derechos y la posesion
sobre las Solicitudes de Cateo y Mina. libres de ocupantes, sin que por elio
ninguna de las partes tenga derecho a reclamar indemnizacion alguna, sea por
dafio emergente, lucro cesante o cualquier otra causa, aceptando que los
pagos efectuados y recibidos por EL TITULAR quedaran a su exclusivo
beneficio como total, Unica y definitiva indemnizacion y entendiendose que
MERYLLION no debe realizar ningiin otro pago por ningln concepto en el
futuro. En el caso gue MERYLLION ejerza esta facultad de rescindir, debera

re



entregar a EL TITULAR toda la informacion obtenida en el curso de la
exploracion de LA MINA, asi como todas las muestras, testigos de perforacion

y todo otfro slemento o informe generado.
10, DB PAGO DEL CANON

A partic de |a firma de éste Contrato es a cargo de MERYLLION la obligacion

del pago del canon, si correspondiera.-
11. INCUMPLIMIENTO

Si una parte no cumple (PART INCUMPLIDORA) con cualguiera de las
obligaciones impuestas a la miﬁﬁwa por este Contrato, la otra parte (PARTE
CUMPLIDORA), le cursard una nofificacion por escrito denunciando su
incumplimiento, especificando la naturaleza del mismo e intimando su
subsanacion dentro del plazo de QUINCE (15) dias de recibida la notificacion.

Si una vez transcurridos los QUINCE {15) dias desde la fecha de notificacion

segun la clausula anterior:
a} el incump imiento no se hubiere subsanado; 6
b} el incumplimiento no pudiere subsanarse,

La PARTE CUMPLIDORA podra optar a su exclusivo criterio entre (i) exigir su
cumplimiento, (it} aplicar la penalidad especificamente prevista en el Contrato o
(iiiy dar por rescindido el presente Contrato, pudiendo en cualquier caso iniciar
las acciones legales pertinentes y reclamar por los dafios y perjuicios

ocasionados.-

12. CESION

MERYLLION podrd ceder o transferir parcial o totalmente los derechos y
ol nes emergentes del presente Contrato, debiendo notificar por escrito a
Ei TITULAR su decisidn, quedando solidariamente obligada con el Cesionario

por ias obligaciones asumidas en este Contrato.-



EL TITULAR podra ceder la titularidad de Jas Solicitudes de Cateo y Mina y los
efectos del presente Contrato, debiendo siempre contar a tal fin con la
conformidad previa y escrita de MERYLLION, la cual no podra ser denegada

sin motivos razonables v fundados.

Froducida la mencionada cesién, y no obstante contar con la conformidad
manifestada por MERYLLION en forma previa y por escrito, el cesionario
continuara sujeto a las mismas obligaciones y derechos que EL T%Ti)LAR, Y
sin que esto modifique en forma alguna todos v cada uno de los derechos y

facultades que por este Contrato se otorgan a MERYLLION.
13. OBLIGACIONES AMBIENTALES Y DE CONFIDENCIALIDAD

MERYLLION sz obliga a cumplimentar todas y cada una de las obhgac;ones |
mpuestas por la ley 24.585 incorporada al Cédigo de Mineria, asi co% }oda [N
norma reglamentaria y complementaria de la misma de la Provincia de Jum{
manteniendo indemne a EL TITULAR de cualquier consecuencia e la
actividad exploratoria que llevara a cabo en el area cubierta por las Solicitudes

de Cateo v Mina. Asimismo se compromete a no realizar ninguna actividad de
exploracion o prospeccion en forma previa a la obtencién de los permisos

ambientales correspondientes.

MERYLLION no sera responsab obligacion, efecto o situacion
ambiental derivada o motivada por hechos o circunstancias de causa o titulo
anterior a {a firma de este Contrato ¢ que siendo posteriores a la firma del
mismo no hubiesen sido ejecutadas por MERYLLION, debiendo EL TITULAR
manteneria indemne de cualquier responsabilidad por tales motivos. A tales
fines, MERYLLION debera realizar una linea de base ambiental sobre las
propiedades objeto de este Contrato, a fin de verificar una situacion de inicio

sobre las mismas.

LAS PARTES se cbligan a no publicar o revelar de cualquier otra manera la a
ninguna persona o entidad, de ninguna forma, incluyendo fotocopias, facsimil o
cualquier ofro tipo de reproduccion, sin fa previa autorizacion dada por escrito
por la otra parte las condiciones de este Contrato, comprometiendose a no

’?
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las mismas salvo obligaciones en tal sentido impuestas por la ley, u

obligaciones impositivas o bursatiles.

Asimismo, EL TITULAR se obliga a mantener en estricta confidencialidad todos
los documentos e informacidon de cualquier fipo que obtenga en relacién o
corno consecuencia del presente Conirato, asi como todos los documentos e
informacion de cua!quzer tipo vinculados con las actividades llevadas a cabo
pofr NERYWDN E\c?)\nsecuenma no revelara ni permitira la revelacion de la
mfa;rmaz:mn mencionada ‘\en ningin  momento, salvo que cuente con
autori zab én expresa de MEﬁRYLLiON

h;mmc;xczcwss

E /;‘
e /,./’ . » ) .
Toda notificacion, feclamo u otra comunicacién a realizar en virfud de este
contrato, se efectuara por escrito y se considerard cumplida debidamente si se

la hace por medio fehaciente, a los siguientes domicilios:

MERYLLION: Av. Del Liberiador 602, Planta Baja “B" - (1001) Ciudad

Autdnoma de Buenos Aires -

EL TITULAR: Guido Spano 947, B® Los Perales de la ciudad de San Salvador
de Jujuy -

Cada Parte podra cambiar de domicilio dentro de la Republica Argentina
medianie aviso de dicho cambio de modo fehaciente a la otra Parte, con

efectos en forma inmediata. -
15. DE LA TOMA DE POSESION

EL TITULAR otorga de pleno derecho a MERYLLION la posesion de las
Solicitudes de Cateo al mismo momento de obtener la resolucion que declare
como concedidos sus derechos sobre las mismas, y siempre y cuando se haya

efectuado el pago previsto en el punto 2.1

16. HOMOLOGACION Y JURISDICCION



Cualguiega de las partes olicitar fa homologacion judicial del presente
Contrato.

Los confratantes, se solneten por cualquier contienda judicial, a la
jurisdiccion de los. Teburdfes Ordinarios de la Ciudad de Jujuy, renunciando a

cuaiquier otro fuero que les pudiere corresponder.

En la Ciudad de Salta, a los 11 dias del mes de Julio de 2012, se suscrib  tres
giemplares de un mismo tenor v a un solo efecto, uno para cada una d b

PARTES vy otro para su inscripcion por ante el Juzgado Administrativo de
de la Provincia de Jujuy.-

.
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En s ciudad de Salta, Capital de la Provincia del mismo nombre, Republica Argeating, a los

e Jubo d:l ano dos mil doce, quien suser Maria Amalia

i

TIRNEZCTORRES, en oms cwraddter de Eseribana Titular del Registro Notarial ndmero cwenio

CERTINICCY Qm Jas firmas puestas en CONTRATO - CROQUUS. DE

BICACION, ~op audeniicas do lax siguientes personas: Jorge Alberto BRAGANTIN], argen-

sral Jdedentdad ntimere 12,601,262, Marcela Verdnica

v del Drscumonto !

al de Kentidad numero 14614890 v ¢f se~

Tar del Documenio Ko

L Hitilar det Documento Nacional de Identidad numero

23,746,120, porsonas  gquiones sdentifique L onforme al Articulo 1002 det Codigo Civi,, modi-

con tos N vnalesde Kdenbdad gue tengo a

M presency ma sinidtanes on o} mentado instras
P Rt e prane N ES Polio 218, 214 v 22, Actas NP T273, 1280

¢y como and L

b devide TANTING v ia woio-

ra Marcela Verdnics BARBA, concurren  a este acto por sus propios y personales derechos;

v eore s Carles Bugenio PONTE, concarre ¢ este aclo én nombre y represcnta.

SMERYLLIOW AR 7, con domiciiio kgal en Avenida Libertador

SR e da Cluda? T fuenos Alres, Capital de fa Republica Arzentinu

4 ~uiedad, su personeria, gt~

a) Escritura Pablica numero mil ochocierdos

ctubre det

ror e esoribana do fa Cludad de Buenos Arres, Joaquin B URRESTL el que tu

debidamente jegalizado por ef Colegio do Esenbanoes de Ta Ciudad de Buenos Asre, : fe-
chay @ nsr Rewsstre Jo Mandatos de este Provincia de Salta bajo o N° 307, a ojas
557965, del Tomo 2011, Elmstrumento mencionado se

para este acto, doy fe- La suserip seribana deja constancia que no da
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Schedule "K"'
Amendment to the Bragantini Agreement, With Translation




ADDENDA CONTRATO DE PROSPECCIONY EXPLORACION CON OPCION

DE COMPRA
e Brade. NI 12.601.262, de estado civil casado con Marcela

Saronica Boaroa OND 14514.880, CUIT 20-12601262-5., con domicilio en Guido

Spanc 7 :wida cludad de San Salvador de Jujuy, quien aclaa por
sus © mios . oohos, en adelante EL TITULAR, por una parte; y por la olra parte

%

. 8 Tiiem e & .
BTN Arge

na SLAL, DUT N® 30-71182871-8, con sede social en Avenida Del
502, Canta Baja ‘B, de la Ciudad Auténoma de Buenos Adres,

Libertador ninmam

iuida sajo las leyes de la Republica Argentina, representada
e v .cto sor o 8r. Carlos Eugenio Ponte, DNI 23.745.120, en su caracter de
Apoderade de fa »oc.odad, en adelante MERYLLION, y ambas partes de ahora en

adelanie denominadas conjuntamente LAS PARTES, y

Que con fecha 20 de Julio de 2012 LAS PARTES han suscripto un contrato de
prospeceoion y exploracion con opcidn de compra {en adelante EL CONTRATQ),

el reiacion a las siguientes propiedades mineras:
Solicitud de Cateo Expediente 337-1-2005.-

Sclicitud de cateo Expediente 244-1.-2004 y su agregado 234-L-2004 .-

fust tie cateo Expediente 336-L-2005.-
Soficiiud e Cateo Expedients 338-1-2005, de 1500 has libres,
Minz Neazarena Expediente 787-L-2007, de 830 has libres.

Que iz situacion internacional de baja del precio de los Comodities, y la crisis en
ias Bolszs Inferncoionales traducido en la baja de interés en la inversidén en
proyecios de prospeccion y exploracion mineros, ha generado graves problemas

de {inerciamiento para los proyectos en curso de ejecucién en general en la

—
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los pagos establecidos en esta clausula 2.2 se reflejern en la cuenta de EL

TITULAR en dolares billetes estadounidenses.

los veiriticuztro meses de la w L CONTRATO, el eguivalente en
moneds’ de curso legal de la suma de US$S 25.000.-, (d6lares americanos

o .
veinlicnco mi).

eses de iz firma de EL CONT
muneda de curso la suma de la suma de U$S 50.000.-, (dblares

smericanos cincuenta mil).

25  Alos cuarenia
en moneda de curso legal de la suma de | ., {délares

americanos satenia y cinco mil),

2.8 A los sesenta meses de la firma de EL CONTRATO, el equivalente en
nonedsa de curso legal de la suma de U$S 100.000.-, (dblares americanos cien

mil).

Obligacion de Inversion Minima: MERYLLION se obliga a invertir un minimo de
U$S100.200.- (dblares cien mil) en las Solicitudes de Cateo, durante el plazo de
vigericiz 1o ZL CONTRATO y desde la concesifn de los mismos a El TITULAR
por ~0- el Juzgado Administrativo de Minas. En el cdmputo de dicho monto,
solo se considerarén jos gastos efectivamenie realizados en tareas de campo de

prospeccion o exploracion.

ndo: Modificase el plazo de vigencia previstc e la Clausula 3.PLAZO -

[E OPCION DE COMPRA, el cus! se considera a partir de ia firma del

presenia de 8 afios, v el precio de upcidn de compra previsto en la clausula 4.



DEL PRECIO, e cual se considera a partir de ta firma del presente por un monto
de USS 1.010.000.- {déia@#uwmiﬁén”diez\mi}).—

ooSe sonsiancia gus o resie usiulas obranies en EL
RATO tfienen plena vigencia conforme « u redaccidn original. La redaceion
esta ADDENDA de las cldusulas 2. PAGOS A EL TITULAR vy la
'ﬁcac@én al plazo de vigencia por seis afios, asi como el precio de Ia opcion de
gompra, fienen supremacia sobre cuslguier otra clausula de EL CONTRATO que

recule G conbiadiga lo por ellas dispuesto.

Marcela Veronica Barba DNI 14.614.880, CUIT 20-12801262-5., con
domicilio en Guido Spano 847, B°Los Perales de la ciudad de San Salvador de
Jujuy, presta en este acto el pertinente asentimiento conyugal en los términos del
Art 1.277 del Codigo Civil a la presente Addenda.

En la Ciudad de Salta, a los 10 dias del mes de Julio de 2013, se suscriben tres
gjemplares de un mismo tenor v a un solo efecto, uno para cada una de LAS
PARTES vy ofro para su inscripcién por ante el Juzgado Administrativo de Minas de

la Provincia de Jujuy.-

%
B



5

4 presen-

g,

¥

2 expide |

mero B Q0820250

o3
=

ntenido del acto.~ Se agroga Foja de Actua.

O

fe dela forma wi del ¢

<3 <3

4
H

HO T

‘Lq

:
‘
+
3
3
H

o
ol b

b
o



3 00820248

, Capital de la !»‘ﬂw;\;cib?in o nombre, Republica Argenting, a los
S . f LI L R T enalia
MARTINEZ TORRES, ¢n mi cardcier de Bsc Titnlar del Regisiro Notarial niimero ciento
Tt e e TS Qe fes ADDENDA CONTRATO DE

MY EXPLORACION CON OPCLON DDE COMPRA, son auténticas de las signien-

tilad " onoro 126002 wending, T tular del Documento Na-

Calo i alas s TEATLNED vy ey Carke win PONUL, argentino, Tiular

I Decumenio Nacional de Identidad numero 25.746.120, personas a quienes identifiqué

conforme al Articule 1002 ded Ofdizo Civil - 20 1 Ty NO 26,140, con {os respectivas

documentos Nacional de Jdontidad que tenzo g mi vista, por haber sido puestas en mi presen-
cia on forma simallancs on of moentads instrumento v on ¢ Libro de Registro de firmas NO 18, .
iivg 2y T0WEHA, Actas NYS, O v 58, doy fo; como asi tambidn la doy de que e} sehor Jorge Al

AGANTING v Iz wofiors Marrels Yordnice BARRA oo

Fron A ozl acle por sus pro-

pios v personales derechos; muentras que o sefior Carlos Fugenio PONTE, concurre # este aclo

<

s motabre v oreproentaciaa de L Semar SMRRYLLION ARCEMTINA 8 A7, con domicitio fegal

¢ Lida Libertador numero 802, Planta Baja “B” de la Cludad de Buenos Adres, Capital de l

Republica Argentingionsucardoterde 4 F R b

personeria, legittimacion v habilidad suficiente parg oste 2o cont 2) Lscritura Publica nu-

S e e e e O et s ph Tt e Dy Teismanicndy, de fecha
Octubre det ann 2071, aforizada por la eseribana de Ja Ciudad de Bucnos Aires, Joao

2z quin £, URRESTE, of gue fu debidamoente kgalizado por el Colegio de Bscribanos de iz Cludad
de Bucnos Aires en igual fecha; ¢ inscripto en Registro de Mandatos de esta Provincia de Saita

} 7y, del Tome 808, en frcha 14 de Qotubre del afio 2031, B ing-

encuentra a mi este acto, doy fe.- La suscripta eso
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c pages. there appear sicnain s There oppoor ane signature and one

5 NS il oty U OEN Thea v ‘x’;”.f’(:i.\f:"l\-f:
cOMARDY Aty RTINEZ VORRES Civiled o w Public in o rge of hotarial
JROOTHTIV DL 4 00, U Thl  ommmmm s a5 S B B S R
[ 7T ca eal } Civil-Law Notaries” Public Assoclation in and Tor
‘ D NI UGN, e m e s i e
DENDUAM L ONPLORATION AGREEMENT WITH OPTION TO PURCHASE ----

Thiv ~idendirn s m ‘nto by and between Jo ¢ Bragantini, holder of Identity
Docoment (DN « 12601262, maried to Mrs, Marcela Verdnica Barba, holder of Identit
Daocument ¢ © 14614890, Taxpaver 1D (CUITY 20-12601262-3, with domicile at Guido

~os Perales, of San Salvador de Juiuy. acting on his own behalf, hereinafter the

=0

UNERT L Merylion Argentina S.A., Taxpayer 1D (CULT) 30-71162871-8, with domicile at

Avenids dob 7 ibertador 602, PR BT, City of Buenos Alres, a corporation organized and existing
under the fnas of the Arpentine Republic. represented for the purposes hereof by by Mr. Carlos

Ponee, his capacity as Attorney-in-fact, hereinafter. “MERYLLION”, and jointly

WHERP A~ 4012, the PARTIFS entered into an Exploration Agreement with Option to

Purchise 7L SCRTPUNENTY b0 tion o the inHowing mining properies: ———s------ .
Apphic ting Penmit Dossier 337-L-2008 commmrenmmmm oo
o frospeating Permit, Dossier 244-1-2004 and ancillary dosster 23412004, ---emmeme

oxpecting Permit, Dossier 336- [ 4§ A — P s B 3 -
ing Permit, Dossier 338-1.-2005 concerning 1,300 upused heetares, and -~
St L2007, cancomy 930 unused heotares, ——-  semememmenee



Uy uoratona J ol in comirodiies oo and the International Stock

ere. isis causing a drop in investments in mining prospeciion and exploration projects have

S unding difficulties o projecis under implementation, in general to mining

' PARTIES desire o o snd amend section 2. PAYMENTS TO THE

s Sy
the oy

cf o order tooadiust what bas owen e cod o aarent eircumstness so that

petavoon Lo PARTIES ander -0 lreement may continie to exist in the bejies
“ i Doth PARTIES 0 v s -
w. therefore, the PARTIES HERETO AGREE AS FOLLOWS: -

whon 2. PAYMENTS TO THE OWNER of the Agreement shall be amended o read as

PAVMENTR TO THE OWNER oo e e - - e
-ideration of @ right to prospect and explore, and an option to purchase both awarded over the

applications ecting permit, MERYLLION shall effect the following payments (o the

2.1 Upon exec of the AGREEMENT iy 200 20120 the amount of USD 10,000 (1en

thousand United Staes dollars) shall be paid duly translated into legal tender, Such

wnt .duly made i azreement of the PARTIES cove e e

jRN]
ok

ahs from execulion of the AGRELMENT. the amount of USDT0.000 ven

ATIEr V0 Vo i

*

thousand T aited v ates dollars) shall be paid as follows: USD 5.000 (five thousand United S«

ansler o the sovings account in United States Jdoilurs kept at Bance  ranc

DIRUHERY Yoot 61452077, CBU (D number for banking  fransucn

<2077 i the name of the OWNER within five days from exccuiion
WDkND UM, and the vemamimg USD 3.000 (five thousand United States dollars) by wire transter
the same savings account within minety days from execution of this ADDENDUM, It is a smwe
frai o Tov ADDENDUM that pavments veferred o in thils seeuon 2.2 be made anc

1 the aecount of 7 DIWNE R seevme et s e

s o oaceution of the AGREDNMENT. the amount of USD 25,600 (twent-

ad o i shall be patd duly mosstared into Argenting’s legal tender, --oe



NT, the amount of USD 50,000 (fifty

AU i e ONRS COET UNCoHion

fied 1 oo dollarsy shall be paid duly » Argentina’s legal ender, -eeeee-

25 nonths from execudon of the AGREEMENT! the amount of USD 75,000
eIt Uinjted States dollarsy <hall b whated Into Argentings

2o O e wubon o e WG et of USD 100000 (one

pundred s wand cnned Stages dotlarsy shadi be paid duiy ganswied into Argenting’s legal wender, -

Minimug Ipvestment Obligndon: MERYLLION werecs to invest o minimum amount of

et empand Tinited States dolhars) in the Applications for Prospecting Permit

(AESREF IR
SGREEMENT wd o thie o ord of such permits to the OWNER oy

e my Cowrt. Such mvesunent shall only be allocated 1o expenses efifcctively

: loration field warks, - -

Twor The terim set out in Section 3. TERM - OPTION TO PURCHASE shall be amended and
fixed at 6 vears as from execution hereol, and the option-to-purchase price established in scction 4.

PRICE shall be amended and fixed at USD 1.010.000 (one million ten thousand United States

Phreer U wated for reeord that the remaining sections of the AGREEMENT shall remain in full

force and eficer us originally drafted. The versions herein contained of sections 2. PAYMENTS

TO THE OWNER and the amendment for a six-year term and the amendment to the option-to-

wrchase price sha veval over any other seection of the AGREEMENT that may 1
SSUL OF 0 PWISC. - e

Fourr Marco V0 dnica Barbal holder of Identity Document (’?ﬂ}.}\}.l.} # 14614890, xpayer 1D
(CU 2~ a0~ wvith domicile at Guido Spano 947, Los Perales. City of San Salvador &
Cuzreement to this Addendum pursuant o section 1277 of the Civil Code

I witness whereof, the PARTIVS wign three copies of this Addendum in the City of Salta, for
cach of the PARTIES and another copy (o ne submined to and filed 0 5 the Admnisorve M

Court inand for the provinge of JUIUy . wemere smsmmssm e o e e s

et
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and 10 overleal Records Nos. 8.9, © |, Notarial Sheet BOOS20250, Salia, Julv

b

e

13
SuTs

P15 s et NARIA AMALTA MARTINEZ TORRES. Civil-Law Notary Public in

ahiearop, Civil-Leny Notarivs” Public Association in and for Salta}--

NOTARIAL RECORD FOR SICNATURE HENTICATION ovmene

I he sulia, capital city of the province of Sultn. Argentine Republic, on sixteenth day of

Ty, Lo wandd and thirteen, 1 Mardia Amalia MARTINEZ TORRES, Civil-law Notary Public

Notarial Registry number one hundred and thirty six, hereby CERTIFY the

Y Charge

anthontics o stenatures of Mr. Jorge Alberto Bragantini. an Argentine citizen, holder of

sdentivy wocument (DN # 12601202, Mrs, Marcela Verdnica Barba. an Argentine eitizen,

holder of Identity Document (DN # 14614890, an Argentine citizen. and of Mr. Carlos Eugenio
Pante, an Argentine citizen, holder of Identity Document (DN.L) # 23746120, whose identities
have been xeked by me pursuant to Section 1002 of the Civil Code of Argentina. as amended by
Law Noo "5 against the pertinent [dentity Documents (D.NLL) which | have had before me. and
© have been sumped simublancously on the foregoing ADDENDUM 10

NOAGREEMENT WITH OPTION TO PURCHASE before me and

- n

oo Record Book # 1R, oo T and "8 overfoafl, Records Nos, 8.9, 58, Lutest |
2K iroJerge Alberte Braganting ud Mrso Mareela Verdniea Barba appeared on

and N Carvles Eugenio PONTE appeared on behalf

CAERY ARGENTINA 8A”, domiciicd at Avenida del Libertador 602, Planta Bajs

v os vres capital eity of the Arvcentine Republic, in his capacity as ATTORNEY-IN-
v oo oxiswenee of L ompan T d full autom

anid Beoad Power of Attomey for disposiuon

S Lo FUNUIES WD (A a e

prrvioment mal duleg ser 11 2000 petrized by Crvil-law Notary Public Josquin B
URRIESH ciros Adres. and duly authesticated by the Civil-law Notaries” Public

ST Ruenos oot on oo il erewith, and further recorded a1 1l



Ty © ey of the province o Salta uncer number 307, pages 985963, Volume

cuooeer s Toowhich instrument | have had botore mel Dattest, T further state for record
et e « 1he form or the contents of the said act. Three copies are issued under Special

IS B OGO820249, and B 00820250, respectively. These presents are

¢ ahove writien. --
[Nignature wid . MALLA MARTINEZ TORRES, CIVIHALAW NOTARY PUBLIC

in charge of Notarial Registey # 136, SALTA v s e

[=3

uppes a ' Dablic Association m and for Salta:
O0260%05: {60 2013 Authenticatin e e i o
B P of Notartes Public of a; Series C 02861939; zero two eight six one

nNE Ures

L Notaries” Public Association in and for Salta----—reemomm oo

e AUTHENTICATION commmmm s o m st
Notaries™ Public Association - Salta, Argentine Republic, under the
« .aw No. 3343, hereby CERTIFIES the authentieity of the signature and seal of Mg,

it

Vi Martines Torres stamped on the foregoing instru der number A 00266903 of

Tho b 1o the contents or the form of the document. ~—----mvme

Nt Rosana Elizabeth de 1. Famer, Civii-Law Notary Vating
"':!'\,’ o et a ar e e e s et T s o 8 4 4 5 X AT 8 0 4 SR e S s -

C el Civil-law Notaries Public of Argent



THIS IS A TRUE AND IRATE TRANSLATION from Spanish into English of the document
attached hereto. wh sad betore me. City of Buenos Alres, August 7, 20130 sroomrmmmmenccer

BY TRADUCCIC

NOFIEL al whon NN T <

Ciudad de Buenos Adres. 7 de - (A2 3517 ececmmmmmmesares cmeem s .

oy



